PROSPECTUS
Dated: April 28, 2025
Please read Section 2thd 320f the Companies Act, 2013

(Please scan this QR Code to view thespectuy 100 % Fixed Price Issue
®

mANoJ

JEWELLERS LTD
MANOJ JEWELLERS LIMITED

Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U52393TN2007PLC064834

REGISTERED OFFICE CONTACT EMAIL AND TELEPHONE WEBSITE
PERSON
No. 59, NSC Bose Roa( Ms. Vaneeta Khanna| E-mail: https://manojjewellerslimited.
Sowcarpet, Chennai, Tan] Company Secretary & cs@manojjewellerslimited.com | com/
Nadu- 600079 Compliance Officer Tel No.: 0447 4204 9741

PROMOTERS: MR. MANOJ KUMAR , MS. RAJ KUMARI , MR. SUNIL SHANTILAL AND MS. SHALU

DETAILS OF THE ISSUE

TYPE FRESH ISSUE OFFER FOR TOTAL ISSUE ELIGIBILITY 229(1) / 229(2) & SHARE
SIZE SALE SIZE RESERVATION AMONG NIl & RII
Fresh Issue| 30,00000 N.A. 30,0Q000 Equity | The Issue is being made pursuant to Regulal
Equity  Shares Shares aggregatin 229(1) of SEBI ICDR Regulations as the
aggregating to to 1,620Lakhs | Companyds post i s doesnot
1,620Lakhs exceed 10. 00 Crores.

DETAILS OF OFFER FOR SALE, SELLING SHAREHOLDERS AND THEIR AVERAGE COST OF ACQUISITION -
NOT APPLICABLE AS THE ENTIRE ISSUE CONSTITUES FRESH ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES

RISKS IN RELATION TO FIRST ISSUE

This being the first public issue of our Company, there has been no formal market for the Equity Shares of our Corapamalid@efthe Equit)
Sharesis Rs. 10 each. The Issue Pricdtimnes of the face value of the Equity Shares. The Issue Price as determined by our Company in g
withthe LM and asstatedundeB a s i s f o begihnmgompage’Fshoultnetde considered to be indicative of the market price
Equity Shares after the Equity Shares are listed. No assurance can be given regarding an active and/or sustainiee EqditygShares ng
regarding the price at which the Equétyares will be traded after listing.

GENERAL RISKS

Investments in equity and equiglated securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds in this Issue unles
afford to take the risk of losing their entire investment. Investors are advised to read the riskafeftitydoefore taking an investment decision
this Issue. For taking an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the Issuer and thiglisguthgimisks involved
The Equity Shares have not been recommended or apprgvedt he Secur i ti es &ERIO )Ex cnhoarn gdeo eBso
accuracy or adequacy of the contents of this Prospectus. Specific attention of the investors igiirRitedstdk  Beginingrompage28.

COMPANYO®S ABSOLUTE RESPONSIBILTY

Our Company, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this Prospectusrdontaatialivith regard
to our Company and this Issue, which is material in the context of this Issue, that the informatieu dortitégrProspectus is true and correct i
material aspects and is not misleading in any material respect, that the opinions and intentions expressed hergirhale &iothéistt there a
no other facts, the omission of which makes this Peagpas a whole or any of such information or the expression of any such opinions or in
misleading in any material respect.

LISTING

The Equity Shares offered through the Prospectus are proposed to be listed on the SME Platform of BGE LisnfeH .M Edmjpany haj
received imprinciple approval from BSE for listing of the Equity Shares pursuant to its letteFdatedryl4, 2025For the purposes of this Issy
BSE shall be the Designated Stock Exchange. A signed copy of the Prospectus shall be filed with the RoC in accordziocs 2éi4pef the
Companies Act, 2013. For details of the material contracts and documeatseaf@ilinspection from the date of the Prospectus up to the|
Cl osi ng MBteral @ontracts enel Datuments for Inspectio® b e g npage8& g o

LEAD MANAGER TO THE ISSUE

LOGO NAME OF LM CONTACT PERSON TEL & EMAIL
= Jawa Capital Contact Person: Mr. Tel No.: +91-11-47366600;
Services Private Harsh  Baweja, Ms. E-mail: mbd@jawacapital.in
L_CAPITAL SERVICES Limited Archana Sharma
REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE
LOGO NAME OF CONTACT PERSON TEL & EMAIL
REGISTRAR
A I Skyline Financial Tel No.: 011-4045019397;
Sky’,n e Services Private Mr. Anuj Rana Email: ipo@skylinerta.com
Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. lelted
ISSUE PROGRAMME
ISSUE OPENS ON | Monday,May 5, 2025 | ISSUE CLOSES ON |  WednesdayMay 7, 2025



mailto:cs@manojjewellerslimited.com
https://manojjewellerslimited.com/
https://manojjewellerslimited.com/
mailto:mbd@jawacapital.in
mailto:ipo@skylinerta.com

(This pageis intentionally left blank)



PROSPECTUS

Dated: April 28, 2025
Please read Sectid26 and 32of the Companies Act, 2013

O® 100% Fixed Price Issue
Té
mRmnoJ

JEWELLERS LTD
MANOJ JEWELLERS LIMITED
Our company was incorporated as private limited Company underthéidmen oj Jewel |l ers Private Limitedd under the pro
dated September 21, 2007 issued by Assistgidtfe of Companie3amil Nadu, Chennai, Andaman and Nicobar IslsBdssequently, our Company was converted into a public limited
company pursuant to approval of the Shareholders at an Extraordinary General meeting held on June 13, 2022 andtcdmsequenty,me of our Company was
Li mi t eHrésh Genfidatef thcorporation consequent upon conversion to Puinfited Company was issued by Registrar of Companies, Chennai, on July 14, 2022. For further detail:
on I ncorporation and changes in the register edCoorfpforcaet eo fMaotpagelPesdinmsiPamsmmdtus. npi |l nega sof
Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company is U52393TN2007PLC064834.
Regd. Office:No. 59, NSC Bose Road, Sowcarpgehennaii 600079, Tamil Nadu, India;
Tel No.: 044 4204 974E-mail: investor@manojjewellerslimited.cqWebsite: http://www.manojjewellerslimited.com
Contact Person:Ms. Vaneeta Khann&ompany Secretary and Compliance Officer
PROMOTERS: MR. MANOJ KUMAR , MS.RAJ KUMARI , MR. SUNIL SHANTILAL , MS. SHALU
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERINGOF30,00 000 EQUI TY SHARES OF -EACHEQUAYSHEARESE) MAR@IJEWELLERSIMITED (THE
COMPANY) FOR CASH AT 5APERBRQUOESHARE (INCLUDINGAPREMIUMOF44PER EQUI TY ISHBRREOES Y NAGGRE
T O 1,620L A K H SHE IBSUEO ) OF WB20@EQUI TY SHARES AGGR®GAAKHS WILLTBE RESERVED FOR SUBSCRIPTION B
MARKET MA KMERKET MAKER RESERVATION PORTION o) . THE | SSUE LESS THE MARKET MAKER RE
OF28,48,00EQUI TY SHARES OF FACEACALWH @GN | SSUBPERI ERUDFY SHARE A GGBX.G0AKHS)
( RET ISSUEO ) . THE | SSUE AND THE NET 33.3%6AND 31VIIYLOF THECASS TSSTUEPRARIP EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL OF OUH
COMPANY. FOR FURTHER DETAI LS, PL EASEERREGHTRE ITSUE CBHEA®ITNENRI N G NG CF DPII& BREOSPECTUS.
THE FACE VALUE OF THE EQUITY SHARES IS RS. 10 EACH AND THE ISSUE PRICE OF RS. 54 1S 5.4TIMES OF THE FACE VALUE OF THE
EQUITY SHARES.
In terms of Rule 19(2)(b)(i) of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 185 as dSERRD thdilssue haseen made for at least 25% of the Esste paidip Equity Share capital
our CompanyThis Issue is being made through Fixed Price process in accordance and compliance with Chapter IX and other apjilinaldESERBI#CDR Regulations wherein a minimy
50% of the Net Issue is allocated for Retail Individual Investors and the bhlalhse sffered to individual applicants other than Retail Individual Investors and other investors including ¢
bodies or institutions, QIBs and Nbstitutional Investors. However, if the aggregate demand from the Retail Individual Investors is less than 50%, then the hafzimegaquihat portio
will be added to the neretail portion offered to the remaining investors including QIBs and Nlis eedersa subject to valid applications being received from them. Additionally, if the
Individual Investors category is entitied to more than 50% on proportionate basis, the Retail Individual Investottoshtbat higher percentage. Altgntial investors shall participate
the Issue only through an Application Supported b ybypdvidingHewit of themespecive batkiackdbiritsAam
UPI IDs,incaseofRIs,#ppl i cabl e, which will be blocked by the Self peeritfiifci ad t®yrtdioma
beginningon page?25of this Prospectus. A copy of the Prospectus shall be filed with the Jurisdictional Registrar of Companies as requirédnuéef 8eeCompanies Act, 2013.
RISKS IN RELATION TO FIRST ISSUE
This being the first public issue of our Company, there has been no formal market for the Equity Shares of our Corapanalddeffthe Equity Shares is Rs. 10 each. The Issue PAc|
fimesof the face value of the Equity Shares. The Issue Price as determined by our Company in consultation with the LMiand asBé#sis forlssuePriced beginning ompager9, should
not be considered to be indicative of the market price of the Equity Shares after the Equity Shares are listed. Naa$migivee regarding an active and/or sustained trading in the
Shares nor regarding the price at which the E§hiyyes will be traded after listing.
GENERAL RISKS
Investments in equity and equistated securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds indniesstirey can afford to take the risk of losing their entire invest)
Investors are advised to read the risk factors carefully before taking an investment decision in this Issue. Foxtgtimguairdacision, investors must rely on their own iesdion of the Issue|
land this Issue, including the risks involved. The Equity Shares have not been recommended or approved by the Secuitessanddce B o@EBId) pf nodénddae § 1
accuracy or adequacy of the contents of this ifingosppge?8t us. Specific attenti
COMPANY®S ABSOLUTE RESPONSIBILTY
Our Company, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this Prospectusiomtaitisralivith regard to our Company and this Issue, which is mg
in the context of this Issue, that the information coethin this Prospectus is true and correct in all material aspects and is not misleading in any material respeatjdinstdinel ogiention:
expressed herein are honestly held and that there are no other facts, the omission of which makestsie®esyete or any of such information or the expression of any such opir|
intentions, misleading in any material respect.

LISTING

IThe Equity Shares offered through the Prospectus are proposed to be listegMia Eiatform of BSE LimitedOur Company has receiveddrinciple approval fronBSE for listing of th
Equity Shares pursuant to its letter d&elruary 14, 20250r the purposes of this IssB&Eshall be the Designated Stock Exchange. A signed copy of the Prospectus shall be filed wi
in accordance with Sections 26(4) of the Companies Act, 2013. For details of the material contracts and documertsiaspiatiEnffrom the date thie Prospectus up to the Issue Clo
Dat e MatesiabGontréicts and Documents for Inspectio® b e gi pagel8d g on

LEAD MANAGER TO THE ISSUE REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE
[ S
L CAPITAL SERVICES ky”n e
Financial Services Pvt. Lid.
Jawa Capital Services Private Limited
Plot No. 93, First Floor, Pocket 2,Near DAV School, Jasola, New DE1BI025 SKYLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Tel No.: +91-11-47366600; D-153A, 1st Floor Okhla Industrial Area, Phds&lew Delhi-110 020, India.
E-mail: mbd@jawacapital.in Tel No.: 011-4045 019297; E-mail: ipo@skylinerta.com
Investor Grievance Email: investorsrelation@jawacapital.in Investor grievance email: grievances@skylinerta.com
Website: www.jawacapital.in Website: www.skylinerta.com
Contact Person:Mr. Harsh BawejéMs. Archana Sharma Contact Person:Mr. Anuj Rana
SEBI Registration No.: MB/INM000012777 SEBI Registration No.:INR0O00003241
ISSUE PROGRAMME
ISSUE OPENS ON: Monday, May 5, 2025 | ISSUE CLOSES ON WednesdayMay 7, 2025



mailto:investor@manojjewellerslimited.com
http://www.manojjewellerslimited.com/
mailto:mbd@jawacapital.in
mailto:investorsrelation@jawacapital.in
http://www.jawacapital.in/
http://www.skylinerta.com/

(This pageis intentionally left blank)



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION | T GENERAL ...t eeeeee et eemees e es e ee e ee e eemeee s ee e es s 6
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS.........oouiveeeeeeeeeeoeeeseeseeeeeeeeeeseessees s seeesse s es e seeae 6
PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA......ovvivmeeieseeeseeeeseeseeeone 18
FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS .....covuveieeeeeeeeeeeeeeesseseeeseeseeesee e seeeesse s sees e sseen s 20
SECTION Il - SUMMARY OF OFFER DOCUMENT ......ovuveierieeseeeeseeeeseesee s seemess . 22
SECTION [l i RISK FACTORS .....ooeieoeeeeeeeeeee e eeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeees s seeessees e see e s s s seem s 28
SECTION IV 7 INTRODUCTION ...ttt eeee s e e s eseees e eemee s e see e s ee e seem s 49
THE ISSUE ...ttt eeee e eeeme e ee et eee e eeeme e e eee e eeeee e eeeeemae e e 49
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION .....coovuveieoieeeeeeeeseeaesseeseesseeseseeesee e sseeses e sne s 50
GENERAL INFORMATION. .......ooeitoeeeeeeeeeeseeesesee e see e see e seeee s ee s esees s es e sseaes s s sn s 53
CAPITAL STRUCTURE. .....oveoeoiveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseee s e et ee e seeeee e ee s sse s s seem s s e sreseen! 61
SECTION V i PARTICULARS OF THE ISSUE .....oeuveiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeseesesees s eees e, 74
OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE .......oeoeteeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeseeesees e eeees s e e ee s e eeemee s s e se e 74
BASIS FOR ISSUE PRICE.........veoeteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees e eeeee s seeme s s sees s s s ese e eesmee e es s 79
STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS ......oeeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeseeseessees e se s seemeeses s 86
SECTION VI i ABOUT THE COMPANY .....oimiveieeieeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeese e e e s seeeseeseeeses e sse e 88
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW.......cveeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeemeeseeesees e seees s seeseesmse s se s eeesees e seeseeeeeesses e sr e esees 88
OUR BUSINESS.....oootoeeeeee et eeeeeee e eee e e ee et eees s s e eeeee s ee e seemees s ee e ee e eseeremessean 106
KEY INDUSTRY REGULATIONS.......ovuveieeeeeseeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeseeseoesees e s seemes e e e se e sseeeemaseeo 114
HISTORY AND CERTAIN CORPORATE MATTERS. .....oviveieeieeeeeeeeoeemeeseeeeeseeeee e esseeessneon. 122
OUR MANAGEMENT ...ttt eeeemee st oeeeee e es et ee et ee et eeeeseee e ee e ee e 125
OUR PROMOTERS AND PROMOTER GROUP..........ovuieieeeeeeeeesseseeesesseeeeseeeeeseeeess e 141
OUR GROUP COMPANIES. ......cooveieeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeeeeeee s seeesse s see e s se e seeees e 148
DIVIDEND POLICY ..ottt eeeees et eee et eees e ee e esees e ese s ens e sees e ee e sressoen 149
SECTION VIl i FINANCIAL INFORMATION ..o eeee s s e eeeee e eeneeees 150
RESTATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ...t eeeee e ee e eeees e sse s eeee e 150
CAPITALISATION STATEMENT ...t eeee s eeee e e ees e se s seeeeseee e seees s sees e sseemes . 179
FINANCIAL INDEBTEDNESS ...ttt seeeeese e eeeeseeseees s eseees e see s ee s es s veees s 180
MANAGEMENTOAS DI SCUSSI ON AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCI AL
OF OPERATIONS ...ttt eees e eeee e ee et e e eeeee e s st e s s e s e s eseeee s e s eee s eseee e ee e eeeeee 182
SECTION VIII i LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION  ....oooeoiveeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeesee e 193
OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS AND MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT .....o.vvovereeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 193
GOVERNMENTAND OTHERSTATUTORY APPROVALS.........cooiveiteeeeeeseeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeea. 198
OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES........o.ivoeeeeeeeeeeeemeeeseeeeeeesseneon. 202
SECTION IX i ISSUE INFORMATION ......cieoieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeees e 215
TERMS OF THE ISSUE ...t eeees e eeeee e eemees et ee e es e eemees e 215
ISSUE STRUCTURE ...ttt e eeeeesee s eeeeseeesees e s seess s se e eee s ee et e s eemsss s es e es e eeseese 223
ISSUE PROCEDURE........oovetteeeeeeeseeeesseeseeeeeseeesees e seeseess e esese et ee et et eemsss s es e ees e eseeee 225
RESTRICTIONS ON FOREIGN OWNERSHIP OF INDIAN SECURITIES.......ooiviiereeeeereemen.n 250
SECTION X -MAIN PROVISIONS OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION ....ovvoveeeeeeeeen. 252
SECTION XI 7 OTHER INFORMATION  .....oeeieeeeeeeeeee e eeemees s ee e eee e eeemee s 288
MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION.......co.ivreeeeseeseeeeeeeeseeeeeeed 288
DECLARATION ...t eeeee e e e e et s e eeee e es et eee e sees e s seem s eee s ee e es et eseeeemnee 290



SECTION | i GENERAL

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Prospectus uses certain definitions and abbreviations which, unless the context otherwise indicates or implies or
unless otherwise specified, shall have the meanimg@sded below. References to any legislation, act, regulations,
rules, guidelines or policies shall be to such legislation, act, regulations, rules, guidelines or policies as amended,
supplemented, or tenacted from time to time and any reference t@atiry provision shall include any subordinate
legislation made from time to time under that provision.

The words and expressions used in this Prospectus, but not defined herein shall have, to the extent applicable, the
meaning ascribed to such terms under SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Companies Act, the SCRA, the Depositories Act,
and the rules and regulatiomade thereunder.

Not withstanding the foregoing, the terms not defined
Benefitso, AfRestated Financi al Statementso, AiOut standi
Regul ations and Policiesd and section titB&gEILYBMAi n Pr o

and252 respectively of thi®rospectus, shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the respective sections.

GENERAL TERMS

Term

Description

AManoj o,
Companyo,
Companyo a
Jewellers Limited

Manoj Jewellers Limited, a company incorporated under phavisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 having its Registered Office at No. 59, NSC Bose,
Sowcarpet, Chenndi 600 079, Tamil Nadundia.

iwe o, fius o

Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to our Company

Ayouod, HAyou

Prospective investors in thissue

COMPANY RELATED TERMS

Term

Description

AOA |/ Articles / Articles
of Association

The Articlesof Associationof Manoj Jewellers Limiteéisamendedrom timeto time.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of our Compamg-constituted orMay 11, 2024 in accordance
with Section 177 of the Co rmpravfanagemerit,
beginning on pag#25 of this Prospectus.

Auditors/ Statutory| The Statutory Auditors of our Company, currently beifig. Mardia & Associated-
Auditors A, Valliammal Road, VeperChennai 600 @7, Tamil Nadu, India.
Bankerdo theCompany | Axis Bank Limited.

Board of Directors/ the
Board / our Board

The Board of Directorsof our Company,including all duly constitutedCommittees
thereof. For further details of our Directors, pleaserefer to sectiontitied fi Ou
Ma n a g e beginning on pag&25 of this Prospectus.

Chairman/Chairperson

The Chairmanof Boardof Directorsof our CompanybeingMr. Manoj Kumar

CIN

Corporate Identification Number of our Company U2393TN2007PLC064834

Chief
Officer/CFO

Financial

The Chief Financial Officer of our Companybeing Mr. Mayank Girishbhai Garacl

Companie#\ct/ Act

The CompaniesAct, 2013 and amendmentshereto. The CompaniesAct, 1956, to
theextentof suchof the provisionsthatarein force.

Company Secretaryand
ComplianceDfficer

The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company Msnyaneeta
Khanna.

DIN DirectorsldentificationNumber.

Director(s)/ our Directors | TheDirector(s)of our Companyunlesstherwisespecified.

Equity Shares Equity Shares of our GCeacpfdyppdup f Fac:¢
Equity Shareholders PersonsEntitiesholding Equity Shareof Our Company.

ExecutiveDirectors Executive Directorare the ManaginBirector& Whole Time Directorsf our Company.
GroupCompany I n terms of SEBI | CBRupkRenpany at hohsde

(other than ouPromoters and subsidiary/subsidiaries) with which there were re
party transactions as disclosed in the Restated Financial Statements as covers
the applicable accounting standards, any other companies as considered materi
Board,inaccodance with the Materiality CRo
Group Companigs b e g i n n il480f thes Arospeatgse

Independent Director(s)

Independent Directors on the Board, and eligible to be appointed as an Indef
Director under the provisions of Companies Act and SEBI LODR Regulations

6



Term

Description

details of the Independent
beginning orpagel 25 of this Prospectus

Our Managenoe it

ISIN

InternationalSecuritieddentificationNumber.In this casebeingINEOMV001018

Key Management
Personnel KMP

Key Managerial Personnel of our Company in terms of Regulation 2(1)(bb) of the
ICDR Regulations, together with the Key Managerial Persoahelur Company in
terms of Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as disclosed in the chapt
i OQur Ma n aeggammng anpage 125of this Prospectus.

Key Performance
I ndi carfigPbE 8

Key financial and operationalperformanceindicatorsof our Company,as included
infi B a frilssueP r i begidningonpage79.

Materiality Policy

The policyonidentificationof groupcompaniesnaterialcreditors ananaterialitigation,
adoptedby our Boardin accordance witithe requirementsof the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2018.

MD or ManagingDirector

TheManagingDirectorof our Companybeing Mr.Manoj Kumar

MOA / Memorandum /
Memorandum of
Association

The Memorandum of Association of our Company, as amended from time to tim

Non-Residents

A persorresidenbutsidelndia, asdefinedunderFEMA Regulations2000

Nomination and
Remuneration Committeg

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of our Company, constitutisthyi
11, 2024 in accordance with Section 178 of @@mpanies Act, 2013, the details
whi ch ar e QurManagechedd b eng ifipage I25pf tlosProspectus

Non-ExecutiveDirector

A DirectornotbeinganExecutiveDirectoror anindependenbirector

NRIs / Non-Resident
Indians

A person resident outside India, as defined under Foreign Exchange Managemg
1999, read with rules and regulations thereunder, and includes FPIs, VCFs, FV(
NRIs.

PeeReviewAuditors

Auditor having a valid Peer Review certificate in our case bstagutory AuditoM/s.
Mardia & AssociatesChartered Accountants

Persoror Persons

Any individual, sole proprietorship, unincorporated association, unincorpo
organization, body corporate, corporation, company, partnership, limited lig
company, joint venture, or trust or any other entity or organization validly const
andbr incorporated in the jurisdiction in which it exists and operates, as the ¢
requires.

Promoter(s)

Shall mean promoters of our Company i.e. Manoj Kumar Mr. Sunil Shantilal Ms.
Raj Kumariand Ms. Shalu. Fofurther details, pleaserefer to sectiontitled A O u
Promotersand PromoterGr o ubpginningon pagel41of this Prospectus.

PromoterGroup

Includes such Persons and entities constituting our promoter group covered
Regulation2(1)(pp) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulationsas enlistedin the sectiontitled
iOur Pr anmd®romeotesGr o ukeginningon pagel4lof this Prospectus.

Registeredffice

The Registered Office of our Compasijuated alNo. 59, NSC Bose Road Sowcarp,
Chennaii 600079, Tamil Nadu, India.

RoC/ Registrar  of | Registrar of Companies, Chennai, Block No.6, B Wing 2nd Floor, Shastri Bhawg

Companies Haddows Road, Chennai600 034, Tamil Nadu, India.

Restated Financial | Restated Financial Statements for theriod ended orDecember 312024 and

Information Financial Years ended on 2024, 2023, and 2022 (prepared in accordance with th
GAAP read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2848 restated in accordan
with requirements of Section 26 of Part | of Chapter Il of Companies Act 201
amended, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as amended and the Guidance N
fiReports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 8019)i ssued by
which comprises theestated summary Statement of Assets & Liabilities, the res
summary Statement of Profit and Loss, the restated summary Statement of Cas
and restated statement of change in equity along with all the schedules, annexy
notes thereto

Shareholders Shareholdersf our Company

StockExchange Unlessthe contextrequiresotherwiserefersto, BSE Limited

Subscriber to MOA / | Initial Subscribeto MOA & AOA beingMr. Manoj Kumart Mr. Sunil Shantilaland

Initial Promoters

Mr. Shantilal Sammirmalain.

Stakeholders Relationshiy
Committee

The Stakehol dersd Relationship Gayhhn
2024 in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the details of
are pr oQurMapahememt e gi mage I2Fof thisProspectus

Senior Management

Senior Management of our Company in term&efjulation 2(1) (bbbb) of the SEE
ICDR Regulationgind as disclosed in the chapter tited u r Ma n abgginmirg
on page125of this Prospectus.




Term

Description

Whole Time Director

Whole Time Director of our Company beitg. Raj Kumari

KEY PERFORMANCE INDI

CATORS

Key Financial

Performance

Explanations

Revenue from Operation

Revenue from Operations is used by the management to track the revenue profil
business and in turn helps to assess the overall financial performance of the C
and volume of the business.

EBITDA

EBITDA provides information regarding the operational efficiency of the busines

EBITDA Margin

EBITDA Margin (%) is an indicator of the operational profitability and finan
performance of our business

PAT Profit after tax provides information regarding the overall profitability ofthginess

PAT Margin PAT Margin (%) is an indicator of the overall profitability and financial performa
of the business

Net Worth Net worth of the company is an important metric to gauge a company's |

providing a useful snapshot of its current financial position.

Return on Equity

Return on equity provides how efficiently the Company generates profits
sharehol dersd funds

Return on Equity Ratio

Return on equity (ROE) is a measure of financial performance

Return on Capita
Employed

Return on capital employed provides how efficiently the Company generates ez
from the capital employed in the business

DebtEquity Ratio

Debt / Equity Ratio is used to measure the financial leverage of the Compar
provides comparison benchmark against peers

Current Ratio

The current ratio is r

term obligations or those due within one year

a |iquidity a

Net asset value per sharg

NAV represents the per share book value of the company

ISSUE RELATED TERMS

Term

Description

AbridgedProspectus

AbridgedProspectu$o beissuedunderRegulation255 of SEBIICDR Regulationsand
appendedo the ApplicationForm.

Acknowledgemenslip

Theslip or documenissuedby the Designatedntermediaryto an Applicantasproof of
registrationof the Application.

Allot/Allotted  Allotment/
Allotment of Equity Shares

Allotment of Equity Shares pursuant to the Fresh Issue.

AllotmentAdvice

Noteor adviceor intimationof Allotment sento the Applicants whdave beemllotted
Equity Sharesafterthe Basisof Allotment hasbeenapprovedby the Designatedstock
Exchanges

Allotment Date

Date on which allotment is made

Allottee (s)

Thesuccessfubidderto whomthe Equity Sharesarebeing/ havebeenallotted.

Applicant/Investor

Any prospectiveinvestorwho makesan applicationfor Equity Sharesn termsof this
Prospectuand the application form

Application

An indication to make an Issue during the Issue Period bfpgticant, pursuant tg
submission of Application Form, to subscribe for or purchase our Equity Shares
Issue Price including all revisions and modifications thereto, to the extent perm
under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

Application Amount

The amountat which the Applicant makesan applicationfor the Equity Sharesof our
Companyin termsof Prospectus.

ApplicationForm

The form in termsof which the Applicantshall makean Application, including ASBA
Form,andwhich shallbe consideredsthe applicationfor the Allotment pursuanto the
terms of this Prospectus.

Application Supported by
Blocked Amount or ASBA|
or UPI

An application, whether physical or electronic, used by ASBA Applicants, to m:
Applicationauthorizing a SCSB to block the Application Amount in the ASBA Accd
including the bank account linked with UPI ID. Pursuant to SEBI Circular
SEBI/HO/CFD/DCR2/CIR/P/2019/133 dated November 08, 2019, Retail Indiv
Investors applying in public issumay use either Application Supported by Block
Amount (ASBA) process or UPI payment mechanism by providing UPI ID in
Application Form which is linked from Bank Account of the investor.

ASBA Account

A bank account maintained with an SCSB by an ASBA Applicant, as specified
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Term

Description

ASBA Form submitted by ASBA Applicants for blocking the B Application id Amo
mentioned in the relevant ASBA Form and includes the account of a Retail Indi
Investor which is blocked upon acceptance of a UPI Mandate Request made by th
Individual Investors using the UPI Mechanism

ASBA Applicant(s)

Any prospective investors in this Issue who apply for Equity Shares of our Con
through the ASBA process in terms of this Prospectus.

ASBA Bid

A Bid made by arASBA Bidder.

ASBA Bidder(s)

Any prospectivénvestorwhomakesabid pursuanto thetermsof theProspectusand the
Bid cum Application Form including through UPI mode (asapplicable).

ASBA Form

A bid cum applicationform, whetherphysical or electronic,usedby ASBA bidders,
which will be consideredasthe bid for Allotment in termsof the Prospectus.

Broker centers

Broker centers notified by the Stock Exchanges, where the Applicants can sub
Application forms to a Registered Broker the details of such broker centers, alon
the names and contact details of the Registered Brokers, are available on theswé
the Stock Exchange.

Banker(s) to the Issue

Bank which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as banker to an isg
with whom the Public Issue Account will be opened, in this case bRy Bank
Limitedo .

Banker(s) to the Issue an
Sponsor Bank Agreement

Agreement dateBebruary 19, 2028ntered into between our Company, Lead Mana
the Registrar to the Issue, Banker to the Issue and Sponsor Bank for collection of
Amount on the terms and conditions thereof.

Basis of Allotment

The basis on which the Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful Bidders und
|l ssue and which is ddssueProdecu® bagt hei
2250f this Prospectus.

Broker to the Issue

All recognized members of the stock exchange would be eligible to act as the Br
the Issue.

BusinesPay

Mondayto Friday (exceptpublic holidays).

CAN [/ Confirmation of
Allocation Note

The note or advice or intimation sent to each successful Applicant indicating the
Shares which will be Allotted, after approval of Basis of Allotment by the Desigr
Stock Exchange.

Collecting Registrar an
Share Transfer Agent
CRTAs

Registrar to an Issue and share transfer agents registered with SEBI and elig
procure Application at the Designated RTA Locations in terms of circular
CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015, issued by SEBI.

Controlling Branches
Controlling Branches of th
SCSBs

Such branches of the SCSBs which-azdinate Application Forms by the ASB
Applicants with the Lead Manager, Registrar to the Issue and BSE Limited and a
which is available at www.sebi.gov.in or at such other website as may be prescri
SEBI from time to time.

Collection Centers

Centers at which the Designated Intermediaries shall accept the ASBA Forms.

Client identification number maintained with one of the Depositories in relation to O

Client ID
account
A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996, registere
. . SEBI and who is eligible to procure Bids at the Desighated CDP Locations in tef
Collecting Depository

Participant(s) or CDP(s)

circular No. GR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015 issued by
as perthe list available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchanges, as |
from time to time

Demographic Details

The demographic details of the Bidders such as their Address, PAN, Occupation
Account details and UPI ID (if applicable), etc.

Depository / Depositories

NSDL and CDSL registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board g
(Depositories and Participant) Regulations, as amended from time to time.

Depository Participant / D

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1966

Designated CDP Location

Such locations of the CDPs where Bidders can submit the ASBA Forms. The de
such Designated CDP Locations, along with names and contact details of the Co
Depository Participants eligible to accept ASBA Forms are available on the web
BSE Limited.

Designated Date

The date on which relevant amounts are transferred from the ASBA Accounts
Public Issue Account or the RefuAdcount, as the case may be, and the instruction
issued to the SCSBs (in case of UPI Bidders using UPI Mechanism, instruction
through the Sponsor Bank) for the transfer of amounts blocked by the SCSBs
ASBA Accounts to the Public Issue éaunt or the Refund Account, as the case may
in terms of the Prospectus following which Equity Shares will be Allotted in the Is

Designated Intermediarieg

Collectively, the members of the Syndicate,-syhdicate or agents, SCSBs (other tf
in relation to RIBs using the UPI Mechanism), Registered Brokers, CDPs and
who are authorised to collect Bid cum Application Forms from the relevant Bidde
relation to the Issue.
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Term

Description

In relation to ASBA Forms submitted by UPI Bidders where the Bid Amount wi
blocked upon acceptance of UPI Mandate Request by such UPI Bidder using t
Mechanism, Designated Intermediaries shall mean Syndicatesysdicate/agents
Registered Brotrs, CDPs, SCSBs and RTAs.

In relation to ASBA Forms submitted by QIBs and Nastitutional Bidders (not usin
the UPI Mechanism), Designated Intermediaries shall mean Syndicatsyratdibate/
agents, SCSBs, Registered Brokers, the CDPs and RTAs

Designated Market Maker

Shreni Shares Limited will act as the Market Maker and has agreed to receive or
the specified securities in the market making process for a period of three years fl
date of listing of our Equity Shares or for a period as may be notified bpdument to
SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Designated RTA Location

Such locations of the RTAs where ASBA Bidders can submit the Bid cum Applic
Forms to RTAs. The details of such Designated RTA Locations, along with namg¢
contact details of the RTAs eligible to accept Application Forms are available ¢
websiteof the Stock Exchangdftps://www.bseindia.cop/

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the ASBA Application Forms to R

Designated SCSB Branch A list of which is available on the website of SEBI
www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedmnyesnediaries or &
such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time

Designated Sl BSE Limited (ABSE SMED)

Exchange

Draft Prospectus / DRHP

The Draft Prospectus dated December 24, 2024 issued in accordance with thg
ICDR Regulations, which does not contain complete particulars of the price at wh
Equity Shares will be Allotted and the size of the issue, including any adder
corrigerda thereto

A nonresidentindian, resident in a jurisdiction outside India where it was not unla
to make an issue or invitation under the issue and in relation to whom the Prospeq

Eligible NRI(s) the Bid Cum Application Form constituted an invitation to subscribe or purchase f
Equity Shares
Qualified Foreign Investors from such jurisdictions outside India where it is not unl
Eligible QFls to make an issue or invitation under the Issue and in relation to whom the Pros
9 constitutes an invitation to purchase the Equity Shares Issue thereby andaweh
opened demat accounts with SEBI registered qualified depositary participants.
ELencérSomc Transfer o Refunds through ECS, NEFT, Direct Credit or RTGS as applicable.
Equity Shares Equity Shares of our-e@chmpany of face

Escrow Account

An account opened with the Escrow Collection Bank(s) and in whose favou
investors will transfer money through direct credit/NEFT/RTGS/NACH in respect ¢
applicant amount.

Escrow Collection Bank(s

Bank(s), which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as a banker to g
under the SEBI BTl Regulations and with whom the Escrow Account will be open
this case beinddxis Bank Limited.

Fresh Issue

The fresh issue 080,00,000Equity shares of 10/~ each at an Issue Price 054
aggregating to1,620Lakhs by our Company.

FIl / Foreign Institutional
Investors

Foreign Institutional Investor (as defined under SEBI (Foreign Institutional Inveg
Regulations, 1995, as amendegljistered with SEBI under applicable laws in India

First / Sole Applicant

The Applicant whose name appears first in the Application Form or Revision Forr

Foreign Venture Capitg
Investors

Foreign Venture Capital Investors registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Foreign V
Capital Investor) Regulations, 2000.

FPI / Foreign Portfolig
Investor

Foreign Portfolio Investor as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board ¢
(Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2019

General Information
Document / GID

The General Information Document for investing in public issues prepared and isg
accordance with the SEBI circulan. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/37 dated Mar
17, 2020and the UPI Circulars, as amended from time to tifleGeneral Informatior
Document is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the LM

Gross Proceeds

Gross proceeds of the issue that will be available to our Company

IPO

Initial Public Offer

Listing Agreement

Unless the context specifies otherwise, this means the Equity Listing Agreemen
signed between our Company and BSE

Lead Manager / LM

The Lead Manager for the issue being, Jawa Capital Services Private Limited

Market Maker

The Market Maker to the Issue, namely, Shreni Shares Limited

Market Maker Reservatio

The Reserved portion df,52,000Equity shares of 10+ each at an Issue Price 064
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Term

Description

Portion

aggregating to 82.08 Lakhdor Designated Market Maker in the Public Issue of
Company.

Market Making Agreemen

The Agreement among the Market Maker, the Lead Manager and our Company
December 19, 2024

Mobile App(s)

The mobile applications listed on the website of SEBI

www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intni3ded
such other website as may be updated from time to time, which was used by UPI |
to submit Bids using the UPI Mechanism.

Mutual Fund

A Mutual Fund registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations,
as amended

Net Issue

The Net Issue (excluding Market maker portion)28{48,000EquitySh ar e s -
each at HS4preirceEquufi t y Sharnk8892aaklg.r egat i n

Net Proceeds

The Issue Proceeds less the Issue related expenses. For further details regardin
of the Net Proceeds Gbjedsofthe ssie shsewgd nex
74 of this Prospectus

NPCI

National Payments Corporation of India (NPCI), a Reserve Bank of India
initiative, is an umbrella organization for all retail payments in India. It has been
with the guidance and support of the Reserve Bank of India and Indian Banks Assg
(IBA).

Non - Institutional Bidders
/ Non 1T Institutional
Investors / NllIs

All Bidders that are not QIBs, RIBs and who have ®idEquity Shares, for an amou
of more than 2.00 Il akhs (but not in

Non-Resident / NR

A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA and includes Eligible
FPIs registered with SEBI and FVCls registered with SEBI

BSE SME

SME Platform of BSE Limited

Issue

The Issue of 30,00,00Bquity Sh a r e s - eadh at pricd® df 54 per Equity Share
aggr eg al620haghst o

MOU/Issue Agreement

The agreement datedctober 04, 2024, entered amongst @@mpany and the Lea
Manager, pursuant to which certain arrangements are agreed to in relation to the

Issue Proceeds

The proceeds of the Fresh Issue which shall be available to our Company. For
information about use of the Issue Proceedsfis®eb j ect s i padetdte |

Prospectus

The Prospectus to be filed with the RoC in accordance with the provisions of Sec
and Section 32 of theompanies Act, 2013.

PubliclssueAccount

Bank account opened with the Public Issue Account Bank(s) under Section 40(3
Companies Act, 2013, to receive monies from the Escrow Account(s) and A
Accounts on the Designated Date.

Public IssueBank

The banks which are a clearing member and registered with SEBI as a banker to
and with whom the Public Issue Account for collection of Bid Amounts from Es
Account and ASBA Accounts will be opened, in this case bAiig Bank Limited.

Qualified Institutional
Buyers / QIBs / QIB
Bidders

Qualified institutional buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI
Regulations

Refund Account

The account opened with the Refund Bank, from which refunds, if any, of the wh
part of the Bid Amount to the Anchor Investors shall be made.

Refund Bank(s)

The Banker(s) to the Issue with whom the Refund Account(s) will be opened, in th
beingAxis Bank Limited

Registered Brokers

The stockbrokers registered with the stock exchanges having nationwide terminal
than the members of the Syndicate and eligible to procure Bids

Registrar / Registrar to th
Issue

Registrar to the Issue being Skyline Financial Services Private Limited

Registrar Agreement

The agreement datedctober 09, 2024among our Company and the Registrar to
Issue in relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the Registrar to the
pertaining to the issue.

Registrar  and Shar
Transfer Agents / RTAs

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents registered with SEBI and eligible to p
Applications at the Designated RTA Locations in terms of circular

CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015 issued by SEBI
available on the websites of theo&t Exchanges dtttps://www.bseindia.com/

Retail Individual Bidders
Retail Individual Investors
RIBs / Rlls

Individual Bidders submitting Bids, who have Bid for the Equity Shares for an an
not more than 2.00 lakhs in any of
applying through their Karta) and Eligible NRIs

Retail Portion

The portion of the Issue being not less than 50% of the Net Issue comprishg4000
Equity Shares, which shall be available for allocation to RIBs in accordance wi
SEBI ICDR Regulations, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issu
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Term

Description

Revision Form

The Form used by the Bidders to modify the quantity of the Equity Shares or th
Amount in any of their ASBA Form(s) or any previous Revision Form(s).
QIB Bidders and Notinstitutional Bidders are not allowed to withdraw or lower th
bids (in terms of quantity of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage.
Individual Bidders can revise their Bid during the Issue Period or withdraw their
until Bid / Issue Closing Date

SCORES

SEBI Complaints Redress System, a centralizedesled complaints redressal syst
launched by SEBI

Self-Certified  Syndicate
Bank(s) / SCSBs

The banks registered with SEBI, offering services, (i) in relation to ASBA (other
through UPI Mechanism), a list of which is available on the website of SE
www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intm|der3
such other website as updated from time to time, and (ii) in relation to ASBA th
the UPI Mechanism, a list of which is available on the website of SEB
https://sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmloi=
such other website as updated from time to time.

In relation to Bids (other than Bids by Anchor Investor) submitted to a member
Syndicate, the list of branches of the SCSBs at the Specified Locations named
respective SCSBs to receive deposits of Bid cum Application Forms from the me
of the Syndicate is available on the website of the SEBI
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&in
=35and updated from time to time.

In accordance with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76 dated
28, 2019 and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July
2019, UPI Bidders using the UPI Mechanism may apply through the SCSBs and
applications whose names appears on the website of the SEBI
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&in
=40 and
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&in
=43respectively, as updated from time to time

Specified Locations

The Bidding Centres where the Syndicate shall accept ASBA Forms from Bidde
in case of RIBs only ASBA Forms with UPI.

Sponsor Bank

A Banker to the Issue which is registered with SEBI and is eligible to actas a S
Bankin a public issue in terms of applicable SEBI requirements and has been apj
by the Company in consultation with the LM to act as a conduit between the
Exchanges and NPCI to push the UPI Mandate Request in respect of UPI Bidder
the UPI Mechanism, in this case beiAgis Bank Limited.

SubSyndicate Members

The subsyndicate members, if any, appointed by the Lead Manager and the Syr
Members, to collect ASBA Forms and Revision Forms.

Syndicate / Members of th
Syndicate

Together, the Lead Manager and the Syndicate Members

fl)éit_%rglncl?!y Ilgi]r?;:caigl Systemically important nebanking financial company as defined under Reguld
9 2(1)(iii) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Company

TRS / Transactior] The slip or document issued by a member of the Syndicate or an SCSB (only on d¢

Registration Slip

as the case may be, to the Bidder, as proof of registration of the Application

Underwriters

The Underwriters in this case amart Horizon Capital Advisors Privatémited
(Formerly known as Shreni Capital Advisors Private Limited)

Underwriting Agreement

The Agreement among the Underwriters and our Company dated December 19,

Unified Payments Interfac
/ UPI

The instant payment system developed by the National Payments Corporation of

UPI Circulars

SEBI circular no. CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/22 dated February 15, 2018, SEBI circulé
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 1, 2018, SEBI circular

SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/50 dated April 3, 2019, SEBI circular
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/201916 dated June 28, 2019, SEBI circular
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019 SEBI circular

SEBI/HO/CFD/DCR2/CIR/P/2019/133 dated November 8, 2019, SEBI Circula
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/50 dated March 30, 2020, SEBI Circular
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/2480/1/M dated March 16, 2021, SEBI circular
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/47 dated March 31, 2021, SEBI circular
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2021/570 dated June 2, 2021, SEBI circular
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/45 dated phl 5, 2022, SEBI circular no
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/51 dated April 20, 2022, SEBI circular num
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Term

Description

SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2022/75 dated May 30, 2022, SEBI master circulaf
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoDB2/P/CIR/2023/00094 dated June 21, 2023 along with the cir
issued by the National Stock Exchange of India Limited having reference no. 24
dated August 3, @22 and the circular issued by BSE Limited having reference
2022080340 dated August 3, 2022 and any subsequent circulars or notifications
by SEBI and Stock Exchanges in this regard along with the circular issued t
National Stock Exchangd thdia Limited having reference no. 25/2022 dated Augu
2022 and any subsequent circulars or notifications issued by SEBI in this regard

UPI ID

ID created on Unified Payment Interface (UPI) for singladow mobile paymen
system developed by the National Payments Corporation of India (NPCI)

UPI Mandate Request

A request (intimating the UPI Bidder by way of a notification on the UPI applicatior
by way of a SMS for directing the UPI Bidder to such UPI mobile application) t
UPI Bidder initiated by the Sponsor Bank to authorise blocking of funds on the
application equivalent to Bid Amount and subsequent debit of funds in case of Allg

UPI mechanism

Process for applications by UPI Bidders submitted with intermediaries with UPI as
of payment, in terms of the UPI Circulars

Fraudulent Borrower

UPI PIN Password to authenticate UPI transaction
U.S. Securities Act U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended
Wilful Defaulter or| Wilful defaulter or a fraudulent borrower as defined under Regulation 2(1)(lll) o

SEBI ICDR Regulations

Any day, on which commerciadbanks in Mumbai are open for business; provi
however, with reference to (i) announcement of Price Band; and (ii) Bid / Issue R
AWor king Dayo shall mean any day, €
holidays, on which commercial banks in Mbain are open for business; and w|
reference to (iii) the time period between the Bid / Issue Closing Date and the lis

Working Day the Equity Shares on the Stock Excha
of the Stock Exchanges, excluding Sundayskantk holidays, as per the SEBI circu
number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL/CIR/P/2016/26 dated January 21, 2016 and the
circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 1, 2
including the UPI Circulars

ABBREVIATIONS

Term Description

AS/ AccountingStandard | AccountingStandardssissuedby the Instituteof Chartered\ccountant®f India

Alc Account

ACS AssociateCompanySecretary

AGM AnnualGeneraMeeting

ASBA ApplicationsSupportedy BlockedAmount

Amt Amount

AlF Alternative Investment-undsregisteredunderthe Securitiesand ExchangeBoard of
India (Alternativelnvestmenfunds)Regulations2012,asamended.

AY Assessmeritear

AOA Articles of Association

Approx Approximately

B.A Bachelorof Arts

BBA Bachelorof BusinessAdministration

B. Com Bachelorof Commerce

B.E Bachelorof Engineering

B. Sc Bachelorof Science

B. Tech Bachelorof Technology

Bn Billion

BG/LC BankGuaranteé Letterof Credit

BIFR Boardfor IndustrialandFinancialReconstruction

BRLM /LM Lead Manager

BSE BSE Limited

BSESENSEX Sensen anindex; marketindicatorof the positionof stockthatis listedin the BSE

BankingRegulationAct TheBankingRegulatiorAct, 1949

CDSL CentralDepositoryServicegIndia) Limited

CAGR Compounded\nnual GrowthRate

CAN Confirmationof Allocation Note
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Term Description

Category | Alternate| AlFs who are registered &sC a t d glternayive InvestmenFunds o und

Investment Fund AIF Regulations

Category | AIF

Category | Foreign| FPIswho areregisteredasii C a t el doceigryportfolio i n v e suhderthe SEBI

Portfolio Investor(s) / | FPIRegulations

Categoryl FPIs

Category Il  Alternate| AlFswhoareregisteredasii C a t dlAlkernagtivelnvestment u n drelérthe SEBI

Investment Fund /| AIF Regulations

Categonyll AIF

Category Il Foreign FPIswho areregisteredasifi C a t ellgfareigg portfolioi n v e suhderthe SEBI

Portfolio Investor(s) / | FPIRegulations

Categonyl FPIs

Category Il Alternate| AlFswhoareregisteredisfi C a t dligAdtarmativelnvestmenF u n drsl€étheSEBI

Investment Fund /| AIF Regulations

Categonyll AlIF

CA CharteredAccountant

CB ControllingBranch

CDSL CentralDepositoryServicegIndia) Limited

CcC CashCredit

CIN CorporatddentificationNumber

CIT Commissionepf IncomeTax

CS CompanySecretary

CSR Corporatesocialresponsibility.

CFA Chartered Financial Analyst

CS& CO CompanySecretary® ComplianceOfficer

CFO ChiefFinancialOfficer

CENVAT CentralValue AddedTax

CIBIL CreditinformationBureau(India) Limited

CsT CentralSalesTax

COVIDT 19 A public health emergencyof international concern as declared by the World
HealthOrganizatioron JanuanB0, 2020anda pandemi@mnMarch 11,2020

CWA/ICWA/CMA CostandWorks Accountant

CMD ChairpersorandManagingDirector

Companie#\ct

Unless specified otherwise, this would impdythe provisions ofhe Companies Act
2013 tothe extentnotified) and /or Provisionsof CompaniesAct, 1956 w.r.t. the
sectionswhich havenot yet beenreplacedby the CompaniesAct, 2013throughany
official notification

Depositoryor Depositories| NSDL andCDSL.

DIN DirectorldentificationNumber

DIPP Departmenbf IndustrialPolicy and Promotion Ministry of CommerceGovernmenbf
India

DP DepositoryParticipant

DPID DepositoryP a r t i ddentifecatianRusnber

EBITDA EarningsBeforelnterest,TaxesDepreciation& Amortization

ECS ElectronicClearingSystem

ESIC E mp | o $tat@ndusanceCorporation

EPS EarningsPerShare

EGM/EOGM ExtraordinaryGeneraMeeting

ESOP EmployeeStockOptionPlan

EXIM/ EXIM Policy Exporti ImportPolicy

FCNRAccount ForeignCurrencyNon-ResidenfAccount

FIPB ForeigninvestmenfPromotionBoard

FY / Fiscal/Financia¥ear

Periodof twelvemonthsendedViarch31 of thatparticularyear,unlesstherwisestated

FEMA

Foreign ExchangeManagementAct, 1999 asamended frontime to time, and the
regulationdramedthereunder.

FEMA Regulations ForeignExchangeManagement{Transferor Issueof Security bya PersonResident
Outside India) Regulations, 2017

FCNRAccount ForeignCurrencyNon-ResidenfAccount

FBT FringeBenefitTax

FDI ForeignDirectInvestment

Fls Financiallnstitutions
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Term Description

Flis Foreign Institutional Investors (as defined under Foreign Exchange Manag
(Transfer orssueof Securityby a PersorResidentutsidelndia) Regulations2000)
registeredvith SEBIunderapplicabldawsin India

FPls ForeignPortfolio Investorsasdefinedunderthe SEBI FPI Regulations.

FTA ForeignTradeAgreement.

FVCI Foreign Venture Capital Investorsregisteredwith SEBI under the Securitiesand
ExchangeBoardof India (ForeignVentureCapitallnvestors)Regulations2000.

FV FaceValue

GOl/Government Governmenbf India

GDP GrossDomesticProduct

GAAP GenerallyAcceptedAccountingPrinciplesin India

GST GoodsandServiceTax

GVA GrossValue Added

HNI High NetWorth Individual

HUF Hindu UndividedFamily

ICAI Thelnstituteof CharteredAccountant®f India

ICAI/ICMAI (Previously| Thelnstituteof CostAccountantof India

knownasICWAI)

IMF InternationaMonetaryFund

INR/ /Rupees/Rs.

IndianRupeesthelegalcurrencyof the Republicof India

P

Indexof IndustrialProduction

IPO Initial Public Offer

ICSI Thelnstituteof CompanySecretariesf India

IFRS InternationaFinancialReportingStandards

i.e Thatis

I.T. Act IncomeTaxAct, 1961,asamendedrom timeto time

IT Authorities IncomeTaxAuthorities

IT Rules IncomeTax Rules,1962,asamendedexceptasstatedotherwise

IndianGAAP GenerallyAcceptedAccountingPrinciplesin India

IRDA InsuranceRegulatoryandDevelopmeniAuthority

KMP Key ManageriaPersonnel

Ltd. Limited

MAT Minimum AlternateTax

MCA Ministry of CorporateAffairs, Governmenof India

MoF Ministry of Finance Governmenbf India

M-o0-M Month-On-Month

MOU Memorandunof Understanding

M. A Masterof Arts

M. B. A Masterof BusinessAdministration

M. Com Masterof Commerce

Mn Million

M. E Masterof Engineering

MRP MaximumRetail Price

M. Tech Mastersof Technology

MerchantBanker Merchant Banker as defined under the Securitiesand ExchangeBoard of India
(MerchantBankers)Regulations1992

MAPIN MarketParticipantandinvestorsDatabase

MSMEs Micro, SmallandmediumEnterprises

MoA Memorandunof Association

NA Not Applicable

Networth The aggregateof paidup ShareCapital and SharePremiumaccountand Reserves
and Surplus (Excluding revaluation reserves) as reduced by aggregate of
MiscellaneousExpenditure (to the extent netitten off) and debit balance of Profit
Loss Account

NEFT NationalElectronicFundsTransfer

NECS NationalElectronicClearingSystem

NAV NetAssetValue
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Term Description

NPV NetPresenWalue

NRIs Non-Residentindians

NRE Account Non-ResidenExternalAccount

NRO Account Non-ResidenOrdinaryAccount

NSE NationalStockExchangeof India Limited
NOC No ObjectionCertificate

NSDL NationalSecuritiedDepositorylLimited
oCB Overseaf£orporateBodies

P.A. PerAnnum

PF Provident~und

PG PostGraduate

PAC Persond\cting in Concert

P/ERatio Price/Earningskatio

PAN PermanenfccountNumber

PAT Profit After Tax

PBT Profit BeforeTax

PLI PostalLife Insurance

POA Powerof Attorney

PSU Public SectorUndertaking(s)

Pvt. Private

RBI TheReserveBankof India

ROE Returnon Equity

R&D Researcl& Development

RONW Returnon Net Worth

RTGS RealTime GrossSettlement

SCRA SecuritieContract{Regulation)Act, 1956,asamendedrom timeto time
SCRR SecuritieContract{Regulation)Rules,1957,asamendedrom timeto time
SCSB Self-Certified SyndicateBanks

SEBI SecuritieandExchangeBoardof India
SEBIAct The SecuritiesandExchangeBoardof India Act, 1992

SEBIAIF Regulations

Securitiesand ExchangeBoard of India (Alternative Investment-unds)Regulations,
2012,asamendedrom time to time

SEBIFIl Regulations

Securitiesand ExchangeBoardof India (Foreigninstitutionallnvestors)Regulations,
1995,asamendedrom time to time

SEBIFPIRegulations

Securitiesand ExchangeBoard of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors)Regulations,
2019,asamendedrom time to time

SEBIFVCI Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investor)
Regulations2000,asamendedrom time to time

SEBIICDR Regulations

SecuritieandExchangaBoardof India (Issueof CapitalandDisclosureRequirements
Regulations2018,asamendedrom time to time

SEBI Insider
Regulations

Trading

Securitiesand ExchangeBoard of India (Prohibitionof Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015,asamendedrom timeto time.

SEBI LODR Regulations/
SEBI Listing Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
RequirementsiRegulations2015,asamendedrom time to time

SEBI (PFUTP) | SEBI (Prohibition of Fraudulentand Unfair Trade Practicesrelating to Securities
Regulations/PFUTP Markets)Regulations2003

Regulations

SEBI Takeover Securitiesand ExchangeBoard of India (Substantial Acquisition of Sharesand
Regulations or SEB| TakeoversRegulations2011,asamendedrom timeto time

(SAST)Regulations

SEBIVCF Regulations

Securitiesand ExchangeBoardof India (VentureCapitalFund)Regulations;1996,as
repealed by the SEBI AlRegulations, as amended

SICA SickIndustrialCompanie¢Speciaprovisions)Act, 1985,asamendedromtimeto time
SME SmallandMediumEnterprises

STT SecuritiesTransactiormax

Sec. Section

SPV SpecialPurposé/ehicle
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Term

Description

TakeoverRegulations

Securitiesand ExchangeBoard of India (Substantial Acquisition of Sharesand
TakeoversRegulations2011

TAN TaxDeductionAccountNumber

TDS TaxDeductedat Source

TRS TransactiorRegistratiorslip

TIN TaxpayerddentificationNumber

US/UnitedStates United Statesf America

UPI Unified Payments Interface as a payment mechanism through National
PaymentsCorporationof India with Application Supportedby Block Amount for
applicationsn publicissuedy retailindividualinvestorghroughSCSBs

USD/US%$/$ United StatedDollar, theofficial currencyof the UnitesStatesof America

VCF / Venture Capital
Fund

ForeignVentureCapitalFundsasdefinedunderthe SEBI AIF Regulations

VAT ValueAddedTax
w.e.f. With effectfrom
WIP Work in process

Willful Defaulter

An entityor persorcategorizecgsawillful defaultetby anybankor financialinstitution
or consortiumhereof,in termsof regulation2(1)(lll) of the SEBIICDR Regulations

YoY

YearoverYear

The words and expressions used butdedined inthis Prospectus will have the same meardasgassigned to such

terms under

the Companies Act, 1956/2013 the

the SCRA, the Depositories Act and the rules and regulations made thereunder.

Notwithstandi
of
Companyloi t ifigGattisotnasn da mdj Mat elssieBl o ODeded @@ mewt b b

fiStatement
of our

ter ms in

Benefitso, Al ndustry

ng the
Possi

foregoing,
bl e Tax

meaning ascribed to such terms in these respective sections.

(This sectionis intentionally left blank)
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA

CERTAIN CONVENTIONS

All references in thiProspectus o 61 ndi adé are to the Republic of I ndi a
references herein to the 6Governmentd, 6l ndian Governm
are to the Gol, central or state, as applicable.

Unless otherwise specified, any time mentioned inRinispectus s i n | ndi an Standard Ti me

Unless indicated otherwise, all references to a year ifPtispectuare to a calendar year.

Unless stated otherwise, all referentiepagenumbers in thisrospectusre to the page numbers of tRisospectus
InthisProspectus our Company has presented numeri cal informati

FINANCIAL DATA

Unless stated otherwise, the financial statements inPitospectusre derived from our audited restated financial
statements fotheperiod ended oDecember 312024 and thénancial years endelllarch 31, 2024March31, 2023

and March 31, 2022 prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP which are included in this prospectus. For further
information, see please refer section tiffiRestated Financial Statemenideginning orpagel50of this Prospectus

In this Prospectusany discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due to
rounding off. All figures in decimals have been rounded off to the second decimal and all percentage figures have been
rounded off to two decimal places.

OQur Companybs financi aktang emals on Marah Biointle mext yean Acdaodngly, all 1
references to a particular financial year, unless stated otherwise, are tentiomtt?period ended on March 31 of that

year . Unl ess stated otherwise, or the coProspectufiretoaqui r es
calendar year.

There are significant differences between Indian GAAP, IFRS and US GAAP. The Company has not attempted to
quantify their impact on the financial data included herein and urges you to consult your own advisors regarding such
differences and their impactdnh e Companydés financi al dat a. Accordingl
Statements included in thirospectusvi | | provide meaningful information is
of familiarity with Indian accounting practices, the fmanies Act, Ind AS, and the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Any

reliance by persons not familiar with Indian Accounting Practices on the financial disclosures presented in this
Prospectushould accordingly be limited.

Unless the context otherwise indicates, any percentage amounts, as setffBittk iRactor® , OurfiBusines® a n d
fiManagement 6s Discussion and Anal ysi s obfthegiRning @apage?8a | Conc
, 106 and182respectively, of thirospectusand elsewhere in thRrospectushave been calculated on the basis of

t h Restéted Financial statemeats of o ur Co mp a pagelz0sfthisRraspeatusi ng on

CURRENCY AND UNITS OF PRESENTATION

I n this Prospectus, unless the context otherwise requi
rupees, the official currency of the Republic of I ndia
Dollars, the of i ci al currency of the United States of America.
6Lacsd, means 6One hundred thousanddé and the word O6Mil
Milliond and the wbibhdu®B8nd]l Miolnlbi one@dns 6One

In this Prospectusany discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due to
rounding off. All figures derived from our Restated Financial Statements in decimals have been rounded off to the
second decimal and all percentage figureehsen rounded off to two decimal places.

ThisProspectugnay contain conversions of certain US Dollar and other currency amounts into Indian Rupees that have
been presented solely to comply with the requirements of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. These conversions should not
be construed as a representation thatethdS Dollar or other currency amounts could have been, or can be converted
into Indian Rupees, at any particular rate.

DEFINITIONS

For definitions, p | Befirtiens ane Abbreviatiose b € @ ia p b Bofghts Braspeptasg @
I n t he s eMaihPravisions df thd Aetidles if Association b e g i page2b29f this Arospectusdefined
terms have the meaning given to such terms in the Articles of Association.
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INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA

Unless stated otherwise, the industry and market data and forecasts used througRmsgpbitusas been obtained

from industry sources as well as Government Publications. Industry sources as well as Government Publications
generally state that the information contained in those publications has been obtained from sources believed to be
reliable butthat their accuracy and completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability
cannot be assured.

Further, the extent to which the industry and market data presented Rrabgectuss meaningful depends on the
reader6s familiarity with and understanding of the met

gathering methodologies in the industry in which we conduct our business, and methodologies and assuayptions m
vary widely among different industry sources.

(This sectionis intentionally left blank)
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

All statements contained in thBrospectughat are not statements of historical fact constitute forMaoking

statements. All statements regarding our expected financial condition and results of operations, business, plans and
prospects are forwatldoking statements. These forwdmbking staéments include statements with respect to our
business strategy, our revenue and profitability, our projects and other matters discusseRraspleistusegarding

matters that are not historical facts. Investaan generally identify forwasidoking statements by the use of
terminology such as fdai mo, fflanticipateo, ibel i eveo, f
fimay o, Awill o, Awil | continueopahwil ippopeseo, Awbht et
seek too or other words or -lopking statements (whetherimatie byais or anyrthird r t
party) are predictions and are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions abowbusdticatise actual results to

differ materially from those contemplated by the relevant forvi@o#ing statement.

Forwardlooking statements reflect our current views with respect to future events and are not a guarantee of future
performance. These statements are based on our manager
currently available inforntéon. Although we believe the assumptions upon which these fordwakihg statements

are based are reasonable, any of these assumptions could prove to be inaccurate, and thedkingasthtements

based on these assumptions could be incorrect.

Further the actual results may differ materially from those suggested by the féoakirty statements due to risks or
uncertainties associated with our expectations with respect to, but not limited to, regulatory changes pertaining to the
industries in ihdia in which our Company operates and our ability to respond to them, our ability to successfully
implement our strategy, our growth and expansion, technological changes, our exposure to market risks, general
economic and political conditions in India aoverseas which have an impact on our business activities or investments,
the monetary and fiscal policies of India and other jurisdictions in which we operate, inflation, deflation, unanticipated
volatility in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, gqurices or other rates or prices, the performance of the financial
markets in India and globally, changes in domestic laws, regulations and taxes, changes in competition in our industry
and incidence of any natural calamities and/or acts of violence.

Certain important factors that could cause actual resu
but are not limited to, the following:

A Our ability to keepc psitceeyemerehts.t he | atest trends and
A Our ability to maintain optimum inventory levels

A Any damage to repute of our brand, name or | ogo or a
customer footfall, resulting in adverse impact our business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations.

A Any adverse devel opment affecting the region in whi

prospects, financial condition and results of operations.
AOur inability to meet our working capital requirements, on commercially acceptable terms, may have an adverse
impact on our business, financial caimh and results of operations.

A Competition from the big brands as well as small pl a
A lnability to effectively manage or expand our retail
A Our de p e n-gpatyartisansofar the phoduction and manufacturing of all of our products.

A Our manufacturing work is done by skilled craftsmen

risks/adverse developments affecting the skilled craftsmen.

A Changes in government policies and regulatory action
A Changes in political and social conditions in India,
A The occurrence of natural di sasters or calamities;

For furtherdi scussi ons of factors that could cause ®iskr actu
Factor® and c¢ haQurtBasinesé i aMa@&rmddigie ment 6s Discussion and Analys
Results of Operatiods b e g i n n i1@6gndBaof thisPpspectusrespectively. By theinature, certain market

risk disclosures are only estimating and could be materially different from what actually occurs in the future. As a result,
actual gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been estimated.

Forwardlooking statements reflect the current views as of the date dPthépectusind are not a guarantee of future
performance. These statements are based on our manager
currently available information. Although we believe the assumptions upon which these foaking) statemets

are based are reasonable, any of these assumptions could prove to be inaccurate, and thedkingasthtements

based on these assumptions could be incorrect.

Neither our Company, our Directoisr Promoters, the Lead Managenr any of their respective affiliates have any

obligation to update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect
the occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do ndbdouitéeon.

20



In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company, will ensure that the investors in India are informed of
material developments until the time of the grant of listing and trading permission by the Stock Exchange for the Equity
Shares pursuant thelssue

(This sectionis intentionally left blank)
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SECTION Il - SUMMARY OF OFFER DOCUMENT

The following is a general summary of certain disclosures includéisrProspectus and is neither exhaustive, nor
purports to contain a summary of all the disclosures in this Draft Prospectus or the Prospectus , when filed, or all
details relevant to prospective investors. This summary should be read in conjunctioandgitis, qualified in its

entirety by, the more detailed information appearing elsewhere irPthiso s pect us, incl @adheg #ARI
Issu® iCapital BObjuedtusswmodi,| ndestry iOuer Biugivwa,e s $d 0 mot er s

PromoterGr oupo, fARestated Financial I nformationodo, fAManagem
and Results of Operationso, @AOutstabaePrpcliduirgat iammd &l

Provisions of The Arpagesed 4951, 0if 88 AGS 44il,c 15@ 18P, 493 @25 and 252,
respectively.

SUMMARY OF OUR BUSINESS

Our compamy @ ewel lisengagedin theirdtahd wholesalbusiness of jewellery and ornaments

made from gold and diamonds, embellished with precious and semiprecious stones. Our extensive portfolio includes a
wide range of items such as rings, earrings, armlets, pendants, gajrahs, nose rings, braceletecklaias, hangles,

and other wedding jewellery pieces. Our diverse collection caters to various tastes and occasions, offering customers a
selection of exquisite pieces to chodsem. Manoj Jewellers Limited aims to provide highality and beautifully

crafted jewellery to meet the needs and preferences of our clientele.

Formored et ai | s, pl eas OurBusifiesdr bcehgd ppaoeId6gf thist Prospdctus

SUMMARY OF OUR INDUSTRY

The market size for India's gems gpdvelry sector was valued at US$ 78.50 billion in FY21. Growth in exports is
mainly due to revived import demand in the export market of the US and fulfillment of orders received by numerous
Indian exhibitors during the Virtual Buy&eller Meets (VBSMs)anducted by GJEPC.

I ndi ads gems and jewelry expe2R ta$4.18% rse frommdhe pfvibus ger. I 4 b i
October 2022, I ndi ads gems and jewelry exports was at
70 billion in jewelry export irthe next five years (until 2025), up from US$ 35 billion in 2020.

India's position as a hub for jewelry manufacturing, supported by 450 organized manufacturers, importers, and
exporters, is likely to strengthen as liberal policies continue to benefit the sector. The industry is projected to reach a
market size of US$ 10dlllion by 2027, supported by these positive developments and increasing demand for jewellery.
For more detail s, imdustrg Gverviewe fbeerg i cnhna §Rof ehioPnaspptalgeed 1

OUR PROMOTERS

Thepromoters of our company are Mdanoj Kumar Ms. Raj Kumarj Mr. Sunil Shantilabnd Ms. Shalu

SIZE OF ISSUE

The following table summarizes the details of thkeue For f ur t hThelssudeatnalssh@Structusde e  f
beginning on paget9 and223 respectively.

Issueof Equity Shares 30,00 000 Equi t y-eachfarrcasls at @ grice of34(pér Equity
share (incl udid4hpgera BEpgrueiniyu ng hoafrl,620
Lakhs

Out of which:

U Fresh Issué 30,00000 Equity Shares aggregatittg 1,620Lakhs

Of which:

Market Maker Reservation | 1,52,000Equi t y s h-aeraecsh dfor I1cOa/s B pex Equity

Portion shares agag8@e8gakhsi ng t o

Net Issue 28,48, 000Equi ty s h-zraecsh dfor IX@&/s34penHEquity
shares agglb¥.2hakhisng t o

(1) The Fresh Issue has been authorized by our Board pursuant to resolutions passed at its meetin@epétonder
26, 2024 and by our Shareholders pursuant to a special resolution passed at their meetings $efdearber 2,
2024
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

Our Company intends to utilize the Net Proceeds for the following objects:

(7 in
Sr. No | Particulars Amount
1. | Repayment/ prepayment of certain borrowings availed by 1323.00
Company
2. | General Corporate Purpose 167.00
3. | Issue Expenses 130.00
Total 1620.00

#The amount utilized for general corporate purpose shall not exceed 25% of the gross proceetisoé tloe such
amount as may be provided in the extant legislations applicable at the time of filing the Prospectus with the RoC.

For further

PRE-ISSUE SHAREHOLDING OF OUR PROMOTERS AND PROMOTER GROUP AS A PERCENTAGE
OF THE PAID -UP SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

Set forth is the Préssueshareholding of our Promoters, Promoter group as a percentage of thup shigre capital of

the Company:

Category of Promoter RlCal=ofe . .

No. of Shares | % of pre-issueCapital
Promoters
Mr. Manoj Kumar 25,66,615 42.88%
Mr. Sunil Shantilal 14,77,264 24.68%
Ms. Raj Kumari 6,32,500 10.57%
Ms. Shalu 9,17,126 15.32%
Promoter Group
Ms. Damayanthi Bai 9,624 0.16%
Ms. Vanshika M 41,250 0.69%
Ms. Prachi M 41,250 0.69%
Total 56,85,62 94.9%

Shareholding of Promoter / Promoter Group and Additional Top 10 Shareholders of th€ompany:

S. No. Shareholders

Pre-Issue shareholding as at
the date of Draft Prospectus

PostlIssueshareholding(Assumed}®

Number of Shareholding [Number of Equity Shareholding
Equity Shares | (in%) Shares® (in %) @
Promoter (A)
1. |Mr. Manoj Kumar 25,66,61 42.889 25,66,61 28.569
2. |Mr. Sunil Shantilal 14,77,26 24.689 14,77,26 16.449
3. |Ms. Raj Kumari 6,32,50 10.579 6,32,50 7.049
4. |Ms. Shalu 9,17,12 15.329 9,17,12 10.219
Total (A) 55,93,50 93.45% 55,93,50 62.25%
Promoter Group (B)
5. |Ms. Damayanthi Bai 9,624 0.169 9,624 0.119
6. Ms. Vanshika M 41,25 0.699 41,25 0.469
7. Ms. Prachi M 41,25 0.699 41,25 0.469
Total (B) 92,124 1.54% 92,12/ 1.03%
Public (C)

8. Heena Girish Jain 1,00,00 1.6 1,00,00( 1.119
9. |Gaurav Singh 66,66¢ 1.11% 66,66¢ 0.749
10.|Sagar Haresh Kumar Doshi 66,66 1.11% 66,661 0.749
11.|BhavyaJain 66,66¢ 1.11% 66,66¢ 0.749
Total (C) 2,99,99 5% 2,99,99 3.34%
[Total (A+B+C) 59,85,62 100% 59,85,62 66.61%

Notes:

1) ThePromoterGroupshareholdersre Mr. Manoj Kumar Mr. Sunil Shantilal Ms. Raj Kumarj Ms. Shaly
Ms. Damayanthi BgiMs. Vanshika MandMs. Prachi M
2) Includes optiongsif any,that have been exercised until date of prospectus and any transfers of equity shares
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by existing shareholders after the date ofRhespectusintil thedate ofthis Fospectus.

3) None of the Promoters and Members of Promoters Group shall subscribe to the Equity Shares offered under
the Issue. It is assumed that none of the shareholders belonging to the Public Category, as mentioned above,
shall subscribe to the Equity Shares offevader the present issue.

SUMMARY OF RESTATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(_7in lakhs other than share data)

Particulars For the period ended on For the year ended March 31
December 31, 2024 2024 2023 2022
Share Capital 598.56 598.56| 598.56| 166.75
Net worth# 1,356.54 97988 655.74| 243.38
Total Revenue$ 4,29720 4338.42| 1363.52| 675.82
Profit after Tax 376.66 324.13 62.36 36.47
Earnings per share 8.39 5.42 1.14 0.69
Net Asset Value pe 22.66 16.37 12.03 4.60
Total borrowings” 1882.11| 1538.9 567.34| 1200.82

#Net Worth = Restated Equity Share Capital plus Restated Reserves & Surplus

$Total Revenue = Restated Revenue from operations plus Restated Other Income

@ Earnings per share (Basic & diluted) = Restated profit after tax for the period dividBé$tated weighted average
number of Equity Shares outstanding during the period

*Net Asset Value per Equity Share = Restated Net worth dividBestated weighted average number of Equity Shares
outstanding during the period

Total Borrowings = Restated Lofiterm Borrowings plus Restated Short Term Borrowings

Notes:

(1) Our Board of Directors pursuant to a resolution datkthe10, 2022and Shareholders pursuant ta ardinary
resolution datedunel0, 2022 have approved the issuarered allotmentof 4,16,876 bonus Equity Shares in the
ratio of One Equity Shares for every Four existing fully pgdEquity Share.

(2) Our Board of Directors pursuant to a resolution datkthel7, 2022and Shareholders pursuant ta ardinary

resolution datedunel?, 2022 have approved thesuance andllotmentof 2,08,438 bonus Equity Shares in the

ratio of One Equity Shares for every ten existing fully pacEquity Share.

(3) Our Board of Directors prsuant to a resolution datddecembel3, 2022, have approvedsuance andllotment

of 7,00,000Equity Shares iterms of Rights Issue

(4) Our Board of Directors pursuant torasolution datedanuary06, 2023and Shareholders pursuant to ardinary

resolution datedlanuary06, 2023 have approved thissuance andllotmentof 29,92,814 bonus Equity Shares

in the ratio of One Equity Shares for every One existing fully-ppié&quity Share.

QUALIFICATIONS OF AUDITORS

There are no qualifications included by the Statutory Auditors in their audit reports and hence no effect is required to
be given in the Restated Financial Information.

SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS & MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS

A summary of pending legal proceedings and other material litigations involving our ConmparBromoters, our
Directors and our Group Companies as on the date dPtbipectuss provided below:

Name of Criminal Tax Statutory Disciplinary Material Aggregate
Entity Proceedings| Proceedings| or actions by the Civil amount
Regulatory | SEBI or Stock Litigations | involved (Rs
Proceedings| Exchanges in Lakhs)
against our
Promoters
Company
By the NA NA NA NA NA NA
Company
Againstthe | NA 1 NA NA NA 0.01
Company
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Directors
Directors NA NA NA NA NA NA
KMPs, SMPs
By Our NA NA NA NA NA NA
KMPs
Againstour NA NA NA NA NA NA
KMPs
By Our NA NA NA NA NA NA
SMPs
Againstour NA NA NA NA NA NA
SMPs
Againstthe | NA NA NA NA NA NA
Directors
Promoters*
By Promoters| NA NA NA NA NA NA
Against NA 8 NA NA NA 18.31
Promoters
Subsidiaries
By NA NA NA NA NA NA
Subsidiaries
Against NA NA NA NA NA NA
Subsidiaries
Group
Companies
By Group NA NA NA NA NA NA
Companies
Against NA NA NA NA NA NA
Group
Companies

*One of our Promoters is also the director of the Company. Hence litigation against him has not been included under
the heading of director to avoid repetition.

Brief details of top 5 Criminal Case against our Promoters:

Sr. | Particulars Litigation filed | Current Amount involved
No. by status
1 NA NA NA NA

RISK FACTORS
For details relating to rRiskkactdréa clhi eqgisn n ig8opthisP®mspgciedg.eer s ec

SUMMARY OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES OF OUR COMPANY

The following is a summary table of our companyds cont
As on As at March 31,
Particulars December 31
2024 2024 2023 2022
Related to Direct Tax matter 0.31 0.86 0.77 0.75
Related to Indirect Tax matter 1.40 - - -
Total 1.71 0.86 0.77 0.75

For detail s, pl e aRestated Eiflarcial StatemeBt® b € ¢ 0 n n t1509fthes Brospextgse
SUMMARY OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

ANNEXURE - IX: Restated StandaloneStatement of Related Party Disclosures

As required under Accounting Standardfl® e | at ed P ar asyotified pirsuamd ® Campasyo(Accounting
Standard) Rules 2006, following are details of transactions during the year with related parties of the company as
defined in AS 18.
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List of Related Parties where Control exists and Relationships:

Sr. No Name of the Related Party Relationship
1. Mr. S.Manoj Kumar Key Managerial Personnel
2. Mr. S. Sunil Key Managerial Personnel
3. Ms. Rajkumari M Key Managerial Personnel
4, Ms. Vaneeta Khanna Key Managerial Personnel
5. Mr. Mayank GirishBhai Garach Key Managerial Personnel
6. Ms. Damayanthi Bai Relative of KMP
7. Ms. Prachi Relative of KMP
8. Ms. Shalu Relative of KMP
9. Ms.Vanshika M Relative of KMP

Note 1 The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary,

profits and losses and cash flows appearingyninexure IX

(Rs.in Lakhs)

For the Year Endedon

Transactions during the year:

December 312024 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Loan Accepted
Mr. S.Manoj Kumar 72.00 - 10.55 40.30
Mr. S. Sunil 57.00 - 9.45 34.90
Loan Repaid
Mr. S.Manoj Kumar - - 210.50 -
Mr. S. Sunil 40.00 - 140.00 0.75
Interest Expense
Mr. S.Manoj Kumar 4.07 1.21 9.96 10.56
Mr. S. Sunil 4.13 2.57 8.27 8.11
Remuneration
Mr. S.Manoj Kumar 9.00 12.00 12.00 7.00
Mr. S. Sunil 7.50 10.00 10.00 7.00
Ms. Rajkumari M 6.00 8.00 8.66 3.30
Ms. Shalu 240 4.80 2.79 1.40
Ms.Vanshika M - - 2.64 0.85
Ms. Vaneeta Khanna 2.24 2.58 1.26 -
Mr. Mayank GirishBhai Garach 0.60 - - -

As at
Closing Balances as at

December 312024 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Short Term Borrowings
(Repayable on Demand):
Mr. S. Manoj Kumar 96.76 21.19 20.10 211.09
Mr. S. Sunil 66.19 45.06 42.75 165.85
Other Current Liabilities:
Mr. S.Manoj Kumar 11.27 291 0.55 17.19
Mr. S. Sunil 8.92 2.58 - 13.78
Ms. Rajkumari M 8.12 2.35 - -
Ms. Shalu 3.85 1.45 - -
Ms. Vanshika M 2.39 2.39 2.39 -
Ms. Vaneeta Khanna 0.34 - - -
Mr. MayankGirishBhai Garach 0.20 - - -
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FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

There have been no financing arrangements whereby our Promoters, members of the Promoter group, our directors and
their relatives have financed the purchase by any other persacunfties of our Company during a period of six (6)
months immediately preceding the date of this Prospectus.

WEIGHTED AVERAGE PRICE OF EQUITY SHARES ACQUIRED BY OUR PROMOTERS

The weighted average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Pronmoteesast one (1) year preceding the date
of this Prospectuset forth in the table below:

Name of Promoters Number of Shares Weight_ed Average Costof Acqu_isition per
Equity Share (in )

Mr. Manoj Kumar NA NA

Mr. Sunil Shantilal NA NA

Ms. Shalu NA NA

Ms. Raj Kumari NA NA

The weighted average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoters have been calculated by taking into account
the amount paid by them to acquire and Shares allotted to them divided by number of shares acquired in last one (1)
year.

*As certified byM/s. Mardia & Associates., Chartered Accountalgway of their certificate datearch 25 2025
AVERAGE COST OF ACQUISITION OF PROMOTERS

The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoterdasthen the table below:

Name of Promoters Number of Shares AveEnE Cos (.)f HEaIEITem e SELE
Share (in )

Mr. Manoj Kumar 25,66,615 7.8846

Mr. Sunil Shantilal 14,77,264 9.9678

Ms. Shalu 9,17,126 0.7905

Ms. Raj Kumari 6,32,500 0.7905

Theaverage cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoters have been calculated by taking into account the
amount paid by them to acquire and Shares allotted to them as reduced by amount received on sell of shares i.e., net of
sale consideration is diged by net quantity of shares acquired.

*As certified by M/s. Mardia & Associates., Chartered Accountants, by way of their certificateMiaiet25, 2025.

DETAILS OF PRE-IPO PLACEMENT

Our Company does not contemplate any issuance or placement of Equity Shares from the date of this Prospectus till
the listing of the Equity Shares.

ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES FOR CONSIDERATION OTHER THAN CASH IN THE LAST ONE (1) YEAR

Our company has not issued Equity Shares for consideration other than cash in the one (1) year preceding the date of
this Prospectus.

SPLIT / CONSOLIDATION OF EQUITY SHARES IN THE LAST ONE YEAR

Our Company has not undertaken consolidation of the Equity Shares in the one year preceding the date of this
Prospectus.

EXEMPTION FROM COMPLYING WITH ANY PROVISIONS OF SECURITIES LAWS, IF ANY,
GRANTED BY SEBI

Our company has not applied or received any exemption from complying with any provisions of securities laws by
SEBI.
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SECTION Il T RISK FACTORS

An investment in Equity Shares involves a high degree of financial risk. Investors should carefully consider all
information in thisProspectusincluding the risks described below, before making an investment in our Equity Shares.

If any of the following risks, or other risks that are not currently known or are now deemed immaterial, actually occur,
our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition could suffer, the price of the Equity Shares could
decline, and/ou may lose all or part of your investment. In making an investment decision, prospective investors must
rely on their own examination of us and the terms of theslsxluding the merits and risks involved. Investors should
consult their tax, financial and legal advisors about particular consequences to them of an investment in fhledssue.
risk factors set forth below do not purport to be complete or comprehensive in terms of all the risk factors that may
arise in connection with our business or any decision to purchase, own or dispose of the Equity Shares. This section
addresses generalsks associated with the industry in which we operate and specific risksiassl with our
CompanyHowever, there are certain risk factors where the financial impact is not quantifiable and, therefore, such
financial impact cannot be disclosed in such risk factors. Unless specified or quantified in the relevant risk factors
below, we are not in a posith to quantify the financial or other implications of any of the risks described in this section.
Any of the following risks, as well as the other risks and uncertainties discussedPim#gsctuscould have a material
adverseeffect on our business and could cause the trading price of our Equity Shares to decline and you may lose all
or part of your investment.

ThisProspectuslso contains forwardooking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could

differ materially from those anticipated in these forwéwdking statements as a result of certain factors, including the
considerations described b&lcand elsewhere in thBrospectus See chapter titled AFor wajl
beginningon page20 of this Prospectus.

To obtain a better understanding of our business, you should read this chapter in conjunction with other chapters of
thisProspectus i ncl uding the chapters titled AOur Businesso,
Condition and Results of Operationso, flondwslipga@eOver vi
88 and 150 respectively of thirospectustogether with all other Restated Financial Statements contained in this
ProspectusOur actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these fordwakdng statements as a

result of certain factors, including the considerations described below and elsewhereFrodpectus

Unless otherwise stated, the financial data in this chapter is derived from our Restated Financial Statements for the
period ended orbDecember 312024 andfinancial years ended March 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 as included in
iRestated Financi al pagaels0oféhimRraspest’s begi nning on

MATERIALITY

The Risk factors have bedetermined on the basis of their materiality. The following factors have been considered for
determining the materiality.

Some events may have material impact quantitatively;

Some events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively.

Some events may not be material individually but may be found material collectively.
Some events may not be material at present but may be having material impact in future

=4 =4 —a 9

INTERNAL RISKS

1. We have certain outstanding litigation against us, an adverse outcome of which may adversely affect our
business, reputation and results of operations.

A summary of outstanding matters set out below includes details of civil and criminal proceedings, tax proceedings,
statutory and regulatory actions and other material pending litigation involving us, our Subsidiary, Directors, Promoter
and Group Companws at the date of this Prospectus.

Cases against our Company

Nature of Cases No of Outstanding Cases Amount involved (In Lakhs)
Criminal Complaints -- --

Statutory/ Regulatory Authorities -- --

Taxation Matters 1 0.01

Other Litigation -- --
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Cases against our Director and / or PromotersK M P @usd / or SMPs

Nature of Cases

No of Outstanding Cases

Amount involved (In Lakhs)

Criminal Complaints --
Statutory/ Regulatory Authorities -- --
Taxation Matters 8 1831
Other Litigation -- --

Cases against our Group Companies and / or Subsidiaries

Nature of Cases No of Outstanding Cases Amount involved (In Lakhs)
Criminal Complaints - -
Statutory/ Regulatory Authorities -- --
Taxation Matters - -
Other Litigation - -

The amounts claimed in these proceedings have been disclosed to the extent ascertainable and include amounts claimed
jointly andseverally. If any new developments arise, such as a change in Indian law or rulings against us by appellate
courts or tribunals, we may need to make provisions in our financial statements that could increase our expenses and
current liabilities.

We cannot assure you that any of the outstanding litigation matters will be settled in our favour or that no additional
liabilities will arise out of these proceedings. In addition to the above, we could also be adversely affected by complaints,
claims or le@l actions brought by persons, including before consumer forums or-spetific or other regulatory
authorities in the ordinary course of business or otherwise, in relation to our business operations, our intellectual
property, our branding or marketiedforts or campaigns or our policies. We may also be subject to legal action by our
employees and/or former employees in relation to alleged grievances, such as termination of employment. We cannot
assure you that such complaints, claims or requestaffimation will not result in investigations, enquiries or legal
actions by any regulatory authority or third persons against us.

For further details of certain material legal proceedings involving our Company, our Promoter, our directors, see
fiOutstanding Litigations and Material Developments b e g i pagel@3gf this RProspectus.

2. Our income and sales are subject to seasonal fluctuations and lower income in a peak season may have a
disproportionate effect on our results of operations.

We operate in an industry that is driven by fluctuation seasonal fluctuations. Our sales peak during festival/wedding
seasons and on occasions such as Akshay Tritiya, Dhanteras, Diwali, wedding season, etc. While we stock certain
inventory to account foihis seasonality, our fixed costs such as lease rentals, employee salaries, showroom operating
costs and logistieeelated expenses, which form a significant portion of operating costs, are relatively constant
throughout the year. Consequently, lower thapeeted net sales during the third or fourth quarters of the fiscal year

or more pronounced seasonal variations in sales in the future could have a disproportionate impact on our operating
results for the fiscal year, or could strain our resources andrimyacash flows. Any slowdown in demand for our
jewellery during peak seasons or failure by us to accurately anticipate and prepare for such seasonal fluctuations could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and resuésatibog.

3. We may be unable to respond to changes in consumer demands and market trends in a timely manner.

Our success depends on our ability to identify, originate and define product and market trends, both on a pan India,
international and more local level, as well as to anticipate, gauge and react to rapidly changing consumer demands in
a timely manner. Ouproducts must also appeal to a broad range of customers whose preferences may vary
significantly across regions and cannot be predicted with certainty. We cannot assure you that the demand for our
products with engtconsumers will continue to grow or thaewvill be able to continue to develop appealing styles or

meet rapidly changing consumer demands in the future. If we misjudge the market for our jewellery products or fail
to anticipate a shift in consumer preferences, we may be faced with a reducternnes. Customer preferences
regarding diamonds, gold and other precious metals and gemstones also influence the level of our sales. Customer
preferences could be affected by a variety of issues, including promotion of specific types of jewellerfaslyidime

industry, such as the promotion of silver over traditional gold jewellery, a decrease in the perceived value and customer
satisfaction of the jewellery compared to its price, the availability of alternate metals and consumer attitudes towards
the aubstitution of our products with other products or a shift in customer preference to other luxury products. Any
inability to respond to changes in consumer demands and market trends in a timely manner could have a material
adverse effect on our businessahcial condition and results of operations.

4. Our ability to attract customers is dependent on the success and visibility of our showrooms.
Sales at our showroom is derived, in part, from the volume of customer visits in the relevant locations. Showroom

locations may become unsuitable, and our sales volume and customer traffic generally may be slowed, by, among other
29



things: economic downturns in a particular area; competition from nearby jewellery companies; changing consumer
demographics in a particular market; changing lifestyle choices of consumers in a particular market; government
imposed lockdowns due to pandesjisuch as COVIEL9; and the popularity of other businesses located near our
showrooms. Given our dependence on customers visiting our showrooms, our success is partially dependent upon the
continued popularity of our location. Changes in areas aroundgtmwroom location that result in reductions in
customer traffic or otherwise render the locations unsuitable could result in reduced sales volume, which could
materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

5. Thenon-availability or high cost of quality gold bullion and diamonds and fluctuations in their prices may have
an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

The jewellery industry is generally affected by fluctuations in the price and supply of gold, diamonds and, also to some
extent, other precious and sepmecious metals and stones. Timely procurement of materials such as gold bullion,
diamonds and preciowd semiprecious stones, as well as the quality and the price at which it is procured, play an
important role in the successful operation of our business. Accordingly, our business is affected by the availability, cost
and quality of raw materials. Theiges and supply of these and other materials depend on factors beyond our control,
including general economic conditions, competition, production levels and regulatory factors such as custom duties.
Further, fluctuations in gold prices may affect our ressof operations in various ways. An increase in the price of gold

may result in an increase in our income from sales assuming such increases do not adversely affect sales volumes.
However, a significant increase in the price of gold or a negative oudtoéikture gold prices could, in the short term,
adversely affect our sales volumes. We cannot assure you that we will be able to procure quality raw materials at
competitive prices or at all.

6. Jewellery purchases are discretionary and often perceived as luxury purchases. Any factor negatively impacting
discretionary spending by consumers may adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition
and prospects.

Jewellery purchases are typically higha | u e, l uxury purchases and depend on
power. Various factors affect discretionary consumer spending, including economic conditions, perceptions of such
conditions by consumers,econom o ut |l ook, employment, the |l evel of cons:s

business conditions, inflation levels, interest rates, consumer debt and asset values, availability of credit and levels of
taxation, among others.

Most of our customers are individuals who purchase jewellery for personal use and who are generally less financially
resilient than corporate entities. Additionally, gold and diamond jewellery is not perceived to be a necessity which
may result in a signifant fall in demand in the case of adverse economic conditions as opposed to demand for those
goods that are perceived as a necessity. Any such fall in demand or a decline in the general economic conditions in
India or our international markets or condits which may bring discretionary spending by consumers under pressure
could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

7. The strength of our brands is crucial to our growth and success and we may not succeed in continuing to
maintain and develop our brands.

We consider our brand AManoj Jewell erso particularly t
of operations are influenced by the strength and popularity of our brands, including the level of consumer recognition
and perception of aubrands in the mind of varied customers. We believe that in the business of gold jewellery the
value and the trust of a brand plays a very important role in the overall growth of the business and its result of operations
The strength of our brands depsrah factors such as our growth, our product designs, the materials used to make our
products, the quality of our products, the designs, the distinct character and presentation of our products as well as the
presentation and layout of our showrooms. Pubimmunication activities such as advertising, public relations,
promotions, offers and marketing as well as the general perception of our business also impact our brands. Failure to
manage any of the above factors or failure of our promotional and atlities to differentiate and further strengthen

our brands could adversely affect the value and perception of our brands and our ability to maintain existing customers
and attract new customers, and, as a result, have a material adverse effect @nesasiesults of operations and
financial condition. We may face negative brand publicity and brand dilution to the extent we fail to develop, promote
and position our brands effectively and consistently in the competitive market, with respect tmdeeisprcurrent

products, various range of offerings or any new product categories. However, there can be no assurance that our
advertising or marketing efforts are or will be successful at all times and may result in increased sales. Furthermore,
there ca be no assurance that our marketing efforts will succeed in maintaining our brand and its perception with
customers.

8. Volatility in the market price of gold and diamonds has a bearing on the value of our inventory and may affect
our income, profitability and scale of operations.

The jewellery industry generally is affected by fluctuations in the price and supply of gold, to a lesser extent, diamonds
and other precious and sepriecious metals and stones. Gold prices have been volatile in the recent past, although,
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there has been an increased investment demand for gold globally. Fluctuations in gold prices may affect consumer
demand as well as operating costs of our Company. An increase in the price of gold may result in an increase in our
income from sales assumisgch increases do not adversely affect sales volumes. However, a significant increase in
the price of gold or a negative outlook on future gold prices could, in the short term, adversely affect our sales volumes.
Any such fluctuation in the price of goldiamonds or other raw materials may materially and adversely affect our
revenue from operations and profitability.

9. The operations of our Company are located in the state of Tamil Nadu, any adverse developments affecting
operations in this region could have a significant impact on our business, and results of operations.

Our Showrooms are located in Chennai, Tamil Nadu. We essentially carry our business operations, including procuring
of raw material and sale of our products, in the state of Tamil Nadu only. This reliance on specific operating location
heightens our expogelto adverse developments related to economic and demographic changes in this region, which
may adversely affect our business prospects, financial conditions and results of operations. While we strive to maintain
a stable supply chain, various factbrsuch as economic fluctuations, regulatory changes, or natural disruptions
impacting the state of Tamil Nadu, could impact our procurement process. As such, there may be potential risks that
could affect availability and pricing of the raw materials requingds

Economic downturns in these regions may affect suppliers' ability to deliver consistent quality and quantity of materials.
Furthermore, any adverse regulatory, economic, social or force majeure events, within the State of Tamil Nadu, may
deter the customerfrom investing in capital goods, which may have adverse effect on our business and results of

operations.

Al t hough we havenét faced any such instances in the p:
have direct impact on the region where we operate, will not cause any adverse impact on the business of the Company
accordinglyinvestors should consider our business and prospects in light of the risks, losses and challenges that we face
and should not rely on our results of operations for any prior periods as an indication of our future performance.

10. There are certain discrepancies and namompliances noticed in some of our corporate records relating to forms
filed with the Registrar of Companies.

In the past, our company has obtained vehicle loans from Axis Bank and Diamler Financial Service India Private
Limited but have failed to filed form CHG in respect of the said borrowings, with the concerned Registrar of
Companies. Further, there have theeme instances of delays in filing statutory forms with the RoC such as form DPT

3 was filed under the CFSS Scheme, 2020 of MCA without any perfaltghermore, the financial statements of the
Company for the financial year 2023, as were filed by thCompany with the Registrar of Companies, was not
authenticated by the Company Secretary and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, in terms of requirements set
forth under section 134(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and the financial statemert€ohthany for the financial

year 202223, as were filed by the Company with the Registrar of Companies, was not authenticated by the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company (who at the time of such authentication was also a Director of the Company and has
authenticated the financial statements in his capacity as the Director of the Company), in terms of requirements set forth
under section 134(1) of the Companies Act, 20FAlther we have at several instances, delayed in filing our GST
returns as a result of which, we have been required to pay the late filing fees along with interest on delayed deposit of
due taxes.

Although late filing fees the late filing fees levied for the delays are small, but if we continue this practice, the
accumulated amounts of each delay may adversely affect our cashHioter, the Company has filed Adjudication
application with the Registrar of Companies for the-nompliance of Section 134(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
cannot quantify the amount of penalty that our Company may be subjected to, owing to wicashoilmws might be
adversely effected.

Further, neshow cause notice has been issued against our Company till date, in respect of above, in the event of any
cognizance being taken by the concerned authorities in respect of above, actions may be taken against our Company
and its directors, in wibh event the financials of our Company and our directors may be affected. Further we cannot
assure that we may not do delay filings in future and not be subjected to penalty or interest.

Furthermore, with the expansion of our operations there can be no assurance that deficiencies in our internal controls
and compliances will not arise, or that we will be able to implement, and continue to maintain, adequate measures to
rectify or mitigateany such deficiencies in our internal controls, in a timely manner or at all.

11. The coronavirus -pam)demas HaACOVA Def fect on our busi nes
which it may continue to do so in the future cannot be predicted.

In the first half of calendar year 2020, COVID spread to a majority of countries across the world, including India.
The COVID-19 pandemic has had, and may continue to have, significant repercussions across local, national and global
economies and finarad markets. The global impact of the COVI® pandemic has been rapidly evolving and public
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health officials and governmental authorities responded by taking measures, including in India where our operations
are primarily based, such as prohibiting people from assembling in large numbers, instituting quarantines, restricting
travel , i{ashounemg offdteays and restricting the types of bus
others. Due to such government mandated lockdown in India, we had to temporarily close all of our showrooms and
our offices. Like any other business across ¢buntry, even our operations and revenues had an impact during the
lockdown.

In accordance to the government notification passed at regular intervals, we had to ensure that we maintain all our
employees at all our showrooms and offices with very minimal business and revenue being generated. This had an
effect on our financials.

12.The Indian jewellery retail industry is extremely competitive

Competition in the Indian jewellery industry is significant. We operate in highly competitive and fragmented markets,
and competition in these markets is based primarily on market trends and customer preferences. The players in the
jewellery sector in Indi often offer their products at highly competitive prices and many of them are well established

in their local markets.

Some of our competitors may be larger than us in terms of business volume and may have greater capital, technical
capabilities and financial and other resources than us which may enable them to undertake larger and more complex
projects. In addition, ouraenpetitors that are smaller specialized companies may compete effectively against us based
on price and their concentrated size and focus. For details of our competitors, see thé section B ulseginmiegs s 0

on pagel06.

Customer acquisition and retention remain key focus areas for us. We compete for customers, based on various factors,
including design of our jewellery, pricing, quality of our jewellery and after sales service. If we do not compete in these
areas effectigly, this could lead to a decrease in our market share, an increase in our marketing and other expenses.
This could adversely affect our profitability, as it would cause us to experience lower revenue and additional selling
costs to replace customers aedapture lost revenue. Aggressive discounting by competitors may force us to reduce
our prices in order to remain competitive and may thereby adversely impact our results of operations. The pricing of
gold jewellery in particular is extremely competitiugedto its objectively verifiable value, resulting in us having limited

control over our pricing of gold jewellery. There can be no assurance that we can effectively compete with our
competitors in the future, and any such failure to compete effectiveljhavaya material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

13.1f we lose the services of the members of our senior management or other key employees or if we are not able to
attract or retain qualified persons, our business and operations would be adversely affected.

Our performance is substantially dependent on the performance of our senior management and key employees.
Although some of the members of our senior management have been with us for a long period of time, there can be no
assurance that any member of ounise management or other key employees will not leave us in the future. Such
departures may adversely affect our business and operations.

Our success is also highly dependent on our continuing ability to identify, hire, train, retain and motivate highly
qualified management, technical, sales and marketing personnel. In particular, the recruitment of skilled product
developers and experiencsales personnel remains critical to our success. Competition for such skills is intense and
continuous, and we may not be able to attract, integrate or retain highly qualified technical, sales or managerial
personnel in the future. In addition, in ourceffto attract and retain critical personnel, we may experience increased
compensation costs that are not offset by either improved productivity or higher sales/ prices for our software products
or services.

14.We are dependent on thirgarty transportation providers for the delivery of our products, and any disruption in
such delivery or failure by third parties to provide their services may adversely affect our operations

Our success depends on thenterrupted supply and transportation of our products. We rely on our vendors to deliver
our finished products. Although we have not encountered any significant disruption to the supply and transportation
restrictions/ lockdown consequent to the outbrefithe COVID19 pandemic temporarily affected our ability to
transport of our finished products. There can be no assurance that any such disruption will not occur in near future as a
result of these factors and that such disruptions will not be matBréaisportation strikes may have an adverse effect

on supplies and deliveries. In addition, products may be lost or damaged in transit for various reasons including
occurrence of accidents or natural disasters. There may also be delay in delivery obpuhdtictmay also affect our
business and results of operation negatively. A failure to deliver our products in an efficient and reliable manner could
have a material and adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operationonmgnesc
received from insurers or thiplarty transportation providers may be insufficient to cover the cost of any delays and
will not repair damage to our relationships with our affected customers.
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15. Any failure in our quality control processes may have an adverse effect on our business, brand, results of
operations and financial condition.

We ensure at all times that we undertake a number of quality control procedures to ensure that our products meet quality
expectations of our customers. We ensure that all our jewellery is hallmarked as prescribed by Bureau of Indian
St andBIBad)s ath all ti mes and the necessary documents and
of our products. However, there is no assurance that the quality control measures carried out by us for all products will
be effective at all times arttiat our product shall match the highest quality standard. If we receive negative publicity
about the quality of our jewellery due to aprality control process being ineffective, it will have an adverse effect on

our business, brand, result of operatéonl financial condition.

16.We have informal arrangements with various artisans who are engaged in making jewellery for us. procure We
do not enter into long term formal agreements with such artisans and may not be able to procure sufficient
quantities or desired quality of producfsom such artisans in a timely manner or at acceptable prices, or on an
exclusive basis, which may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We engage the services of thipdrty artisans for making the jewellery items for our Company. We do not have any
artisans and/or jewellery designers on our rolls, further we do not have any formal or long terms agreements with such
artisans and they wofflor us solely based on an informal arrangement. We generally work with theé#ntydartisans

on purchase order basis and these artisans don6t work
services of any of our artisans, we may fdetys in supplies and owing to which our results and financial position

would be adversely effected.

Furthermore, discontinuation of production by these artisans or a failure of these artisans to adhere to the delivery
schedule or the required quality could hamper our inventory management. There can be no assurance that strong
demand, capacity limitations other problems experienced by our artisans will not result in occasional shortages or
delays in their supply of products to us. Further, we cannot assure you that our artisans will continue to be associated
with us on reasonable terms, or at all. Sitiese artisans are not contractually bound to deal with us exclusively, we
may face the risk of our competitors offering better terms to such artisans, which may cause them to cater to our
competitors alongside, or even instead of us. In the event thiatilvie secure sufficient quantities of such products

from our artisans at acceptable quality and prices in a timely manner, our business, financial performance and cash
flows may be adversely affected. While there have not been any instances or etfentsst that has resulted in any
shortfall in supply of our products, we cannot assure you that such incidents will not occur in the future.

17.We are dependent upon few suppliers for supply of our products. In an eventuality where our suppliers are unable
to deliver us the required materials in a tiiund manner it may have a material adverse effect on our business
operations and profitability.

For thenine months period endedecembel, 2024 and for théinancial yeas ended on March 31, 2024, 2023 and

2022, our top 10 suppliers contributed aro82d61%, 70.03%, 46.38%, and 90.77% respectively and top 5 suppliers
contributed around@4.80%, 64.82%, 38.24%, and 72.97%, respectively of our purchases. In the event of a delay,
inadequacy or default in deliveries by any of our vendors, we may not be able to source our products on an adequate
and timely basis or on commercially acceptable termsgor disruption to the timely and adequate supplies of
products could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. Any problems faced by our
suppliers in their manufacturing facilities resulting in delays orammerence tquality requirements could adversely

i mpact our ability to meet our customersd requirements
are unable to line up supplies from alternate suppliers.

18.Current locations of our stores may become unattractive, and suitable new locations may not be available for a
reasonable price or acceptable terms, if at all.

The success of any store depends in part on its location. We aim to make our products available in stores opened in
strategic locations and in higlensity cluster areas. We cannot assure you that current locations of store operated by
us will continue tabe attractive or profitable as demographic patterns change, or as leases are renewed/extended on
terms less favourable to us. Neighbourhood or economic conditions where our stores are located could decline in the
future, thus resulting in reduced salesefhatively, neighbourhoods could continue to improve and escalate real estate
prices, which may not be proportionate to the sales we are able to carry out. In the event real estate prices increase or if
we are unable to renew lease agreements for ouimgxsores on terms favourable to us, such store locations may not

be profitable for our business, and we may be compelled to reassess the feasibility of such store.

19.0ur marketing and advertising campaigns may not be successful in increasing the popularity of our products
and offerings. If our marketing initiatives are not effective, this may adversely affect our business and results of
operations.

Our revenues are influenced by our marketing plans including brand building activities and advertising. If we adopt
unsuccessful marketing and advertising campaigns, we may fail to attract new customers or retain existing customers.
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If our marketing and advertising strategies are unsuccessful, our business and results of operations could be materially
adversely affected.

The support of our employees is also critical for the success of our marketing programmes, such as local marketing and
any new strategic initiatives we seek to undertake. While we can mandate certain strategic initiatives, we need the active
support of ouemployees if the implementation of these initiatives is to be successful. The failure of our employees to
support our marketing programmes and strategic initiatives could adversely affect our ability to implement our business
strategy and harm our busise$inancial condition, results of operations and prospects.

20. We could become liable to customers, suffer adverse publicity and incur substantial costs as a result of defects
in our products, which in turn could adversely affect the value of our brand, and our sales could be diminished
if we are associated with negaé publicity.

Any failure or defect in our products/services could result in a claim against us for damages, regardless of our
responsibility for such a failure or defect. Although we attempt to maintain quality standards, we cannot assure that all
our products/servicesould be of uniform quality, meet the customer standards which in turn could adversely affect
the value of our brand, and our sales could be diminished if we are associated with negative publicity. Also, our business
is dependent on the trust our custosnbave in the quality of our products. Any negative publicity regarding our
company, brand, or products, services including those arising from a drop in quality of merchandise from our vendors,
mishaps resulting from the use of our products, or any othiereseen events could affect our reputation and our
results from operations.

21. We may be subject to fraud, theft, employee negligence or similar incidents.

Our operations may be subject to incidents of theft or damage to inventory in transit, prior to or during showroom
stocking and display. Our industry typically encounters some inventory loss on account of employee theft, shoplifting,
vendor fraud, creditard fraud and general administrative error. Although we have set up various security measures,
there can be no assurance that we will not experience any fraud, theft, employee negligence, security lapse, loss in
transit or similar incidents in the futunehich could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Additionally, in case of losses due to theft, fire, breakage or damage caused by other casualties, there can be no
assurance that we will be able to recover from our insurers the full amount of any such loss in a timely manner, or at
all. If we incur a sigificant inventory loss due to thiplarty or employee theft and if such loss exceeds the limits of,

or is subject to an exclusion from, coverage under our insurance policies, it could have an adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and fingal condition. In addition, if we file claims under an insurance policy it could lead to
increases in the insurance premiums payable by us or the termination of coverage under the relevant policy.

22. If we are unable to maintain an optimal level of inventory, our business, results of operations and financial
condition may be adversely affected.

The success of our business depends upon our ability to anticipate and forecast customer demand and trends. Any error
in our forecast could result in either surplus stock, which we may not be able to sell in a timely manner, or at all, or
under stocking, Wwich could affect our ability to meet customer demand. An optimal level of inventory is important to

our business as it allows us to respond to customer demand effectively and to maintain a full range of products at our
stores. We plan our inventory andiete our sales based on the forecast, demand and requirements for the forthcoming
seasons. If we fail to accurately forecast customer demand, we may experience excess inventory levels or a shortage of
products available for sale. If we unesock invenory, our ability to meet customer demand may be impaired. If we
overstock inventory, our capital requirements may increase and we may incur additional financing and storage costs.
Any unsold inventory may have to be sold at cost price or lower than ostgy discarded, potentially leading to

losses. We cannot assure you that we will be able to sell surplus stock in a timely manner, or at all, which in turn may
adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

23. We are required to maintain various licences and permits for our business

Our business is subject to applicable government regulations and legislations and we require certain statutory and
regulatory approvals, licences, registrations and permissions for operating our business. These permits, licences and
approvals may also bétl to numerous conditions and terms, obtaining some of which may be time consuming and
may incur high cost. We cannot assure you that we will be able to continuously meet such conditions or be able to prove
compliance with such conditions to statutoryhauities, which may lead to cancellation, revocation or suspension of
relevant permits, licenses, registrations and approvals. There is no assurance in the future that the permits, licenses,
registrations and approvals applied for or held by us will heetssapproved or renewed in a prompt manner, or at all,

under applicable laws. Further, applications for approvals, licenses, registrations and permissions for operating our
business need to be made within certain timeframes and are often subject$orgtediof relevant authorities. If we

are unable to make applications or renew or obtain necessary permits, licenses and approvals on acceptable terms, in a
timely manner, at a reasonable cost, or at all or in the event we fail to comply with thertdrammnditions therein, it

could materially and adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations, including cancellation,
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revocation or suspension of relevant permits, licenses, registrations and approvals and the imposition of penalties by
rel evant aut hor Gdvérrement and @ther Approvedsi pagel98 s e e

24. We may be unable to renew our leases for the properties occupied by us or secure leases for our existing or new
properties on commercially acceptable terms.

We typically enter into lease agreements for the properties occupied by us. While we renew these lease agreements
periodically in the ordinary course of business, in the event that these existing leases are terminated or they are not
renewed on commercigllacceptable terms, we may suffer a disruption in our operations. If alternative premises are
not available at the same or similar costs, sizes or locations, our business, financial condition and results of operations
may be adversely affected. In additon any adver se development relating to
such properties may entail significant disruptions to our operations, especially if we are forced to vacate leased spaces
following any such developments. If our sales damatease in line with our rent and costs, including setup and interior
design costs, our profitability and results of operations could be adversely affected. Our growth strategy involves
expanding our showroom network, which necessitates the identificafiosuitable locations, considering the
positioning and visibility of the space as well as the characteristics of nearby businesses and the demographics of the
area. The premises for most of our proposed new showrooms are also expected to be taken on leas

The success of our business is significantly dependent on factors such as the availability of suitable sites for our
showroom in prime, business district, financially viable and desirable areas on commercially acceptable terms and we
encounter competitiofiom other jewellery companies in this regard. There can be no assurance that we will be able to
secure leases for our showrooms in suitable areas, in time, or on terms that are acceptable to us or at all. Failure to do
so may adversely affect our businessspects, financial condition and results of operations.

25. Our Company had negative cash flows in the past years, details of which are given below. Sustained negative
cash flow could impact our growth and business.

We have experienced negative cash flows in the past which have been set out below:
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars December31, March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
2024 2024 2023 2022
Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activ| (499.20) (589.75) 486.09 113.03
Net cash generated from/ (used in) investing activ (3554) (39.43) 3.05 0.77
Net cash generated from/ (usedfinancing activities 204.13 861.00 (389.68) (111.63)

Cash flows of a company is a key indicator to show the extent of cash generated from the operations of a company to
meet capital expenditure, pay dividends, repay loans and make new investments without raising finance from external
resources. If we are naible to generate sufficient cash flows, it may adversely affect our business and financial
operations. For further details, see sectiontildeli nanci al ahdi Manmgémendbds Di scussi
of Financial Condition and Results of Operatie an pagesl50and182, respectively of this Prospectus.

26. We have contingent liabilities, and our financial condition could be adversely affected if any of these contingent
liabilities materializes.

The following table sets forth our contingent liabilities as derived from our Restated Financial Statements;
(Amount in Lakhs, Uass Otherwise Stated)

As on As at March 31,
Particulars December 31

2024 2024 2023 2022
Related to Direct Tax matter 0.31 0.86 0.77 0.75
Related to Indirect Tax matter 1.40 - - -
Total 1.71 0.86 0.77 0.75

For details, please refer®e c t i o RestatedtFinanaal Statemeats b e g i n n i150gf this Rrospeztgse

27. Our Promoters plays a key role in our functioning and we heavily rely on their knowledge and experience in
operating our business and therefore, it is critical for our business that our promoters remain associated with
us.

We benefit from our relationship with our Promoters and our success depends upon the continuing services of our
Promoters who have been responsible for the growth of our business and is closely involved in the overall strategy,
direction and management ofir business. Our Promoters have been actively involved in thtodtay operations
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and management. Accordingly, our performance is heavily dependent upon the services of our Promoters. If our
Promoters are unable or unwilling to continue in his present position, we may not be able to replace them easily or at
all. Our Promoters, have avthe yearshuilt relations with various customers and other persons who are form part of
our stakeholders and are connected with us. The loss of their services could impair our ability to implement our strategy,
and our business, financial condition, lsof operations and prospects may be materially and adversely affected.

28. If we are not able to obtain, renew or maintain the statutory and regulatory permits and approvals required to
operate our business it may have an adverse effect on our business.

We require certain statutory and regulatory permits, licenses and approvals to operate our business. Though we believe
that we have obtained all permits and licenses which are adequate to run our business, we cannot assure that there is no
other statutorykgulatory requirement which we are required to comply with. Further, some of these approvals are
granted for fixed periods of time and need renewal from time to time. We are required to renew such permits, licenses
and approvals. There can be no assurdimaethe relevant authorities will issue any of such permits or approvals in

time or at all.

Failure by us to renew, maintain or obtain the required permits or approvals in time may result in the interruption of
our operations and may have a material adverse effect on our business.

For further details, see sectioni®@overnmena n d Ot h e r begmmngon pagel98aj the Prospectus.
29. Our lenders have charge over our movable and immovable properties in respect of finance availed by us.

We have secured our lenders by creating a charge over our movable and immovable properties in respect of loans /
facilities availed by us from banks and financial institutions. The total amounts outstanding and payable by us as secured
loans and unsecurdohns werdRs.1719.15 lakhsRs 1472.15 lakhs, Rs 47.00 lakhs and Rs 208.81 lakhs fpettosl

ended December 31, 2024 and for fimancial year ended March 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022Ra1d.62.95 lakhsys.

66.25 lakhs, Rs 529.345 lakhs, and Rs 109K Hdsfor theperiod ended December 31, 2024 and foffithencial year

ended March 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022. In the event we default in repayment of the loans / facilities availed by us and
any interest thereof, our properties may be forfeited by lenders, which in turn could have significant adverse effect on
business, financial condition or results of operations. For further information diFthencial Indebtednesgsplease

refer to pagd 80of this Prospectus.

30. Any IT system failures or lapses on part of any of our employees may lead to operational interruption, liabilities
or reputational harm.

The success of our businesses depends in part upon our ability to effectively deploy, implement and use information
technology systems and advanced technology initiatives in a cost effective and timely basis. Our computer networks
may be vulnerable to unthorised access, computer hacking, computer viruses, worms, malicious applications and
other security problems caused by unauthorised access to, or improper use of, systems by our employees,
subcontradakhsors or thirdparty vendors. Any systems failuresecurity breach or lapse on our part or on the part of

our employees and other ecosystem participants that results in the release of user data could harm our reputation and
brand and, consequently, our business, in addition to exposing us to potgatibhality. Any such legal proceedings

or actions may subject us to significant penalties and negative publicity, require us to change our business practices,
increase our costs and severely disrupt our business.

31. If we are unable to protect credit card or debit card data or any data related to any other electronic mode of
payment, or any other personal information that we collect from customers, our reputation could be significantly
harmed.

The use of electronic payment methods and collection of other personal information from customers exposes us to an
increased risk of privacy and security breaches as well as other risks. Although, we rely on, among other security
measures, firewalls, web content filtering, encryption and authentication technology, unauthorized use of, or
inappropriate access to, ourtwerks, computer systems or services could potentially jeopardize the security of such
confidential information. The techniques used to obtain unauthorized access, disable or degrade service or sabotage
systems change frequently and often are not recodjniztil launched against a target. We may be unable to anticipate
these techniques or to implement adequate preventative measurdschitioal means, such as actions (or inactions)

by an employee, can also result in a data breach. We cannot assuratyanytkecurity measures taken by us will be
effective in preventing these activities. We may need to expend significant resources to protect against security breaches
or to address problems caused by such breaches.

Further, third parties may have the technology or khow to breach the security of the customer information
transmitted in connection with credit and debit card sales and usealfets, and our security measures and those of
technology suppliers mayheffectively prohibit others from obtaining improper access to this information. If a person

is able to circumvent our security measures or otherwise gain access to the confidential information that we collect,
they may be able to destroy or steal valeahformation or otherwise disrupt our operations. While we have not
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experienced any such instances in the past, we may become subject to claims for purportedly fraudulent transactions
arising out of the actual or alleged theft of credit or debit card information or other confidential information, and we
may also be subjetd lawsuitsor other proceedings relating to these types of incidents. Any such claim or proceeding
could cause us to incur significant unplanned expenses, which could have an adverse impact on our financial condition,
results of operations and cash flowsrther, adverse publicity resulting from these allegations could significantly harm

our reputation and may have a material adverse effect on us and our stores.

Moreover, we receive and process certain personal financial and other information about our customers and employees
when we accept credit cards for payment. While we do n
the use and handling diis information is regulated by evolving and increasingly demanding laws and regulations in

India. If our security and information systems are compromised as a result of data corruption or loss, cyberattack or a
network security incident or our employe@s suppliers fail to comply with these laws and regulations, and this
information isobtainedby unauthorized persons or used inappropriately, it could subject us to litigation and government
enforcement actions, damage our reputation, cause us to incur substantial costs, liabilities and penalties and/or result in

a loss of customer confidence yaand all of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results

of operations.

32. Any increase in interest rates would have an adverse effect on our results of operations and will expose our
Company to interest rate risks.

We are dependent upon the availability of equity, cash balances and debt financing to fund our operations and growth.
Any fluctuations in interest rates may directly impact the interest costs of such loans and, in particular, any increase in
interest rategould adversely affect our results of operations. Furthermore, our indebtedness means that a material
portion of our expected cash flow may be required to be dedicated to the payment of interest on our indebtedness,
thereby reducing the funds availableus for use in our general business operations. If interest rates increase, our
interest payments will increase and our ability to obtain additional debt affdmdbased facilities could be adversely
affected with a concurrent adverse effect on ourrass, financial condition and results of operations. For further
detail s, p | e a s Einancalfindaebtedndsa pteegri magel80géthis Plospectus.

33. Our loan agreements with various lenders have several restrictive covenants and certain unconditional rights
in favour of the lenders, which could influence our ability to expand, in turn affecting our business and results
of operations.

We have entered into agreements for short term andt&ngborrowings with certain lenders. As Miarch 24, 2025

an aggregate of R4696.28lakhs was outstanding towards loans availed from banks and financial institutions. The
credit facilities availed by our Company are secured by way of mortgage of fixed assets, hypothecation of assets. In
case we are not able to pay our dues in time, time saay amount to a default under the loan documentation and all

the penal antermination provisions therein waliet triggered and the loans granted to the Company may be recalled
with penal interest. This could severely affect our operations and financial condition. In addition to the above, our loan
documentation includes certain conditions and covenants thateacs to obtain consents from the aforesaid banks
prior to carrying out certain activities like entering into any amalgamation, demerger, merger and corporate
reconstruction, changing our management and operating structure, making any fresh borrowregsny fresh

charges on assets, etc. Any failure to comply with any condition or covenant under our financing agreements that is not
waived by the lending banks or is not otherwise cured by us, may lead to a termination of our credit facilities,
acceleation of all amounts due under the said credit facility, which may adversely affect our ability to conduct our
business and operations or implement our business plans. Further, the said credit facilities can be
renewed/enhanced/cancelled/suspended/recarmthe terms and conditions of the same can be altered by the lending
banks, at their discretion. In the event, the lending banks refuse to renew / enhance the credit facilities and/or cancels /
suspends / reduces the said credit facilities and/or aftereerms and conditions to the derogation of our Company,

our existing operations as well as our future business prospects and financial condition may be severelit affected.

be noted thatve have received NOCs from our lenders for the purpose pftip@sed Initial Public Offering, however

the NOCs were obtained by the Compaluying January 2024 and February 2024d althoughhere is no mention

w.r.t. validity of the NOCs in the NOCs so obtained a common practicgich NOCs are assumed to be valid for a
period of 1 year. Accordingly, the Company is already in process to get the N@@&lideted from the respective
lenders.

34. Unsecured loans taken by our Company can be recalled by the lenders at any time.

As onDecember 31, 202dur Company has unsecured loans amounting td6295lakhs from directors and banks

that are repayable on demand to the relevant lender. These loans are not repayable in accordance with any agreed
repayment schedule and may be recalled by the relevant lender at any time. In such cases, ounGyniger@guired

to repay the entirety of the unsecured loans together with accrued interest. Our Company may not be able to generate
sufficient funds at short notice to be able to repay such loans and may resort to refinancing such loans at a higher rate
of intere$ and on terms not favourable to it. Failure to repay unsecured loans in a timely manner may have a material
adverse effect on our business, cash flows and financial condition. For further details of unsecured loans of our
Company, please refer the chapter t Finarttial Btatements as Restaied b e g onrpagel B0gf this Prospectus.
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35. We have taken guarantees from Promoters in relation to debt facilities provided to us.

We have taken guarantees from Promoters in relation to our secured debt facilities availed from our Bankers. In an
event any of these persons withdraw or terminate its/their guarantees, the lender for such facilities may ask for alternate
guarantees, repayent of amounts outstanding under such facilities, or even terminate such facilities. We may not be
successful in procuring guarantees satisfactory to the lender and as a result may need to repay outstanding amounts
under such facilities or seek additiorsalurces of capital, which could adversely affect our financial condition. For

more information, please see the chaptertiidedli nanci al begimhiegoipaydl B0@fthss Brospectus.

36. Our Company requires significant amounts of working capital for a continued growth. Our inability to meet our
working capital requirements may have an adverse effect on our results of operations.

Our business is working capital intensive. Summary of our working capital position as per our Restated Financial

Information is given belowx
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Sr. Particulars As on 31.12.2024 As at 31.03.2024 As at | As at 3103.2022
No. 31.03.2023

1.| Inventory 2469.52 2,070.38 1,125.77 1,426.71

2.| Trade Receivables 807.04 100.00 0.00 0.00

3.| Cash & Bank Balances 19.31 349.99 118.14 18.69

4. Short Term Loans & Advances 56.09 0.84 0.00 0.00

5.| Other Current Assets 141 10.17 1.49 7.87

Total Current Assets 3353.37 2,531.38 1,245.40 1,453.27

6. Short Term Borrowings 608.22 200.17 109.85 579.38

7. Trade Payable 38.19 1.06 42.39 8.08

8. Other Current Liabilities 85.77 24.45 19.22 44.74

9.| Short Term Provisions 94.26 68.32 6.26 14.02

Total Current Liabilities 826.43 294.00 177.72 646.21

Net Working Capital 2526.94 2,237.38 1,067.68 807.05

We intend to continue growing by expanding our business operations. This may result in increase in the quantum of
our current assets. Our inability to maintain sufficient cash flow, credit facility and other sources of fund, in a timely
manner, or at alto meet the requirement of working capital could adversely affect our financial condition and result
of our operations. For further details regarding working capital requirement, please refer to the chagie®titliede c t s
of t h edeginsing aneage74 of this Prospectus.

37. We have in the past entered into related party transactions and may continue to do so in the future.

We have entered into various transactions with Our Promoters, Directors and their relatives. While we believe that all
such transactions are conducted on armés |l ength basi s,
favourable terms lthsuch transactions were not entered into with related parties. Furthermore, it is likely that we will
enter into related party transactions in future. There can be no assurance that such transactions, individually or in
aggregate, will not have an adversiect on our financial condition and results of operation. For details on the
transactions entered by us, please refer to chépfer n an c i al $egiBring orEagets0df thedProspectus.

38. If we are unable to source business opportunities effectively, we may not achieve our financial objectives.

Our ability to achieve our financial objectives will depend on our ability to identify, evaluate and accomplish business
opportunities. To grow our business, we will need to hire, train, supervise and manage new employees and to implement
systems capablef effectively accommodating our growth. However, we cannot assure you that any such employees
will contribute to the success of our business or that we will implement such systems effectively. Our failure to source
business opportunities effectively colldve a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results

of operations. It also is possible that the strategies used by us in the future may be different from those presently in use.
No assurance can be given that our analyses dfehand other data or the strategies we use or plans in future to use

will be successful under various market conditions.

39. We may not be successful in implementing our business strategies.

The success of our business depends substantially on our ability to implement our business strategies effectively. Even
though we have successfully executed our business strategies in the past, there is no guarantee that we can implement
the same on timend within the estimated budget going forward, or that we will be able to meet the expectations of our
targeted clients. Changes in regulations applicable to us may also make it difficult to implement our business strategies.
Failure to implement our busigse strategies would have a material adverse effect on our business and results of
operations.
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40. We are subject to risks associated with expansion into new geographic regions.

Expansion into new geographic regions, including different states in India and overseas expansion, subjects us to
various challenges, including those relating to our lack of familiarity with the culture, legal regulations and economic
conditions of theseaw regions, language barriers, difficulties in staffing and managing such operations, and the lack

of brand recognition and reputation in such regions. The risks involved in entering new geographic markets and
expanding operations, may be higher than etqubcand we may face significant competition in such markets. By
expanding into new geographical regions, we could be subject to additional risks associated with establishing and
conducting operations, including, laws and regulations, uncertainties ahdoamer 6 s pr ef erences,
economic stability. By expanding into new geographical regions, we may be exposed to significant liability and could
lose some or all of our investment in such regions, as a result of which our business, financiahcanditesults of
operations could be adversely affected.

41. We could be harmed by employee misconduct or errors that are difficult to detect and any such incidences could
adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations and reputation.

Employee misconduct or errors could expose us to business risks or losses, including regulatory sanctions and cause
serious harm to our reputation and goodwill of our Company. There can be no assurance that we will be able to detect
or deter such miscondudvoreover, the precautions we take to prevent and detect such activity may not be effective

in all cases. Our employees and agents may also commit errors that could subject us to claims and proceedings for
alleged negligence, as well as regulatory astion account of which our business, financial condition, results of
operations and goodwill could be adversely affected.

42. We do not own our Registered Office and our showroom from where we operate.

The premises where the registered office of our Company is located, is not owned by us. Our company has taken the
said premises on lease for a period of 11 months commencing ffoAu@list 2024. There can be no assurance that

the term of the agreements will be either continued or renewed for further period, and in event the lessor terminates or
does not renew the agreements, we may require to vacate the registered office andaitentéfiyve premises and

enter into fresh lease agreement. Such a situation could result in loss of business, time overruns and may adversely
affect our operations and profitability and brand image also.

Further, the premises where our showroom is located has been taken on lease for a period of 60 Months commencing
from June 25, 2024. It may however be noted that the said lease deed is not registered with appropriate authority. In the
event if the Lessorevokes the lease deed or imposes terms and conditions that are unfavorable to us, or if we are
otherwise unable to occupy such property, it would have an adverse impact on the business and financial results.

Further, if the lease deeds are not registered with local authorities or may are not duly registered as per applicable law,
we may not be able to enforce these leases in the event of default on behalf of the Lessor(s). We may also be required
to make addibnal stamp duty or similar payments for lease deeds entered into in connection with the farmlands
currently occupied by us.

We cannot assure that we will be able to renew our leases on commercially favourable terms or at all in future. We also
cannot assure you that we will be permitted to use any of our leased properties on a continuous basis. In the event that
we are requiretb vacate the aforementioned premises, we would be required to make alternative arrangements for new
offices and other infrastructure and we cannot assure that the new arrangements will be on commercially acceptable
terms. In the event, we are unable ¢mtinue to use the premises or renew the lease agreement on favourable terms or

at all, we may suffer disruption in our business and administrative operations, which may have an adverse effect on the
business, financial condition and results of operatmwneur Company.

43. The deployment of funds raised through thissueshall not be subject to any Monitoring Agency and shall be
purely dependent on the discretion of the management of our Company.

Since the Issue size is less than B800.00 Lakh there is no mandatory requirement of appointing an independent
monitoring agency for overseeing the deployment of utilization of funds raised through this Issue. The deployment of
these funds raised through this Issue, is hence, at the discoéthe management and the Board of Directors of our
Company and although the deployment of funds would be monitored by the Audit Committee of the Company, it will
not be subject to monitoring by any independergnay. Any inability on our part to effectively utilize the Issue
proceeds could adversely affect our financials.

44, Wi t hin the parameters as ment i ossied b eng idmpegerdglithipt er
Prospectus, our Company®ds management wi llssue Tiheafund f
requirement and deployment mentioned in the Objects of ssle have not been appraised by any bank or
financial institution.
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We intend to use Net Proceeds towaetsayment/ prepayment of certain borrowings availed by our Congratfer

General corporate purposes. We intend to deploy the Net Proceeds in financ28i2e26 such deployment is based

on certain assumptions and strategy which our Company believes to implement inThé&ufends raised from the
Issuemay remain idle on account of change in assumptions, market conditions, strategy of our Company, etc., For
further details on the use of the Net Proceeds, please refer chaptdt fleédjs e otf  t beginning spage™

of this Prospectus.

The deployment of funds for the purposes described abo
The fund requirement and deployment is based on internal management estimates and has not been appraised by any
bank or financial institutionAccordingly, within the parameters as mentioned in the chapterfit®d j ect s of t
Issu® beginningon page74 of this Prospectus, the Management will have significant flexibility in applying the
proceeds received by our Company fromlggie Our Board of Directors will monitor the proceeds of tkisue

However, Audit Committee will monitor the utilization of the proceeds of idgsieand prepare the statement for
utilization of the proceeds of thissue However, in accordance with Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, and
relevant provisions of SEBI ICDR Regulations, 2018, a company shall not vary the objectdsstiveithout our

Company being authorise to do so by our shareholders by way of special resolution and other compliances in this regard.
Our Promoters and controlling shareholders shallige exit opportunity to such shareholders who do not agree to the
proposal to vary the objects, at such price, and in such manner, as may be prescribed by SEBI, in this regard.

45. We have not made any alternate arrangements for meeting our capital requirements for the Objectdssfube
Further we have not identified any ddsude.r nfAanye sstoarrtcfea
raising / meeting the same could adversely affect our growth plans, operations and financial performance.

As on date, we have not made any alternate arrangements for meeting our capital requirements for the Objects of the
Issue We meet our capital requirements through our bank finance, owned funds and internal accruals. Any shortfall in
our net owned funds, internal accruals and our inability to raise debt in future would result in us being unable to meet
our capital requiremes, which in turn will negatively affect our financial condition and results of operations. Further,

we have not identified any altetieasource of funding and hence any failure or delay on our part to raise money from
this Issue or any shortfall in thesueproceeds may delay the implementation schedule and could adversely affect our
growth plans. For further details please refer to the chapterfiited j e ¢ tisuddégintingon pager4 of this
Prospectus.

46. Our insurance coverage may not be adequate.

Our Company has obtain@tsurance coverage in respect of certain risks. For further details in relation to the insurance
obtained, please refer to the sectiontiledn sur ance i n OunBusimedsa pbtegn rpagelddpé @ nfi
this Prospectus. This insurance policy are renewed periodically to ensure that the coverage is adequate, however, our
insurance policies do not cover all risks. There can be no assurance that our insurance policies will be adequate to cover
the losses imespect of which the insurance has been availed. If we suffer a significant uninsured loss or if insurance
claim in respect of the subjestatter of insurance is not accepted or any insured loss suffered by us significantly
exceeds our insurance coveragar business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially and
adversely affected. For further details, please refer chapter fit@ds r B u Bepgimimgos pagel06 of this
Prospectus.

47. Our Promoters and members of the Promoter Group will continue jointly to retain majority control over our
Company after thdssue which will allow them to determine the outcome of matters submitted to shareholders
for approval.

After completion of théssue our Promoters and Promoter Group will collectively &2 ®%6 of the Equity Shares.

As a result, Our Promoters together with the members of the Promoter Group will be able to exercise a significant
degree of influence over us and will be able to control the outcome of any proposal that can be approved by a majority
shareholder vote, including, the election of members to our Board, in accordance with the Companies Act and our AoA.
Such a concentration of ownership may also hheeeffect of delaying, preventing or deterring a change in control of

our Company.

In addition, Our Promoters will continue to have the ability to cause us to take actions that are not in, or may conflict
with, our interests or the interests of some or all of our creditors or minority shareholders, and we cannot assure you
that such actins will not have an adverse effect on our future financial performance or the price of our Equity Shares.

48. Our future funds requirements, in the form of offer of capital or securities and/or loans taken by us, may be
prejudicial to the interest of the shareholders depending upon the terms on which they are eventually raised.

We may require additional capital from time to time depending on our business needs. Any issue of shares or convertible
securities would dilute the shareholding of the existing shareholders and such issuance may be done on terms and
conditions, which mayat be favourable to the then existing shareholders. If such funds are raised in the form of loans
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or debt, then it may substantially increase our interest burden and decrease our cash flows, thus prejudicially affecting
our profitability and ability to pay dividends to our shareholders.

49. Our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend upon our future earnings, financial condition, cash flows,
working capital requirements, capital expenditure and restrictive covenants in our financing arrangements.

We may retain all our future earnings, if any, for use in the operations and expansion of our business. As a result, we
may not declare dividends in the foreseeable future. Any future determination as to the declaration and payment of
dividends will be athe discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on factors that our Board of Directors
deem relevant, including among others, our results of operations, financial condition, cash requirements, business
prospects and any other financing arrangemehtcordingly, realization of a gain on shareholder investments may
largely depend upon the appreciation of the price of our Equity Shares. There can be no assurance that our Equity Shares
will appreciate in value. For details of our dividend history,/sdé2i v i d e n ahpdgeld9of this Brospectus.

50. In addition to normal remuneration or benefits and reimbursement of expenses, some of our directors and key
managerial personnel are interested in our Company to the extent of their shareholding and dividend
entitlement in our Company.

Our Directors and Key Managerial Personfel K M Rug jnterested in our Company to the extent of remuneration

paid to them for services rendered and reimbursement of expenses payable to them. In addition, some of our Directors
and KMP may also be interested to the extent of their shareholding and diwidéttement in our Company. For

further information, seéd Ca pi t al aS8dfArCuct uMeaendaan pageditand 125 respectively of this
Prospectus.

51. Industry information included in this Prospectus has been derived from industry reports. There can be no
assurance that such thirgbarty statistical, financial and other industry information is either complete or
accurate.

We have relied on the reports of certain independent third party for purposes of inclusion of such information in this
Prospectus. These reports are subject to various limitations and based upon certain assumptions that are subjective in
nature. We have nandependently verified data from such industry reports and other sources. Although, we believe
that the data may be considered to be reliable, their accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not
guaranteed and their dependability cannot Iserasl. While we have taken reasonable care in the reproduction of the
information, the information has not been prepared or independently verified by us, or any of our respective affiliates
or advisors and, therefore, we make no representation or warexgyess or implied, as to the accuracy or
completeness of such facts and statistics. Due to possibly flawed or ineffective collection methods or discrepancies
between published information and market practice and other problems, the statistics helmrimaagurate or may

not be comparable to statistics produced for other economies and should not be unduly relied upon. Further, there is no
assurance that they are stated or compiled on the same basis or with the same degree of accuracy as may be the case
elsewhere. Statements from third parties that involve estimates are subject to change, and actual amounts may differ
materially from those included in this Prospectus.

52. Our Promoters have recently transferred their shares at a price which is less thalsguePrice.

Our Promoters Mr. Manoj Kumdrassold2,99,999%quity Shares in the Company at a price of Rs. 20 per Equity Share
on August 28, 2024. The price at which the said transaction has been carrietessittien therice at which the
shares are proposed to be issued utigepresentssue

53. The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoters is lower thaisgueprice.

Our Promoters average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares in our Company is lower ttesuéfeice which has
beendecided by the Company in consultation with the LM. For further details regarding average cost of acquisition of
Equity Shares by our Promoters in our Company and Hugldf Equity Shares by our Promoters in our Company,
please refer chaptertitfteCa pi t al b&ytnming onpagebleofithis Prospectus.

EXTERNAL RISKS

54. The Issueprice of our Equity Shares may not be indicative of the market price of our Equity Shares after the
Issueand the market price of our Equity Shares may decline belowIg®iePrice and you may not be able to
sell your Equity Shares at or above tiesuePrice.

ThelssuePrice of our Equity Shares has been determined by fixed price method. The price is based on numerous factors

(For further information, please refer chapter titfed a s i Issuef o ir begidning orpage79 of this Prospectus)
and may not be indicative of the market price of our Equity Shares after the Issue.
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The market price of our Equity Shares could be subject to significant fluctuations after the Issue, and may decline below
the Issue Price. We cannot assure you that you will be able to sell your Equity Shares at or above the Issue Price. Among
the factorghat could affect our share price include without limitation. The following:

i guarterly variations in the rate of growth of our finandémalicators, such as earnings per share, net income
and revenues;
ii. changes in revenue or earnings estimates or publication of research reports by analysts;
iii. results of operations that vary from those of our competitors;
iv. speculation in the press or investment community;
v.  new laws and governmental regulations applicable to our industry;

Vi. future sales of the Equity Shares by our shareholders;
Vii. general market conditions; and
viii. domestic and international economic, legal and regulatory factors unrelated to our performance.

55. Our Equity Shares have never been publicly traded, and may experience price and volume fluctuations following
the completion of the Issue. Further, our Equity Shares may not result in an active or liquid market and the
price of our Equity Shares may be aille and you may be unable to resell your Equity Shares at or above the
Issue Price or at all.

Prior to the Issue, there has been no public market for our Equity Shares, and an active trading market may not develop
or be sustained after the Issue. Listing and quotation does not guarantee that a market for our Equity Shares will develop
or, if develgped, does not guarantee the liquidity of such market for the Equity Shares. Investors might not be able to
rapidly sell the Equity Shares at the quoted price if there is no active trading in the Equity Shares. The Issue Price of
the Equity Shares has bedetermined by our Company in consultation with the LM through the Fixed Price Process.
The market price of the Equity Shares may be subject to significant fluctuations in response to, among other factors,
variations in our operating results of our Compamarket conditions specific to the industry we operate in,
developments relating to India, volatility in securities markets in jurisdictions other than India, variations in the growth
rate of financial indicators, variations in revenue or earnings estnigteesearch publications, and changes in
economic, legal and other regulatory factors.

56. There is no guarantee that the Equity Shares issued pursuant tdgkeewill be listed on the SME Platform of
BSE Limited in a timely manner or at all.

In accordance with Indian law and practice, permission for listing and trading of the Equity Shares issued pursuant to
thelssuewill not be granted until after the Equity Shares have been issued and allotted. Approval for listing and trading
will require all relevant documents authorizing the issuing of Equity Shares to be submitted. There could be a failure
or delay in listing tk Equity Shares on the SME Platform of BSE Limited. Any failure or delay in obtaining the approval
would restrict your abilityd dispose of your Equity Shares.

57. Any future issuance of Equity Shares may dilute your shareholding and sale of our Equity Shares by our
Promoters or other shareholders may adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares

Any future equity issuances by wus, including in a prim
in our Company. Any future equity issuances by us or sales of our Equity Shares by our Promoters or other major
shareholders may advelyg affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. In addition, any perception by investors that

such issuances or sales might occur could also affect the trading price of our Equity Shares.

58. There are restrictions on daily weekly monthly movement in the price of the equity shares, which may adversely
affect the sharehol derds ability to sell for the pric

Once listed, wavould be subject to circuit breakers imposed by the stock exchange, which does not allow transactions
beyond specified increases or decreases in the price of the Equity Shares. This circuit breaker operates independently
of the index based marketvide circuit breakers generally imposed by SEBI. The percentage limit on circuit breakers

is said by the stock exchange based on the historical volatility in the price and trading volume of the Equity Shares. The
stock exchange does not inform us of the percertamieof the circuit breaker in effect from time to time, and may
change it without our knowledge. This circuit breaker limits the upward and downward movements in the price of the
Equity Shares. As a result of the circuit breaker, no assurance mayeberg@garding your ability to sell your Equity

Shares or the price at which you may be able to sell your Equity Shares at any particular time.

59. Fluctuations in the exchange rate of the Rupee and other currencies could have a material adverse effect on
the value of the Equity Shares, independent of our operating results.

The Equity Shares would be quoted in Rupees on the stock exchange. Any dividends in respect of the Equity Shares
will be paid in Rupees and subsequently converted into appropriate foreign currency for repatriation. Any adverse
movement in exchange ratesritig the time it takes to undertake such conversion may reduce the net dividend to
investors. In addition, any adverse movement in exchange rates during a delay in repatriating the proceeds from a sale
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of Equity Shares outside India, for example, because of a delay in regulatory approvals that may be required for the
sale of Equity Shares may reduce the net proceeds received by shareholders.

The exchange rate of the Rupee has changed substantially in the last two decades and could fluctuate substantially in
the future, which may have a material adverse effect on the value of the Equity Shares and returns from the Equity
Shares, independent ofir operating results.

60. Investors may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Equity Shares.

Under current Indian tax laws, unless specifically exempted, capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares in an
Indian company are generally taxable in India. Any gain realized in excess of Rs. 1;06h(0@/sale of listed equity

shares on aastk exchange held for more than 12 months will be subject to long term capital gains tax in India at the
specified rates in case STT was paid on the sale transaction. Accordingly, you may be subject to paymestiof long

capital gains tax in India, inddi t i on t o payment of Securities Transact.i
Shares held for more than 12 months. STT will be levied on and collected by a domestic stock exchange on which the
Equity Shares are sold.

Further, any gain realized on the sale of listed equity shares held for a period of 12 months or less will be subject to
short term capital gains tax in India. Capital gains arising from the sale of the Equity Shares will be exempt from
taxation in Indiam cases where the exemption from taxation in India is provided under a treaty between India and the
country of which the seller is resident. Generally, 1In
gains. As a result, residerd$ other countries may be liable for tax in India as well as in their own jurisdiction on a

gain upon the sale of the Equity Shares.

61. Our future funds requirements, in the form of fresh issue of capital or securities and/or loans taken by us, may
be prejudicial to the interest of the shareholders depending upon the terms on which they are eventually raised.

We may require additional capital from time to time depending on our business needs. Any fresh issue of shares or
convertible securities would dilute the shareholding of the existing shareholders and such issuance may be done on
terms and conditions, whialmay not be favourable to the then existing shareholders. If such funds are raised in the
form of loans or debt, then it may substantially increase our interest burden and decrease our cash flows, thus
prejudicially affecting our profitability and abilityo pay dividends to our shareholders.

62. Holders of Equity Shares may be restricted in their ability to exercise gmgptive rights under Indian law and
thereby may suffer future dilution of their ownership position.

Under the Companies Act, a company having share capital and incorporated in India must offer its holders of equity
shares pre&mptive rights to subscribe and pay for a proportionate number of equity shares to maintain their existing
ownership percentagegfore the issuance of any new equity shares, unless thep#ve rights have been waived

by adoption of a special resolution. However, if the laws of the jurisdiction the investors are located in do not permit
them to exercise their piemptive rights Wthout our filing an offering document or registration statement with the
applicable authority in such jurisdiction, the investors will be unable to exercise th&mptese rights unless we

make such a filing. If we elect not to file a registrationestant, the new securities may be issued to a custodian, who

may sell the securities for the investorb6és benefit. Th
related transaction costs cannot be predicted. In addition, to the thdemhe investors are unable to exercise pre

emptive rights granted in respect of the Equity Shares held by them, their proportional interest in us would be reduced.

63. Rights of shareholders under Indian law may be more limited than under the laws of other jurisdictions.

I ndi an | egal principles relating to these matters and
l'iabilities, and sharehol dersdé rights may differ from
Shareholdersé rights under I ndian | aw may not be as ex

or jurisdictions. Inestors may have more difficulty in asserting their rights as shareholders of our Company than as
shareholders of a corporation in another jurisdiction.

64. The requirements of being a listed company may strain our resources.

We are not a listed company and have not, historically, been subjected to the increased scrutiny of our affairs by
shareholders, regulators and the public at large that is associated with being a listed company. As a listed company, we
will incur significant legal, accounting, corporate governance and other expenses that we did not incur as an unlisted
company. We will be subject to the SEBI Listing Regulations which will require us to file audited annual and unaudited
quarterly reports with respect to dursiness and financial condition. If we experience any delays, we may fail to satisfy

our reporting obligations and/or we may not be able to readily determine and accordingly report any changes in our
results of operations as promptly as other listed comepa
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Further, as a listed company, we will need to maintain and improve the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures and internal control over financial reporting, including keeping adequate records of daily transactions. In
order to maintain andnprove the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over
financi al reporting, significant resources and managen
attention may be diverted from our businesaaerns, which may adversely affect our business, prospects, financial
condition and results of operations. In addition, we may need to hire additional legal and accounting staff with
appropriate experience and technical accounting knowledge, but we easar# you that we will be able to do so in

a timely and efficient manner.

65. There is no guarantee that our Equity Shares will be listed on the SME Platform of BSE Limited in a timely
manner or at all.

In accordance with Indian law and practice, permission for listing and trading of our Equity Shares will not be granted
until after certain actions have been completed in relation to this Issue and until Allotment of Equity Shares pursuant
to this Issue.n accordance with current regulations and circulars issued of SEBI, our Equity Shares are required to be
listed on the BSE SME within such time as mandated under UPI Circulars, subject to any change in the prescribed
timeline in this regard. However, werg@t assure you that the trading in our Equity Shares will commence in a timely
manner or at all. Any failure or delay in obtaining final listing and trading approvals may restrict your ability to dispose
of your Equity Shares.

66. Global economic, political and social conditions may harm our ability to do business, increase our costs and
negatively affect our stock price.

The Indian economy and its securities markets are influenced by economic developments and volatility in securities
mar kets in other countries. Il nvestorsd reactions to de
price of securities ofompanies located elsewhere, including India. Adverse economic developments, such as rising
fiscal or trade deficit, in other emerging market countries may also affect investor confidence and cause increased
volatility in Indian securities markets and irettly affect the Indian economy in general. Any of these factors could

depress economic activity and restrict our access to capital, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations and reduce the priceroEquity Shares. Any financial disruption could have an
adverse effect on our business, future financial perfo

We are dependent on domestic, regional and global economic and market conditions. Our performance, growth and
market price of our Equity Shares are and will be dependent to a large extent on the health of the economy in which we
operate. There have beerripds of slowdown in the economic growth of India. Demand for our products may be
adversely affected by an economic downturn in domestic, regional and global economies. Economic growth in the
countries in which we operate is affected by various factotsding domestic consumption and savings, balance of
trade movements, namely export demand and movements in key imports, global economic uncertainty and liquidity
crisis, volatility in exchange currency rates, and annual rainfall which affects agricpitodaiction. Consequently,

any future slowdown in the Indian economy could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition.
Also, a change in the government or a change in the economic and deregulation policies could adversely affect econom
conditions prevalent in the areas in which we operate in general and our business in particular and high rates of inflation
in India could increase our costs without proportionately increasing our revenues, and as such decrease our operating
margins.

67.The extent and reliability of Indian infrastructure
and financial condition.

I ndi ads physical infrastructure is in developing phase
disruption in its port, rail and road networks, electricity grid, communication systems or any other public facility could
disruptour Comany 6 s nor mal business activity. Any deteriorat.i
national economy, disrupt the transportation of goods and supplies, and add costs to doing business in India. These
probl ems coul d i ntusimesswpetatiomsuwhichCould have anadverde effect on its results of
operations and financial condition.

68. Foreign investors are subject to foreign investment restrictions under Indian laws that may limit our ability to
attract foreign investors, which may have a material adverse impact on the market price of the Equity Shares.

Under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfers of shares betweesideots and

residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the pricing guidelines and reporting
requirements specifiebly the RBI. For further details, séeRe st ri cti ons on Foreign Owner
on page250. If the transfer of shares is not in compliance with such pricing guidelines or reporting requirements or
falls under any of the exceptions referred to above, then the prior approval of the RBI will be required. Additionally,
shareholders who seek to cortithe Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in India into foreign currency and repatriate
that foreign currency from India will require a no objection or a tax clearance certificate from the income tax authority.
Further, in accordance with Press Note BI¢2020 Series), dated April 17, 2020, issued by the DPIIT, Government of
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India, investments where the beneficial owner of the Equity Shares is situated in or is a citizen of a country which shares
land border with India, can only be made through the Government approval route, as prescribed in FDI Policy. These
investment restetions shall also apply to subscribers of offshore derivative instruments. We cannot assure you that any

required approval from the RBI or any other governmental agency can be obtained on any particular terms or at all.

69. Any downgrading of Indiaés sovereign rating by an i ngd

Our borrowing costs and our access to the debt capital

sovereign ratings have recently been downgraded. Any f
and internatinal debt by international rating agencies may adversely impact our ability to raise additional financing. A
downgrading of Indiabés credit ratings may occur, for e

are outside our control. Thiould have an adverse effect on our ability to fund our growth on favourable terms and
consequently adversely affect our business and financial performance and the price of the Equity Shares.

70. Significant differences exist between Indian GAAP and other accounting principles, such as U.S. GAAP and
IFRS, which may be material to the financial statements prepared and presented in accordance with SEBI ICDR
Regulations contained in this Prospectus.

As stated in the reports of the Peer Reviewed Auditor included in this Prospectus underfickaptera n ci al St at €
as r e shegmning drpage 150, the financial statements included in this Prospectus are based on financial
information that is based on the audited financial statements that are prepared and presented in conformity with Indian
GAAP and restated in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Rdgukgtand no attempt has been made to reconcile any of

the information given in this Prospectus to any other principles or to base it on any other standards. Indian GAAP
differs from accounting principles and auditing standards with which prospective&arsvenay be familiar in other
countries, such as U.S. GAAP and IFRS. Significant differences exist between Indian GAAP and U.S. GAAP and IFRS,
which may be material to the financial information prepared and presented in accordance with Indian GAA&dcontain

in this Prospectus. Accordingly, the degree to which the financial information included in this Prospectus will provide
meaningful information is dependent on familiarity with Indian GAAP, the Companies Act and the SEBI ICDR
Regulations. Any reliance byersons not familiar with Indian GAAP on the financial disclosures presented in this
Prospectus should accordingly be limited.

71. The occurrence of natural or maimade disasters could adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition. Hostilities, fires, epidemics, pandemics, acts of war, terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other events
could materially and adverselgffect our business.

Natural disasters (such as typhoons, flooding and earthquakes), epidemics, pandemics such d9Ca4f war,

terrorist attacks and other events, many of which are beyond our control, may lead to economic instability, including in
India or globally,which may in turn materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations. Our operations may be adversely affected by fires, natural onadendisasters and/or severe weather,

which can result in damage to our progest inventory and generally reduce our productivity and may require us to
evacuate personnel and suspend operations. Any terrorist attacks or civil unrest as well as other adverse social, economic
and political events in India or countries to who we ekjparr products could have a negative effect on us. Such
incidents could also create a greater perception that investment in Indian companies involves a higher degree of risk
and could have an adverse effect on our business and the price of the Equiy Share

72. Investorsmay not be able to enforce a judgment of a foreign court against us.

Our Company is a company incorporated under the | aws of
of India and all of our assets are located in India. As a result, it may not be possible for investors to effect service of
process uponuwy Company or such persons in jurisdictions outside India, or to enforce judgments obtained against such
parties outside India. Furthermore, it is unlikely that an Indian court would enforce foreign judgments if that court was

of the view that the amount damages awarded was excessive or inconsistent with public policy, or if judgments are

in breach or contrary to Indian law. In addition, a party seeking to enforce a foreign judgment in India is required to
obtain approval from the RBI to execute suchidgment or to repatriate outside India any amounts recovered.

73.Natur al calamities could have a negative impact on t
suffer.

India has experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, tsunami, floods etc. In recent years, the extent and severity
of these natural disasters determine their impact on the Indian economy. Prolonged spells of abnormal rainfall or other
natural calanities could have a negative impact on the Indian economy, which could adversely affect our business,
prospects, financial condition and results of operations as well as the price of the Equity Shares.

74. Terrorist attacks, civil unrests and other acts of violence or war involving India or other countries could
adversely affect the financial markets, our business, financial condition and the price of our Equity Shares.
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Any major hostilities involving India oother acts of violence, including civil unrest or similar events that are beyond

our control, could have a materi al adverse effect on |
attacks and war, and other acts of violence may adyeaffekt the Indian stock markets where our Equity Shares will

trade as well the global equity markets generally. Such acts could negatively impact business sentiment as well as trade
bet ween countries, which coul d ndpgrofitahility. Additionalyf, suehcetento ur Co
could have a material adverse effect on the market for securities of Indian companies, including the Equity Shares.

75. If inflation were to rise in India, we might not be able to increase the prices of our products at a proportional
rate in order to pass costs on to our customers and our profits might decline.

Inflation rates in India have been volatile in recent years, and such volatility may continue in the future. India has
experienced high inflation in the recent past. Increased inflation can contribute to an increase in interest rates and
increased costs tur business, including increased costs of salaries, and other expenses relevant to our business.

High fluctuations in inflation rates may make it more difficult for us to accurately estimate or control our costs. Any
increase in inflation in India can increase our expenses, which we may not be able to pass on to our customers, whether
entirely or in f@rt, and the same may adversely affect our business and financial condition. In particular, we might not

be able to reduce our costs or increase our rates to pass the increase in costs on to our customers. In such case, our
business, results of operationash flows and financial condition may be adversely affected.

Further, the Gol has previously initiated economic measures to combat high inflation rates, and it is unclear whether
these measures will remain in effect. There can be no assurance that Indian inflation levels will not worsen in the future.

76. Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application or interpretation
of corporate and tax laws, may adversely affect our business, prospects and results of operations.

The regulatory and policy environment in which wgerate is evolving and subject to change. Our business and
financial performance could be adversely affected by unfavourable changes in or interpretations of existing, or the
promulgation of new, laws, rules and regulations applicable to us and ourdsusinguch instances, and including the
instances mentioned below, our business, results of operations and prospects may be adversely impacted, to the extent
that we are unable to suitably respond to and comply with any such changes in applicableplalicyanéiny political

instability in India, such as corruption, scandals and protests against certain economic reforms, which have occurred in
the past, could slow the pace of liberalization and deregulation. The rate of economic liberalization cogldacttang

specific laws and policies affecting foreign investment, currency exchange rates and other matters affecting investment
in India could change as well.

Additionally, the Government of India has introduced (a) the Code on Wages, 2019; (b) the Code on Social Security,
2020; (c) the Occupational Safety, Health and Working Conditions Code, 2020; and (d) the Industrial Relations Code,
2020 which consolidate,ubsume and replace numerous existing central labour legislations. While the rules for
implementation under these codes have not been notified, the implementation of such laws could increase our employee
and labour costs, thereby adversely impacting oulteesf operations, cash flows, business and financial performance.

The application of various Indian tax laws, rules and regulations to our business, currently or in the future, is subject to
interpretation by the applicable taxation authorities. For instance, companies can voluntarily opt in favour of a
concessional taxegime (subject to no other special benefits/exemptions being claimed), which reduces the rate of
income tax payable to 22% subject to compliance with conditions prescribed, from the erstwhile 25% or 30% depending
upon the total turnover or gross receipttie relevant period. Any such future amendments may affect our other benefits
such as exemption for income earned by way of dividend from investments in other domestic companies and units of
mutual funds, exemption for interest received in respect efrggxbonds, and lonterm capital gains on equity shares

if withdrawn by the statute in the future, and the same may no longer be available to us. Any adverse order passed by
the appellate authorities/ tribunals/ courts would have an effect on our Ipifit§ita

Further, the Gol has announced the wunion budget for Fi
Bill o), has introduced various amendments. The Finance
31, 2023, and has beenacted as the Finance Act, 2023. We cannot predict whether any amendments made pursuant

to the Finance Act, 2023 would have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Furthermore, changes in capital gains tax ootagapital market transactions or the sale of shares could affect investor
returns. As a result, any such changes or interpretations could have an adverse effect on our business and financial
performance.

There can be no assurance that the Gol will not implement new regulations and policies requiring us to obtain approvals
and licenses from the Gol or other regulatory bodies, or impose onerous requirements and conditions on our operations.
Any such changeand the related uncertainties with respect to the applicability, interpretation and implementation of
any amendment or change to governing laws, regulation or policy, including by reason of an absence, or a limited body,
of administrative or judicial predent in the jurisdictions in which we operate may be time consuming as well as costly
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for us to resolve and may impact the viability of our current business or restrict our ability to grow our business in the
future,

It may also have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations. In
addition, we may have to incur expenditures to comply with the requirements of any new regulations, which could
materially harm our mults of operations or cash flows. Any unfavourable changes to the laws and regulations
applicable to us could also subject us to additional liabilities.

We are unable to determine the impact of any changes in or interpretations of existing, or the promulgation of, new,
laws, rules and regulations applicable to us and our business. If that was to cocid itesult in us, our business,
operations or group structure being deemed to be in contravention of such laws and/or may require us to apply for
additional approvals. We may incur increased costs and other burdens relating to compliance with such new
requirements, which may also require significant management time and other resources, and any failure to comply may
adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects. Uncertainty in the applicability, interpretation or
implementation of anpmendment to, or change in, governing law, regulation or policy, including by reason of an
absence, or a limited body, of administrative or judicial precedent may be time consuming as well as costly for us to
resolve and may impact the viability of our @mt business or restrict our ability to grow our business in the future.

77. Our business is substantially affected by prevailing economic, political and other conditions.

We are incorporated in and substantially all our operations are located in India. As a result, we are highly dependent on
prevailing economic conditions in India and our results of operations and cash flows are significantly affected by factors
influencing the Indian economy. Factors that may adversely affect the Indian economy, and hence our results of
operations and cash flows, may include:

I anyincrease in Indian interest rates or inflation;
I any exchange rate fluctuations;
1 any scarcity of credit or other financing in India, resulting in an adverse impact on economic conditions in
India and scarcity of financing for our expansions;
1 prevailing income conditions among Indian consumers and Indian corporates;
f volatility in, and actual or perceived trends in t
1 changes in Indiab6s tax, trade, fiscal or monetary
1 political instability, terrorism or military conflict in India or in countries in the region or globally, including in
Il ndi ads various neighbouring countries;
1 occurrence of natural or manade disasters;
T prevailing regional or gl obal economic conditions,
T any downgrading of I ndiads debt rating by a domest
1 financial instability in financial markets; and
9 other significant regulatory or economic developments in or affecting India or its construction sector.

On February 24, 2022, Russian military forces invaded Ukraine. Although the length, impact and outcome of the
ongoing military conflict in Ukraine is highly unpredictable, this conflict and responses from international communities
could lead to significaninarket and other disruptions, including significant volatility in commodity prices and supply

of energy resources, instability in financial markets, supply chain interruptions, political and social instability, changes
in consumer or purchaser preferenassvell as increase in cyberattacks and espionage.

To date, we have not experienced any material interruptions in our supply chain, manufacturing facility and distribution
network in connection with these conflicts. We have no way to predict the progress or outcome of the conflict in Ukraine
as the conflit and any resulting government reactions, are rapidly developing and beyond our control. The extent and
duration of the military action, sanctions and resulting market disruptions could be significant and could potentially
have a substantial impact on thbal economy and our business for an unknown period of time. Any of the
abovementioned factors could affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, any slowdown or perceived slowdown in the Indian economy, or in specific sectors of the Indian economy,
could adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition and the price of the Equity
Shares.

78. Political instability or a change in economic liberalization and deregulation policies could seriously harm
business and economic conditions in India generally and our business in particular.

The Government of India has traditionally exercised and continues to exercise influence over many aspects of the
economy. Our business and the market price and liquidity of our Equity Shares may be affected by interest rates,
changes in Government polidgxation, social and civil unrest and other political, economic or other developments in

or affecting India. The rate of economic liberalization could change, and specific laws and policies affecting the
information technology sector, foreign investmerd ather matters affecting investment in our securities could change
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as well. Any significant change in such liberalization and deregulation policies could adversely affect business and
economic conditions in India, generally, and our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations, in
particular.

79.Any downgrading of I ndiabds sovereign rating by an i nc

Any adverse revisions to Indiads credit ratings for do
adversely impact our ability to raise additional financing, and the interest rates and other commercial terms at which
such additionafinancing may be available. This could have an adverse effect on our business and future financial
performance, our ability to obtain financing for capital expenditures and the trading price of our Equity Shares.

80. The ability of Indian companies to raise foreign capital may be constrained by Indian law.

As an Indian Company, we are subject to exchange controls that regulate borrowing in foreign currencies, including
those specified under FEMA. Such regulatory restrictions limit our financing sources for our projects under
development and hence could coast our ability to obtain financing on competitive terms and refinance existing
indebtedness. In addition, we cannot assure you that the required approvals will be granted to us without onerous
conditions, or at all. Limitations on foreign debt may adelgraffect our business growth, results of operations and
financial condition.

81. Investors may not be able to enforce a judgment of a foreign court against us.

Our Company is a company incorporated under the | aws of
of India and all of our assets are located in India. As a result, it may not be possible for investors to effect service of
process uponw Company or such persons in jurisdictions outside India, or to enforce judgments obtained against such
parties outside India. Furthermore, it is unlikely that an Indian court would enforce foreign judgments if that court was

of the view that the amounf damages awarded was excessive or inconsistent with public policy, or if judgments are

in breach or contrary to Indian law. In addition, a party seeking to enforce a foreign judgment in India is required to
obtain approval from the RBI to execute suchdgment or to repatriate outside India any amounts recovered.

82. Financial instability in other countries may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets.

The Indian market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other countries,
particularly emerging market countries in Asia. Althou
reactions to developments one country can have adverse effects on the securities of companies in other countries,
including India. A loss of investor confidence in the financial systems of other emerging markets may cause increased
volatility in Indian financial markets and, imdictly, in the Indian economy in general. Any worldwide financial
instability could also have a negative impact on the Indian economy. Financial disruptions may occur again and could
impact our business, our future financial performance and the prides Bftiity Shares.

(This sectionis intentionally left blank)
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SECTION IV 7 INTRODUCTION

THE ISSUE

PRESENT ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES BY OUR COMPANY IN TERMS OF THIS PROSPECTUS
30,0Q000 Equity Shar es-each fully paiddor casd
at a pB54pec Equity Share aggregating,620Lakhs

Equity Shareslssued®®?)
Out of which:

15200Equi ty Shar es eodachfulypasd uyfer tash
at a pBdpee &Huity Sh@O&aklsggr eg
28,48,00CEquity Shares of having face value d0/- each fully paidup
for cash at a price of 54 per Equity Sharaggregating 1537.92Lakhs

IssueReserved for the Market Maker

Net Issueto the Public

Pre and Post IssueEquity Shares
Equity shares outstanding prior to the
Issue

Equity shares outstanding after the
Issue

59,85,628 Equity Shares of fagea | u e - @ath fullylp@idup

89,8562 qui ty Shar es eodachffulypadups al U

Pl ease ref er tObjects bf¢he Issidaegitineg orpage

Use of Net Proceeds 74 of thisProspectus

Notes:

(1) Thelssueis being made in terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as amended from time to time. This
Issueis being made by our company in terms of Regulation of D28f SEBI ICDR Regulations read with Rule
19(2)(b)(i) of SCRR wherein not less than 25% of theipissuepaid up equity share capital of our company are
being offered to the public for subscription.

(2) The Fresh Issue has been approved by our Board pursuant to the resolutions passed at its meetings held on
26.092024and by our Shareholders pursuant to a special resolution passed at their meetings 2i2l@®@024.

(3) Since present issue is a Fixed Price Isshe,allocation in the net Issue to the public category shall be made as
per the requirements @rstwhileRegulation 253(2) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, as amended from time to time,
which reads as follows:

(@) minimum fifty per cent to Retail Individual Investors; and
(b) remaining to:

i. individual applicantsther than Retail Individual Investors; and
ii. other investors including corporate bodies or institutions, irrespective of the number of specified securities
applied for;

Provided that the unsubscribed portion in either of the categories specified in clauses (a) or (b) may be allocated to
applicants in the other category.

Explanation- For the purpose of Regulation 253 (2), if the Retail Individual Investors category is entitled to more than
fifty per cent of the issue size on a proportionate basis, the Retail Individual Investors shall be allocated that higher
percentage.

It may be noted that SEBI vide notificatino. F. No. SEBI/LABNRO/GN/2025/233ated March 3, 2025, has inter

alia, amended Regulation 253llocation in the net offeiof the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Howexthe said amendment

is only applicable to the initial public offerings, whose draft offer document is filed post the gataioftion of the

afore referred tmotification Accordingly, in the present issue, the allocation shall be made as per Regulation 253 of
ICDR as it stood at prior to the afereferred to amendment.

For further detail s plssessuetured elb e gi page2d3pfehsBrdspeptiser ti tl ed
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

MANOJ JEWELLERS LIMITED
ANNEXURE -1
STATEMENT OF ASSETS & LIABILITIES, AS RESTATED

(X in Lakhs)
. As at December || As at March 31, || As at March 31,[| As at March
Fartsculars Notel " 31,2024 2024 2023 | 31,2022
I |[EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share Capital 11 598.56 598.56 598.56 166.75
(b) Reserves and surplus 12 757.98 381.31 57.18 76.63
Sub Total Shareholders Funds (A)) 1,356.54 979.88 655.74 243.38
2. Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings 13 1.273.89 1.338.23 45749 62144
(b) Other Non-current Liabilities 14 - - - -
(c) Deferred Tax libility 15 - - - -
(d) Long-term provisions 16 11.59 10.18 7.76 6.79
Sub Total Non Current Liabilities (B) 1,285.48 1,348.41 465.25 628.23
3. Current liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings LT 608.22 200.17 109.85 579.38
(b) Trade payables 18
1) Due to MSME - - - -
i1) Due to Others 38.19 1.06 4239 8.08
(c) Other current liabilities 19 85.77 2445 19.22 44.74
(d) Short-term provisions 110 9426 68.32 6.26 14.02
Sub Total Current Liabitlies (C) 826.43 294.00 177.72 646.21
TOTAL (A+B+C) 3,468.45 2,622.29 1,298.71 1,517.82
II. ||ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets
(1) Property, Plant and Equipment I11 64.39 16.03 2229 3140
(1) Intangible Assets 294 - - -
(111) Capital work-in-progress - 30.79 - -
(b) Non-current investments 112 - - - -
(c) Long-term loans and advances 113 31.30 31.10 20.10 20.10
(d) Deferred Tax Assets 15 12.96 11.02 9.87 9.47
(&) Non Current Assets 114 349 2.00 1.05 359
Total Non Current Assets (A) 115.08 90.93 53.31 64.55
2. Current assets
(a) Inventories 115 2.469.52 2,070.38 1,125.77 1.426.71
(b) Trade receivables 116 807.04 100.00 - -
(c) Cash and Bank Balances 117 19.31 34999 118.14 18.69
(d) Short-term loans and advances 118 56.09 0.84 - -
(e) Other Current Assets 119 141 10.17 149 7.87
Total Current Assets (B) 3,353.36 2,531.38 1,245.40 1,453.27
|TOTAL (A+B) 3,468.45 2,622.29 1,298.71 1,517.82

Note: The above statement should be read with the Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements appearing in

Annexure IV & V respectively.

As per our report of even date attached

MUs. Mardia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 007888S

Manish Mardia

Partner

M No.205307

UDIN: 25205307BMKYEO2721

Place: Chennai
Date: March 24, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Manoj Jewellers Limited

S Manojkumar
Managing Director
DIN: 01730747

Mayank Girishbhai Garach
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Chennai
Date: March 24, 2025
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MANOJ JEWELLERS LIMITED
ANNEXURE - I
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS, AS RESTATED

(X in Lakhs)
For the Period Ended On
Particulars Note || December 31,
2024 March 31, 2024 || March 31, 2023 || March 31, 2022
I [Revenue from operations I1 4,294.76 433511 1,363.01 675.18
il Other Income 2 244 331 051 0.64
III  |Total Income (I+II) 4,297.20 4,338.42 1,363.52 675.82
Expenses:
(a) Cost of materials consumed I3 = z = g
(b) Purchases of stock-in-trade o4 3,848.66 454402 714.52 446.29
() Changes m inventories of finished goods and s (399.15) (944.60) 30094 (878)
work-in- progress
(d) Employee benefits expense 1.6 60.83 74.73 62.73 41.44
(e) Finance costs 7 139.57 110.06 106.20 101.49
(f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 111 15.78 6.26 9.10 13.00
(g) Other expenses I8 109.49 89.26 81.31 31.35
IV [ Total expenses 3,775.18 3,879.73 1,274.80 624.81
Vv Profit /(Loss) before tax and Exceptional Items (III-IV) 522.02 458.69 88.72 51.01
VI xceptional Items o - - - -
VI ([Profit /(Loss) before tax (V-VI) 522.02 458.69 88.72 51.01
VIII |[Tax expense:
(a) Current tax expense 14730 135.70 26.76 15.36
Less: MAT credit setoff - - - -
(b) Deferred tax charge/(credit) (1.94) (1.15) (0.40) (0.82)
14536 134.55 26.36 14.55
IX |[Profit after tax for the year (VII-VIII) 376.66 32413 62.36 36.47
XII ([Earnings per share (face value of T 10/- each): 110
(a) Basic (in¥) (Annualised for December 31, 2024): 839 542 1.14 0.69
(b) Diluted (in ¥) (Annualised for December 31, 2024): 839 542 1.14 0.69

Note: The above statement should be read with the Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements appearing in Annexure IV &

V respectively.

As per our report of even date attached

M/s. Mardia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 007888S

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Manoj Jewellers Limited

S Manojkumar

Raj Kumari M

Manish Mardia

Partner

M No.205307

UDIN: 25205307BMKYEO02721

Place: Chennai
Date: March 24, 2025

Managing Director
DIN: 01730747

Mayank Girishbhai Garach
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Chennai
Date: March 24, 2025
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MANOJ JEWELLERS LIMITED

ANNEXURE - I

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW, AS RESTATED

® in Lakhs)|
For the Period Ended On

Tarticalars D““;(‘);’:' 3L | March 31,2024 | March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before Extraordinary items 522.02 458.69 88.72 51.01
Adjustment For:
(a) Depreciation and Amortization 15.78 6.26 9.10 13.00
(b) Finance Charges 139.57 110.06 106.20 101.49
(c) (Gain)/Loss on Sale of Assets - - - -
(d) Provision for Gratuity 1.56 274 1.10 0.19
(e) Interest & Other income (2.44) 331 (0.51) (0.64)
(f) Preliminary Expenses written off - - - -
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 676.49 574.44 204.62 165.05
Adjustment For :
(a) (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (399.14) (944.61) 300.94 (8.78)
(b) (Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (707.04) (100.00) - 2.18
(c) (Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances (55.25) (0.84) - 351
(d) (Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets 8.76 (8.68) 6.38 (0.06)
(e) Increase /(Decrease) in Trade Payables 37.13 (41.33) 3432 (63.01)
(f) Increase /(Decrease) in Other Liabilities 61.32 523 (25.52) 19.92
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 377.73) (515.80) 520.73 118.81
Less : Direct Taxes paid (Net of Refund) (121.51) (73.95) (34.64) (5.78)
CASH FLOW BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS (499.24) (589.75) 486.09 113.03
INET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) (499.24) (589.75) 486.09 113.03
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(a) Purchase of Fixed Assets (67.08). (30.79) - (0.62)
(b) Sale of Fixed Assets 30.79 - - -
(c) (Increase) / Decrease in Investment - - - -
(d) (Increase ) / Decrease in Long term loans and advances (0.20) (11.00) - -
(e) (Increase ) / Decrease in Non Current Assets (1.49) (0.95) 2.54 0.75
(f) Interest and other income 244 331 0.51 0.64
INET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (35.54) (39.43) 3.05 0.77
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(a) Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Borrowing (64.34) 880.74 (163.95) (132.65)
(b) Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Borrowing 408.05 90.32 (469.53) 122.51
(c) Increase / ( Decrease ) in Long Term Provisions - - - -
(d) Interest Paid (139.57) (110.06) (106.20) (101.49)
(e) Fresh issue of Equity Shares - - 350.00 -
NET CASH FLOW IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 204.13 861.00 (389.68) (111.63)
NET INCREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A)+HB)HC)

(330.65) 231.82 99 46 217

OPENING BALANCE — CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT 349.99 118.15 18.69 16.51
CLOSING BALANCE - CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT 19.31 349.99 118.15 18.69

As per our Report of even date

MUs. Mardia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 007888S

Manish Mardia
M No.205307
UDIN: 25205307BMKYEO2721

Place: Chennai
Date: March 24, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Manoj Jewellers Limited

S Manojkumar
Managing Director
DIN: 01730747

Mayank Girishbhai Garach
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Chennai
Date: March 24, 2025
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Our company was incorporated as private | imited Compan
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 vide Certificate of Incorporation dated September 21, 2007 issued by
Assistant Registrar of Companidamil Nadu,Chennai Andaman and Nicobar Islands. Subsequently, our Company

was converted into a public limited company pursuant to approval of the Shareholders at an Extraordinary General
meeting held on June 13, 2022 and consequently, the name ofopr&ony was changed to AManoj
and a Fresh Certificate of Incorporation consequent upon conversion from Private Company to Public Company was
issued by Registrar of Companies, Chennai, on July 14,2022

The Corporate Identity NumbéCIN) of the Company is U52393TN2007PLC064834
REGISTERED OFFICE AND SHOW ROOM ONE OF OUR COMPANY

Manoj Jewellers Limited

No. 59, NSC Bose Road, Sowcarpet,

Chennaii 600 079, Tamil Nadu, India.

Tel No: 044 4204 9741

Email: investor@manojjewellerslimited.com
Website: http://www.manojjewellerslimited.com
CIN: U52393TN2007PLC064834

For further details and details of changes in the registered office of our company, please refer to the chapter titled
fiHistory and Certain Corporate Matteabys b e g onrpagela2gf this Prospectus.

SHOW ROOM TWO

Manoj Jewellers Limited

No.16, Mangalam Mitra Apartments,
Ranganthan Avenue, Kilpauk

Chennaii 600 079, Tamil Nadu, India.

Tel No: 044 4889588

Email: investor@manojjewellerslimited.com
Website: http://www.manojjewellerslimited.com
CIN: U52393TN2007PLC064834

REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES

Registrar of Companies, Chennai
Block No.6, B Wing, 2¢ Floor,
Shastri Bhawan 26, Haddows Road,
Chennai600034, Tamil Nadu, India
Tel No: + 04428270071/28276654
Fax: 04428234298

Email: roc.chennai@mca.gov.in

Website: www.mca.gov.in

DESIGNATED STOCK EXCHANGE

BSE Limited (SME Platform of BSE Limited)
25" Floor, P.J. Towers, Dalal Street,

Fort, Mumbai- 400 001.

E-mail: bsesme.info@bseindia.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As on the date of this Prospectus, the Board of Directors of our Company comprises of the following:

Name Designation DIN Residential Address

B2 Block, Tens Orchards, 12/73 Halls Road, Tay!l
01730747| Road Park, Kilpauk, Chenrab00010, Tamil Nadu
India.

The Gate Way, A2 House, Dr. Munniyappa Stre
Kilpauk, Chennai600010, Tamil Nadundia.

Chairman &

Mr. Manoj Kumar Managing Director

Mr. Sunil Shantilal | Executive Director 01730790
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Name Designation DIN Residential Address
B2 Block Tens Orchards, 12/73, Halls Road Tayl
Ms. Raj Kumari Whole Time Director | 09607998| Road Park, Kilpauk, Chenra600010, Tamil Nadu
India.
Mr. Raniith Kumar No 5/6/7, B Block No 10, Sankeshwara Vatil
: I Independent Director | 10621525| Clements Road, Vepery, Tamil Nadu 6000
Sharup X )
Chennai, India
Mr Prathik Flat No. 2D Skylark Apartment"® Floor, No. 59
Présanchan d Daga Independent Director | 09660743| Diwan Raman Road, Purasaiwalkam, Flower Rd
g Chennai 600084, Tamil Nadu, India.
Mr.  Suganchang Independent Director | 09661906 7212 Jermlan Road, Vepery, Chenrn@®0007, Tamil
Ramesh Kumar Nadu, India.

For detailed profile of our Board of Directors, please see chaptet Oue Managememtbeginning orpagel25 of

this Prospectus.

COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Ms. Vaneeta Khannia our Company Secretary and Compliance Officar.déntact details are as follows:

Ms. Vaneeta Khanna

No. 59, NSC Bose Road,

Sowcarpet, Chennai600079,

Tamil Nadu, India

Tel No: +91-7338918916

Email: cs@manojjewellerslimited.com
Website: www.manojjewellerslimited.com

LEAD MANAGER TO THE ISSUE

Jawa Capital Services Private Limited

Address: Plot No. 93, F/F, Pocke&t, Near DAV School,
Jasola, Delril10025

Tel: +91-11-47366600

E-mail: mbd@jawacapital.in

Investor Grievance Email: investorsrelations@jawacapital.in

Website: www.jawacapital.in
Contact Person:Mr. Harsh BawejaMs. Archana Sharma
SEBI Registration No.: MB/INM000012777

REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited

D-153A, P*tFloor, Okhla Industrial Area,

Phasel, New Delhi- 110 020, India

Tel No: 011- 4045 0193/97

Fax: 011- 2681 2683

Email: ipo@skylinerta.com

Website: www.skylinerta.com

Investor Grievance Email: grievances@skylinerta.com
Contact Person:Mr. Anuj Rana

SEBI Registration No.: INR0O00003241

LEGAL ADVISOR TO THE ISSUE

Asha Agarwal & Associates

118, Shila Vihar, Gokulpura,

Kalwar Road, Jhotwara,

Jaipuri 302 012, Rajasthan, India

Tel No: +91 9950933137

Email: ashaagarwalassociates@gmail.com
Contact Person:Ms. AshaAgarwal
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BANKERS TO THE COMPANY

Axis Bank Limited

Corporate Banking Branch

Old No.2, New No.3, Club House Road, Anna Salai
Chennaii 600 002 Tamil Nadu, India.

Tel No.: 044- 61372000

Email: cbbchennai.operationshead@axisbank.com
Website: www.axisbank.com

Contact Person:Rekha S.

STATUTORY AND PEER REVIEWED AUDITORS OF OUR COMPANY

M/s. Mardia & Associates, Chartered Accountants
1-A, Valliammal Road, Vepery

Chennaii 600007

Tel No.: +91-44-42601133

Email: mardiassociate@gmail.com

Contact Person:Mr. ManishMardia

Firm Registration No.: 007888S

Peer Review N0.016323

M/s. Mardia & AssociatesChartered Accountants hold a paeview certificate datetlarch 25,2025ssued by the
Institute ofChartered Accountants of India

BANKERS TO THE ISSUE/ESCROW COLLECTION BANK, REFUND BANK AND PUBLIC ISSUEBANK

Axis Bank Limited

Ground Floor, Shilpa CHSL, Ram Maruti Rd, Naupada,
Thane West, Thane, Maharashtra 400602

Email: rammarutiroadthane.branchhead@axisbank.com
Website: www.axisbank.com

Contact Person:Leena Kendurkar

STATEMENT OF INTER -SE ALLOCATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

Jawa Capital Services Private Limitsdthe sold_ead Manageto thislssueand all the responsibilities relating to-co
ordination and other activities in relation to tlssueshall be performed by them and hence a statement ofsater
allocation of responsibilities is not required.

SELF-CERTI FI ED SYNDI CATE BANKS (ASCSBso0)

The list of recognized intermediaries notified by SEBI is available at is available at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmldr-8dsuch other website as

may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time. A list of the Desighated SCSB branches with which an ASBA Bidder
(other than a UPI Bidder using the UPI Mechanism), not Bidding through Syndicate/Sub Syndicate or through a
Registeed Broker, RTA or CDP may submit the Bid cum Application Forms, is available at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmlde3 such other websites

as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

SCSBS AND MOBILE APPLICATIONS ENABLED FOR UPI MECHANISM

The banks registered with SEBI, which offer the facility of ASBA services, (i) in relation to ASBA, where the Bid
Amount will be blocked by authorising an SCSB, a list of which is available on the website of SEBI at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmatxdB4pdated from time to

time and at such other websites as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time, (i) in relation to UPI Bidders using
the UPI  Mechanism, a list of which is available on the website of SEBI at
https://sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmari=siith other website as updated

from time to time.

In accordance with SEBI RTA Master Circular, SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/45 dated April 5,
2022, and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/51 dated April 20, 2022, read with other applicable
UPI Circulars, UPI Bidders Bidding thugh UPI Mechanism may apply through the SCSBs and mobile applications,
using UPI handles, whose name appears on the SEBI website. A list of SCSBs and mobile applications, which, are live
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for applying in public offers using UPI mechanism is provided in the list available on the website of SEBI at
www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmlakldBpdated from time to time and
at such other websites as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

SYNDICATE SCSB BRANCHES

In relation to Bids (other than Bids by Anchor Investors and RIBs) submitted to a member of the Syndicate, the list of
branches of the SCSBs at the Specified Locations hamed by the respective SCSBs to receive deposits of Bid cum
Application Forms from themembers of the Syndicate is available on the website of the SEBI
(https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intn)ldr@8iipdated from time to

time or any such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

REGISTERED BROKERS

Bidders (other than RIBs) can submit ASBA Forms in the Offer using the stockbroker network of the stock exchange,
i.e., through the Registered Brokers at the Broker Centers. The list of the Registered Brokers, including details such as
postal address, tgdhone number and-maail address, is provided on the websites of the Stock Exchange at
https://lwww.bseindia.comas updated from time to time.

REGISTRARAND SHARETRANSFER AGENTS (ARTAOQ)

The list of the RTAs eligible to accept Applications forms at the Designated RTA Locations, including details such as
address, telephone number andmail address, are provided on the website of the SEBI on
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherActido?doRecognised=yes, as updated from time to time.

COLLECTI NG DEPOSI TORY PARTI CI PANTS (ACDPO)

The list of the CDPs eligible to accept Application Forms at the Designated CDP Locations, including details such as
name and contact details, are provided on the website of Stock Exchange. The list of branches of the SCSBs named by
the respective SCSBstteceive deposits of the Application Forms from the Designated Intermediaries will be available

on the website of the SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in) on
https://lwww.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes and updated from time to time.

CREDIT RATING
This being anssueof Equity Shares, credit rating is not required.
IPO GRADING

Since theissueis being made in terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, there is no requirement of
appointing an IPO Grading agency.

DEBENTURE TRUSTEES
Since this is not a debenture issue, appointment of debenture trustee in not required.
MONITORING AGENCY

Since oulissuesize does nagxceed D00Lakhs, we are not required to appoint monitoring agency for monitoring the
utilization of Net Proceeds in accordance with Regulation 262(1) of SEBI ICDR Regulations. Our Company has not
appointed any monitoring agency for tidssue However, as per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Audit
Committee of our Company, would be monitoring the utilization of the proceeds of the Issue.

FILING OF THE DRAFT PROSPECTUS

The Draft Prospectus is being filed with BSE Ltd., Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Tolaled, Street, Mumbai 400001
Maharashtra, India.

Pursuant t&Regulation 246(2) of the SEBI ICDR Regulati@raft Prospectushall not be submitted to SEBI, however,
soft copy of Prospectus shall be submitted to SEBI pursuant to SEBI Circular Number
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2018/011 dated January 19, 2018, through SEBI Intermediary Portal at
https://siportal.sebi.gov.iIrSEBI will not issue any observation on iksuedocument in terms of Regulation 246 (2)

of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

A copy of theProspectualong with the material contracts and documents referred elsewhere in the Prospectus required
to be filed under Section 26 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be delivered ®ethistrar of Companies, Chennai,
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situated at Block No.6, B Wing,n2l Floor, Shastri Bhawan 26, Haddows Road, Cher&®1034, Tamil Nadwand
Andaman and Nicobar Islandsdia at least (3) three working days prior from the date of opening tdghe

APPRAISING ENTITY

No appraising entity has been appointed in respect of any objects isbthas

TYPE OF ISSUE

The presenissueis considered to be 100Fxed Pricessue.

GREEN SHOE OPTION

No green shoe option is contemplated undeigbge

EXPERTS TO THE ISSUE

Except as stated below, our Company has not obtained any expert opinions:

Our Company has received written consiom StatutoryAuditor namely, M/s.Mardia & AssociatesChartered

Accountantsto include their name in respect of the reports ofiRtghated Fimncial Statements datéthrch 24 2025
and the Statemeinf Possible Tax Benefits datddarch 25, 2025ssued by them and included in tfsospectusas

required under section 26(1)(a)(v) of the Companies Act, 2013 irPtbispectus nd as fAExpert o as d
section 2(38) of the Companies Act, 2013 and such comses not been withdrawn as on the date ofRhispectus
However, the term fAexperto shall not be construed to m
CHANGES IN AUDITORS IN LAST THREE YEARS
. Appointment/ Date of
PRIl Cessation Appointment/Cessation REAE0M 1o EIENEE
Dinesh Kumar Jain, Chartered | Cessation August 27, 2024 Completion of tenure
Accountant
Address: No. 43 & 44, Erullappan
Street, Roop Chambength Floor, Shop
No. E504, Sowcarpet, Chenfigg00079
Tel No.: +91 447 25390583
Email ID: dinesh.bhansali@gmail.con
Contact Person: CA Dinesh Kumar,
Jain
Membership No.: 216139
Mardia & Associates, Chartered| Appointment August 27, 2024 Appointment for the
Accountant period fromApril 01,
Address: 1, Valliammal Road, Vepery 2024, till March 31,
Chennaii 600007 2029.
Tel No.: +91- 44-42601133/26414638
Email ID:
mardiaassociates@gmail.com
Contact Person:CA Manish Marda
Membership No.: 205307
FRN No.: 007888S
UNDERWRITING AGREEMENT
This issueis Underwritten bySmart Horizon Capital Advisors Private Limited (Formerly known as Shreni Capital
Advisors Private LimitedandJawa Capital Services Private Limitedthe capacity of underwriter to th&sue The
underwriting agreement is datdédkecember 19, 2024Pursuant to the terms of the underwriting Agreement, the
obligations of the underwriters are several and are subject to certain conditions specified therein. The underwriters have
indicated their intention to underwrite the following number of specifiedritées being issued through thésue
(T in Lakhs)
No. of Equity Amount % of total
Details of the Underwriter Shares . Issue size
. Underwritten ;
Underwritten* underwritten
Smart Horizon Capital Advisors Private Limited 25,50,000 1,377.00 85%
(Formerly known as Shrefiapital Advisors Private Limited
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Details of the Underwriter

No. of Equity
Shares
Underwritten*

Amount
Underwritten

% of total
Issue size
underwritten

B/908, Western Edge Il, Kanakia Space, Behind Metro M
Off Western Express Highway, Magathane, Borivali E
Mumbai- 400066, Maharashtra, India.

Tel No: +91-22-28706822

Email: director@shcapl.com

Website: www.shcapl.com

Investor Grievance Email: investor@shcapl.com
Contact Person:Mr. Parth Shah

SEBI Registration No.: INMO000013183

Jawa Capital Services Private Limited

Plot No. 93, First Floor, Pocket 2, Near DAV School, Jas
New Delhi 110025

Tel No.: +91-11-47366600; Email: mbd @jawacapital.in
Investor Grievance Email: investorsrelation@jawacapital.i
Website: www.jawacapital.in

Contact Person:Mr. Anoop Kumar Gupta

SEBI Registration No.: MB/INM000012777

Total 30,00,000* 162000 100%
*Includes1,52,000Equity Shares of the Market Maker Reservation Portion which are to be subscribed by the Market
Maker in its own account in order to claim compliance with the requirements of Regulation 261 of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, as amended.

4,50,000 243.00 15%

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of our Company, the resources of the-rtemtioned Underwriter are
sufficient to enable them to discharge their respective obligations in full.

MARKET MAKER

Shreni Shares Limited

Office No. 217, Hive 67 Icon, Poisar Gymkhana Road
Lokmanya Tilak Nagar Poisar, Near Raghuleela Mall,
Kandivali West, Mumbai 400067,

Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91-22-2089 7022

Email: shrenisharespvtltd@yahoo.in

Website: www.shreni.in

Contact Person:Mr. Hitesh Punjani

SEBI Registration No.:INZ000268538

BSE Clearing Number: 6219

DETAILS OF THE MARKET MAKING AGREEMENT

In accordance with Regulation 261 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, we shall enter into an agreement with the Lead
Manager and the Market Maker (duly registered BIBE to fulfil the obligations of Market Making) datégiecember

19, 2024 to ensure compulsory Market Making for a minimum period of three years from the date of listing of equity
shares offered in thissue

Shreni Shares Limite@ registeredwith BSE SMEandwill act as the Market Maker and has agreed to receive or
deliver of the specified securities in the market making process for a period of three years from the date of listing of
our Equity Shares or for a period as may be notified by any amendment t¢(3E#BRegulations.

The Market Maker shall fulfil the applicable obligations and conditions as specified in the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as
amended from time to time and the circulars issueB®¥ and SEBI in this matter from time to time.

Following is a summary of the key details pertaining to the Market Makimangement:

1. a) The Market maker shaflubscribel,52,000Equity Shares being the market maker reservation portion as
specified in the Prospectus, on a firm basis and pay the amounts as are specified in the Draft Prospectus and
Prospectus. The Market Maker agrees not to withdraw its application; and b) enske¢ M&king in the Equity
Shares of Company in the manner and on the terms and conditions contained this Agreement, and as specified by
SEBI and BSE from time to time.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The Market Maker shall be required to provide-a& quote for 75% of the time in a day. The same shall be
monitored by the Stock Exchange. The spread (difference between the sell and buy quote) shall not be more than
10% or as specified by the Stock Exchange from time to time Further, the Market Maker shall inform the exchange
in advance for each and every black out period when the quotes are not being issued by the Market Maker.

The prices quoted by the Market Maker shall be in compliance with the Market Maker Spread requirements and
other particulars as specified or as per the requiremeBSB&nd SEBI from time to time.

The minimum depth of the quote shall be 1,00, 000.
1,000,000 shall be al |edarketdMakeoin thad scrip @rovidédehatrhe selis hisdentireg  t

holding in that scrip in one lot along with a declaration to the effect to the selling bBalead on the IPO price

o f 54pershare the minimum lot size2000Equity Shares thus minimudepth of the quote shall RO00Equity

Sharesuntil the same, would be revised by BSE.

After a period of three (3) months from the market making period, the market maker would be exempted to provide
quote if the Equity Shares of market maker in our Company reaches to 25%. Or upper limit (Including the 5% of

Equity Shares ought to be allottedder this Issue). Any Equity Shares allotted to Market Maker unddsshie

over and above 25% equity shares would not be taken into consideration of computing the threshold of 25%. As
soon as the Shares of market maker in our Company reduce to 24ftartket maker will resume providing 2

way quotes.

There shall be no exemption/threshold on downside. However, in the event the market maker exhausts his inventory
through market making process, the concerned stock exchange may intimate the same to SEBI after due
verification.

On the first day of the listing, there will be popening session (call auction) and there after the trading will happen
as per the equity market hours. The circuits will apply from the first day of the listing on the discovered price during
the preopencall auction. The securities of the company will be placed in SpecidDpea Session (SPOS) and
would remain in Trade for Trade settlement for 10 days from the date of listing of Equity shares on the Stock
Exchange.

There will be special circumstances under which the Market Maker may be allowed to withdraw temporarily/fully
from the market for instance due to system problems, any other problems. All controllable reasons require prior
approval from the Exchange, whilerce-majeure will be applicable for nesontrollable reasons. The decision of

the Exchange for deciding controllable and -ncontrollable reasons would be final.

The Inventory Management and Buying/Selling Quotations and its mechanism shall be as per the relevant circulars
issued by SEBI anBSE from time to time.

Execution of the order at the quoted price and quantity must be guaranteed by the Market Maker, for the quotes
given by them.

There would not be more than five Market Makers for
Market Makers may compete with other Market Makers for better quotes to the investors.

The shares of the company will be traded in continuous trading session from the time and day the company gets
listed onBSE SMEand market maker will remain present as per the guidelines mentionedB8iland SEBI
circulars.

There will be special circumstances under which the Market Maker may be allowed to withdraw temporarily/ fully
from the market for instance due to system problems, any other problems. All controllable reasons require prior
approval from the Exchange, idiforcemajeure will be applicable for nezontrollable reasons. The decision of

the Exchange for deciding controllable and tzomtrollable reasons would be final.

The price band shall be 20% and the Market Maker Spread (difference between the sell and the buy quote) shall
be within 10% or as intimated by Exchange from time to time.

The Market Maker shall have the right to terminate said arrangement by givngonthnotice or on mutually
acceptable terms to the Company, who shall then be responsible to appoint a replacement Market Maker.

In case of termination of the abovementioned Market Making Agreement prior to the completion of the compulsory
Market Making period, it shall be the responsibility of the Company to arrange for another Market Maker(s) in
replacement during the term of thetice period being served by the Market Maker but prior to the date of releasing
the existing Market Maker from its duties in order to ensure compliance with the requirements of Regulation 261
of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Further, the Company reservieghito appoint other Market Maker(s) either as

a replacement of the current Market Maker or as an additional Market Maker subject to the total number of
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Designated Market Makers does not exceed 5 (five) or as specified by the relevant laws and regulations applicable
at that particular point of time.

17. Risk containment measures and monitoring for Market Maker:BSEwill have all margins which are applicable
on the Main Board viz., Marko-Market, ValueAt-Risk (VAR) Margin, Extreme Loss Margin, Special Margins
and Base Minimum Capital etBSE can impose any other margins as deemed necessary frofottime.

18. Punitive Action in case of default by Market Maker: BSEwill monitor the obligations on a real time basis and
punitive action will be initiated for any exceptions and / or-nompliances. Penalties / fines may be imposed by
the Exchange on the Market Maker, in case he is not able to provide the desiréty ligaigharticular security as
per the specified guidelines. These penalties / fines will be set by the Exchange from time to time. The Exchange
will impose a penalty on the Market Maker in case heispresent in the market (issuing tway quotes) for at
least 75% of the time. The nature of the penalty will be monetary as well as suspension in market making activities
/ trading membership. The Department of Surveillance and Supervision of thengaehauld decide and publish
the penalties / fines / suspension for any type of misconduct / manipulation / other irregularities by the Market
Maker from time to time.

19. Price Band and Spreads:SEBI Circular bearing reference no: CIR/IMRD/DP/ 02/2012 dated January 20, 2012,
has laid down that fassues i ze up t o 250 Crores, the applicable pr

1 In case equilibrium price is discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading session shall be
5% of the equilibrium price.

1 In case equilibrium price is not discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading session shall
be 5% of the Issue price.

Additionally, the trading shall take place in TFT segment for first 10 days from commencement of trading. The price
band shall be 20% and the Market Maker Spread (difference between the sell and the buy quote) shall be within 10%
or as

intimated by Exchange from time to time.

20. The following spread will be applicable on tBEE SME

Sr.No. |Mar ket Price Slab (in )| Proposed spread (in % to sale price)

1. Up to 50 9
2. 50 to 75 8
3. 75 t0 100 6
4 Above 100 5

21. Pursuant to SEBI Circular number CIR/MRD/DSA/31/2012 dated November 27, 2012, limits on the upper side for
Market Maker during market making process has been made applicable, basedsuetize and as follows:

Buy quote exemption threshold | Re-Entry threshold for buy quote

IssueSize (Including mandatory initial inventory | (Including mandatory initial inventory of
of 5% of the Issue Size) 5% of the Issue Size)

Up to 20 25% 24%

20 Crore t 20% 19%

50 Crore { 15% 14%

Above 80 12% 11%

22. The Market Making arrangement, trading and other related aspects including all those specified above shall be
subject to thepplicableprovisions of law and / or norms issued by SHBHE from time to time.

23. All theabovementioned conditions and systems regarding the Market Making Arrangement are subject to change
based on changes or additional regulations and guidelines from SEBI and Stock Exchange from time to time.

24. On the first dayof listing, there will be g@re-open session (call auction) and there after trading will happen as per
the equity market hours. The circuits will apply from the first day of the listing on the discovered price during the
pre-open call auction. The securities of the Company will begd in SPOS and would remain in Trade for Trade
settlement for 10 days from the date of listing of Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Equity Share capital of our Company, as on the date of this Prospectus and after giving effeisste tisiset
forth below:

(T in |l akhs except
Sr Aggregate Aggregate
" | Particulars Value at Face| Value atlssue
No. .
Value Price
A. | Authorized Share Capital®
1,00,00,00Equi ty Shares odachf ace val 1,000.00 -
B. Issued, Subscribed and PaidJp Equity Capital before thelssue
59,8562 quity Shares odachf ace val 598.56 -
C. Presentlssuein Terms of this Prospectus
Issueof30,00 000 Equi ty Shar eeachatfapriceag
54/- per Equity Sharg 300 1620
of which
152000Equi ty Shares odadlcat vapg 15.20 82.08
Equity Shareeserved as Market Maker Portion ' '
Net Issue to Public 8,48, 00CEqu i t y S h-zaclea a poide o
54 per Equity Shart the Public 284.8 1537.92
Of Which
Allocation to Retail Individual Investors 4#4,24,00CEquity Shares 142.D 768.96
Allocation to other than Retail Individual Investorsiaf,24,000Equity 142.D 768.96
Shares
D. Issued, Subscribed and PaidJp Capital After the Issue
89,85 628 Equity Sharemchof face 898.56
E. Securities Premium Account
Before thelssue® -
After thelssue 1,320
(1) For details in relation to the changes in the author

Cor por at ebegMringdn pagel X2

(2) The Presentlssue has been authorized by our Board pursuant to resolutions passed at its meetings held on
September 262024 and by our Shareholders pursuant to a special resolution passed at their meetings held on
SeptembeR7, 2024

(38) Securities Premium before thesueas on March 31, 2024.

CLASS OF SHARES

As on the date of Prospectus, our Company h-aeach.éalhl y o0ne

Equity Shares issued are fully paig. Our Company has no outstandaupvertible instruments as on the date of this
Prospectus.

NOTES TO THE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

A. Changes in Authorized Share Capital

Since incorporation, the capital structure of our Company has been altered in the following manner:

Nature of Cumulative
: Number of Nature of authorized
Date of change increase/ Face Value .
Shares Instrument Share Capital
Change
(InRs.)
Atthe time of |\ uiol Capital 50,000 10 Equity 5,00,000
Incorporation
Increase in
October 08, | A jihorised 7,00,000 10 Equity 75,(0,000
2007 ;
Share Capital
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fr omeachltaq 70, 00,

re

Increase in
March 25, 2017 Authorised 9,50,000 10 Equity 1,70,00,000
Share Capital
Increase in
April 02,2018 Authorised 40,00,000 10 Preference 5,70,00,000
Share Capital
May 18, 2022 | Reclassification 40,00,000* 10 Equity 5,70,00,000
November 30 Increage in .
' Authorised 43,00,000 10 Equity 100, 00,000
2022 ;
Share Capital
1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
*The Authorized Capital was reclassified
1,70,00,000 divided i nt oealcrh, 0a0On, dd 0 04 ,E0QQu,i & Oy, 00hOa rdeisv iodf e
Shares to 5,i7t, d 05 0,000 ,d0d 0 dEedwiht wi KJtearsdharefhol dE/r s 6
2022

B. Changes in Preference Share Capital

Since incorporation, the capital structure of our Company has been altered in the following manner:

Nature of Cumulative
. Number of Nature of authorized
Date of change increase/ Face Value .
Shares Instrument Share Capital
Change
(InRs.)
April 02, 2018 Issue of 40,00,000* 10 Preference 4,00,00,000
Preference shar
Reclassification . . .
May 18, 2022 of shares** Nil 10 Equity Nil
40,00,000 4,00,00,000
*The Authorized Capital was increasbg4 0, 00, 000 Pref erence Shares

2018.
*The Aut h
1,70, 00,
Shares to
2022.

orized Ca

000

divided

pital

Equity Share Capital History of our Company

wa s

reclassified
i nt oe alc7h, 0a0n, d0 0 04 ,EO0QOu,i Ot Oy, OSOhOa r deisv i odf e
5,i7r0t, ® 05 0,000 ,d0 v0 dEedwiht wi Strearsdhsarefh ol MGk/r s 6

The following table sets forth details of the history of the Equity Share capital of our Company:

vide

fromachto, 70,

.| Cumulative .
No. of Cumulative . Cumulativ
. Face| Issue| Nature Paid-Up
Date of | Equity . Nature of | No. . e Share
Allotment Shares VI PIEE) © Allotment | of Equity Sy Premium
(Rs) | (Rs) | Consideration Shares
allotted Shares . (Rs)
Capital (Rs
Upon Subscriptio
Inncorporat|0 10,000 10~ | 10F | Cash n to MOA® 10,000 1,00,000 Nil
Sotoer 30 1,96.000 | 10¢ | 10¢ | Cash Right 1ssue 5 06,000| 20,60,000 Nil
Conversion
January 03y 49 509 [ 104 |10r | QM€ AN otioaninto|  2,17,500] 21,75,000 Nil
2008 Cash ey
equity
March 3L 100,000 | 10¢ | 100¢ | Cash Right Issu¢ 3 17,500 31,75,000 90,00,000/
Further
November | 5,500 | 10+ | 100¢ | Cash Allotment 3,37,500| 33,75,000 | 1:08:00.000
15, 2009 ) )
December Further 1,30,50,000
15. 2009 25,000 10/~ | 100+ | Cash Allotment( 3,62,500| 36,25,000 )
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.| Cumulative .
No._ of Face| Issuel Nature Cumulative Paid-Up Cumulativ
Date of | Equity : Nature of | No. . e Share
Valug Price| of . Equity ;
Allotment Shares . .| Allotment | of Equity Premium
(Rs) | (Rs) | Consideration Shares
allotted Shares . (Rs)
Capital (Rs
Bonus Issu
March 25, 13 05000 100 | Nil | QM€ than " atio of 16,67,500] 1,66,75,000 Nil
2017 Cash 185
Bonus Issu
June 104 416876 |10 | Nit | OMCr AN inratioof 114 20,84,376| 2,08,43,760 Nil
2022 Cash (vii)
Bonus Issu
June 174 508438 |10 | Nit | Oer than i Tiatio of 22,92,814| 2,29,28,140 Nil
2022 Cash 1:10)
‘;gg‘;ary 044 700,000 | 10~ |50~ | Cash Right Issu®)| 29,92,814| 2,99,28,14q 4,10,50,000
Bonus Issu
January 081 59 92814 | 10+ | Nil | Qe AN inratioof 1:] 59,885,628 5,98,56,280 Nil
2023 Cash (i)
(i) Initial Subscribers to the Memorandum of Association of our company upon incorporation.
Sr. No Name No of Equity Shares
1. Manoj Kumar 4,000
2. Sunil Shantilal 4,000
3. S Shantilal Jain 2,000
Total 10,000
(iD'Ri ght 1 ssue of 1,96, 000 -EarhlalldaitedonOdiocher #0s2009.f f ace val ue o0
Sr. No Name No of Equity Shares
1. S Shantilal Jain 50,000
2. Manoj Kumar 56,000
3. Sunil Shantilal 40,000
4. Raj Kumari 50,000
Total 1,96,000
(i Conversion of |l oan into equity -edchaloltedd Oabuary Q3u20@8y Shar
Sr. No Name No of Equity Shares
1. Sunil Shantilal 11,500
Total 11,500
(iv) Rightslssueof 1, 00, 000 Equi ty <ShchallettesdondVfarchf34,2098.val ue of ~ 10/
Sr No Name No of Equity Shares
1 B Gouthamchand 35,000
2. Deepika 7,000
3. Naresh 3,000
4 Pinky 3,000
5 Praful 10,000
6 Prema Kumari 42,000
Total 1,00,000
(v) Fresh Allotmenb f 20, 000 Equi ty S heachallottednri NoVemlzeel5 2@9.ue of 7 10/
Sr. No Name No of Equity Shares
1. Rawgold Securities Private Limited 20,000
Total 20,000
(vi) Fresh Allotmenb f 25, 000 Equi ty S heachealbttednri Dedemlneel5,2@09.ue of ~ 10/
Sr. No Name No of Equity Shares
1. Aarika Steels & Metals Private Limited 10,000

63



Sr. No Name No of Equity Shares
2. Sonal Cosmetics Exports Limited 15,000
Total 25,000

(vii) Bonus Issue in ratio of8:5 for allotment ofLl3,05,000Eq ui t y

March 25, 2017.

Shares

o- feacH adlotteson v a | u e

Sr. No Name No of Equity Shares
1 Manoj Kumar 2,16,000
2. Sunil Shantilal 1,99,800
3. S Shantilal Jain 1,87,200
4 Raj Kumari 1,80,000
5 Shalu 2,61,000
6 Damayanthi Bai 2,61,000
Total 13,05,000
(vii) Bonus I ssue in ratio of 1:4 for al | o tachealottecoo Juned , 16, 8
10, 2022.
Sr No Name No of Equity Shares
1 Manoj Kumar 1,84,238
2. Sunil Shantilal 83,388
3. Raj Kumari 57,500
4 Shalu 83,375
5 Damayanthi Bai 875
6 Vanshika 3,750
7 Prachi 3,750
Total 4,16,876
ixyBonus | ssue in ratio of 1:10 for al | edachalottedomJune2, 08, 4
17, 2022.
Sr. No Name No of Equity Shares
1 Manoj Kumar 92,119
2. Sunil Shantilal 41,694
3. Raj Kumari 28,750
4 Shalu 41,688
5 Damayanthi Bai 475
6 Vanshika 1,875
7 Prachi 1,875
Total 2,08,438
(x) Fresh Allotmenbf7 , 00, 000 Equi ty S h-each allottedbn Jdnaacy®4,2023l ue of ~ 10/
Sr. No Name No of Equity Shares
1. Manoj Kumar 4,20,000
2. Sunil Shantilal 2,80,000
Total 7,00,000
(xi) Bonus Issue in ratio of 1:1 for allotment of 2,992,814 Edhityar es of f aeach alleteedorudanuaryf ~ 1 0/
06, 2023.
Sr. No Name No of Equity Shares
1 Manoj Kumar 14,33,307
2. Sunil Shantilal 7,38,632
3. Raj Kumari 3,16,250
4 Shalu 4,58,563
5 Damayanthi Bai 4,812
6 Vanshika 20,625
7 Prachi 20,625
Total 29,92,814

3. We hereby confirm that the Company has duly complied with the extant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules framed thereunder, with respect to the issuance of Equity Shares, as stipulated under para 2 above.
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4. Except as disclosed below, we have not issued any Equity Shares for consideration other than cash, at any point of time
since Incorporation:

Date of| No. of | Face | Issue | Reasons off Benefits Allottees No. of
Allotment | Equity Value | Price | Allotment accrued to Shares
Shares (Rs.) | (Rs.) company Allotted

January Conversion of Reduct.ion in Sunil Shantilal 11,500
03, 2008 11,500 10+ 10~ Ioan into | borrowings of
equity the Company

Manoj Kumar 2,16,000

Sunil Shantilal 1,99,800

March 25,| 14 55 500 104 Nil Bonus Issue i Capitalization S S'hantiIaI.Jain 1,87,200

2017 e ratio of 18:5 | of Surplus Raj Kumari 1,80,000

Shalu 2,61,000

Damayanthi Bai 2,61,000

Manoj Kumar 1,84,238

Sunil Shantilal 83,388

3 10 B | i Capitalizati Raj Kumari 57,500
une , . onus Issue irl Capitalization

2022 4,16876 | 10 Nil ratio of 1:4 ofgurplus Shalu — 83,375

Damayanthi Bai 875

Vanshika 3,750

Prachi 3,750

Manoj Kumar 92,119

Sunil Shantilal 41,694

3 17 5 |  Capitalizat Raj Kumari 28,750
une , . onus Issue ir] Capitalization

2022 2,08,438 | 10+ Nil ratio of 1:10 | of Spurplus Shalu — 41,688

Damayanthi Bai 475

Vanshika 1,875

Prachi 1,875

Manoj Kumar 14,33,307

Sunil Shantilal 7,38,632

January Bonus Issue il Capitalization Raj Kumari 316,250

29,92,814| 10 Nil . ) Shalu 4,58,563

06, 2023 ratio of 1:1 of Surplus Damayanthi Bai 4.812

Vanshika 20,625

Prachi 20,625

5. No equity shares have been allotted in terms of any scheme approvedertasrs 394394 of the Companies Act,
1956 andsections 23234 of the Companies Act, 2013.

6. The Company does not have any employee stock option schemes under which any equity shares of the Company is

granted. Accordingly, no Equity Shares have been offered or transferred by our Company pursuant to the exercise of
any employee under the Employageck Option Scheme.

7. We have not revalued our assets since inception and have not issued any equity shares (including bonus shares) by
capitalizing any revaluation reserves.

8. We have not issued any Equity Shares at price below Issue price within last one year from the date of this Prospectus.

9. Shareholding Pattern of our Company

The table below presents the current shareholding pattern of our Coaganythe date of this Prospectus
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Al oS || 5685 | | 5685|5685 |5685 100, | oo | | | _ |s5685
er ,629 ,629 Y629 ,629 00 ) ,629
group
. 2,99, 2,99, 2,99, 2,99, | 100 2,99,
B | Public 14 | 559 999 | 201 999 999 | .00 100.00 999
Non -
Promot
C |ers - - - - - - - - |- - - - - - - |- -
Non -
Public
Shares
C | underly| ) i ) i i i ] i i i i i i i )
1 |ing
DRs
Shares
held by
C
5 Emplo | - - - - - - - - |- - - - - - - |- -
yee
Trusts
Total | 11 | 5985| _ | _ |59.85| 100.| 59,85| |59,85/100| | 10000 | _ | | _ |100.0
,628 ,628 00 ,628 ,628 | .00 % 0%

10. Set forth below is a list of Shareholders holding 1% or more of theymishare Capital of oulLompany as on the

date of this Prospectus:

Number of Equit Percentage of the pre issue
Sr. No. Name of the Shareholder shares quity Equity Shgare Capite:ll (%)

1. Manoj Kumar 25,66,615 42.88%
2. Sunil Shantilal 14,77,264 24.6%%
3. Rajkumari 6,32,500 10.57%
4, Shalu 9,17,126 15.32%
5. Heena Girish Jain 1,00,000 1.67
6. Gaurav Singh 66,666 1.11
7. Sagar Haresh Kumar Doshi 66,667 1.11
8. Bhavya Jain 66,666 1.11
Total 58,93,504 98.46%

11. Set forth below is a list of Shareholders holding 1% or more of theypalhare Capital of our Company two years

prior to this Prospectus:
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Percentage of then pre-

Sr. No. Name of the Shareholder Number of Equity shares | issue Equity Share Capital
(%)

1. Manoj Kumar 7,36,950 44.19%

2. Sunil Shantilal 3,33,550 20.00%

3. Rajkumari 2,30,000 13.79%

4. Shalu 3,33,500 20.00%

Total 16,34,000 97.98%

12. Set forth below is a list of Shareholders holding 1% or more of theypaBhare Capital of our Company as of one
year prior to the date of this Prospectus:

Number of Equity Percentage of the pre issue

Sr. No. Name of the Shareholder shares Equity Share Capital (%)
1 Manoj Kumar 28,66,614 47.89%
2. Sunil Shantilal 14,77,264 24.68%
3. Rajkumari 6,32,500 10.57%
4 Shalu 9,17,126 15.32%
Total 58,93,504 98.46%

13. Set forth below is a list of Shareholders holding 1% or more of theyma®hare Capital of our Company as of 10 days
prior to the date of this Prospectus:

Number of Equit: Percentage of the pre issue
Sr. No. Name of the Shareholder shares quity Equity Shgare Capitzll (%)

1. Manoj Kumar 25,66,614 42.88
2. Sunil Shantilal 14,77,264 24.68
3. Rajkumari 6,32,500 10.57
4, Shalu 9,17,126 15.32
5. Heena Girish Jain 1,00,000 1.67
6. Gaurav Singh 66,666 1.11
7. Sagar Haresh Kumar Doshi 66,667 1.11
8. Bhavya Jain 66,666 1.11
Total 58,93,504 98.46%

14. Our Company has not made any puldgue(including any rights issue to the public) since its incorporation, except as
stated above.

15.

16.

Our Company does not have any intention or proposal to alter our capital structure within a period of six (6) months
from the date of opening of tliesueby way of split/consolidation of the denomination of Equity Shares or fuetbee

of Equity Shares (including issue of securities convertible into exchangeable, directly or indirectly, for our Equity
Shares) whether preferential or bonus, rights, further public issue or qualified institutions placement or otherwise.,
except that if ou€ompany may furthr issue Equity Shares (including issue of securities convertible into Equity Shares)
whether preferential or otherwise after the date of the listing of equity shares to finance an acquisition, merger or joint
venture or for regulatory compliance or suther scheme of arrangement or any other purpose as the Board may deem
fit, if an opportunity of such nature is determined by its Board of Directors to be in the interest of our Company.

Shareholding of our Promoters

As on the date of this Prospectus, our Promoters $®#5% of the preissue subscribed and paigb Equity Share
capital of our Company.

Build-up of the shareholding of our Promoters in our Company since incorporation:

Acquisiti % Of % Of Post

Date of Nature of |[Nature of] No. of Cumulative = gn/ Pre-Issueg Issue
Allotment Issue/ |Considerg Equity No. of (Rs) | Transfer Equity Equity Pledge
[ Transfer| Transaction| tion Shares shares . Share Share

Price . .
Capital Capital
Manoj Kumar

Septembe Initial

b subscription  Cash 4,000 4,000 |10F 10~ 0.07% 0.0%% No
21, 2007

to the MoA
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AT % Of % Of Post
Date of Nature of |[Nature of] No. of Cumulative = gn ) Pre-Issueg Issue
Allotment Issue/ |Considerg Equity No. of (Rs) | Transfer Equity Equity Pledge
[ Transfer| Transaction| tion Shares shares . Share Share
Price . .
Capital Capital
October Further o
30, 2007 | Allotment Cash 56,000 60,000 |10+ 10/ 0.94% 0.6 No
March 25 Bonus Issue Consider
'l inratio of |tion othery 2,16,000 2,76,000 |10F Nil 3.61% 2.4 No
2017 )
18:5 than Cas
April 25, . .
2018 Transfer Gift 1,60,950 4,36,950 |10 Nil 2.69% 1.79% No
February . .
25 2022 Transfer Gift 3,30,000 7,66,950 (10 Nil 5.51% 3.6 No
February . .
25, 2022 Transfer Gift (15,000) 7,51,950 |10/ Nil (0.25%) (0.176 No
February . .
25 2022 Transfer Gift (15,000) 7,36,950 |10 Nil (0.25%) (0.17%6 No
June 10 Bonus Issue Consider
"| inratio of |tion other 1,84,238 9,21,188 |10 Nil 3.08% 2.0%% No
2022 )
1:4 than Cas
June 17 Bonus Issug| Consider
"| inratio of |tion otheq 92,119 10,13,307 |10+ Nil 1.54% 1.08% No
2022 }
1:10 than Cas
January | . o
04, 2023 Rights Issuel Cash | 4,20,000 14,33,307 |10/ 50/ 7.02% 4.6™0 No
Januar Bonus Issug| Consider
Y | inratio of | tion othef 14,33,307 | 28,66,614 |10+ Nil 23.95% 1595% No
06, 2023 .
1:1 than Cas
August f h o o
28, 2024 Transfer Cas (2,99,999) 25,66,615 |10~ 20F (5.00)% (3.3%)% No
Total 25,66,615 10 42.8%% 28.56/
Raj Kumari
October Further 0
30, 2007 | Allotment Cash 50,000 50,000 10/ 10/~ 0.84% 0.56% No
March 25 Bonus Issue Consider
2017 "I inratio of | tion other 1,80,000 2,30,000 |10 Nil 3.01% 2.0 No
18:5 than Cas
June 10 Bonuslssue | Consider
"| inratio of |tion otheq 57,500 2,87,500 |10/ Nil 0.96% 0.6%%6 No
2022 )
1:4 than Cas
June 17 Bonus Issugl Consider
"| inratio of |tion other 28,750 3,16,250 |10/ Nil 0.48% 0.326 No
2022 )
1:10 than Cas
Januar Bonus Issug| Consider
Y | inratio of |tion othel 3,16,250 6,32,500 |10+ Nil 5.28% 3.520 No
06, 2023 .
1:1 than Cas
Total 6,32,500 10.57% 7.0
Sunil Shantilal
Septembe Initial
P subscription  Cash 4,000 4,000 |10F 10~ 0.07% 0.0%% No
21, 2007
to the MoA
October Further 0
30,2007 | Allotment Cash 40,000 44,000 |10F 10/ 0.67% 0.4%% No
Auqust Conversion| Other
9 of Loan to than 11,500 55,500 |10+ 10/~ 0.19% 0.13% No
03, 2008 .
equity cash
March 25 Bonus Issue Consider
"I inratio of | tion other 1,99,800 255,300 |10F- Nil 3.34% 2.22% No
2017 )
18:5 than Cas
April 25, . .
2018 Transfer Gift 78,250 3,33,550 |10~ Nil 1.31% 0.87% No
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Acduisiti % Of % Of Post

Date of Nature of |[Nature of] No. of Cumulative = gn ) Pre-Issueg Issue
Allotment Issue/ |Considerg Equity No. of (Rs) | Transfer Equity Equity Pledge
[ Transfer| Transaction| tion Shares shares . Share Share

Price . .
Capital Capital
June 10 Bonus Issue Consider
2022 | inratio of |tion othe 83,388 4,16,938 |10 Nil 1.39% 0.93% No
1:4 than Cas
June 17 Bonus Issue Consider
2022 "| inratio of |tion othel 41,694 458,632 (10 Nil 0.70% 0.468% No
1:10 than Cas
January | oo h |2 738,632 |10/ / 4.68% 12 N
04, 2023 Rights Issuel Cas ,80,000 ,38,63 O 50/ .68% 3.1%% o]
Januar Bonus Issue Consider
06 202% in ratio of | tion otherl 7,38,632 14,77,264 |10/- Nil 12.34% 8.22% No
! 1:1 than Cas
Total 14,77,264 24.68% 16.44%
Shalu
May 25, *

2010 Transfer Cash 22,006 22,000 10~ 10/ 0.37% 0.24% No
M;\gl%o, Transfer Cash 10,000 32,000* |10F- 10/ 0.17% 0.11% No
M;\gl%o, Transfer Cash 5,000 37,000 |10~ 10/ 0.08% 0.068% No
M;\gl%o, Transfer Cash 3,000 40,000 |10+ 10/ 0.05% 0.03% No
M;\gl%o, Transfer Cash 3,000 43,000 |[10F+ 10/ 0.05% 0.03 No
M;gl%o, Transfer Cash 17000 60000 10~ 10/ 0.28% 0.1% No
Mggl%o, Transfer | Cash | 11,000 71,000 |10-| 10~ | 018% | 0.12% No
Mggl%o, Transfer | Cash | 9,000 80,000 |10-| 10- | 0.15% | 0.10% No
Mgglf)o’ Transfer | Cash | 10,000 90,000 |10-| 10~ | 017% | 0.11% No
May 30, f h o o

2010 Transfer Cas 10,000 1,00,000 |10+ 10/~ 0.17% 0.11% No
May 30, f h o

2010 Transfer Cas 20,000 1,20,000 |10+ 10/~ 0.33% 0.22% No
May 30,

2010 Transfer Cash 10,000 1,30,000 |10F- 10/ 0.17% 0.11% No
May 30,

2010 Transfer Cash 15,000 1,45,000 |10F- 10/ 0.25% 0.1 No
Mazrg;‘fs* Transfer | Gift | (22,000) | 1,23,000 |10-| Nil | (0.37%) | (0.24%) No
Mazrg;‘fs* Transfer | Gift | (10,000) | 1,13,000 |10-| Nil | (0.17%) | (0.11%) No
Mazrg;‘fs* Transfer | Gift | (5,000) | 1,08000 |10-| Nil | (0.08%) | (0.06%) No
Mazrg;‘fs* Transfer | Gift | (3,000) | 1,05000 |10-| Nil | (0.05%) | (0.03%) No
Mazrg;‘725* Transfer | Gift | (3,000) | 1,02,000 |10-| Nil | (0.05%)| (0.03%) | No
Mazrg;‘725* Transfer | Gift | (17,000) | 85,000 |10-| Nil (0.28% | (0.19%) | No
Mazrg;‘fa Transfer | Gift | (11,0000 | 74,000 |10-| Nl | (0.18%)| (0.12%) | No
Mazrg;‘fa Transfer | Gift | (1,500) | 72,500 |10-| Nl | (0.03%) | (0.026) No

Bonus Issue .
March 25,1 % atio of | CONSI9eT 5 51 000 | 3.335500 |10£|  Nil 436% | 2.90% No

2017 18'5 ation
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AT % Of % Of Post
Date of Nature of |[Nature of] No. of Cumulative = gn ) Pre-Issueg Issue
Allotment Issue/ |Considerg Equity No. of (Rs) | Transfer Equity Equity Pledge
[ Transfer| Transaction| tion Shares shares . Share Share
Price . .
Capital Capital
other
than Cas
Consider
June 10 Bonus Issue ation
| in ratio of 83,375 4,16,875 |10/ Nil 1.39% 0.93% No
2022 1:4 other
) than Cash
Consider
June 17, | BoNnus Issug 0
| in ratio of 41,688 4,58,563 |10/ Nil 0.70% 0.46% No
2022 1:10 other
) than Cash
Consider
Januar Bonus Issue ation
Y | in ratio of 4,58,563 9,17,126 |10+ Nil 7.66% 5.10% No
06, 2023 ) other
1:1
than Cas
Total 9,17,126 15.32% 10.21%

*Shares were initially acquired by Ms. Shalu as a first Joint holder along with Ms. Damyantibai as the Second Joint
Holder.

# Out of 1,45,000 shares jointly held by Ms. Shalu alongwith Ms. Damyantibaisb@fés i.e. 72500 shares were
transferred to Ms. Damyantibai as a single holder and remaining 50 % i.e. 72500 equity shares were held by Ms. Shalu
as a single holder.

All the Equity Shares held by our Promoters were fully pgicbn the respective dates of acquisition of such Equity
Shares. Further, our Promoters have not pledged any of the Equity Shares that they hold in our Company.

. Prelssueand PostssueShareholding of our Promoters and Promoter Group.

Category of Promoter A .

No. of Shares | % of Pre-Issue Capital
Promoters
Manoj Kumar 25,66,615 42.88%
Sunil Shantilal 14,77,264 24.68%
RajKumari 6,32,500 10.57%
Shalu 9,17,126 15.32%
Promoter Group
Damayanthi Bai 9,624 0.16%
Vanshika 41,250 0.69%
Prachi 41,250 0.69%
Total 56,85,68 94.99%

. None of our Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or senior management hold any Equity Shares other than as set out
below:

Name Designation No. of Equity | % of Pre-Issue | % of Postlssue
Shares held | paid up capital | paid up capital
Manoj Kumar Chairman &Managing Director 25,66,615 42.88% 28.56%
Sunil Shantilal Executive Director 14,77,264 24.68% 16.44%
Raj Kumari Whole Time Director 6,32,500 10.57% 7.04%

. Except as mentioned below, there has been no acquisition, sale or trarisfeiitpfShares by our Promoter Group
and/or director of the Company and their relative during last 6 months preceding the date of filing of this Prospectus.:

(&) In case of Acquisition by Transfer

S. | Name of the| Name of the| No. of | Transfer Face Acquisition | Consideration
No. | Transferee(s) | Transferor(s) | Equity Date Value Price (Rs.)
Shares (Rs.)
1. Sagar Haresli Manoj Kumar | 66667 2808-2024 | 10 20 13,33,340
Kumar Doshi
2. | Gaurav Singh| Manoj Kumar | 66666 28082024 | 10 20 13,33,320
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3. | Heena Girish . 100000 28-08-2024| 10 20 20,00,000
Jain Manoj Kumar
4, Bhavya Jain | Manoj Kumar | 66666 28-08-2024 | 10 20 13,33,320

20. None of our Promoters, Promoter Group, Directors and their relatives and partners of our body corporate promoter has
enteredinto any financing arrangement or financed pluechaseof the Equity Shares of our Company by any other
person during the period of six months immediately preceding the date of filing of the Prospectus.

21. Cont rindbtaild i on Lock

Promoter so and

Details of Promot einforghre€@)yearsi buti on | ocked

Pursuant to the Regulation 236 and 238 of SEBI ICDR Regulations, an aggregate of at least 20% ofsgepost
Equity Share capital of our Company held by our Promoter shall be kicKeda period of three years from the date
of Allotment in thisissue As on date of this Prospectus, our Promoteitectively holds 55,93,505Equity Shares
constituting62.2%% of the posissue Subscribed and Paith Equity Share Capital of our Company, which are eligible

for Promoterés Contribution.

Our promoters have granted consent to include such number of equity shares held by them as may constitute of the post

issueequi ty share capital of our company as promotersd coc
or otherwise dispose of in any manner, the promoterso
commencement of the Ikdn period specified below.
Details of the Equity Shares f or mi-indetaifsare ds follolvs: Pr omot er s
Face Issue % Of
Al?ate Oft/ Value price % Of P Post
trg;rgfirr]/ Nature of Number of per per Issoue E rﬁi-t Issue Lock-in
de full acquisition | Equity Shares Equity | Equity sh Cq 'tyl Equity Period
U _3 lIb7 Share | Share are Capial | g
paid up C )| ) Capital
Manoj Kumar
Janzuo"’g 6. | BonusIssud 898563 10 NA 15.01% | 10.00% | 3 Years
Sub-Total (A) 8,98,563 15.01% 10.00%
Sunil Shantilal
January 04, | Rights 1,59,931 10 50 2.67% 1.78% 3 years
2023 Issue
Janzuo"’g 06, | Bonus Issue  7,38,632 10 NA 12.34% 8.22% 3 years
Sub-Total (B) 8,98,563 15.01% 10.00%
Total (A)+(B) 17,97,126 30.02% 20.00%
The Equity Shares that are being lockedd ar e not , and will not be, i nel ic

Contribution under Regulation 237 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. In this computation, as per Regulation 237 of the
SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Compma confirms that the Equity Shares lockeddo not, and shall not, consist of:

1 Equity Shares acquired three years preceding the date of this Prospectus for consideration other than cash and out
of revaluation of assets or capitalization of intangible assets or bonus shares out of revaluation reserves or reserves
without accrual of csh resources or unrealized profits or against equity shares which are otherwise ineligible for
computation of Promotersd Contribution.

1 The Equity Shares acquired during the year preceding the date of this Prospectus, at a price lower than the price

at which the Equity Shares are beiferedto the public in thidsssuei s not part of the min
contribution.
1 The Equity Shares held by the promoters afidredf or mi ni mum 20% Promoter ds Con

to any pledge or any other form of encumbrances.
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22.

23.

24,

1 Specific written consent has been obtained from the Promoters for inclusibi 9%, 126Equity Shares for
ensuring lockin of three years to the extent of minim@®%6 of postissuepaid-up Equity Share Capital from the
date of allotment in the publissue

T The mini mum Promoters6 Contribution has been brought
and from the persons defined as Promoters under the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

T Wefurther confirm that our Pr omot eissgeBquity doed notiinbludé i on o
any contribution from Alternative Investment Funds or FVCI or Scheduled Commercial Banks or Public Financial
Institutions or Insurance Companies registered with Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India.

Equity Shareslocked n f or one year other than Minimum Promotersbod

1 Pursuant to Regulation 238(b) and 239 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, other than the Equity Shares held by our
Promoters, which will béockedi n as mi ni mum Promoter sdé ecissueil885021ti on -
Equity Shares shall bmubjectto lock-in for a period of one year from the date of Allotment in this Issue.

Inscription or recording of nontransferability

In terms of Regulation 241 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company confirms that certificates of Equity Shares
which are subject to | ock-Transhafrhbhbteot ampariodameirccaseyct hp
such equity sharesedematerialized, the Company shall ensure that the liods recorded by the Depository.

Pledge of Locked in Equity Shares

Pursuant to Regulation 242 of the SEBI ICDR Regulatitives|ockedin Equity Shares held by our Promoters can be
pledged with any scheduled commercial bank or public financial institution or systematically importdrankory
finance company or a housing finance company as collateral security for loarsidnatihem, provided that:

(a) if the equity shares are lockéalin terms of clause (a) of Regulation 238, the loan has been granted to the company
or its subsidiary(ies) for the purpose of financing one or more of the objects Isktleand pledge of equity
shares is one of the terms of sanction of the loan;

(b) if the specified securities are lockedin terms of clause (b) of Regulation 238 and the pledge of specified
securities is one of the terms of sanction of the loan.

Provided that such loek shall continue pursuant to the invocation of the pledge and such transferee shall not be
eligible to transfer the equity shares till the lankperiod stipulated in these regulations has expired.

Transferability of Locked in Equity Shares

1. Pursuantto Regulation 243 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Equity Shares held by our Promoters, which are locked
in as per Regulation 238 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, may be transferred to and amongst our Promoters/
Promoter Group or to a new promoter orgaas in control of our Company subject to continuation of theilock
in the hands of the transferees for the remaining period and compliance with SEBI SAST Regulations as
applicable.

2. Pursuant to Regulation 243 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Equity Shares held by shareholders other than our
Promoters, which are lockéd as per Regulation 239 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, may be transferred to any
other person holding shares, subjeatdntinuation of the lochn in the hands of the transferees for the remaining
period and compliance with SEBI SAST Regulations as applicable.

Neither the Company, nor itoés Promoters, Directors or
arrangements for purchase of Equity Shares of the Company from any person.

All Equity Shares offered pursuant to tissueshall be fully paigup at the time of Allotment and there are no partly
paidup Equity Shares as on the date of this Prospectus. Further, since the entire money in respect of the Issue is being
called on application, all the successful Applicants will fiered fully paidup Equity Shares.

As on the date of this Prospectus, the Lead Manager and their respective associates (as defined under the SEBI MB
Regulations 1992) do not hold any Equity Shares of our Company. The Lead Manager and their affiliates may engage
in the transactions with amgerform services for our Company in the ordinary course of business or may in the future
engage in commercial banking and investment banking transactions with our Company for which they may in the future
receive customary compensation.
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25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

As on date of this Prospectus, there are no outstandin
or other instruments convertible into the Equity Shares, nor has the company ever allotted any equity shares pursuant
to conversiorof ESOPs till date. As and when, options are granted to our employees under the Employee Stock Option
Scheme, our Company shall comply with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits
and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021.

Investors may note thatin case ofegeut bscr i pti on, all otment wil/ [Basison pr o
of Allotmend i n t he cldsweProcedur® t ib te Ig douh page22§ of this Prospectus. In case of over
subscription in all categories the allocation in ifgieshall be as per the requirements of Regulation 253 (2) of SEBI

ICDR Regulations, as amended from time to time.

An oversubscription to the extent of 10% of the lNsstuecan be retained for the purpose of rounding off to the nearest
integer durindfinalizing the allotment, subject to minimum allotment, which is the minimum application size in this
issue Consequently, the actual allotment may go up by a maximum of 10% of thsshietas a result of which, the
postissuepaid up capital after thissuewould also increase by the excess amount of allotment so made. In such an
event, the Equity Shares held by the Promoters and subject tinlsbkll be suitably increased; so as to ensure that
20% of the posissuepaid-up capital is locked in.

Subject to valid applications being received at or abovdsbige Price, under subscription, if any, in any of the
categories, would be allowed to be met with spiler from any of the other categories or a combination of categories
at the discretion of our Company in consultation with the Lead Manager and Desigmate&&thange. Such inter

se spill over, if any, would be affected in accordance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We have 1 (Elever) Shareholders as on the date of filing of the Prospectus.

The Equity Shares of our company are in the dematerialization form.

There shall be only one denomination of Equity Shares of our Company unless otherwise permitted by law. Our
Company shall comply with disclosure and accounting norms as may be specified by SEBI from time to time.

No payment, direct, indirect in the nature of discount, commission, and allowance, or otherwise shall be made either by
us or byour Promoters to the persons who receive allotments, if any, irsthie

Our Company shall ensure that transactions in the Equity Shares by our Promoters and our Promoter Group between
the dateof this Prospectus and tlesueClosing Date shall be reported to the Stock Exchange within 24 hours of such
transaction.

Our Promotersand Promoter Group will not participate in iksue

PrelPO Placemerit Our Company is not proposing any RO Placement.

(This sectionis intentionally left blank)
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SECTION Vi PARTICULARS OF THE ISSUE

OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE
The Issue comprises of freshissu80f0Q 000 Equi ty Shares by I6a0laklBompany agg
FRESH ISSUE
Our Company proposes to utilize the Net Proceeds from the Bssftowards funding the following objects:

1. Repayment/ prepayment of certain borrowings availed by our Compady
2. General corporate purposes

(Collectively, referred to herein astheOb j e c tissue) f t h e

The main objects and objects incidental and ancillary to the main objects, as set out in our Memorandum of Association,
enable our Company to undertake our existing business activities and the activities for which funds are being raised by
us through théssue In addition, our Company expects to receive the benefits of listing of Equity SharesSMEhe
Platform of BSH.imited i.e. BSE SMEncluding enhancing our visibility and our brand image among our existing and
potential customers and creating a jpuibtarket for our Equity Shares in India.

ISSUEPROCEEDS

The details of the proceeds of the Fresdueare set forth in the table below:

(T in Lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Gross Proceeds of thssue 1620.00
Less:Issuerelated Expensg®nly those apportioned to ti@ompany) 130.00
Net Proceeds of théssue 1490.00
UTILISATION OF NET PROCEEDS
The Net Proceeds are proposed to be utilised in the manner set out in the following table:
(T in Lakhs)
Sr. No Particulars Amt. %  Of | % Of Net
( i n | Gross Proceeds
Proceed
S
1. Repayment/ prepayment of certain borrowings availed by 1323.00 81.67 88.79
Company
2 General Corporate Purpdse 167.00 10.31 11.21

#The amount utilized for general corporate purpose shall not exts¥dof the gross proceeds of tlssue or such
amount as may be provided in the extant legislations applicable at the time of filing the Prospectus with the RoC

PROPOSED SCHEDULE OF IMPLEMENTATION AND DEPLOYMENT OF THE NET PROCEEDS

The Net Proceeds of the FrelsBue( i Net P ratec@rentlysegpected to be deployed in accordance with the
schedule as stated below:

(T in I akhs
Amount to be Es'tima.ted Es.t!ma.ted
Sr. . : Utilization of Net | Utilization of Net
Object financed from Net . :
No. Proceeds* Proceeds in F. Y.| Proceeds in F. Y.
202526 202%6-27
1 Repayment/ prepayment of certg 1323.00 1323.00 0.00
" | borrowings availed by our Company
2. | General Corporate Purpdse 167.00 167.00 0.00
Total 1490.00 1490.00 0.00

#The amount utilized for general corporate purpose shall not exceed 25% of th@aessds of the Issue, or such
amount as may be provided in the extant legislations applicable at the time of filing the Prospectus with the RoC.

In the event of the estimated utilization of the Net Proceeds in a scheduled financial year being not undertaken in its
entirety, the remaining Net Proceeds shall be utilized in subsequent financial years, as may be decided by our Company,
in accordance W applicable laws. Further, if the Net Proceeds are not completely utilized for the Objects during the
respective periods stated above due to factors such as (i) economic and business conditions; (ii) increased competition;
(i) timely completion of thdssue; (iv) market conditions outside the control of our Company; and (v) any other
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commercial considerations, the remaining Net Proceeds shall be utilised (in part or full) in subsequent periods as may
be determined by our Company, in accordance with applicable laws.

The fund requirements mentioned above are based on the internal management estimates of our Company and have not
been verified by the Lead Manager or appraised by any bank, financial institution or any other external agency. The
fund requirements are basaa current circumstances of our business and our Company may have to revise its estimates
from time to time on account of various factors beyond its control, such as market conditions, competitive environment,
costs of commodities and interest or exchamage fluctuations. Consequently, the fund requirements of our Company

are subject to revisions in the future at the discretion of the management. In the event of any shortfall of funds for the
activities proposed to be financed out of the Net Proceedtated above, our Company mayatcate the Net
Proceeds to the activities where such shortfall has arisen, subject to compliance with applicable laws. Further, in case
of a shortfall in the Net Proceeds or cost overruns, our management may explae af igptions including utilising

our internal accruals or seeking debt financing.

MEANS OF FINANCE

The deployment of funds indicated above is based on management estimates, current circumstances of our business

and prevailing market conditions, all of which are subject to change. The deployment of funds described herein has not
been appraised by any taor financial institution or any other independent agency. We may have to revise our funding
requirements and deployment from time to time on account of various factors, such as financial and market conditions,
competition, business and strategy and @gtrexchange rate fluctuations and other external factors, which may not

be within the control of our management. In the event that estimated utilization out of the Net Proceeds in a Fiscal Year
is not completely met, the same shall be utilized in the Riscal Year. This may entail rescheduling the proposed
utilisation of the Net Proceeds and changing the allocation of funds from its planned allocation at the discretion of our
management, subject to compliance with applicable law.

Our Company proposes to deploy the entire Net Proceeds towards the afmeate@bjects during Fiscal 2025.

In the event that the estimated utilization of the Net Proceeds in scheduled fiscal years is not completely met, due to
the reasons stated above, the same shall be utilized in the next fiscal year, as may be determined by the Board, in
accordance with ggicable laws. If the actual utilization towards any of the Objects is lower than the proposed
deployment, such balance will be used towards igém@rporate purposes, to the extent that the total amount to be
utilized towards general corporate purposes is within the permissible limits in accordance with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations. Further, in case of variations in the actual utilization of fmdsaeked for the purposes set forth above,
increased fund requirements for a particular purpose may be financed by surplus funds, if any, available in respect of
the other purposes for which funds are being raised in the Issue, subject to complianpeligibla laws

The fund requirements set out for the aforesaid Objects are proposed to be met entirely from the Net Proceeds, internal
accruals, net worth and existing debt financing. Accordingly, we confirm that there is no requirement for us to make
firm arrangementsfdinance through verifiable means towards at least 75% of the stated means of finance, excluding
the amount to be raised through the Net Proceeds and existing identifiable internal accruals.

For further details on the risks involved in our proposed fund utilization as well as executing our business strategies,

pl ease refer

RiskhFactoss e mtni2§oktigs@rospectud A

DETAILS OF THE OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

1. Repayment/ prepayment of certain borrowings availed by our Company

Our Board in its meeting datddecember 02 2024 t ook not &32308Lakhsisgproposedito bent o f
utilised for repayment/ prepayment of certain borrowings availed by our Company from the Net P@uaebdsiness

is capital intensive and we avail majority of our fund based andfurahbasedfacilities in the ordinary course of
business from various banks and/or financial institutionsF or f ur t her
pagel80 of this Draft Prospectus. As ddovember 30202, the aggregate outstanding secured borrowings of our
Company, is 1707.85Lakhs. Our Company proposes to utilise an estimated amourit3*300 Lakhs from the Net
Proceeds towards part or full repayment and/opaigment oborrowings availed by yshe details of which are listed

below:

det ai |l s,

Name of the Lender

Brief Terms and conditions

Amount proposed
to be repaid from
the proceeds of the
Issue

Indusind Bank
Limited

Nature of Borrowing: Working Capital Term Loan

Date ofsanction of loan December 30, 2022

358.00Lakhs
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Amount outstanding as on November 30, 2024:
358.46 Lakhs

Rate of Interest: Repo rate + 3.25%
Purpose: Working Capital

Pre-Payment Penalty: In case of full prgpayment,
charges of 4% (plus taxes agplicable) of the principa
outstanding as on the date of jp@yment will be
applicable.

Security: Personal guarantee of all directors and pers
property of directors is mortgaged.

Indusind Bank| Nature of Borrowing: Working Capital Term Loan 674.00 Lakhs
Limited

Date of sanction of loanNovember 30, 2023

Amount outstanding as on November 30, 2024:
67424 Lakhs

Rate of Interest: Repo rate + 2.60%
Purpose: Working Capital

Pre-Payment Penalty: In case of full pregpayment,
charges of 4%plus taxes as applicable) of the princiy
outstanding as on the date of jm&yment will be
applicable.

Security: Personal guarantee of all directors and pers
property of directors is mortgaged.
Arka Fincap Limited| Nature of Borrowing: Working Capital Term Loan 291.00 Lakhs

Date of sanction of loan November 30, 2023

Amount outstanding as on November 30, 2024:
291.99 Lakhs

Rate of Interest: AFL Reference rate less 6.75%
Purpose: Working Capital

Pre-Payment Penalty: Post 12 months, 5% ofthe
principal outstanding amount plus applicable taxes.

Security: Land and Building No 31 16 41 6 Veerappa
Street, Sowcarpet, Chennai 600079 Tamil Nadu
Total Rs. 1323.00 Lakhs

Note: The details included in the above table have been certified by our Statutory Auditors pursuant to their certificate
datedDecember 022024.

In accordance with Clause 9(A)(2)(b) of Part A of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, we have obtained a
certificatedatedDecember 02, 202#om Statutory Auditors of our Company certifying that the borrowings have been
utilised towards the purposes for which such borrowings were availed by us.

Payment of prgpayment penalty or premium, if anshall be made by our Company out of the Net Proceeds of the
Issue. In the event the Net Proceeds of the Issue are not sufficient for the said paymephapiere penalty or
premium, our Company shall make such payment from its internal accruals. \dsmé required to provide notice

to some of our lenders prior to prepayment.

Given the nature of these borrowings and the terms of repayment or prepayment, the aggregate outstanding amounts
under these borrowings may vary after payment of due instalments. In light of the above, at the time of filing the
Prospectus, thabovetable shall be suitably updated to reflect the revised amounts or loan as the case may be which
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have been availed by us. We believe that such repayment and/paypnent will help reduce our outstanding
indebtedness, debt servicing costs assist us in maintaining a favourabte-egbity ratio and enable utilization of
some additional amount fromur internal accruals for further investment in our business growth and expansion.
Additionally, we believe that since our dedmjuity ratio will improve significantly, it will enable us to raisedsat
competitive rates in the future to fund potentiasimess development opportunities and plans to grow and expand our

business in the future.

2. General corporate purposes;

Our management will have flexibility to deploy the balance Net Proceeds ¢éshe towards general corporate
purposes, to be deployed towards including but not restricted to strategic initiatives, partnerships, joint ventures and
acquisitions, meeting exigencies which our Company may face in the ordinary course of business, to mhovate a
refurbish certain of our existing Company owned/leased and operated facilities or premises, towards brand promotion
activities or repayment of liabilities (on demaifddny or any other purposes as may be approved by our Board, subject

to compliance with the necessary provisions of the Companies Act.

The quantum of utilization of funds towards any of the above purposes will be determined based on the amount actually
available under this head and the business requirements of our Company, from time to time. This may also include
rescheduling the proposetilization of Net Proceeds. Our management, in accordance with the policies of our Board,
will have flexibility in utilizing the proceeds earmarked for general corporate purposes. In the event that we are unable
to utilize the entire amount that we haerently estimated for use out of Net Proceeds in a Fiscal, we will utilize such
unutilized amount in the subsequent Fiscals.

We further confirm that in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the extent of the Net Proceeds proposed to be utilized
for general corporate purposes shall not exd&e@0% of the gross proceeds of the issue

ESTIMATED ISSUERELATED EXPENSES

The Total expenses for this Issue are estimated to be approximatdlgdR30Lakhs which is 8.02% of the Issue
Size. All the Issue related expenses shall be proportionately met out from proceeds of the Issue as per applicable laws.

The breakup of the same is as follows:

Particulars Estimated As a % of total | As a % of the
expenses (Rs| estimated Issue| total Issue size*
In Lakhs) ** related expenses*

Lead . Manager Fees including underwriti 101.00 77.69% 6.23%

commission

Brokerage, selling, commission and upload fees 3.00 2.31% 0.19%

Registrar to the issue 1.50 1.15% 0.09%

Legal Advisors 1.00 0.77% 0.06%

Advertising and Marketing expenses 3.00 2.31% 0.19%

Regulators including stock exchanges 7.00 5.38% 0.43%

Printing and distribution of issue stationery 1.50 1.15% 0.09%

]E)thers, if any (market ma_klng, depositories, marke 12.00 9.23% 0.74%

ees,secretarial, peer review etc.)

Total 130.00 100.00% 8.02%

*The fund deployed out of internal accruals upMarch 25, 205 i s 20772 Lakhs towards issue expenses vide
certificate datedMarch 25, 205, having UDIN: 25205307BMKYEQ1172eceived M/s. Mardia & Associates,
Chartered Accountantsand the same will be recouped out of issue expenses.

** |ssueexpenses include goods and services tax, where appli¢séleexpenses will be incorporated at the time of
filing of the Prospectus with the RolGsueexpenses are estimates and are subject to change.

Structure for commission and brokerage payment to the SCSBs Syndicate, RTAs, CDPs and SCSBs:

1) SCSBs will be entit e Applcatian Fgym for precessingrofgthe fAgpkcationfForins
only for the Successful Allotments procured by other Application Collecting Intermediary and submitted to them.

2) Selling commission payablerggisteredoroker, SCSBs, RTAs, CDPs on the portion directly procured from Retail
Individual Investors and Nemstitutional Investors, would b@012% on the Allotment Amount.

3) No additionaluploading/processing charges shall be payable to the SCSBs on the applications directly procured
by them.
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4) The commission and processing fees shall be released only after the SCSBs provide a written confirmation to the
Lead Manager not later than 30 days from the finalization of Basis of Allotment by Registrar to the Issue in
compliance with SEBI Circular no.EBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2021/570 dated June 2, 2021 read with SEBI
Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/2480/1/M dated March 16, 2021 and SEBI Circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/51 dated April 20, 2022.

5) Amount Allotted is the product of the number of Equity Shares Allotted and the Issue Price.
BRIDGE LOANS

Our Company has not raised any bridge loans from any bank or financial institution as on the daRra$plistus
which are proposed to be repaid from the Net Proceeds tfshe

MONITORING OF UTILIZATION OF FUNDS

Asthisisa Fr es h | s s u,e00 lakhs, wel are st requited to appotit a monitoring agency for the purpose
of the Issue in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Our Board and Audit committee shall monitor the utilization of the net proceeds of the Issue. Our Company will
disclose the utilization of the Net Proceeds under a separate head in our bagetadong with the relevant details,

for all such amounts that have not been utilized. Our Company will indicate investments, if any, of unutilized Net
Proceeds in the balance sheet of our Company for the relevant financial years subsequent to tiencafitipd ssue.

Pursuant to SEBI LODR Regulations, our Company shall disclose to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
the uses and applications of the Net Proceeds. Our Company shall prepare a statement of funds utilized for purposes
other than those stated ingProspectuand place it before the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, as required
under applicable law. Such disclosure shall be made only until such time that all the Net Proceeds have been utilized
in full. The statement shall be certified the statutory auditor of our Company. Furthermore, in accordance with the
Regulation 32 of the SEBI LODR Regulations, our Company shall furnish to the Stock Exchange on a half yearly basis,
a statement indicating (i) deviations, if any, in the utilizatidrthe proceeds of the Issue from the Obijects; and (ii)
details of category wise variations in the utilization of the proceeds from the Issue from the Objects. This information
will also be published in newspapers simultaneously with the interim or afimaradial results, after placing the same

before the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

INTERIM USE OF FUNDS

Pending utilization of the Net Proceeds for the purposes described above, our Company will deposit the Net Proceeds
only with scheduled commercial banks included in the Second Schedule of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as
amended, as may be approwsdour Boardln accordance with Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, our company
confirms that it shall not use the Net Proceeds for buying, trading or otherwise dealing in shares of any other listed
company or for any investment in the equity marketéneesting in any real estate product or real estate linked
products.

VARIATION IN OBJECTS

In accordance with Sections 13(8) and 27 of the Companies Act and applicable rules, our Company shall not vary the
Objects without our Company being authorized to do so by the Shareholders by way of a special resolution through a
postal ballot. In additiornthe notice issued to the Shareholders in relation to the passing of such special resolution (the
iPost al Ball ot Noticeo) shall specify the prescribed d
The Postal Ballot Notice shall simuliimously be published in the newspapers, one in English and one in the vernacular
language of the jurisdiction where our Registered Office is situated. Our Promoters or controlling Shareholders will be
required to provide an exit opportunity to such shadsgrs who do not agree to the above stated proposal, at a price

as may be prescribed by SEBI, in this regard.

OTHER CONFI RMATI ONS / PAYMENT TO PROMOTERS AND PROMOTEI
PROCEEDS

There is no proposal whereby any portion of the Net Proceeds will be paid to Our Promoters, Promoter Group, Directors
and Key Managerial Personnel, Group Companies, except in the ordinary course of business. Further, there are no
existing or anticipateda@nsactions in relation to the utilisation of the Net Proceeds entered into or to be entered into by
our Company with Our Promoters, Promoter Group, Directors Group Companies, and/or Key Managerial Personnel.
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BASIS FORISSUE PRICE

The IssuePrice shall be determined by our Company in consultation with the Lead Manager on the basis of the
assessment of market demand for the Equity Shares through the fixed price method and on the basis of the qualitative
and quantitative factors as describedtilhi s secti on. The f ace -eahanegdthdssie t he E
Price is5.4times of the face value.

Il nvestors should read the following basis with the secHt
Statementso, AManagement 6s Discussion and Analysis of
B u s i rbegmrsng on pag@8, 150, 182and106respectivelyof this Prospectus to get a more informed view before

making any investment decisions.

QUALITATIVE FACTORS

Some of the qualitative factors and our strengths which form the basis festi@®rice are:
Wide product range

Experience of our Promoters and senior management team

Customer satisfaction
Quality assurance

[ oA - BN el e

For further details regarding some of the qualitative factors, which form the basis for computssyéReice, please
see chapQueBusiness t b e gi ageld6ofths Rrospectus.

QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

The information presented in this chapter iperiodendedved for
onDecember 312024 and thénancial year ended March 31 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 in accordance

with Indian GAAP. For more details on financial information, investors please refer the chaptefitRleds t at e d
Financi al b&indng empageh50af this Prospectus.

Investors should evaluate our Company taking into consideration its niche business segment and other qualitative
factors in addition to the quantitative factors. Some of the quantitative factors which may form the basis for computing

the price are as foles:

Some of the quantitative factors which may form the basis for computirgsiinePrice are as follows:

1. Basic and Diluted Earnings / (Loss) Per Share (AEPSO

As per Restated Financial Statements Post Bonus

Period Basic and Dil Weights
For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022 0.69 1
For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 1.14 2
Forthe Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 5.42 3
Weighted Average 3.21
For the period ended Decembesl, 2024 8.3
(Annualised)
Note:
1. The figures disclosed above are based on the Restated Financial Statements of the Company.
2. Thefacevauedfach Equity Share is 7 10.00.
3. Earnings per Share has been calculated in accordance with Accounting Standard EGar ni ngs per St

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

4. Basic Earnings per share = Profit for the periowkighted average number of equities shares outstanding during
the three years.

5. Diluted Earnings per share = Profit for the period / Weighted average number of potential equities shares
outstanding during the three years.
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2. Price Earnings Rat ithelsguéPP/i EcOd4 pef Equity Shaet i on t o

Particulars P/E) Ratio (no. of times)

Based on Restated Financial Statements

P/E ratio based on the Basic & Diluted EPS, as restated for F¥2023 9.96
P/E ratio based on the Weighted Aver&gsic & DilutedEPS 16.82

Note: P/E ratio has been computed dividing the price per shgrEdrnings per Equity Share.

3. Industry P/E Ratio

Particulars P/E Ratio

Highest 5173
Lowest 1141
Average 2560

4. Return on Net worth (RONW)

As per Restated Financial Statements

Period RONW Weights
For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022 14.99% 1
For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 9.51% 2
For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 33.08% 3
Weighted Average 22.21%

For the period ended on December 31, 2 37.02%

(Annualised)

Note:

1. The figures disclosed above are based on the Restated Financial Statement of our Company. Return on Net worth
has beertalculated as per the following formula:
Return on Net Worth (%) = Restated PAT attributable to Equity Shareholders/ Net Worth X100

5. Net Asset Value (NAV)

As per Restated Financial Statemerit$?ost Bonus

1) Net Asset Value (NAV) per Equity Share:

Period Net Asset Value Pe
As at last day of FY2 14.60
As at last day of FY2 10.96
As at last day of FY2 16.37
For the period ended ddecembeBl, 2024 22.66
Net Asset Value per Equity Share after Issue 33.13
Issue Price 54.00

Note:

The NAV per Equity Share has been computed by dividing restated net worth with weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding at the end of the year/period.

6. Comparison of accounting ratios with listed industry peers

. : PE
Name of Company Pri ce I(:ace) el Eapsu; « (D'IUt)ed R_atio RoNW(%) glﬁvap(?r d
(times)
Manoj Jewellers Limited 54 10 5.42 9.96 33.08% 16.37
Peer Group
D. P. Abhushan Limited 1438.10 10 27.80 5173 25.91% 235.41
Moksh Ornaments Limited| 1335 10 1.17 1141 10.92% 10.67
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. . PE
Name of Company Price Face Value| Basic & Diluted Ratio | RONW(%) NAV per
( ) EPS ( ) (times) Shar €
Shubhlaxmi— Jewel — Arl ¢ 55 10 1.22 1365 | 5.63% | 2044
Limited

Source:www.nseindia.com

Notes:

(1) The figures for our company are based on Restated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

(2) P/E Ratio has been computed based on their respective closing market phipeldb, 2025, as divided by the
Basic EPS as on March 31, 2024.

(3) Restated Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders divided by Net Worth of our Company.

(4) Net asset value per equity share is calculated as net worth as of the end of relevant year divided by the weighted
average number of equities shares outstanding at the end of the year.

(5) Price Earning (P/E) Ratio in relation to tHesuePrice of ™ 54 per shares 9.96

(6) The face val ue-perfshare and thissheRriceeis oif54pei sHafe aAré.4times of the face value

Investor should read the abereentioned information along with the section tittdR i s k  Foaginhirg ora8df
this Prospectusind the financials of our Company including important profitability and return ratios, as pegeirt
the chaptertitted Re st at ed F i n abeginhireglon pagé%0of ¢himkeraspestus

7. Key Performance Indicators (AKPI so0)

The KPIs disclosed below have been used historically by our Company to understand and analyse the business
performance, which in result, help us in analysing the growth of various verticals in comparison to odihpdéRds

disclosed below have been approved by a resolution of our Audit CommitteeMiaidd25 2025and the members

of the Audit Committee have verified the details of all KPIs pertaining to our Company. Further, the members of the
Audit Committee have confirmed that there are no KPIs pertaining to our Company that have been disclosed to any
investors aany point of time during the three years period prior to the date of filing of this Prospectus. Further, the
KPIs herein have been certified by our Peer Review Auditors, M/s. Mardia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, by
their certificate datearch 25, 205.

The KPlIls of our Company have Obr8usinesdd i akeydPesfarsadce Indicatordr e ¢ h a
underthechaptéManagement 6 s Di scussion and AnalysisoobnFpagesi
106and182of this Prospectys r especti vely. We have descr i IDefiditomsnd def
and Abbreviation8 o0 n 6 @f thig rospectus

Our Company confirms that it shall continue to disclose all the KPIs included in this section on a periodic basis, at least
once in a year (or any lesser period as determined by the Board of our Company), for a duration of one year after the
date of listirg of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange or till the complete utilisation of the proceeds of the Issue as
per the disclosur e Obetd@thelssdet hewhtchhpver tbsBtlatdefi or for
be required under theEBI ICDR Regulations. Further, the ongoing KPIs will continue to be certified by a member of

an expert body as required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

a) Key Performance Indicators of our Company*

As per Restated Financial Statements

(~ in Lakhs, ot her wi |

Key Performance Indicator Deczrggjr 31 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Revenue from Operatiof8 4,294.76 4,335.11 1,363.01 675.18
Revenue fronDperation Growth % 32.09% 218.05% 101.87% -3.06%
EBITDA @ 674.93 57170 203.51 16487
EBITDA Margin ® 15.72% 13.1%% 14.9% 24.42%
Restated Profit After Tax 376.66 324.13 62.36 36.47
PAT Margin(4) 8.77% 7.48% 4.5 5.40%

Net WortH> 1356.54 979.88 655.74 24338
Capital Employed 2,866.47 1,860.24 1,323.97 1,421.98
ROE%®® 42.99% 39.63% 13.87% 16.20%
ROCE%(") ® 30.77% 30.57% 14.72% 10.72%

*As certified by M/s. Mardia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, by way of their certificateMiatetu25, 2025.
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Notes:

Notes:

1) Revenue from Operations means the Revenue from Operations as appearing in the Restated Financial Statements.

2) EBITDA iscalculated as Profit before tax + Depreciation + Finance Qo§&ither Income

3) EBITDA Margin is calculated as EBITDA divided by Revenue from operations

4) PAT Margin is calculated as PAT for the period/year divided by revenue from operations.

5) Net worthmeans the aggregate value of the papshare capital and all reserves created out of the profits and
securities premium account

6) Return on Equity is ratio of Profit after Tax and average Shareholder Equity

7) Return on Capital Employed is calculated as EBIT divided by average capital employed, which is defined as
sharehol dersé equity pl uvairrentpt al borrowings (current

8) Figures have been annualised, wherever applicable.

b) Description on the historic use of the KPIs by our Company to analyse, track or monitor the operational

and/or financial performance of our Company

In evaluating our business, we consider and use certain KPIs, as presented above, as a supplemental measure to review
and assess our financial and operating performance. The presentation of these KPlIs is not intended to be considered in
isolation or as aubstitute for the Financial Information. We use these KPIs to evaluate our performance. Some of these
KPIs are not defined under applicable Accounting Standards and are not presented in accordance with applicable
Accounting Standards. These KPIs have ktiins as analytical tools. Further, these KPIs may differ from the similar
information used by other companies and hence their comparability may be limited. Although these KPIs are not a
measure of performance calculated in accordance with a
believes that it provides an atldnal tool for investors to use in evaluating our ongoing results, when taken collectively

with financial measures prepared in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards.

Explanations for the certain financial data based on Restated Financial Statements

Key Financial
Performance
Financial KPIs

Revenue from Operations

Explanations

Revenue from Operations is used by our management to track the revenue pr
the business and in turn helps to assess the overall financial performance
Company and volume of our business

EBITDA provides information regarding the operational efficiency of the busing

EBITDA

EBITDA Margin

EBITDA Margin (%) is an indicator of the operational profitability and finan
performance of our business

PAT

Profit after tax provides information regarding the overall profitability of the busi

PAT Margin (%)

PAT Margin (%) is an indicator of the overall profitability afirtancial performance
of the business

Return on equity (%)

Return on equity (ROE) is a measure of financial performance

DebtEquity Ratio (times)

Debt / Equity Ratio is used to measure the financial leverage of the Compar
provides comparison benchmark against peers

gt her wi

Current Ratio (times) The current ratio is Bquidity ratiot hat measures our c¢o
term obligations or those due within one year
c) Comparison with Listed Industry Peers
As on March 31, 2024
(~ in Lakhs,
. Moksh Shubhlaxmi
Key Financial Performance Iv_lar_101 Jewellers D . % e Ornaments Jewel Art
Limited Limited A A
Limited Limited
Revenue from Operatiors 4335.11 233995.99 44920.11 6835.71
EBITDA @ 57170 10059.14 1394.57 298.34
EBITDA Margin (%)® 13.19% 4.30% 3.10% 4.36%
PAT 324.13 6,186.21 625.29 121.90
PAT Margin (%)® 748% 2.64% 1.39% 1.78%
Return on Equity® 39.63% 25.91% 10.92% 5.63%
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https://www.investopedia.com/terms/l/liquidityratios.asp

- Moksh Shubhlaxmi
Key Financial Performance I\/_Iar_101 Jealiei D . 2, ISR Ornaments Jewel Art
Limited Limited . A
Limited Limited
Debt to Equity® 1.57 7.21 4.60 1.00
Current Ratid” 8.61 1.72 2.23 2.91
As on March 31, 2023:
(7 i n otheewlséhnsentiongd
. Moksh Shubhlaxmi
Key Financial Performance I\/_Iar_10] Jewellers D . , HLLEhEL) Ornaments Jewel Art
Limited Limited L Y
Limited Limited
Revenue from Operatiofs 1363.01 197,512.02 32,401.68 7,760.15
EBITDA @ 203.51 7676.66 798.57 262.63
EBITDA Margin (%)® 1493% 3.89% 2.46% 3.38%
PAT 62.36 4531.69 513.27 101.65
PAT Margin (%)@ 4.51% 2.29% 1.58% 1.31%
Return on Equity® 13.8%% 25.03% 11.44% 5.48%
Debt to Equity® 0.87 5.20 2.57 1.31
Current Ratid” 7.01 1.61 3.16 2.50
As on March 31, 2022:
(" in Lakhs, o9gther wi
. Moksh Shubhlaxm
Key Financial Performance 'V.'a’.‘ol Jewellers D . P. Abhushan Ornaments i Jewel Art
Limited Limited L o
Limited Limited
Revenue from Operatiofs 675.18 173,137.99 32,401.68 6170.32
EBITDA @ 164.8/ 7676.66 798.57 191.73
EBITDA Margin (%)® 2442% 4.34% 2.46% 3.11%
PAT 36.47 4043.54 513.27 77.87
PAT Margin (%)® 5.40% 2.34% 1.58% 1.26%
Return on Equity®) 16.200 29.29% 11.44% 4.58%
Debt to Equity® 4.93 6.86 0.35 0.79
Current Ratid” 2.25 1.52 10.45 3.35

Notes:

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
©)

Revenue from operation means revenue from sale of products.
EBITDA is calculated as Profit before taxDepreciation + Finance Cost Other Income.
EBITDA Margin is calculated as EBITDA divided by Revenue from Operations.

PAT Margin is calculated as PAT for the period/year divided by revenue from operations.
Return on Equity is calculated as PAT for the period/year divided by Average Shareholders Equity.
Debt to Equity is calculated as Total Debt divided by Shareholders Equity.
Current Ratio is calculated as Current Assets divided by Current Liabilities.
Financial information for Manoj Jewellers Limited is derived from the Restated Financial Statements.

All the financial information for listed industry peers mentioned above is on a standalone basis and is sourced

from the annual reports as available of the respective company for the year ended March 31, 2024, March 31,
2023 and March 31, 2022 submittedstock exchanges.

Weighted Average Cost of Acquisition

a) The Price per share of the Company based on primary / new issue of shares (equity/convertible securities),
excluding shares issued under ESOP/ESOS and issuance of bonus shares, during the 18 months preceding the
date of filing of the Prospectus/Prospectus, where such issuance is equal to or more than 5% of the fully diluted
paid-up share capital of the Company (calculated based on theigseie capital before such transaction/s and
excluding employee stock options granted but not véstén a single transaction or multiple transactions
combined together over a span of rolling 30 days:
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Date of | No. of| Face | Issue | (Issue Nature of | Nature of | Consideration
Allotment Equity value | Price | price consideration | Allotment (in Rs.)
Shares (Rs.) | (Rs.) | Adjusted
allotted for Bonus
Issue)
NIL

b) Price per share of the Company based on secondary sale / acquisition of shares (equity/convertible securities),
where promoter / promoter group entities having the right to nomindiiector(s) in the Board of the Company
are a party to the transaction (excluding gifts), during the 18 months preceding the date of filing of the Draft
ProspectusProspectus, where either acquisition or sale is equal to or more than 5% of the fully diluted paid
up share capital of the Company (calculated based on the-ipsee capital before such transaction/s and
excluding employee stock options granted but nottedy in a single transaction or multiple transactions
combined together over a span of liog 30 days:

Name of Transferee Name of | Date of | Number of shares Transfer price
Transferor Transfer per Equity
Share (in Rs.)
Sagar Haresh Kumar Doslf Manoj Kumar | 28-08-2024 66,667 20/
Gaurav Singh Manoj Kumar 28-08-2024 66,666 20/-
HeenaGirish Jain Manoj Kumar 28-08-2024 1,00,000 20/-
Bhavya Jain Manoj Kumar | 28-08-2024 66,666 20k

c) lIssue pricebeing 2.7 imesthe weighted average cost of acquisition (WACA) based on primary/ secondary
transaction(s) as disclosed in terms of clause (a) and (b) above, shall be disclosed in the following manner:

Past Transaction WACA (in Rs.) IPO Issue Price is54
WACA of Primary Issuance Nil NA
WACA of Secondary Transaction | 20 2.7

d) Detailed explanation for Issue price being 2.7 times of WACA of Primary issuance price / Secondary
transaction price, along with comparison of | ssuer
full financial years and stub period (if any) included in thelssuedocument.

Our company Manoj Jewellers Limited is engaged in the retail business of jewellery and ornaments made from
gold and diamonds, embellished with precious and semiprecious stones. Our extensive portfolio includes a wide
range of items such as rings, earriregslets, pendants, gajrahs, nose rings, bracelets, chains, necklaces, bangles,

and other wedding jewellery pieces. Our diverse collection caters to various tastes and occasions, offering
customers a selection of exquisite pieces to choose from. Mandjelswemited aims to provide highuality

and beautifully crafted jewellery to meet the needs and preferences of our clientele.

The turnover of our Company based on the restated fi
year 2@8882lL akhs in the f i nan5illLlakhsiyteedinanclo/@aB202 shdwing 4, 3 3
compounded growth df53%. The turnover for the period April 01, 2024December 312024w a s4294.76
Lakhs.

TheEBITDAof our Company based on t he rlé&&87/lakheidtheffiiamcialnci al s
year 23R akhs in the f i nEh70lakhdin tyedirrancialyd€a22624.amedEBITDA
for the period April 012024 toDeceamber 3, 2024 wasRs.674.93Lakhs.

The Net Worth based on the resBBehhéettsf asapoi @bFL af 31 he

Lakhs as on Ma r9e9dB8lakis as od Mach 31a2024. The Net Worth for the period April 01,
2024to December 31, 2024 a s1356.54Lakhs.

The PAT based on the restat3@dafLdkmanicn at se off i6RIBrec iCdIMmp
Lakhs in the f i n3al8lakhtin thesfinancialy@ap 2824aThedPAT for the period April 01,
2024 toDecember 312024w a s376.66Lakhs.

e) Explanation for issueprice/ cap price being2.7 times of WACA of Primary issuance price/ Secondary
transaction price in view of the external factors which may have influenced the pricing of the issue, if any.

The Company in consultation with t h®pdEqaityShdreforadhger be
Issue is justified in view of the above parameters. Investor should read therabotiened information along
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wi t h the «c hsakp tFearc ttoirtsl opade2eigRiis Rad Mering Rrospectus and the financials of
our Company including important profitability and r ef
St at eme nt 00 papeks@oi thisnPrroapgctus.

The Face Value of the Equity Shar es4timesofthefdcOvalpesie. Equi
54 per Equity Share.

(This sectionis intentionally left blank)
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STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS

To,

The Board of Directors,
Manoj Jewellers Limited

No. 59, NSC Bose Road
Sowecarpet, Chenn&i600079,
Tamil Nadu India

Dear Sirs,

Sub: Statement of Possible Special Tax Benefits available kanoj JewellersLi mi t ed (A Companyo)
shareholders prepared in accordance with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and

Di sclosure Requirements) Regul ati ons, 2018 (nASEBI | CDF
fiAct 0) .

We hereby report that the accompanying Statement states the possible special tax benefits available to the Company
and shareholders of the CtenQatemegnd ) hemecéematfher|l medme r Eax
with Income Tax Rules, circulars, notifications) as amended by the Finance Act, 2021 presently in force in India
(toget her r eDirect Taeldwsd 0, atshe h6odids and Service Tax | aws
rules, circulars, notifications) presently in forceindi ( t oget her indireceTaxlewso } o as the i

These possible speci al tax benefits are dependent on t
conditions prescribed under relevant Direct Tax Laws, Indirect Tax Laws and other laws. Hence, the ability of the
Company or t heholdestopdarivestiiese pasdibée special tax benefits is dependent upon their fulfilling

such conditions, which is based on business imperatives the Company may face in the future and accordingly, the
Company or the Company 6 schosde t fuilhTbhel Corepany doasangt have anynsabgidianyo t

as on date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus/Red Herring Prospectus/Prospectus.

The benefits discussed in the enclosed Statement are not exhaustive and only cover the possible special direct and
indirect tax benefits available to the Company and t he
intended to be a substte for professional tax advice and each investor is advised to consult his or her own tax
consultant with respect to the specific tax implications arising out of their participation in the proposed initial public
offering of equity shares of the Company.

We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance as to whether:
a) the Company or its shareholders will continue to obtain these possible special tax benefits in future; or

b) the conditions prescribed for availing the possible specidi¢arfits, where applicable, have been/would be
met with; and

The contents of this Statement are based on the information, explanations and representations obtained from the
Company and on the basis of our understanding of the business activities and operations of the Company.

No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/ courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our views are
based on the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to change from time to time. We do not
assume responsity to update the views consequent to such changes.

We conducted our examination in accordance with the AG
(Revi sedGuitlandetNpt® ) (i ssued by the Institute of Chartered
requires that we comply with ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants

of India.

We hereby give consent to include this Statement in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus and the Red Herring Prospectus
and the Prospectus in connection with the proposed Initial Public Offering by the Company.

Yours faithfully,

For Mardia & Associates

Chartered Accountants

FRN 007888S

Peer Review Certificate No: 016323
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Sdr-

Name: Manish Mardia
Designation: Proprietor
Membership No: 205307
Date: 25.03.2025

UDIN: 25205307BMKYFI8822
Place: Chennai

(This sectionis intentionally left blank)
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SECTION VI 7 ABOUT THE COMPANY

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The information in this chapter has been extracted from the websites of and publicly available documents from various
sources. The data may have beetlessified by us for the purpose of presentation. Neither we nor any other person
connected with thisssuehas independently verified the information provided in this chapter. Industry sources and
publications, referred to in this chapter, generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from
sources generally believed to be reliakdbut their accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not
guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured, and, accordingly, investment decisions should not be based on such
information.

GLOBAL ECONOMIC OVERVIEW
Global EconomyRemains Resilient despite Uneven Growth; Challenges Lie Ahead.

The global economy remains remarkably resilient, with growth holding steady as inflation returns to target. The journey
has been eventful, starting with supjalyain disruptions in thaftermath of the pandemic, a Russiaitiated war on

Ukraine that triggered a global energy and food crisis, and a considerable surge in inflation, followed by a globally
synchronized monetary policy tightening. Yet, despite many gloomy predictions ottt avoided a recession, the
banking system proved largely resilient, and major emerging market economies did not suffer sudden stops. Moreover,
the inflation surgé despite its severity and the associated-0b8ting crisisd did not trigger uncontrolledage price

spirals. Instead, almost as quickly as global inflation went up, it has been coming down. Ooeeygaar basis,

global growth bottomed out at the end of 2022, at 2.3 percent, shortly after median headline inflation peaked at 9.4
percent. Acording to our latest projections, growth for 2024 and 2025 will hold steady around 3.2 percent, with median
headline inflation declining from 2.8 percent at the end of 2024 to 2.4 percent at the end of 2025. Most indicators point
to a soft landing. Marks reacted exuberantly to the prospect of central banks exiting from tight monetary policy.
Financial conditions eased, equity valuations soared, capital flows to most emerging market economies excluding China
have been buoyant, and some dmeome countes and frontier economies regained market access there will be less
economic scarring from the pandeithe projected drop in output relative to fr@ndemic projectiords for most

countries and regions, especially for emerging market economies, thanks ito pabust employment growth.
Astonishingly, the US economy has already surged past Hggmeemic trend.

Resilient growth and faster disinflation point toward favourable supply developments, including the fading of earlier
energy price shocks, the striking rebound in labour supply supported by strong immigration flows in many advanced
economies. Decisive motay policy actions, as well as improved monetary policy frameworks, especially in emerging
market economies, have helped anchor inflation expectations. however, the transmission of monetary policy may have
been more muted this time around in countriehsag the United States, where an increased share ofréied
mortgages and lower household debt levels since the global financial crisis may have limited the drag on aggregate
demand up to now.

Despite these welcome developments, numerous challenges remain, and decisive actions are needed. First, while
inflation trends are encouraging, we are not there yet. Somewhat worryingly, the most recent median headline and core
inflation numbers are pustgrupward. This could be temporary, but there are reasons to remain vigilant. Most of the
progress on inflation came from the decline in energy prices and goods inflation below its historical average. The latter
has been helped by easing supgiain frictons, as well as by the decline in Chinese export prices. But services
inflation remains high sometimes stubbornly 8oand could derail the disinflation path. Bringing inflation down to

target remains the priority. Second, the global view can mask stargelne across countries. The exceptional recent
performance of the United States is certainly impressive and a major driver of global growth, but it reflects strong
demand factors as well, including a fiscal stance that is out of line withtéongfiscalsustainability This raises shert

term risks to the disinflation process, as well as lotgen fiscal and financial stability risks for the global economy

since it risks pushing up global funding costs. Something will have to give in the euro ared, \gilbpick up this

year, but from very low levels, as the trailing effects of tight monetary policy and past energy costs, as well as planned
fiscal consolidation, weigh on activity. Continued high wage growth and persistent services inflation coutdedelay
return of inflation to target. However, unlike in the United States, there is scant evidence of overheating and the
European Central Bank will also need to carefully calibrate the pivot toward monetary easing to avoid an excessive
growth slowdown anéhflation undershoot. While labour markets appear strong, that strength could prove illusory if
European firms have been hoarding labour in anticipation of a pickup in activity that does not materialize.
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Disinflation amid Economic Resilience

Economic activity was surprisingly resilient during the global disinflation of BR22Growth in employment and

incomes has held steady as favourable demand and supply developments have supported major economies, despite
rising central bank interest rat@isned at restoring price stability. As inflation converges toward target levels and central
banks pivot toward policy easing, a tightening of fiscal policies aimed at curbing high government debt levels, with
higher taxes and lower government spendisgxpected to weigh on growth. The pace of expansion is also expected

to remain low by historical standards as a result of factors including theédomgconsequences of the COVID
pandemic, Russiads invasi on of indidasinggeeoonomiesdragienttiorn lvt h i n
late 2023, headline inflation neared its-pandemic level in most economies for the first time since the start of the
global inflation surge. In the last quarter of 2023, headline inflation for advanced eesneas 2.3 percent on a
guarteroverquarter annualized basis, down from a peak of 9.5 percent in the second quarter of 2022. For emerging
market and developing economies, inflation was 9.9 percent in the last quarter of 2023, down from a peak of 13.7
perent in the first quarter of 2022, but this average was driven by high inflation in a few countries; for the median
emerging market and developing economy, inflation declined to 3.9 percent. This progress notwithstanding, inflation

is not yet at target in ast economies. As global inflation descended from its peak, economic activity grew steadily,
defying warnings of stagflation and global recession. During 2022 and 2023, global real GDP rose by a cumulative 6.7
percent. That is 0.8 percentage point highantthe forecasts made at the t|me of the October 2022 World Economic

Outlook (WEO) The United [ 1-1. teatine nfiation -

- (Percent, month-over-month, SAAR) 2-1. Cumulative GDP Growth - - Z Inflation Rate -3
- {Percentage points)
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Note: Panels 1 and 2 plot the median of a sample of 57 economies that accounts

on average. Among large i zseeorior o e o 7 et puwers
economies, the additional

budgetary support, compared with October 2022 WEO forgasat estimated at 2 percent of GDP in the United States

and 0.2 percent of GDP in the euro area, whereas in China, the fiscal stance was mildly tighter than expected, by 0.7
percent of GDP. The euro area also displayed the smallest upside growth stefieising weak consumer sentiment

and the lingering effects of high energy prices. In parallel, global headline inflation declined broadly in line with
expectations, averaging just 0.1 percentage point more than predicted in the October 2022 WED dod ZI2 3.
However, in loweiincome countries, inflation was on average higher than expected, reflecting cases in which pass
through into domestic prices from international food, fuel, and fertilizer costs, as well as from currency depreciation,
was greatr than expected. Price pressures in some kimeeme countries were significant. These factors also caused
these economies to grow more slowly than expected, suggesting a negative supply shock. In China, inflation fell
unexpectedly, with the decreaseleefing sharply lower domestic food prices and ghssugh effects on underlying

(core) inflation. The resilience in global economic activity was compatible with falling inflation thanks to a post
pandemic expansion on the supply side. A grethi@nexpected rise in the labor force amid robust employment growth
supported activity and disinflation in advanced economies and several large emerging market anthcoiddle
economies. The labour force expansion reflected, in some economies, increased fnfigyvaras, with faster growth

in the foreignborn than in the domestlaorn labour force since 2021 as well as higher labour force participation rates.
Exceptions to this pattern include China, where labour market weakness, in the context of subduedveiestanad

based across sectors, and loweome countries, where suppdide challenges held job creation back.

EMCHN
EMxCHN
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Inflation (and Expectations) in Decline

The fall in headline inflation since 2022 reflects the fading of relative price shdaisbly those to energy priées
as well as lower core inflation. The decline in energy prices reflects not only increased global energy supply, but also
the effects ofight monetary policies. The monetary tightening by central banks in major advanced economies during
2022 23 may have contributed strongly to lowering energy prices owing to its high degree of synchronization and the
associated effect on curbing world

e ) T i enegy demand (as in the analysis of
T o he 12 b head Auclert and others 202@pre inflation

: has declined as a result of the fading of

—— EMDEs 12 months ahead
effects of passhrough from past

300-
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hold. Nevertheless, wages at the bottom or
the wage distribution have risen faster than the average since the start of the pandemic, compressing the distribution.
The roles of these factors in reducing core inflation have diverged across major economies. IMF staff analysis suggests
that the rapiddding of passhrough from past relative price movemént particular from energy price shoék$ias

played a larger role in the euro area and the United Kingdom than in the United States in reducing core inflation (the
staffbds met hodol ogy wa and bthees 2023.inehe brited tStatast labaus readket tightneBsa o
and, more broadly, strong macroeconomic conditions, which partly reflect the effects of earlier fiscal stimulus as well
as strong private consumption, are the main source of remaining upwasdie on underlying inflation. In the United
Kingdom, labor market tightness predating the pandemic may partly explain why inflation has been higher than in the
US or euro area following the onset of the pandemic. Accordingly, IMF staff estimatesgaifpttetween actual and
potential output levels in 2023 are positive for the United States, at 0.7 percent, and negative for the euro area and for
the United Kingdom, &t0.3 percent.
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The Outlook: Steady Growth and Disinflation

Latest projections are for the global economy to contgrowing at a similar pace as in 2023 during 2@5tand for

global headline and core inflation to decline steadily. There is little change in the forecast for global growth since the
January 2024 WEO Update, with some adjustments for major economiesirigciudurther strengthening in the
projection for the United States, offset by modest downward revisions across several other economies. The forecast for
global growth remains higher, however, than in the October 2023 WEO. The outlook for inflatiordiy biwélar to

that in the October 2023 WEO, with a downward revision for advanced economies, offset by an upward revision for
emerging market and developing economies. Mediemm prospects for growth in world output and trade remain the
lowest in decadewvith the pace of convergence toward higher living standards slowing for méddidowerincome

countries. The baseline forecasts for the global economy are predicated on a number of projections for global
commodity prices, interest rates, and fiscdiqies.

1 Commodity price projections: As explained in the Commodity Special Feature in this chapter, prices by, on
average, 9.7 percent, with oil prices falling by about 2.5 percent. The decreaseabefielent spare capacity and
strong norROPEC+ (Organization of the Petroleum Exporting Countries plus selected nonmember countries,
including Russia) supply growth. Coal and natural gas pricesare expected to continue declining from their earlier
peaks, by 8.1 percent for coal and 32.6 percent for natural gas in 2024, with the gas market becoming increasingly
balanced on account of of fuel commodities are projected to fall in 2024 new supply, dampened demand, and high
storage levels. The forecast for nonfaemmaodity prices is broadly stable in 2024, with prices for base metals
expected to fall by 1.8 percent, on account of weaker industrial activity in Europe and China. Food commodity
prices are predicted to decline by 2.2 percent in 2024. Compared wsth ithehe January 2024 WEO Update,
forecasts for food prices have been revised slightly downward, driven by expectations of abundant global supplies
for wheat and maize.

1 Monetary policy projections: With inflation projected to continue declining toward targets and -tenger
inflation expectations remaining anchored, policy rates of central banks in major advanced economies are generally
expected to start declining in the second half of 2024. Among major central banks, by the fourth quarter of 2024,
the Feder al R e sexpectesl iohave detlined fyom itsactirent lievel of about 5.4 percent to 4.6
percent, the Bank of England to have reduced its policy rate from about 5.3 percent to 4.8 percent, and the European
Central Bank to have reduced its shtertm rate from about @.percent to 3.3 percent. For Japan, policy rates are
projected to rise gradually, reflecting growing confidence that inflation will sustainably converge to target over the
medium term despite Japanbs history of defl ati on.

Conclusions and Policy Recommendations

The chapterds analysis suggests that the gl obal econol
largely reflect persistent headwinds. A significant slowdown in TFP has emerged as a key factor, with that slowdown
driven by increased resormisallocation and slower growth in efficient TFP. A shrinking worldgg population in

major economies, coupled with lacklustre business investment, has also contributed. For the most part, the implications
of the analysis here are sobering for medienm global growth prospects. Absent timely policy interventions and a

boost from emerging technologies, global growth is likely to remain well below Hggmeemic historical average in

the medium term. How could policies help elevate growth? The cldapterf i ndi ngs suggest that
focus on reforms that promote market competition, trade openness, financial accessibility, and labour market flexibility.
These could significantly boost TFP growth by alleviating institutional and financgigétsathat impede the efficient
allocation of capital and labour across firms. Such reforms offer substantial gains for growth and can be complemented
by governance and external sector reforms (Budina and others 2023). Industrial policies targetéitteespers, if

poorly designed, may impede resource allocation to more productive firms or sectors at the same time, policies designed
to facilitate the flow and integration of migrant workers, alongside measures to boost labour force participation among
older workers in advanced econondiethrough retirement reforms and labour market progéaewmuld mitigate the

increasing demographic pressures on labour supply. Encouraging the participation of women in emerging market
economies, by expanding educationadment and childcare support, could unlock their untapped potential. These
efforts should be complemented by policies that reduce social barriers and gender discrimination to ensure talent is
optimally allocated across jobs.

Investment in human capital, especially in {ovgome developing countries, is essential to leverage their demographic
dividend. In regard to capital formation, since higher corporate leverage has held back business investment in emerging
market economieseforming mechanisms for restructuring and insolvency and eliminating debt bias in corporate tax
policies can also help support meditenm growth.

To lessen the negative growth impact from increasedegenomic fragmentation, it is important to steer clear of
damaging unilateral trade and industrial policies. The global metkéum prospects are not all doom and gloom.
Resilience amid various shacland the emerging promise of technologies such as Al could prove transformative for
mediumterm global growth. To fully harness this potential, countries must strengthen their regulatory frameworks,
including intellectual property protection, and revisitlistributive and other adjustment programs to ensure that the
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benefits from Al are shared fairly and wide. Looking beyond the medium term, policies geared toward promoting
innovation play a crucial role in defining the path of future global growth.

(Sourcehttps://www.imf.org/en/Publications/WEO/Issues/2024/04/16/wectshomieoutlookapril-2024)

INDIAN ECONOMY OVERVIEW
Introduction

I ndi ads real GDP i s [p#perjcentdn262£5. The Indjan ecanorgedveves swiftly Fam5

the pandemic, with its real GDP in FY24 being 20 per cent higher than #@OXW#, FY20 levels. This was stated

by the Economic Survey 20231 presented in Parliament today by the Union Minister of Finance and Corporate Affairs
SmtNirmala Sitharaman.

1 The Survey points out that the domestic growth drivers have supported economic growth in FY24 despite
uncertain global economic performance. It also adds that during the decade ending FY20, India grew at an
average annual rate of 6.6 per cent, more orédtecting the longun growth prospects of the economy.

1 The Survey, however cautions that any escalation of geopolitical conflicts in 2024 may lead to supply
dislocations, higher commodity prices, reviving inflationary pressures and stalling monetary policy easing
with potential repercussions for capital floishi s can al so influence RBI &8s
global trade outlook for 2024 remains positive, with merchandise trade expected to pick up after registering a
contraction in volumes in 2023.

I The Survey highlights that leveraging the initiatives taken by the government and capturing the untapped
potential in emerging markets; exports of business, consultancy aemhblled services can expand. Despite
the core inflation rate being around 3 pent, the RBI, with one eye on the withdrawal of accommodation
and another on the US Fed, has kept interest rates unchanged for quite some time, and the anticipated easing
has been delayed.

f The Economic Survey says that Il ndi ads economy sho
challenges as real GDP grew by 8.2 percent in FY 24, exceeding 8 percent mark in three out of four quarters
of FY 24, driven by stable consumption demand at&hdily improving investment demand.The Survey
underlines that the shares of the agriculture, industry and services sectors in overall GVA at current prices
were 17.7 per cent, 27.6 per cent and 54.7 per cent respectively in FY24. GVA in the agriegtoire s
continued to grow, albeit at a slower pace, as the erratic weather patterns during the year and an uneven spatial
distribution of the monsoon in 2023 impacted overall output.

1  Within the industrial sector, manufacturing GVA shrugged off a disappointing FY23 and grew by 9.9 per cent
in FY24, as manufacturing activities benefitted from reduced input prices while catering to stable domestic
demand. Similarly, construction activisiglisplayed increased momentum and registered a growth of 9.9 per
cent in FY24 due to the infrastructure build out and buoyant commercial and residential real estate demand.

1 Various highfrequency indicators reflect the growth in the services sector. Both Goods and Services Tax
(GST) collections and the issuance efiay bills, reflecting wholesale and retail trade, demonstrated double
digit growth in FY24. Financial and prafsional services have been a major driver of growth post the
pandemic, the survey added.

1 Gross Fixed Capital Formation (GFCF) continues to emerge as an important driver of growth. QFZ&idy
nonfinancial corporations increased by 19.8 per cent in FY23. There are early signs that the momentum in
private capital formation has been sustained in FY24. As per data provided by Axis Bank Research, private
investment across a consistent datver 3,200 listed and unlisted néinancial firms has grown by 19.8 per
centin FY24.

1 Apart from private corporations, households have also been at the forefront of the capital formation process.
In 2023, residential real estate sales in India were at their highest since 2013, witnessing a 33 per cent YoY
growth, with a total sale of 4.1Kh units in the top eight cities.

1 With cleaner balance sheets and adequate capital buffers, the banking and financial sectpogtioakd
to cater to the growing financing needs of investment demand. Credit disbursal by scheduled commercial banks
(SCBs) to industrial micro, small amdedium enterprises (MSMES) and services continues to grow in double
digits despite a higher base. Similarly, personal loans for housing have surged, corresponding to the increase
in housing demand.
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The Survey states that despite global supply chain disruptions and adverse weather conditions, domestic
inflationary pressures moderated in FY24. After averaging 6.7 per cent in FY23, retail inflation declined to
5.4 per cent in FY24. This has been du¢ht combination of measures undertaken by the Government and
the RBI. The Union Government undertook prompt measures such as open market sales, retailing in specified
outlets, timely imports, reduced the prices of Liquified Petroleum Gas (LPG) cylindemmplemented a cut

in petrol and diesel prices. The RBI raised policy rates by a cumulative 250 bps between May 2022 and
February 2023.

The Survey says, against the global trend of widening fiscal deficit and increasing debt burden, India has
remained on the course of fiscal consolidation. The fiscal deficit of the Union Government has been brought
down from 6.4 per cent of GDP in FY23 506 per cent of GDP in FY24, according to provisional actuals
(PA) data released by the Office of Controller General of Accounts (CGA).

The growth in gross tax revenue (GTR) was estimated to be 13.4 per centin FY24, translating into tax revenue
buoyancy of 1.4. The growth was led by a 15.8 per cent growth in direct taxes and a 10.6 per cent increase in
indirect taxes over FY23.

The Survey adds that broadly, 55 per cent of GTR accrued from direct taxes and the remaining 45 per cent
from indirect taxes. The increase in indirect taxes in FY24 was mainly driven by a 12.7 per cent growth in
GST collection. The increase in GST colleatiand Eway bill generation reflects increased compliance over
time.

The capital expenditure for FY24 stood alasis,add 5 | ak
was 2.8 times the | evel of FY20. The Governmentds
growth amidst an uncertain and challenging global environment. Spending in sectors such as road transport
and highways, railways, defencengees, and telecommunications delivers higher and longer impetuses to
growth by addressing logistical bottlenecks and expanding productive capacities.

The Survey says, it is also incumbent upon the private sector to take forward the momentum in capital
formation on its own and in partnership with the Government. Their share in addition to the capital stock in
terms of machinery and equipment, startedvimg robustly only since FY22, a trend that needs to be sustained
on the strength of their improving bottdine and balance sheets in order to generate dnigihity jobs.

The Survey points out that the State governments continued to improve their finances in FY24. Preliminary
unaudited estimates of finances for a set of 23 states, published by the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India, suggest that the gross fiscal diefif these 23 states was 8.6 per cent lower than the budgeted figure of

9.1 | akh crore. This implies that fiscal deficit
against a budgeted 3.1 per cent. The quality of spending by statengents improved, too, with state
governments focusing on Capex as well.

The Union Governmentds transfers to the states are
Domestic Product (GSDP) per capita receiving higher transfers relative to their GSDP.

The Survey highlights that the RBIlI &s vigil over th
actions ensure that the system can withstand any n
Financial Stability Report of June 2024 shovattthe asset quality of Scheduled commercials banks has
improved, with the Gross NelRerforming Assets (GNPA) ratio declining to 2.8 per cent in March 2024, a 12

year low.

The profitability of SCBs remained steady, with the return on equity and return on assets ratios at 13.8 per cent
and 1.3 per cent, respectively, as of March 2024. Macro stress tests also reveal that SCBs would be able to
comply with minimum capital requements even under severe stress scenarios. The soundness of the banking
system will facilitate the financing of productive opportunities and lengthen the financial cycle, both of which
are necessary to sustain economic growth.

The Survey highlights that on the external front, moderation in merchandise exports continued during FY24,
mainly on account of weaker global demand and persistent geopolitical tensions. Despite that India's service
exports have remained robust, reachimgwa high of USD 341.1 billion in FY24. The exports (merchandise

and services) in FY24 grew by 0.15 per cent, while the total imports declined by 4.9 per cent stated the survey.

Net private transfers, mostly comprising remittances from abroad, grew to USD 106.6 billion in FY24. As
result, the Current Account Deficit (CAD) stood at 0.7 per cent of the GDP during the year, an improvement
from the deficit of 2.0 per cent of GDP in FY23. The net FPI inflows stood at USD 44.1 billion during FY24
against net outflows in the precedingptyears.

93



f Overall, I ndi ads external sector is being deftly n
stable exchange rate. Forex reserves as of the end of March 2024 were sufficient to cover 11 months of
projected imports.

1 The Survey underscores that the Indian Rupee has also been one of the least volatile currencies among its
emerging market peers in FY24. I ndi ads external de
External debt as a ratio to GDP stood mivalevel of 18.7 per cent as of eiiarch 2024. The ratio of foreign
exchange reserves to total debt stood at 97.4 per cent as of March 2024 as per the Economic Suey 2023

T The Survey points out that I ndiads s oc-bageddappreach ar e a
to outcomebased empowerment. Government initiatives like providing-dfegost gas connections under
PM Ujjwala Yojana, building toilets unddreé Swacch Bharat Mission, opening bank accounts under Jan Dhan
Yojana, building pucca houses under AWAS Yojana have improved capabilities and enhanced
opportunities for the underprivileged sections. The approach also involves the targeted implemeftation
reformsforlasmi | e service delivery to truly realise the m

1 The Direct Benefit Transfer (DBT) scheme and Jan Dhan YejatthaarMobile trinity have been boosters
of fiscal efficiency and minimization of | eakages,
its inception in 2013.

1 The Survey says, the dlidia annual unemployment rate (persons aged 15 years and above, as per usual status)
has been declining since the pandemic and this has been accompanied by a rise in the labour force participation
rate and worketo-population rab. From the gender perspective, the female labour force participation rate
has been rising for six years, i.e., from 23.3 per cent in-281f6 37 per cent in 20223, driven mainly by
the rising participation of rural women.

i On the global economic scenario the Survey says that after a year marked by global uncertainties and
volatilities, the economy achieved greater stability in 2023. While uncertainty stemming from adverse
geopolitical developments remained elevated, globahemic growth was surprisingly robust.

1 The Survey states as per the World Economic Outlook (WEO), April 2024 of the International Monetary Fund
(IMF) , the global economy registered a growth of 3.2 per cent in 2023.

Road Ahead

Ten years ago, India was the 10th largest economy in the world, with a GDP of USD 1.9 trillion at current market
prices. Today, it is the 5th largest with a GDP of USD 3.7 trillion (est. FY24), despite the pandemic and despite
inheriting an economy with ngeo imbalances and a broken financial sector. Thig/éam journey is marked by several
refor ms, both substantive and incremental, which have
These reforms have also delivered an economidereé that the country will need to deal with unanticipated global
shocks in the future.

In the next three years, India is expected to become theléngest economy in the world, with a GDP of USD 5
trillion. The government has, however, set a higher go
of reforms continuing, tisi goal is achievable. The reforms will be more purposeful and fruitful with the full
participation of the state governments. The participation of the states will be fuller when reforms encompass changes

in governance at the district, block, and villageslsymaking them citizefriendly and small businedsiendly and in

areas such as health, education, land and labour in which states have a big role to play.

The strength of the domestic demand has driven the economy to a 7 per cent plus growth rate in the last three years. As
discussed in the previous sections, the robustness seen in domestic demand, namely, private consumption and
investment, traces its origito the reforms and measures implemented by the government over the last ten years. The
supply side has also been strengthened with investment in infrastriugtoysical and digital and measures that aim

to boost manufacturing. These have combingaré@ide an impetus to economic activity in the country. Accordingly,

in FY25, real GDP growth will likely be closer to 7 per cent.

There is, however, considerable scope for the growth rate to rise well above 7 per cent by 2030. The speed with which
physical infrastructure is being built will allow the ICOR to decline, translating private investments into output quickly.
The IBC has sengthened balance sheets and, in the process, has freed up economic capital that was otherwise rendered
unproductive. The rapidly expanding digital infrastructure is continuously improving institutional efficiency.
Technological progress is picking up pawith rising collaboration with foreign partners in the production of goods

and services. Decisive steps have been taken to speed up human capital formation. Finally, the overall investment
climate is increasingly becoming more favourable with sustainedreeement in the ease of doing business.

(Source:https://pib.gov.in/PressReleasePage.aspx?PRID=2034973
https://dea.gov.in/sites/default/files/The%20Indian%20Economy%20A%20Review_Jan%202024.pdf
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GLOBAL TRADE INDUSTRY

Trade contributes to global efficiency. When a country opens up to trade, capital and labour shift toward industries in
which they are used mosedficiently. That movement provides society a higher level of economic welfare. However,
these effects are only part of the story.

Trade also brings dislocation to those firms and industries that cannot cut it. Firms that face difficult adjustment because
of more efficient foreign producers often lobby against trade. So do their workers. They often seek barriers such as
import taxes¢alled tariffs) and quotas to raise the price or limit the availability of imports. Processors may try to restrict
the exportation of raw materials to depress artificially the price of their own inputs. By contrast, the benefits of trade
are spread diffusg and its beneficiaries often do not recognize how trade benefits them. As a result, opponents are
often quite effective in discussions about trade.

Reforms since World War Il have substantially reduced governimgrdsed trade barriers. But policies to protect
domestic industries vary. Tariffs are much higher in certain sectors (such as agriculture and clothing) and among certain
country groups (suchs less developed countries) than in others. Many countries have substantial barriers to trade in
services in areas such as transportation, communications, and, often, the financial sector, while others have policies that
welcome foreign competition.

Moreover, trade barriers affect some countries more than others. Often hardest hit are less developed countries, whose
exports are concentrated in leskill, labourintensive products that industrialized countries often protect. The United
States, for exapile, is reported to collect about 15 cents in tariff revenue for each $1 of imports from Bangladesh
(Elliott, 2009), compared with one cent for each $1 of imports from some major western European countries. Yet
imports of a particular product from Banglaticface the same or lower tariffs than do similarly classified products
imported from Western Europe. Although the tariffs on Bangladesh items in the United States may be a dramatic
example, World Bank economists calculated that exporters froninicoyne ountries face barriers on average half

again greater than those faced by the exports of major industrialized countries (Kee, Nicita, and Olarreaga, 2006).

The World Trade Organization (WTO) referees international trade. Agreements devised since 1948 by its 153 members
(of the WTO and its predecessor General Agreement on Trade and Tariffs) promadisaninination and facilitate

further liberalization in narly all areas of commerce, including tariffs, subsidies, customs valuation and procedures,
trade and investment in service sectors, and intellectual property. Commitments under these agreements are enforced
through a powerful and carefully crafted dispsétlement process.

Under the ruledased international trading system centered in the WTO, trade policies have become more stable, more
transparent, and more open. And the WTO is a key reason why the global financial crisis did not spark widespread
protectionism. However, ageen most recently with the Doha Round of WTO trade negotiations, the institution faces
big challenges in reaching agreements to open global trade further. Despite successes, restrictive and discriminatory
trade policies remain common. Addressing thenldtgield hundreds of billions of dollars in annual global benefits.

But narrow interests have sought to delay and dilute further multilateral reforms. A focus on the greater good, together
with ways to help the relatively few that may be adversely affecathelp to deliver a fairer and economically more
sensible trading system.

Global trade trends and now cast

The value of global merchandise trade has experienced continuous decline sigé@mid contrast, trade in serviees
maintained growth throughout most of the period. Overall, the Global Trade Update projects that global trade in 2023
will amount to appoximately US$ 31 trillion, contracting by close to US$ 1 trillion (or 3 per cent) compared to the
record high of 2022. Specifically, trade in goods expected to contract by about US$ 1.3 trillion in 2023, or 5 per cent,
while services trade expected to gabout US$ 500 billion, or 8 per cent. The UNCTAD nowcast for Q1 2024 foresees

a small but positive increase both in goods and services trade.

(This sectionis intentionally left blank)
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After a decline through 2023, trade in goods is expected to slightly increase in Q1 2024

Annual and quarterly growth in the value of trade in goods and services (per cent)
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The volumes of trade growth stayed modestly positive throughout 2023. The slightly positive trend in the volume of
international trade suggests a resilient global demand for imported products. A weak United States dollar also supported
global trade volumeduring 2023.

Trade volumes show marginal increases in 2023
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Source: UNCTADstat; UNCTAD calculations based on national statistics.

Summary and outlook

The decline in the value of global trade throughout 2023 was primarily driven by reduced demand in developed nations
and trade weaknesses within East Asia and Latin American regions. Lower commodity prices further contribute
lowering the value of internathal trade in 2023. In contrast, trade in services saw growth for most of 2023. Among
services, tourism and travedlated services rebounded strongly, increasing by almost 40 per cent. Significantly, the
fourth quarter of 2023 signals a change from thtepas observed in previous quarters. Both merchandise and services
trade stabilized quart@verquarter, signalling the end to the decline in global trade of goods, and the end of the strong
upward trend in trade in services. Projections for 2024 are wmatiimistic. Overall, moderating global inflation and
improving economic growth forecasts suggest a reversal of the downward trends. Additionally, rising demand for
environmental goods should boost t r adobaltrade o2lGoR fér.2024Ho we v e
remains subject to significant uncertainties. Persistent geopolitical tensions, rising shipping costs, and high levels of
debt weighing on economic activity in many countries may still exert negative influences on global trade.

Some of the most relevant factors influencing global trade in 2024 include:

1 Positive economic growth, but with significant disparities Global forecasts for GDP growth remain at around 3 per
cent for 2024, but these still fall below historical averages. Furthermore, substantial disparities persist among
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countries and regions in terms of their anticipated economic outlook for the upcoming year. Such disparities will
influence patterns of trade.

1 Strong demand for both container shipping and raw materials During the last few months, there has been increasing
demand for container shipping, as reflected by the strong increase in the Shanghai Containerized Freight Rate
Index. Similarly, the Baltic Dryndex also exhibited a positive trend, indicating a rise in global demand for raw
materials.

1 Commodity prices volatility Ongoing geopolitical tensions and regional conflicts could renew volatility in energy
and agricultural markets. Additionally, the increasing importance of secure access to critical minerals for the energy
transition is expectetb affect prices and further contribute to market volatility in these commodities.

1 Lengthening of supply chains Global trade is being influenced by the response of supply chains to shifts in trade
policy and geopolitical tensions. Some East Asian and Latin America economies may find opportunities to become
more integrated into the suppthains affected by geopolitical concerns.

1 Increase in subsidies and trade restrictive measures The prioritization of domestic concerns and the urgency of
meeting climate commitments are driving changes in both industrial and trade policies. The utilization of trade
restrictive measures and inwaabking industrial policies are anticipated to negatively impact on the growth of
international trade.

1 Shipping routes disruptions Geopolitical tensions are also causing disruptions in shipping routes, particularly those
related to the Red Sea and Suez Canal. Moreover, efforts to maintain water levels in reservoirs supplying the
Panama Canal are anticipatedcontinue reducing passages in 2024. These events are driving up shipping costs,
extending voyage durations, and disrupting supply chains.

Regional trade trends

The decline in global trade has been more pronounced for developing countries. During 2023, imports and exports of
developing countries declined by an average of 5 and 7 per cent, respectively. Conversely, trade for developed countries
decreased by aboutpér cent for imports and 3 per cent for exports. Quanterquarter figures indicate a positive

trend for developing countries, while trade of developed countries has remained stable. RegardiBg8buthde,

the strongethantaverage decline duringiuch of 2023 reversed in Q4 2023, with a quantezrquarter growth of

about 3 per cent.

Developing countries and South-South trade returned to growth during Q4 2023

Quarterly growth Annual growth
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Source: UNCTAD estimates based on national statistics.
Naote: Quarterly growth rates are relative to the previous quarter. Annual growth refers to the last four quarters. Data is seasonally adjusted. Data does not include
trade in services.

Most regions have undergone negative trade growth in 2023 xXdeption was a significant increase in integional

trade for the African region. Notably, during 2023 the region comprising the Russian Federation and Central Asian
economies registered a strong decrease in exports but also a strong increase inE&agioAsian trade exhibited
notable weakness throughout 2023, also in relation ofietsenal trade. During the last quarter, trade remained weak

in Latin America and in the region comprising the Russian Federation and the Central Asian economéselgpnv
trade growth was positive for Africa and East Asia.
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Africa and East Asia resumed trade growth in Q4 2023, Latin America lags
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Global trade dynamics and trade dependence

During the last two years, the geographical proximity of international trade has remained relatively constant, showing
minimal near shoring or faghoring trends. However, since the latter part of 2022, there has been a noticeable rise in
the political praimity of trade. This indicates that bilateral trade patterns have been favouring trade between countries
with similar geopolitical stances (a pattern generally referred to as fhearihg). Concurrently, there has been an
increasing concentration of dlal trade to favour major trade relationships, although this trend has softened in the last
quarter of 2023.

Shifting Dynamics: Global trade becomes more concentrated and geopolitically close
Annual change relative to 2021 (per cent)

Nearshoring

2022 2023

Source: UNCTAD estimates based on national stafistics.
Mote: Nearshoring is calculated as reverse of trade-weighted average distance in km. Friendshoring is calculated as trade-weighted political proximity as measured by
the United Nations voting patterns. Trade concentration is calculated based on the Herfindahl concentration index.

Geoeconomics issues continue to play a significant role in shaping key bilateral trade trends. These factors not only
impact trade between the major global economies but also indirectly influence their trade dynamics with other trading
partners.

Global trade trends at the sectoralevel

During 2023, global trade declined in most sectors, except for pharmaceuticals, transportation equipment, and road
vehicles, the latter experiencing a strong increase in the trade of electric cars. Among the sectors where the value of
trade declined by merthan 10 per cent during 2023 are apparel, chemicals, energy metals, office equipment, and
textiles. On a quarterly basis, most sectors experienced a rebound in Q4 2023. The most notable exception was apparel,
where trade continued to contract. In cortiragiarterly increases were more pronounced for communication and
transport equipment.

(Source:https://www.imf.org/en/Publications/fandd/issues/Series/Badkasics/Tradg
(Source:https://unctad.org/system/files/officidbcument/ditcinf2024d1.pjif

98


https://www.imf.org/en/Publications/fandd/issues/Series/Back-to-Basics/Trade
https://unctad.org/system/files/official-document/ditcinf2024d1.pdf

INDIAN TRADE INDUSTRY

According to the Ministry of Commerce and Industry, FY24 concluded with the highest monthly merchandise exports

of the fiscal year, totalling US$41.68 billion in March 2024. Total gaog®rt by India in 202824 decreased by 5.66

percent to US$675.44 billiorLooking ahead, India is actively working on expanding its export portfolio beyond
traditional sectors like iron ore and agricultural commodities. The focus is on diversifying into electronics,
pharmaceuticals, engineering products, and food items. ThesMiniy o f Commerceds initiatdi
export offerings by introducing goods such as alcohol beverages, prepared meals, confectioneries,-addedalue

products like jackfruit and banandie 202324 trade data indicates that npetroleum and necgems and jewellery

exports have seen a modest increase of 1.45 percent, rising from US$315.64 billion in 28 20285$320.21 billion

in FY 202324. Key drivers of merchandise export growtt=iYi24 were electronic goods, drugs & pharmaceuticals,
engineering goods, iron ore, cotton yarn, fabrics, and rapdehandloom products, ceramic products, and glassware.

According to data from the economic think tank GTRI, CI
the US, with tweway commerce totalling US$118.4 billion in FY 2023. In the same period, bilateral trade between

India and the USamotned t o US$118.3 billion. Previousl y22and he US
202223.

GTRI 6s analysis shows that I ndiads exports to China ex

US$16.67 billion. Key sectors driving this growth included iron ore, cotton yarn/fabrics/madeups, handloom products,
spices, fruits and vetgbles, as well as plastic and linoleum. Meanwhile, imports from China saw a moderate rise of
3.24 percent, totalling US$101.7 billion. Key import items includedégh gear like telecom and smartphone parts,
laptop and PCs, as well as industrial inmush as plastic, iron and steel, and chemicals.

Conversely, Indian exports to the US witnessed a slight decrease of 1.32 percent, amounting to US$77.5 billion in
FY24, compared to US$78.54 billion in 2623. Additionally, imports from the US declined by approximately 20
percent, settling at US$40.81mh, as indicated by the data.

Based on data from the commerce ministry, Chi nldtohel d t
201718, and then again in 20201 . Prior to Chinads dominance, the UAE
trading partner. Howevem FY24, the UAE ranked third with a trade volume of US$83.6 billion. Following closely

were Russia with US$65.7 billion, Saudi Arabia with US$43.4 billion, and Singapore with US$35.6 billion in trade

with India.

I'n FY24, imports from Indiads key free trade agreement
ASEAN, and SAFTA) exhibited a robust growth rate, outpacing the overall influx of goods into the country.
Specifically, these imports seam impressive increase of nearly 38 percent, reaching a total of US$187.92 billion. This
growth rate surpassed the 31.4 percent jump in Indiads
same period. | ndi a0 s tstFDAtparthersgnew dt @ moredsubdubdipagceme nt s t o i

I ndiads position among the worldés merchandi se export
increase in its share from 1.70 percent in 2014 to 1.82 percent in 2023. India states that, despite global economic
uncertainties, its exports aexpanded to 115 countries out of a total of 238 destinations during th22@238iod.

These 115 export destinations, wpoitfdid) includekeyenarketstsuchda8 . 5 p €
the US, UAE, Netherlands, China, UK, Saudi Arabia, Singapore, Bangladesh, Germany, and Italy.

While the countryds overall mer chandi se exports exper.i
fiscal year, services exports increased to US$341.1 billion in-2828p from U$325.3 billion in 20223.

The distribution network in India

There has been a significant expansion in distribution channels in India during the past few years. Indian retail industry
is one of the fastest growing in the world. According to Invest India, the overall retail market is set to cross the $2

trillion mark by 2032 from $690 billion in 2021. The Indian retat@nmerce market, which amounted to $72 billion

in 2021, is also set to grow at an annual growth rate of 30% for a gross value of goods of $350 billion by 2030. Retail
is India's largest industrial see, currently accounting for over 10% of India's GDP and 8% of total employment.

Most Indian manufacturers use a thteg selling and distribution structure that has evolved over the years. This
structure involves redistribution stockists, wholesalers, and retailers. As an example, an FMCG company operating on
an altindia basis coul have between 40 and 80 redistribution stockists (RS). The RS will sell the product to between
100 and 450 wholesalers. Finally, both the RS and wholesalers will service between 750,000 retailers
throughout the country. The RS will sell to bothgleand small retailers in the cities as well as interior parts of India.
Depending on how a company chooses to manage and supervise these relations, its sales staff may vary from 75 to 500
employees. Wholesaling is profitable by maintaining low costshigth turnover, with typical FMCG product margins
anywhere from 46%. Many wholesalers operate out of wholesale markets. In urban areas, the more enterprising
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retailers provide credit and home delivery. Now, with the advent of shopping malls, companies talk of direct delivery
and discounts for large retail outlets.

In 2021, ecommerce generated $63 billion in revenues, growing by 26% compared to 2020 (ecommerce DB). India

will have 500 million online buyers by 2030, compared to 150 million in 2020, with digital spending projected to
increase more than tenfold to $86illion and account for more than a third of all retail sales by 2030. Market share

I ndi aés food and grocery retail industry is considered
2022 and expected to grow annually by 8.17% (S&at

(Source:https://www.lloydsbanktrade.com/en/marketential/india/distributiof

(Sourcehttps://www.indiabriefing.com/news/indiagade-performancefy-2023 24-exploringnewexportmarkets
32612.html/#:~:text=According%20to%20the%20Ministry%200f,percent%20t0%20US%24675.44%20Qbillion

GLOBAL GOLD INDUSTRY

The World Gold Councilds Q1 2024 Gold Demand Trends r €
OTC purchases) was up 3% yearyear to 1,238 tonnes, marking the strongest first quarter since 2016. Demand
excluding OTC fell 5% to 1,102 toes in Q1 compared to the same period in 2023.

Gold is a highly Iliquid asset, which is no onebs |iabi
value over time. It also benefits from diverse sources of demand: as an investment, a reserve gesetllgyldand
a technology component. These attributes mean gold can enhance a portfolio in three key ways:

1 Delivering longterm returns
1 Improving diversification
1 Providing liquidity

Investors have long considered gold a beneficial asset during periods of uncertainty. Yet, historically, it has generated
long-term positive returns in both good and bad economic times. Its diverse sources of demand give gold a particular
resilience and # potential to deliver solid returns in various market conditions. Gold is, on the one hand, often used as
an investment to protect and enhance wealth over the long term, but on the other hand it is also a consumer good, via
jewellery and technology demariduring periods of economic uncertainty, it is the counyalical investment demand

that drives the gold price up. During periods of economic expansion, theygical consumer demand supports its
performance. Combined, these factors give gold tHayato provide stability under a range of economic environments.

Moreover, the shift towards a greater integration of environmental, social and governance (ESG) objectives within
investment strategies has important implications and we believe gold can play a role in supporting thésdrdaold
established investmenbsrcesd should be recognised as an asset that is responsibly produced and delivered from a
supply chain that adheres to high ESG standards. Gold also has a potential role to play in reducing investor exposure to
climaterelated risks.

Heal thy investment from the OTC market (also referred t
two parties, unlike exchange trading which is conducted via an exchange), persistent central bank buying, and higher
demand from Asian lyers, helped drive the gold price to a record quarterly average of US$2 ®7@e& higher

yearonyear and 5% higher quarten-quarter.

Central banks continued to buy gold apace, adding 290 tonnes to official global holdings during the quarter. Consistent
and substanti al purchases by the official sector highl
market volatiliy and increased risk. Turning to investment demand, bar and coin investment increased-8& year

year, remaining steady at the same levels from Q4 2023 at 312 tonnes.

Gold ETFs continued to see outflows with global holdings falling by 114 tonnes, led by North American and European
funds but slightly offset by inflows into Asidrsted products. China generated the bulk of that increase, with renewed
investor interest iigold due to the weakening local currency and poorly performing domestic equity markets.

Global jewellery demand remained resilient, despite rebayhl prices, only falling 2% yeasnyear. Demand in Asia
countered decreases in both Europe and North America.

In addition, demand for gold in technology recovered 10% gaarear driven by the Al boom in the electronics sector.
On the supply side, mine production increased 4%-geatear to 893 tonnek a record first quarter. Recycling also
reached the higheltvel since Q3 2020, jumping 12% yearyear to 351 tonnes, as some investors saw the high price

as an opportunity to take profits. Louise Street, Seni
March, the gold price has climbed to-tithe highs, despite traditional headwinds of a strong US dollar and interest
rates that are proving to be 6higher for I onger6.
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AA number of factors are behind the recent surge inclu
uncertainty driving safhaven demand for gold. In addition, the continued and resolute demand from central banks,
strong OTC investment anddreased net buying in the derivatives market, have all contributed to the higher price of

gold.

Ailnterestingly, we are witnessing shifting behaviour t
Eastern markets are more responsive to the price, waiting for a dip to buy, whereas Western investors have historically
been attracteabta rising price, tending to buy into the rally. In Q1, we saw those roles reversed with investment demand

in markets such as China and India growing considerably as the gold price surged.

fiLooking ahead, 2024 is likely to produce a much stron
year, based on its recent performance. Should the price level off in the coming months, somsenpitiee buyers

may reenter the markeand investors will continue to look to gold for a safe haven asset as they seek clarity around
rate cuts and election results. o

India Demand Statistics for Q1 2024 (January March)

1 Demand for gold in India for Q1 2024 was at 13®1nes, up by 8% as compared to overall Q1 demand for 2023
(126.3 tonnes)

I ndiads Q1 2024 gold demand value was Rs. 75,470 crot
Total Jewellery demand in India for Q1 2024 increased by 4% at 95.5 tonnes as compared to Q1 2023 (91.9 tonnes)
The value of jewellery demand was Rs. 52,750 crores, up by 15% from Q1 2023 (Rs. 45,890 crores)

Total Investment demand for Q1 2024 at 41.1 tonnes increased by 19% in comparison to Q1 2023 (34.4 tonnes)
In value terms, gold Investment demand in Q1 2024 was Rs. 22,720 crores, up by 32% from Q1 2023 (Rs. 17,200
crores)

Total gold recycled in India in Q1 2024 was 38.3 tonnes, up by 10% compared to 34.8 tonnes in Q1 2023

Total gold imports in India in Q1 2024 was 179.4 tonnes, up by 25% compared to 143.4 tonnes in Q1 2023
US$/oz average quarterly price in Q1 2024 was US$ 2,069.8 in comparison to US$ 1,889.9 in Q1 2023

INR/10g average quarterly price in Q1 2024 was INR 55,247.20 in comparison to INR 49,943.80 in Q1 2023
(without import duty and GST)
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Sachin Jain, Regi onal CEO, Il ndia, World Gold Council s
up by 8% in comparison to 126.3 tonnes in Q1 2023 reaffirming Indians enduring relationship with gold. Gold jewellery
demand was 95 tonnes¥4 above the comparatively weak Q1623. I no
environment was supportive for gold jewellery consumption even though prices reached a historic high in March
leading to a slowdown in sales as the quarter ended.

Q1624 also saw healthy | evels of gold bar and coin de
Q1622, which was itself the strongest first guarter s
interest, with anticip&n of a rebound driving purchases. As the price rallied to successive record highs, investors

remained bull i sh, contributing to the robust demand. I

tonnes. The Reserve Bank of Indiaalsogtevei gol d reserves by 19 tonnes during
purchases of 16 tonnes.

iAlt hough I ndian recycling volumes increased by 10% to
selling. With a strong economy and expectations of a netoagdod monsoon, there seems little desire to cash in on
high gold prices at thmoment.

ifAs we | ook forward, while the current high gold pric:i
seasonal factors such as festivals, weddings helped by an expectation for a better monsoon and solid economic growth
would support demand. Otull year gold demand forecast for India is between-800 tonnes, if price rally continues

it could be | ower end of this range. o

(Sourcehttps://gjepc.org/solitaire/globadiold-demandstaysstrongsupportingrecord-high-pricesworld-gold-
council)

(Sourcehttps://www.gold.org/goldhub/research/relevarafegold-as-a-strategicasset/goldskeyattributes1 return)

INDIAN GOLD INDUSTRY

I ndi ads pronounced p-noaedeultueahsigreficahoe has gradlially led to the déwelepment of a
thriving gold-based financial market in the country. The precious metal playdtdaceted role as a wealfireserving
asset, a hedge against inflation, and collateral for securing loans. It is no surprise that the country idatgegifth
importer of gold and holds one of the largest gold reserves in the world.
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Gold is considered to be auspicious, particularly in Hindu and Jain cultures. The ancigivelaiManu decreed that

gold ornaments should be worn for important ceremonies and occasions. Aside from Diwali, one of the most important
dates in the Indian cahdar, regional festivals across the country are celebrated with gold: in the south, Akshaya Tritiya,
Pongal, Onam and Ugadi; in the east, Durga Puja; in the west, Gudi Pavda; in the north, Baisakhi and Karva Chauth.

Gold is central to more personal life events too. Gifting gold is a deeply ingrained part of marriage rituals in Indian
societyd weddings generate approximately 50 percent of annual gold demand in India.

Gold loan market

India is also home to a flourishing ggklvellery market. Due to the emotional value associated with polellery,

people usually pledge their gold ornaments as collateral to securdeshotbans. A large part of the gold loan market

in the country is still largely unorganized, with most of the unbanked population largely relying on pawn brokers and
traditional mameylenders. However, with the widening scope of financial services in recent years, the share of organized
players like nofbanking financihcompanies (NBFCs) and banks has been on the rise. Certain gold loan NBFCs are
now seeking priority sector status for eligible gold loans as taking loans ggaieieryis a crucial form of funding

for a wide section of micro, small, and medhsimed enterprises (MSMES), farmers, and female borrowers.
Financialization of gold

In recent years, the inclusion of the gold industry in the mainstream financial system has transformed it into a legitimate
asset class, an important development as a large part of Indian household gold sits in lockers and remains unutilized.
Sovereign gal bonds (SGBs) were introduced as a part of the scheme to reduce interest in physical gold. SGBs reduce
the risk of storage, and investors are assured of the market value of gold at the time of maturity. Moreover, physical
gold-backed exchangeaded fund (ETFs) have emerged as alternative ways to access the market and diversify
investment portfolios.

Rising gold prices

In 2024, gold prices in India reached a record high of over 70,000 Indian rupees per 10 grams. This surge has been
driven by several factors including geopolitical tensions, inflation, central bank purchases, and currency weakening.
Geopolitical tensionsdve increased demand for gold, which has been seen as a safe asset during uncertain times.
Because gold is considered a hedge against inflation, more investors have turned to it to preserve their wealth amid
rising inflation concerns. Central bakiven plicy changes can further impact gold prices. The decline in the U.S.
dollar index has made gold more attractive since itis priced in U.S. dollars. Simultaneously, the weakening of the Indian
rupee against the dollar further escalated the prices in thergo

The IMF forecasts that per capita GDP growth will increase 23% between 2022 and 2026. On the face of it, rising living
standards benefit gol d, but there are other factors in
6bank hked@Gnbaitiative is creating a sea change in inv
to successfully steer a course through these headwinds.

Despitei or perhaps becauseiomacr oeconomi ¢ uncertainties, I ndiads pop!
and festivals are key drivers of gold demand and the ¢
is no doubt that gdlretains prominence in the social and financial life of many Indians, both urban and rural.

I ndia, the worldés second | argest consumer of gold jew
to evolving demographics.

1 Weddings and festivals remain the most important drivers of Indianj@egllery demand: bridal jewellery
alone accounts for at least half of the market share.

1 Over the long term, gold jewellery demand in India will be driven by developments in economic growth,
i ncome growth and wealth distri bugold@wuelleryexportwteavel as t
grown over the years, rising from US$7.6bn in 2015 to US$12.4bn in 2019, before the pandemic impacted the
trade in 2020.

1 Looking ahead, there is a greater need for Indian gold jewellery exporters to develop new markets; currently,
nearly 90% of exports go to just five countries.4 But a boost could come in the form of further proposals that
will allow advance payments to oweas precious metal suppliers, as well as the formation of the Mega
Common Facility Centres (CFCs) in the Santacruz Electronics Export Processing Zones (SEEPZ) of Mumbai
and Surat.

I Gold is intrinsic to Indian culture, closely tied to religious beliefs, tradition and festivals. Bridal jewellery
dominates the gold jewellery landscape, enjoying5% of market share; weddings, together with festivals,
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constitute the two major gold purchase occasions in India. In the absence of official records, the country is
estimated to have around-1Bmn weddings per year.

f With women marrying at an average age of 22 and wi
below the age of 25 demand for bridal jewellery looks set to remain strong over the long term.6,7 The
importance of this type of jewellery in India stetaggely from the fact that the gold gifted to a woman for
her wedding is solely her property and is therefore an important form of financial security.

9 Agriculture remains important to gold demand. India has seen significant urbanisation yet 65% of the
population still live in rural areas and depends on the land for their livelihood. Gold remains the most popular
form of investment for these communitiesd while access to bank accounts has increased, faith in gold has
not diminished. Gold demand in this segment is seasonal, closely linked to the success or otherwise of harvests.

1T Despite the traditi on adonsumertbehaveourover recentd/éars bas chgapddd d e me
continues to do so. Plain gold jewellery mainta880s85% of market share, the majority of whicr2&carat
although the market for 1&arat jewelleryis growing.

1 The country exhibits distinct regional preferenc&sidded jewellery known as Polki, Kundan or Jadau has
an estimated market share 0£28% overallalthough in Northern India this share is consideralgjer.

1 In the South, consumers are more inclinedards plain gold products, 0% of which arestudded with
diamonds and the remaining-80%set with precious or senpirecious stonedlanufacturers are increasingly
focused on producinkightweight pieces to satisfy demand from the yourarsumer, especially those who
want daily wear golgewellery that matches their adoptive Weststyleattire.

1 Silver jewellery is becoming more common doehigh gold prices and platinum is making agppearance,
particularly in male jewellery items, buaeitherappeardo have the cultural significance tire aspirational
quality of gold and therefore do npbse a major threat.

1 Over the last few years the Indian gold market besppled with numerous changes in the regulatory
environment and in consumer behaviour. Lookahgad, gold jewellery demand will face furticballenges.
Changing demographics and the possibiiitst millennial will move away from gold as othduxury items
demand their attention cannot be ignored.

1 Against these headwinds, gold jewellery demaiidikely benefit from strong economic growth agcbwing
urbanisation as incomes rise and the mididéss grows. As more people are lifted out of povegtid
jewellery demand wilbenefit.

1 E-commerce opportunities are increasing and m® robust regulatory structure emerges to supdirie
gold jewellery sales at home and abroménufacturers and retailers will be able to usetthisxtend their
reach.

1 The Indian government seeks to boost manufactaimexports, and as a consequence jewellery exqrerts
likely to improve further over the coming years. _ _ _
Jewellery demand in 2021 by countries/regions
1 The CFCs could facilitate sharing of manufacturing be  Tonnes
practice and statef-the-art machinery, which wouldring 800
the latest technology and resources within reafcemall 7
manufacturers. If these efforts are suppobgdppropriate  °©
communications around both qualiand craftsmanship,
the future of Imarketvadl®easyred.
In Conclusion)ndia is the second largest jewellery markéte gold 20
market forms aleeply intrinsic part of Indigror the population fo !
1.4bn, gold, and specificallgold jewellery, plays aentral role, 0
acting both as aadornment and a form of investntelt is therefore China Incia  Middle  LSA  Other  Europe
not surprising that fodecades India was the largesinsumer of
goldbefore being overtaken by Chima2009. In 2021, Indiaought
611t of gold jewellerysecond only to China (673t) bowmfortablyahead of all other goldonsumingnarkets (Chart
1).13aheaf all other goldconsuming markets (Chart 1).13
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Source: Metals Focus, World Gold Council

Much of the Indian gld market is very traditionateflecting important culta and religious ties. This can be seen in
the longstanding preference for 2@aratjewellery and the dominae of bridal jewellery. But the gold market is
evdving, with changing tastes andesigns driven by ecmmic growth, globalisation andhanging consunme
preferences. In recent yeafs;, example, demahhas grown for lightweight aretudded jewellery.
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Aside from gold, India hasizeable and vibrant silvggwellery market and isthewaorld6 s | ar g edgilvef abr i c

jewellery. Ou 2019 consumer survey, carriedt by Hall & Partnes, found that 60% of the womenrveyed owned
gold jewellery, closely followed by 57%wvho owned silve jewellery, but only 26% ownediamond jewellery.14
Plainum jewellery did not appeamong the top pehases by female consumersthas market is still in its infancy in
India.

Other markets oftemeflect on the longstablishech at ur e of  ellay nsadketsi lpth lindscalp and
importance. Thees ons b e hi n danddoodewtylie in hai tieeseanetsls are inextricabigked to Indian
customs and religion.

During the festivals foDiwali and Akshaya Tritiya iis considered d@remely auspicious to buy gol®hanteras (the
first day of Diwali) usually falls duringOctober or Novemdr, and Akshaya Tritiya betwedate April and earl\May.
Hence retailers across theuntry introduce atéictive designs in the reup tothese occasions.rCaverage around 40
60t of goldis sold in India duringhese two auspicious festivatne.Undelining the importance of theskcasions,
the housebld survey of India Gold Pmly CentrellM Ahmedabal (IGPGIIMA) found that 6570% of respondents
cited festivals as their main goftlirchase occasion, with Bhteras and Akshaya Tritiy@ccounting for 3€85% of
these purchases.26d with prominent oversedsadian populations, the MiddIEast and East Asids® see significant
gold buyingat these times.

Table 1: Jewellery demand peaks between September and November

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Gold buying:

Festivals

Marriages

Harvests Rabi crops Kharif crops

Source: Metals Focus, World Gold Coundil

Thesedevelopments have occurred bothtet retail andrade level. The chiefatalyst was the liberalisatiaf the
economy in 991, which kicks t a r t e dconomidgroatbTe resultant gains in consurmecomes, which hass
continued over the last threlecades, have given rise to a langieddle andupper middle classilndia. Consumers are
now moreinformed than eve contributing to some notabéhifts across the retail jewellery market.

With better exposure to Indian @globaltrends, due to risingdvel and internet penetratioewellery tastes areon
longer local and traditionalA consumer in the Soltof India is no longer opposdd Jaipur jewelley or studded
diamond jewellerySimilarly, temple jewellery, whiclis widely popularand traditionally bought only in the South,
now has acceptance avén the North. Modern takes draditional jewellery are also increasingly popubsard young
consumersare no longer fixated on buyingnly traditional pieces. The conted shift from localto regional and
national buying patterns has largddgnefited chain stose whose market share has grastrarply in recent years.

Separately, @nsumer behaviour has also bedfected by the trend in rupee gold prices, which hHauehed record
levels. Consumers normally havdixed budget when theyisit stores and so the amouwftgold they can buy will
vary with changing golgrices. As a result, over the last five to six years retadledsmanufacturers have increasingly
focused orightweight products toaisfy a range of budgets. Thisimportant, even for traditionally heavy bridal
piecesand temple jewellery. #\a result| believe, over thgears there has beanleast a 10% drop in avergg®duct
weights.

Aside from moving tdighter pieces, the daily weaegment has seen some key developments. Mpsirtant, |
believe, has been a trend embraaimgdern designs to fitlVestern attire, which has secreased demand forver
caratages, notably i&ratand 14carat. Givenhat more than 65% of the Indigopulation is below 35, #ir choice

of jewellery differsgreatly from earlier gnerations as younger consumtersd to prefer Western clothing.

Another signifcant development over the laktcade has been the pengédraof mobile phoneand lowcost interet.

About a decade ago very fgewellery retailers foased on online sales, but todayery large and midized retailer
has an onlinglatform. Lastly,rising internet accesand the advent of social mediave allowed retailer® interact
directly with theirconsumers in newvays to create brand awarenassl drive sales.

Overall, thelndian market will continue tevolve as the yourgg generation drives trends aasl organised retaile
gain market share. Retailex=e trying to tap into the sizeableww populatiorby offering products that suit their tastes
and

budget. It has madégs adjust not just our produatferings, but alsthvow we do business and interagth consumers.
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While the South dminates the landscape, changese emerged within theegion. In particular, goldlemand in
Andhra Pradesh and Telangana sizgerseded other 8ihern states due to the inflaf investment sice the state of
Andhra Pradesihwas subdivided andTelangana was created. A robuymilicy framework and a good respmn
mechanisnhave helped encourage investment in these two states.

On the othehand, demand in Kerala has bemgatively impactedue to the slowdown in the Gulf during the COVID
19 pandemicS o u t h e r n Id markei imddrainatgcdby plai22-carat gold jewellar, although demand for 18
caratdiamond pieces hasdreased in recent years drivgnyounger consuers who are more open to buyidigmond
set prodats. North and West India enj@0%26 and 25%27fanarket share respectively. tontrast, Eastern India
has a market share of just 15%

The Northern and Western markets quée diverse, with angference for 23 22, 18 and14-carat itemsUnlike the

South and West, thEastern part ofte country remains economicalliypderdeveloped duto a lack of connectivity
anddifficult terrain. However during the last few years tigovernment hasotused on developing the Nosfast, a
policy that will likely result in a rise of markehare in this region.

(Source https://www.gold.org/goldhub/research/indigsld-marketreformandgrowth)

(Source https://www.gold.org/aboegiold/golddemand/geographicaliversity/indig

(Source https://www.statista.com/topics/10542/gaithrketin-india/#topicOverview

(Source https://www.gold.org/goldhub/research/indigsld-marketreformandgrowth)

(This sectionis intentionally left blank)
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OUR BUSINESS

This chapter should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the more detailed information about
our Company and its financial statements, including th
titlededRd&dstnhanci al St atementsodo and AManagement és Disc
Results of Oper paga2®) ¥bGaad1&2egpectivaly, of this Praspectus.

Unless otherwise indicated, the Restated Financial Statements included herein is based on our Restated Financial
Statements fothe period ended o@ecember 3land Financial Years ended on March 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022
included in this Prospectus. For further i rpégel50wht i on,
this Prospectus.

OVERVIEW

Our company Manoj Jewellers Limited is engaged in the emdilwholesalbusiness of jewellery and ornaments made

from gold and diamonds, embellished with precious and semiprecious stones. Our extensive portfolio includes a wide
range of items such as rings, earrings, armlets, pendants, gajrahs, nose rings, braceletedtades, hangles, and

other wedding jewellery pieces. Our diverse collection caters to various tastes and occasions, offering customers a
selection of exquisite pieces to choosenit Manoj Jewellers Limited aims to provide highality and beautifully

crafted jewellery to meet the needs and preferences of our clientele.

As on the date of this Prospectus, we haweshowroons located at No. 59, NSC Bose Road Sowcar@aennail
600079, Tamil Nadu, Indjdirst floor, No. 59, NSC Bose Road Sowcarpet, Chenrg@0079, Tamil Nadu, Indiand
No 16, Mangalam Mitra Apartments, Ranganthan Avenue, Kilpauk, Chera®i010 respdively. The showroom is
operated and managed by our Company.

Our company's dedication is to maintain higlality products through strict quality control procedures, timely delivery,

and competitive pricing. Our company also emphasizes on offering a variety of regular designs and ensoreng on
delivery to our valed customers. Additionally, we go to extra mile by getting our jewellery hallmarked by a BIS
recognized Assaying and Hallmarking Centre. BIS hallmark serves as a mark of conformity widely accepted by
consumers, providing them with added confidence ipthiy of the company's gold jewellery. Overall, these practices
demonstrate the company's commitment to quality, customer satisfaction, and transparency in their operations.

Our Company is promoted by Mvlanoj Kumart Ms. Raj Kumarj Mr. Sunil Shantiland Ms. Shalu. Our Promoters
together with a professional team of managers manages and control the major affairs of our business operations with
his considerable experience in our Industry. We believe our success is the result of sustained effoetyeaes ith

key aspects of our business, such as timely delivery, cost management, good quality, and ability to forge partnerships,
strategy and business planning and opening nmewkets. For more details, please see the chapter fitl€aiy r
Manageaam®wr Promoters anupadel?iandtd] & this FBBosgeciys.

Key Performance Indicators of our Company.

As per Restated Financial Statements

(~ in Lakhs, ot her wi |
. December31, | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Key Performance Indicator 2024

Revenue from Operatios 4,294.76 4,335.11 1,363.01 675.18
Revenue from Operation Growth 32.09% 218.05% 101.87% -3.06%
EBITDA @ 674.93 57170 203.51 16487
EBITDA Margin ®) 15.72% 13.19% 1493% 24 42%
Restated Profit After Tax 376.66 324.13 62.36 36.47

PAT Margin® 8.77% 7.48% 4.57% 5.40%

Net WortH> 1356.54 979.88 655.74 243.38
Capital Employed 2,866.47 1,860.24 1,323.97 1,421.98
ROE%® ®) 42.99% 39.63% 13.87% 16.20%
ROCE%(")® 30.77% 30.57% 14.72% 10.72%

*As certified byM/s. Mardia & Associates, Chartered Accountargway of their certificate dateMarch 25, 2025
Notes:

1) Revenue from operation means revenue from sale of our products

2) EBITDA is calculated as Profitefore tax + Depreciation + Finance Cost©Other Income

3) EBITDA Margin is calculated as EBITDA divided by Revenue from Operations

4) PAT Margin is calculated as PAT for the period/year divided by revenue from operations
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5) Net worth means the aggregatalue of the paidip share capital and all reserves created out of the profits and

securities premium account

6) Return on Equity is ratio of Profit after Tax and average Shareholder Equity

7) Return on Capital Employed is calculated as EBIT dividedhgragecapital employed, which is defined as
shareholders' equity plus total borrowings (current & ranrent)less deferred tax assets

8) Figures have been annualised, whenever applicable.

OUR PRODUCTS

Gold Coin
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NEW COLLECTION z K y b =
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PREMIUM & DESIGNFR
BRIDAL COLLECTION

FOR
NEW
VADHU 59 NSC BOSE ROAD. SUWCARPET. CHENNAI )
Diamond Necklace studded with Gold Bangles
Precious & Semi Precious Stones

Gold Bracelet studded with

Earrings
diamonds and emerald

-‘
Womenods Gol d Gold pendant Mends Gold C
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REVENUE BIFURCATION

As % of As % of As % of | As of | As % of

As of As of As of

. Revenue Revenue Revenue March | Revenue
Particulars Dec 31, March March
from from from 31 from

AUz Operations el 202 Operations o, e Operations | 2022 | Operations

916 Gold
Antique
Kundhan,
Temple 102.44 | 2.39
Kundhan
Ornaments
Diamond
Studded Gold 1.02 0.02 44,53 1.03 36.98 2.71 4,98 0.74
Ornaments
Gold Bullion | 54.37 1.27 17.96 0.41 - - 3456 | 5.12
Gold Coin 5.97 0.14 3.36 0.08 2.97 0.22 4.59 0.68
Gold 4,129.33| 96.14 3,433.95| 79.21 925.63 | 67.91 563.95 | 83.52
Ornaments
18K Gold
Ornaments
Old Gold
Jewellery
Gold
Ornaments - - - - - - 64.36 | 9.53
with Kundan
Gold Caoin
with Huid
Silver
Ornaments
Total
Revenue
from
Operations

801.95 | 18.50 397.43 | 29.16 - -

0.83 0.02 - - - - - -

- - 33.36 0.77 - - - -

- - - - - - 2.74 | 041

0.80 0.02 - - - - - -

4,29476 | 100.00 4,335.11| 100.00 1,363.01| 100.00 675.18 | 100.00

* As certified by M/s. Mardia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, by way of their certificateMiatelu 25, 2025
OUR STRENGTHS
I Wide product range

Our wide range of product offerings caters to diverse customer segments, from the value mitketto customized
jewellery. Our product profile includes traditional, contemporary and combination designs across jewellery lines,
usages and price points. We believe that the gold and diamond jewellery inventory in our showroom reflects regional
custoner preferences and designs. We believe that our focus on design and innovation, our ability to recognize
consumer preferences and market trends, the intricacy of our designs and the quality and finish of our products are our
key strengths. In addition, oaccess to a wide range of independent manufacturers from various parts of India allows
us to offer a diverse product range.

1 Experience of our Promoters and senior management team

Our Promoters have been involved in the jewellery business in India for more than 15 years in the industry. Their strong
relationships with our suppliers, customers and other industry participants have been instrumental in implementing our
growth strategie. Our Promoters are actively involved in our operations and bring to our Company their vision and
leadership which we believe has been instrumental in sustaining our business operations. Our management team also
includes professionals with experiencehie gems and jewellery industry as well as finance and marketing.

I Customer Satisfaction

We believe in making mutually beneficial relationship with our customers by providing them optimum quality jewellery
pieces at highly affordable market prices. In a zest to attain maximum customer satisfaction, we assure accurate and
timely delivery ofthe e j ewel | eri es, at the customero6s end. Our st
customer and our execution capabilities this enables us to attract new customers. We believe that the intricacies of our
designs and quality of our producteifih enable us to get better margins on our products.
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9 Quality assurance

We endeavour to maintain the quality of our products, follow strict procedures to ensure control quality, timely delivery
and competitive prices. We offer regular designs and guarantee our esteemed customers for the time bound delivery of
the products. Weget the jewellery hallmarked from BIS recognized Assaying and Hallmarking Centre for our
customers. The BIS hallmark, a mark of conformity widely accepted by the consumer bestow the additional confidence
to the consumer on the purity of our gold jewellery.

OUR STRATEGIES
1 Innovation in Designing and Maintenance of quality products

We intend to continue to add new design to our existing product portfolio to cater to various customer and price
segments in the jewellery markets. We endeavour to maintain the quality of our products, and follow strict procedures
to ensure quality contrptimely delivery and competitive prices. Our company intends to strengthen its product
development effort by leveraging skills of its employees and focussing on changing trends in the designs of jewellery
and customers demand, which will help to incrahsesales of our Company and retain customers.

1 Continue to maintain goodrelationships with our customers

We believe that maintaining good relationship with customers is a most critical factor in jewellery business to keep
growing. Through regular interactions with the Customers at our Showroom, product sales trends and market research,
we are able to determéncurrent trends in the industry, which are used by us in the product development. We will
continue to focus on timely delivery of quality products which will help in forging strong relationships with our
customers and gaining increased business from them.

1 Invest in marketing and analytics to more effectively target consumers and drive sales

We intend tacontinue to invest istrategies, campaigns and technologies to analyse and manage customer interactions
and related data throughout the customer lifecycle, with the goal of creating-#efongelationship with customers,
building customer retention and driving sales. Devielpa deep and nuanced understanding of our customers and their
purchasing patterns is crucial to our business.

1 Leverage our scalable business model to expand our showroom network and diversify our channels of
distribution

We believe that our brand, scalable business model, effective operational processes and track record of profitable
expansion, all positions us well to capitalise on the market opportunity, and accordingly we intend to further expand
our network of showroos We intend to leverage our substantial efforts and experience, to expand our presence across
several markets and having potential for opening further showrooms. We believe the significant investments we have
already made in (a) brand building acrossrgdanumber of local markets, (b) understanding the varying nuances of
customer behaviour across geographies, will enable us to expand our showroom network.

In addition, we plan to continue to diversify our channels of distribution. For example, recognizing early the powerful
potential of engaging customers online we invested in our online platform, www.zullry.com. Our online platform offers
us another distriltion channel to reach customers and potentially drive further traffic to our showrooms. We intend to
offer our customers the option to purchase products offline and also offer them the opportunity to tangibly experience
our products offered online. We alintend to leverage our increasing engagement with a digitally savvy consumer
base to increase revenues for jewellery sold online th .zullry.com

OUR BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Our company Manoj Jewellers Limited is engaged in the retail business of various jewelleries and ornaments made out
of gold, diamonds and platinum studded with precious and semiprecious stones. Our portfolio includes rings, earrings,
armlet, pendants, gajns, nose rings, bracelets, chains, necklaces, bangles and other wedding jewellery. As on the date
of this Prospectus, we have one showroom located at No. 59, NSC Bose Road Sow carpet Chennai 600079, Tamil
Nadu, India. The showroom is operated and manbhgexir Company.

The jewellery in its final ready form is purchased from Company selected and approved suppliers. If our Company feels
that there is any discrepancy in the quantity or quality against the bill, the Company returns the stock to vendor. The
charges levied bthe supplier are verified as per gagreed price as mentioned in the invoice received from supplier
and the invoice will be sent to Finance Department for the purpose of payment. The stocks will be then ready for
dispatch and are duly distributed to thewroom as decided.
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

1. Sourcing: We source gold inventory from suppliers, such as refineries, wholesalers, or individuals looking to sell
their gold jewelry or items.

2. Testing and Valuation:Once the gold is acquired, it is tested for purity and authenticity using specialized equipment
by the governmertiodies.The gold is then valued based on its weight, purity, and current market price.

3. Pricing and Display: The gold items are priced accordingly and displayed in the showroom for customers to browse
and purchase. Pricing strategies may vary based on factors like market trends and competition.

4. Customer Interaction: Our showroom staff interact with customers, provide information about the gold items,
assisting with purchases, and address any questions or concerns.

5. Sales and TransactionsCustomers select the gold items they wish to purchase, and transactions are processed
through cash, credit/debit cards, or other payment methods.

6. Inventory Management: Our showrooms manage inventory effectively, keeping track of stock levels, restocking
items as needed, and ensuring accurate rdczeding.

7. Security Measures:Due to the valuable nature of gold, our showroom implement security measures to protect
inventory, such as surveillance cameras, alarms, and secure storage facilities.

8. Compliance and RegulationsWe adhere to legal requirements and regulations related to buying and selling gold,
including verifying customer identities and reporting transactions as necessary.

CAPACITY AND CAPACITY UTILISATION

As we are not involved in any manufacturing activities, we do not have any capacity utilisation data as such.

The following table illustrates the concentration of our revenues among our top Supplier:

(" in Lakhs, other wi
Suppliers
190 December 312024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %
Top 5 2878.5 74.8 2945.18 64.82 273.25 38.24 325.62| 72.97
Top 10 3179.56 82.61 3182.08 70.03 331.41 46.38 405.09| 90.77

* As certified by M/s. Mardia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, by way of their certificatéviatdu25, 2025
UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE FACILITIES

Raw Materials T Our raw materials comprises of gold bullion, silver bullion, diamonds, platinum jewellery, gold and
diamond ornaments and precious aathipreciousstones like rubies, emeralds and sapphires. We procure raw material
from bullion and jewellery market dealers on the basis of management estimation based on past consumption and future
estimations.

Infrastructure facilities

Our registered office and showroom situated at No. 59, NSC Bose Road Sowcarpet Chennai 600 079, Tamilnadu, India
as well our showroom located at No. 16, Mangalam Mitra Apartments, Ranganthan Avenue, Kilpauk, CThennai
600010,is well equipped with computer systems, Laptops, internet connectivity, other communication equipment,
security and other facilities like fire safety, etc. which are required for our business operations. Further, we have setup
various security measuresgcluding tagging our product€CTV in showrooms, security guards and follow stringent
operational processes such as daily stock taking at our Showrooms in order to safeguard our inventories.

Power facilities
Our Company meets its power requirements at our registered afficehowroom located at No. 59, NSC Bose Road
Sowcarpet Chennai 600 079, Tamilnadu, India, as well our showroom located at No. 16, Mangalam Mitra Apartments,

Ranganthan Avenue, Kilpauk, Cheniig00010,from TamilNadu Generation and Distribution Corporation Limited
(TANGEDCO) and the same is sufficient for our dayday functioning.
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Water facilities

Our registered office and showroom have adequate water supply arrangements for human consumption purpose. Our
current water consumption at our registered office and showroom is sourced from the local sources.

CUSTOMERS, SALES AND MARKETING

The efficiency of the marketing and sales network is critical success factor of our Company. Our marketing team along
with our promoters through their experience and good rapport with customers owing to timely and quality delivery of
service plays an ingstmental role in creating and expanding the sales network of our Company. We advertise through
several key media outlets to promote our brand and product portfolio, including through advertisements on television
and the internet. We have a dedicated teariclwis focused on customer relations and marketing through our online
platform www.zullry.com and social media. As with our other marketing channels, we implement our localisation
strategy through regiespecial offerings in our online marketing campaigns.

COMPETITION

We face competition from both organised and unorganised companies in the Indian jewellery industry. Majority of the
Indian jewellery industry consists of unorganised players who have historically dominated a large part of the market,
although their sharefdhe market has been falling and is expected to continue to decline. We also face competition

from organised jewellery companies who compete with us on a national, regional and local level. We have multiple
competitors at various regional and local le\agsoss India.

We compete with various diamond and jewellery manufacturing companies based in India. We face competition from
listed Companies like DP Abhushan Limited, Moksh Ornaments Limited, Subh Laxmi Jewel Art Limited, etc

INVENTORY MANAGEMENT AND SECURITY
Inventory Management

We regard efficient inventory management as critical to the success of our business. Our integrated operations are
designed to allow us to move inventory based on feedback from our marketing teams, store personnel and our customers
in order to align our jwellery offerings with customer preferences and to accommodate variations in seasonal buying
patterns such as Diwali, Dhanteras or Akshaya Trithiya, allowing our management to respond quickly to replenish or
reallocate inventory based on shifting custodemand patterns. We have strict inventory management and monitoring
practices in place that allows us to account for each piece of inventory and to ensure efficiency. We plan our inventory
procurement by taking into account targeted sales, inventory traond aging, and generally endeavour to maintain
inventory levels in line with customer demand and seasonal trends.

Security

We have implemented strict security procedures to ensure our inventory is maintained securely. Our showroom is
equipped with closedircuit surveillance cameras linked to a digital video recorder. Our showroom is equipped with
secure vaults with restricteatcess only for a limited number of selected staff and our jewellery is placed into these
vaults at the close of business each day. All our business heageoaréed with a reatime monitoring tool on their

mobile phones to view visuals of the vaudtsall times. We also have contracts with various reputable private security
agencies who provide security guards to all of our showrooms.

QUALITY CONTROL

We endeavour to ensure that we maintain stringent quality standards at all stages of our project. Our aim is to reduce
cost and cycle times through effective and efficient use of resources. In executing the projects, we monitor and test all
materials for onformity, track norconformities and make rectifications to ensure client satisfaction.

HUMAN RESOURCE

We believe that our employees are key contributors to our business success. We focus on attracting and retaining the
bestpossible talent. Our Company looks for specific ssdts, interests and background that would be an asset for its

kind of business.

We have developed a pool of skilled and experienced pegkdinre breakup of our manpowés as follows

Sr.no | Category Number of Employees
1. | Management 2
2. | Sales 7
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3. | Purchase 2
4. | Accounts 1
5. | Legal 1
6. | Security 1
Total Employees 14

EXPORT AND EXPORT OBLIGATIONS

As on the date, we do not have any export obligation.

COLLABORATION

As on date of thi®rospectus, our Company has not entered into any technical or financial collaboration agreements.
INSURANCE

The following are the details of insurance policies taken by us:

- Premium
Sr. l\:ame GG Type of Va.“d'ty : Sum Insured p.a.
No. nsurance Policy Period up Policy No. ( Amo u n | (Amount
Company to S
1. | ICICI Lombard| Jeweller's 22/01/20% 4093/S/277627791/0Q00 25,00,00,000| 94,037
General Package
Insurance Policy
Sookshma
2. | Royal Sundaran] Vehicle 08/03/20% VPC17267370001D 2,80,244 15,198.4
General Insurances
Insurance Co
Limited
3. | Royal Sundaran] Vehicle 10/06/2025 VPC1645747000102 4,86,000 14,701.62
General Insurances
Insurance Co
Limited
4. | Royal Sundaran| Vehicle 02/01/20% VPC15741580001® 3,84,693 18,536.62
General Insurances
Insurance Co
Limited
5. | Royal Sundaran] Vehicle 02/01/20% VPC15751120001® 6,12,809 31,928.44
General Insurances
Insurance Co
Limited
6. | Reliance Generg Vehicle 24/02/2026 990992523110000762 14,22,476 44,528
Insurance Insurance
Service
7. | Future Genera| Vehicle 16/04/2025| 132/02/11/0425/MTP/000003461]  5,72,588 14,193
Total Insuranceg Insurance
Solution Service
PROPERTIES
Following Properties are owned / taken on ledgmhse by our company:
Date of Lease| Lessor Address Period of Area Monthly Purpose
Agreement Lease Rent
August  01,| E. A. Mohamed| Ground Floor, No| Till June | 908.5 Sq. Ft.| Rs.43,000- | Registered
2024 Waseem, 59, NSC Bosg 30, 2025 Office

Represented by Road Sowcarpe
his father M.| Chennai 600079
Ejaz Ahamed Tamilnadu, India.
August  01,| E. A. Mohamed| First Floor, No. 59, Till June | 908.5 Sq. Ft.| Rs.17,400- | Registered
2024 Waseem, NSC Bose Roag 30, 2025 Office
Represented by Sowcarpet

his father M.| Chennai 600079
Ejaz Ahamed Tamilnadu, India.
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Date of Lease| Lessor Address Period of Area Monthly Purpose
Agreement Lease Rent
July 21, 202 | Ms. Neeta Jain | No. 16, Mangalan Till June | 1510 SqFt. Rs. Branch
Mitra Apartments,| 30, 2029 1,10,000/ Office
Ranganthan
Avenue, Kilpauk,
Chennat 600010

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
Trademarks / patents / copyright/registered/objected/abandoned in the name of our company:

Nature of
Trademark
Sr. | Brand Name/Logo Class | and Owner Date' ' of Authority Current
No | Trademark registration Application Status
number
Registered vide Trade Mark
vy certificate  no.| Manoj Registry, . )
1, e 14 | 2060413 and Jewellers | 23.06.2015 | Intellectual | Y21d il
mMA 23.06.2025
uwmggﬁﬂ application no.| Limited* Property, T
2990992 India
Registered vide Trade Mark
y certificate no.| Manoj Registry, . .
C Valid il
35 3000461 and Jewellers 30.08.2020 | Intellectual
,EUHFL!DIQL;! application no. Limited* Property, 30.08.2030
4632045 India
Registered vide
o certificate no. Manoj 'Igrea;igt:\cark
é 3191325 ’ Valid il
2. 14 s Jewellers 16/07/2022 | Intellectual
mAnaJ
rumber | Limited Property, | 10074052
5532745 India
Registered vide Trade Mark
1 certificate no. Manoj Registry
@ 3263227 ' Valid il
mRARNoOJ 35 application ng_ellers 16/07/2022 | Intellectual 16.07.2032
number Limited Property,
5532746 India

* TheseTrademarks were taken in the name of Manoj Jewellers Private Limited and as on date, the Company has not
filed any application for endorsement of the same in the name of Manoj Jewellers Limited, being the current name of
the Company post its conversionrfré’rivate Limited to Public Limiteentity.

DOMAIN:
S Sponsoring Creatio Registr
N | Domain Name and ID Registrar Registrant Name and ID y
n Date Expiry
(o] and ID
Date
1. | Manojjewellerslimited.co | Godaddy.co | Manoj Jewellers Limited July 02,| July 02,
m m 2708103733 _DOMAIN_COM/RSN | 2022 2032
2. | Manojjewellerslimited.in | Godaddy.co | Manoj Jewellers Limited July 02, July 02,
m FAD2F48694010BCA4B266CE84605 2022 2027
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KEY INDUSTRY REGULATIONS

The following description is a summarytbe relevant regulations and policies as prescribed by the Gol and other
regulatory bodies that are applicable to our business. The information detailed below has been obtained from various
legislations, including rules and regulations promulgated by raguy bodies, and the bye laws of the respective local
authorities that are available in the public domain. The regulations set out below may not be exhaustive and are merely
intended to provide general information to the shareholders and neither desigoreditended to substitute for
professional |l egal advice. For details of government a
Ot her Ap ppaget98dfthi®Prospectus.

THE COMPANIES ACT

The consolidation and amendment in the law relating to the Companies Act, 1956 made way to the enactment of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

The Companies Act primarily regulates the formation, financing, functioning and restructuring of Companies as
separate legal entities. The Act provides regulatory and compliance mechanism regarding all relevant aspects including
organizational, financialrel managerial aspects of companies. The provisions of the Act state the eligibility, procedure
and execution for various functions of the company, the relation and action of the management and that of the
shareholders. The law laid down transparency, catpaovernance and protection of shareholders & creditors. The
Companies Act plays the balancing role between these two competing factors, namely, management autonomy and
investor protection.

SEBI REGULATIONS:

Securities and Exchange Board of India is the regulatory body for securities market transactions including regulation
of listing and delisting of securities. It forms various rules and regulations for the regulation of listed entities,
transactions of seciies, exchange platforms, securities market and intermediaries thereto. Apart from the SEBI Act,
1992, SCRA 1956, SCRR 1957 and other rules and regulations, listed entities are mainly regulated by SEBI (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Ratjohs, 2018 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015, SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover) Regulations, 2011 and SEBI (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

TAX RELATED REGULATIONS
Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax Act, 1961 is applicable to every Domestic / Foreign Company whose income is taxable under the
provisionsof t hi s Act or Rules made under it depending upon
U/s 139(1)every Companyis requiredto file its Incometax returnfor every PreviousYear by October 30of the
Assessmenityear.Other compliances like those relating to Tax Deduction at Source, Advance Tax, Minimum
Alternative Tax and like aralsorequiredto be compliedby everyCompany.

Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017

The Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 is an Act to make a provision for levy and collection of tax on intra
Statesupply of goods or services or both by the Central Government and for matters connected therewith or incidental
thereto.In line with CGST Act, each state Governments has enacted State Goods and Service Tax Act for respective
statesGoodand Services Tax (GST) is a comprehensive indirect tax on manufacture, sale and consumption of goods
and servicethroughout India to replace taxes levied by the Central and State Governments. This method allows GST
registeredbusinessew claim tax creditto thevalueof GST theypaid on purchasesf goodsor servicesor bothaspart

of their normalkcommercial activity. The mechanism provides for two level taxation of interstate and intra state
transactions. When treupplyof goodsor serviceshappenswithin a statecalledasintra-statetransactionsthenboth

the CGSTandSGSTwill be collected Whereasf thesupplyof goodsor serviceshappendetweerthestatecalledas
inter-statetransactionandIGSTwill be collected.Exportsareconsiderediszeraratedsupplyandimportsarelevied

the sametaxesasdomesticgoodsandservicesadheringto the destinationprinciple in additionto the CustomsDuty

which hasnotbeensubsumed inthe GST.

Customs Act, 1962

The provisions of the Customs Act, 1962 and rules made there under are applicable at the time of import of goods i.e.
bringing into India from a place outside India or at the time of export of goods i.e. taken out of India to a place outside
India. Any Conpany requiring to import or export any goods is first required to get it registered and obtain an IEC
(Importer Exporter Code). Imported goods in India attract basic customs duty, additional customs duty and education
cess. The rates of basic customs darty specified under the Customs Tariff Act 1975. Customs duty is calculated on
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the transaction value of the goods. Customs duties are administrated by Central Board of Excise and Customs under the
Ministry of Finance

BUSINESS/TRADE RELATED LAWS/REGULATIONS
Gem and Jewellery Export Promotion Council

The Gol has designated the Gem and Jewellery Export Pr
authority in India in keeping with its international obligations under Section 1V(b) of the Kimberley Process
Certification SdGiEP@GRas je@nktifes as)the nodahagency for trade in rough diamonds. The
KPCS is a joint government, international diamond and civil society initiative to stem the flow of conflict diamonds,
which are rough diamonds used by rebel movements to finaace against legitimate governments. The KPCS
comprises participating governments that represent approximately 99.8% of the world trade in rough diamonds. The
KPCS has been implemented in India from January 1, 2003 by the Gol through communication Na0Q2HARB

(GJ) dated November 13, 2002. However, under the Special Economic Zones Rules, 2006, the Development
Commissioners have been delegated powers to issue Kimberley Process Certificates for units situated in the respective
Speci al Econ&mBiZ6) Zone (the 0

Gems and Jewellery Trade Council of India

The Gems and Jewell ery Trade Council of India (AGJI TCO
and jewellery trade of India. It is a council formed to enhance & boost the jewellery trade of India by resolving various
issues of the trade scalating various to the relevant high authorities. It also indulges itself in disseminating latest
information to its jewder members through a monthly newsletter, various educative & trade motivational events such

as seminars, workshops, exhibitiorestfvals etc.

Reserve Bank of India Circulars regulating Gold Loans

The RBI has permitted nominated banks to import gold for the purpose of extending gold metal loans to domestic
jewellery manufacturers, subject to certain conditions, including that the tenor of gold loans (which can be decided by
the nominated banks) doast exceed 180 days from the date of procurement of the gold and the interest charged to
the borrowers is linked to international gold rates. Gems and jeweligrgrtorientedunits and specified units in
Special Economic Zones are permitted to impoltl @m a loan basis directly or through nominating agencies, subject

to specified conditions. The Master Circular of RBI on Loans and Advanséastutory and Other Restrictions dated

July 1, 2015 prohibits domestic jewellery manufacturers from sellingdhicborrowed under this scheme to any other
party for manufacture of jewellery.

Bureau of I ndian Standards Act, 2016 (the fABIS Acto)

BIS Act was notified on March 22, 2016 and came into effect from October 12, 2017. The BIS Act establishes the
Bureau of I ndian Standards (BI S) as the National St and
Central Government to make itamdatory for certain notified goods, articles, processes etc. to carry standard mark.

Bureau of I ndian Standards (Hall marking) Regul ations,

The BIS Hallmarking Regulations prescribe that all jewellery manufacturers must obtain a certificate of registration
from the BIS in order to sell precious metal articles notified under the BIS Act. The certificate of registration shall be
granted to a spific premise and will be valid for a period of five years. The Hallmarking of Gold Jewellery and Gold
Artefacts Order, 2020, as amended, which came into effect on June 16, 2021, prescribes that gold jewellery and gold
artefacts notified to be marked wittallmark in the notification of the Government of India, Ministry of Consumer
Affairs, Food and Public Distribution, Department of Consumer Affairs number S.O. 2421(E), dated June 14, 2018,
shall be sold only by registered jewellers through certified salésts, after fulfilling the terms and conditions of
certificate of registration as specified in the BIS Hallmarking Regulations. However, certain precious metal articles are
excluded from the above order, including any article meant for export, whiébrot to any specification required by

the foreign buyer, any article of gold thread and any article with weight less than two grams.

BIS Scheme for hallmarking of Gold and Silver Jewellery

The BIS hallmark is a hallmarking system for gold as well as silver jewellery sold in India certifying the purity of the
metal. It certifies that the piece of jewellery conforms to a set of standards laid by the Bureau of Indian Standards, the
national stadards organization of India. India is the second biggest market for gold and its jewellery. The BIS system
of hallmarking of gold jewellery began in April 2000. The standard specifications governing this system are IS 1417
(Grades of Gold and Gold Alloygewellery/Artefacts), IS 1418 (Assaying of Gold in Gold Bullion, Gold alloys and
Gold Jewellery/Artefacts), IS 2790 (Guidelines for Manufacture of 23, 22, 21, 20, 19, 18, 17, 16, 14 and 9 carat Gold
Alloys), IS 3095 (Gold solders for use in manufacturgefellery). BIS introduced hallmarking for silver jewellery in
December 2005 under IS 2112, the standard specification for 'Hallmarking of Silver Jewellery/Artefacts'.
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Hal | marking of Gold Jewellery and Gol d IndiantSarfdadsAcs, Or der
2016 and the Bureau of Indian Standards (Hallmarking) Regulations, 2018

In accordance with the hallmarking of Gold Jewellery and gold artefacts Order, 2020, as amended, no person shall,
after March 31, 2023, sell or display or offer to sell any Gold jewellery or Gold Artefacts unless it is hallmarked in
accordance with the sidards specified in IS 1417:2016, as amended. Any person who contravenes the provisions of
this Order is liable to be punished under the provisions of the Bureau of Indian Standards Act, 2016. The Bureau of
Indian Standards (Hallmarking) Regulations, 2@i&scribe that all jewellery manufacturers must obtain a certificate

of registration from the Bureau of Indian Standards in order to sell precious metal articles notified under the BIS Act.
The certificate of registration shall be granted to specific esrnd will be valid for a lifetime.

The Legal Metrology Act, 2009

Legal Metrology Act, 2009 was enacted with the objectives to establish and enforce standards of weights and measures,
regulate trade and commerce in weights, measures and other goods which are sold or distributed by weight, measure or
number and for matterconnected therewith or incidental thereto. This act replaced the Standards of Weights and
Measures Act, 1976 and the Standards of Weights and Measures (Enforcement) Act, with effect from March 1, 2011.

Legal Metrology (Packaged Commodities) Amendment Rul es

The Packaged Commodity Rules have amended the Legal metrology (Packaged Commaodities) Rules, 2011, and lays
down specific provisions applicable to packages intended for retail sale -sdleland for export and import. Pursuant

to the packaged Commodity Rs, any pregpackaged commodity sold for use and consumption by the citizens must
properly mention several details such as, the description and quantity of ingredients, date of manufacturing, date of
expiry (for items prone to expiration), weight, statytararnings, manufacturer address, contact and some other info

like consumer care details, country of origin, etc.

Payment and Settlements Systems Act, 2007

The Payment and Settlement Systems Act 2007, set up by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), provides for the regulation
and supervision of payment systems in India and designates the apex institution (RBI) as the authority for that purpose
and all related maats with the objectives of promoting safety and efficiency by monitoring existing and planned
systems, assessing them against these objectives and, where necessary, inducing change. By overseeing payment and
settlement systems, RBI helps to maintain syatetability and reduce systemic risk, and to maintain public confidence

in payment and settlement systems. The Payment and Settlement Systems Act, 2007 and the Payment and Settlement
Systems Regulations, 2008 framed thereunder, provide the necessdoyystaaking to the Reserve Bank of India

for undertaking the oversight function over the payment and settlement systems in the country.

Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002

An Act to prevent monelaundering and to provide for confiscation of property derived from, or involved in, money
laundering and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto

Money laundering is the processing of criminal proceeds to disguise its illegal origin. Terrorism, illegal arms sales,
financial crimes, smuggling, and the activities of organized crime, including drug trafficking and prostitution rings,
generate huge sumEmbezzlement, insider trading, bribery and computer fraud also produce large profits and create
an incentive to legitimize the ifjotten gains through money laundering. When a criminal activity generates substantial
profits, the individual or group inWeed in such activities route the funds to safe heavens by disguising the sources,
changing the form, or moving the funds to a place where they are less likely to attract attention.

Most fundamentally, money laundering is inextricably linked to the underlyiinginal activity that generates it. In
essence, the laundering enables criminal activity to continue. Offence of tlaomelering is punishable with rigorous
imprisonment for a period of not less than three years but may extend to seven years and with fine laghaupees

ConsumerProtection (EECommer ce) Rul ecsomm@mOrd®e (Rhlee sik)

The ECommerce Rules regulate the marketing, sale and purchase of goods and services over a digital or electronic
network. It restricts the use of any unfair trade practice-bgremerce entities and mandates the establishment of an
adequate grievance redisal mechanism and the appointment of a grievance officer. FurtherCiimierce Rules

required all ecommerce entities to appoint a nodal person of contact or an alternate senior designated functionary to
ensure compliance with its provisions. Contratien of the ECommerce Rules will attract penal action in accordance

with the Consumer Protection Act, 2019.

Draft National E-Commerce Policy 2019

Draft National ECommerce Policy Prepared by Government of India addresses six broad areas-cdriraesce
ecosystem viz. data, infrastructure developmeitiramerce marketplaces, regulatory issues, stimulating domestic
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digital economy and export promotion through ecommerce. The Policy takes into account interests of all stakeholders
including investors, manufacturers, MSMEs, traders, retailers, startups and consumers. The N&mmahetce

Policy has been formulated thia vision to provide a lewgllaying field to all stakeholders, including the individual
consumers and MSMEs and staps.

Consumer Protection Act, 2019 (the AConsumer Protectio

The Consumer Protection Act, which repeals the Consumer Protection Act, 1986, was designed and enacted to provide
simpler and quicker access to redress consumer grievances. It seeks, inter alia to promote and protect the interests of
consumers against deiencies and defects in goods or services and secure the rights of a consumer against unfair trade
practices, which may be practiced by manufacturers, se
the Consumer Protection Act also indisdpersons engaged in offline or online transactions through electronic means

or by teleshopping or direeselling or multilevel marketing. It provides for the establishment of consumer disputes
redressal forums and commissions for the purposes of sadirek consumer grievances. In addition to awarding
compensation and/or passing corrective orders, the forums and commissions under the Consumer Protection Act, in
cases of misleading and false advertisements, are empowered to impose imprisonmenmhfahéctemay extend to

two years and fine which may extend to ten lakhs.

Section 94 of the Consumer Protection Act, 2019 deals with measures to prevent unfair trade praatamasieree,

direct selling, etc. it states that for the purposes of preventing unfair trade practiessmmerce, direct selling and

also to protecthe interest and rights of consumers, the Central Government may take such measures in the prescribed
manner.

ENVIRONMENT LAWS:
National Environmental Policy, 2006

The Policy seeks to extend the coverage, and fill in gaps that still exist, in light of present knowledge and accumulated
experience. This policy was prepared through an intensive process of consultation within the Government and inputs
from experts. It des not displace but builds on the earlier policies. It is a statement of India's commitment to making a
positive contribution to international efforts. This is a response to our national commitment to a clean environment,
mandated in the Constitution in #ales 48 A and 51 A (g), strengthened by judicial interpretation of Article 21. The
dominant theme of this policy is that while conservation of environmental resources is necessary to secure livelihoods
and weltbeing of all, the most secure basis for genvation is to ensure that people dependent on particular resources
obtain better livelihoods from the fact of conservation, than from degradation of the resource. Following are the
objectives of National Environmental Policy:

Conservation of Critical Environmental Resources

Intra-generational Equity: Livelihood Security for the Poor

Inter-generational Equity

Integration of Environmental Concerns in Economic and Social Development

Efficiency in Environmental Resource Use

Environmental Governance

Enhancement of resources for Environmental Conservation

= =48 -4 _-a_a_a_2

Environmental Legislations

The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 198
1974 (fAWater Acto), aim to prevent, contr ol and abate
prior written consenof the relevant state pollution control board, establish or operate any industrial plant which emits

air pollutants in an air pollution control area, as notified by the state pollution control board. The Water Act aims to
prevent and control water poliah and to maintain or restore water purity and any person intending to establish any
industry, operation or process or any treatment and disposal system which is likely to discharge sewage or other
pollution into a water body is required to obtain prionsent of the relevant state pollution control board. The Forest
(Conservation) Act, 1980 (AFCAO0) read with Forest (Con:
for restriction on the deforestation of forests or use of forest lantbfeforest purpose and requires prior approval for

use of forest land for any ndorest purpose. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 read with Environment
(Protection) Rules, 1986 aim to protect and improve the environment and provide rules forigmewentrol and

abatement of environment pollution and impose obligation for proper handling, storage, treatment, transportation and
disposal of hazardous wastes.

Environment Impact Assessment Notification of 2006
The Ministry of Environment, Forests and Climate Change has notified the Environment Impact Assessment

Notification of 2006 in September 2006. The notification makes it mandatory for various projects to get environment
clearance.
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REGULATIONS RELATED TO FOREIGN TRADE AND INVESTMENT
The Foreign Direct Investment

The Government of India, from time to ti me, has made p
through press notes and press releases. The Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade (DPIIT), Ministry

of Commerce & Industry, G@rnment of India makes policy pronouncements on FDI through Consolidated FDI Policy
Circular/Press Notes/Press Releases which are notified by the Department of Economic Affairs (DEA), Ministry of
Finance, Government of India as amendments to the ForeigmBige Management (Nddebt Instruments) Rules,

2019 under the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (42 of 1999) (FEMA). DPIIT has issued consolidated FDI
Policy Circular of 2020 (AFDI Policy 202 0addsypersetiesalh wi t
previous press notes, press releases and clarifications on FDI Policy that were in force. The Government proposes to
update the consolidated circular on FDI policy once every year and therefore, FDI Policy 2020 will be valid until an
updated circular is issued.

The reporting requirements for any investment in India by a person resident outside India under Foreign Exchange
Management (NofDebt Instruments) Rules, 2019 are specified by the RBI. Regulation 4 of the Foreign Exchange
Management (Mode of Payment andpReing of NonrDebt Instruments) Regulations, 2019 vide notification No.

FEMA. 395/2019RB dated 17.10.2019 issued by the RBI stipulates the reporting requirement for any investment in
India by a person resident outside India. All the reporting is reqtdrled done through the Single Master Form (SMF)

available on the Foreign Investment Reporting and Management System (FIRMS) platfittpa: Afirms.rbi.org.in

Under the current FDI Policy of 2020, foreign direct investment in micro and small enterprises is subject to sectoral
caps, entry routes and other sectoral regulations

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (AFEMAO) and Reg

Foreign investment in India is governed primarily by the provisions of the FEMA which relates to regulation primarily

by the RBI and the rules, regulations and notifications there under, and the policy prescribed by the Department of
Promotion of Industrand Internal Trade, Ministry of Commerce & Industry, Government of India. As laid down by

the FEMA Regulations no prior consents and approvals are required from the Reserve Bank of India, for Foreign Direct
Il nvest ment wunder t he speaified seatoaat caps. Inrrespedt ef @ll industrids hot specifiee as

FDI under the automatic route, and in respect of investment in excess of the specified sectoral limits under the automatic
route, approval may be required from the FIF and/or the Ri&d.RBI, in exercise of its power under the FEMA, has
notified the Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident Outside India)
Regul ati ons, 2017 (AFEMA Regul ati onso) deaurityto apelisdni t , r
resident outside India and Foreign Exchange Management (Export of Goods and Services) Regulations, 2015 for
regulation on exports of goods and services.

Ownership restrictions of Flls

Under the portfolio investment scheme, the total holding of all Flls together with theacsaolnts in an Indian
company is subject to a cap of 24% of the pgiccapital of a company, which may be increased up to the percentage

of sectoral cap on FDI irespect of the said company pursuant to a resolution of the board of directors of the company
and the approval of the shareholders of the company by a special resolution in a general meeting. The total holding by
each FlI, or in case an Fll is investing loehalf of its sutaccount, each suéiccount should not exceed 10% of the total
paidtup capital of a company.

Laws related to Overseas Investment by Indian Entities:

Overseas investment by Indian Entities are governed under Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 under which the
central Government of India have notified Foreign Exchange Management (Overseas Investment) Rules, 2022 in
suppressiof Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Any Foreign Security) Regulations, 2004 and the
Foreign Exchange Management (Acquisition and Transfer of Immovable Property Outside India) Regulations, 2015.
Followed by the rules, RBI have vide notdtton no. RBI/2022023/1D, A.P. (DIR Series) Circular No.12 dated

August 22, 2022 have issued Foreign Exchange Management (Overseas Investment) Directions, 2022 and Foreign
Exchange Management (Overseas Investment) Regulations, 2022. These legislations frame the investmesdd&elds

and cap for various sectors and regions, by any person resident in India and the reporting requirements.

Foreign Trade Policy 2023:

The Central Government of India in exercise of powers conferred under Section 5 of the Foreign Trade (Development
& Regulation) Act, 1992 (No. 22 of 1992) [FT (D&R) Act], as amended, has notified Foreign Trade Policy (FTP) 2023
which is effective from Apti01, 2023 and shall continue to be in operation unless otherwise specified or amended. It
provides for a framework relating to export and import of goods and services. All exports and imports made up to
31.03.2023 shall, accordingly, be governed by thevemt FTP, unless otherwise specified.
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LAWS RELATED TO EMPLOYMENT OF MANPOWER:
The Occupational Safety, Health and Working Conditions Code, 2020

The Occupational Safety, Health and Working Conditions Code, 2@2Wved the assent of the President of India on
September 28, 2020 and proposes to subsume certain existing legislations, including the Factories Act, 1948, the
Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970, the h8&te Migrant Workmen (Reguiah of Employment

and Conditions of Service) Act, 1979 and the Building and Other Construction Workers (Regulation of Employment
and Conditions of Service) Act, 1996. The provisions of this code will be brought into force on a date to be notified by
the Cantral Government.

The Code on Social Security, 2020

The Code on Social Security, 2020 received the assent of the President of India on September 28, 2020 and it proposes
to subsume certain existing legislations including the Employ@esmpensati on Act , 1923, t h
Il nsurance Act, 1948, the Employeesé Provident Funds an
Act , 1961, the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1e9Ces3 Act, 19& Bui |
and the Unorganized Workersd Soci al Security Act, 2008
date to be notified by the Central Government. The Central Government has issued the draft rules under the Code on
Social Scurity, 2020. The draft rules provide for operationalization of provisions in the Code on Social Security, 2020
relating to employeesd provident fund, empl oyeesd st a
security and cess in respextbuilding and other construction workers, social security for unorganized workers, gig
workers and platform workers.

The I ndustri al Rel ations Code, 2020 (Al ndustri al Codeo

The Ministry of Law and Justice, with an intent to consolidate and amend laws relating to trade unions, conditions of
employment in industrial establishment or undertaking, investigation and settlement of industrial dispute, has
introduced the Industrialde. The Code provides that the Central Government may repeal the provisions of the Trade
Unions Act, 1926, the Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946, and the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 and
may supersede them with the applicability of angvjsion of the Industrial Code. The Industrial Code is a central
legislation and extends to the whole of India. The Industrial Code empowers the Central Government to require an
establishment in which one hundred or more workers are employed or haveripdeyee on any day in the preceding

twelve months to constitute a works committee consisting of representatives of employer and workers engaged in the
establishment. The code further requires every establishment with twenty or more workers to haveegedvassal
committees for resolution of disputes arising out of individual grievances. The code bars the jurisdiction of civil courts
to any matter to which the provisions of the Industrial Code apply, and provides for establishment of industria tribunal
for adjudication of such matters. The Industrial Code provides for provisions pertainingptd ey retrenchment of
employees and closure of establishments and compensation provisions in relation thereto. The Industrial Code provides
for monetary firs, penalties and imprisonment in case of contravention of the provisions of the code.

Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

Under the Employeesd Provident Funds and Miscell aneou:
fund, family pension fund and deposit linked insurance are payable to employees in factories and other establishments.
The legislation provides than establishment employing more than 20 (twenty) persons, either directly or indirectly,

in any capacity whatsoever, is either required to constitute its own provident fund or subscribe to the statutory
empl oyeeds provident f ublisdment iEhequireg opnake a enonthlp ¢ontributienho thes t a
provident fund equival ent to the amount of the empl o)
requirement to maintain prescribed records and registerfiliagdof forms with the concerned authorities. The EPF

Act also prescribes penalties for avoiding payments required to be made under the abovementioned schemes.

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, as amended t hGeatuily Act 0 )

The Gratuity Act establishes a scheme for the payment of gratuity to employees engaged in every factory, mine, oil
field, plantation, port and railway company, every shop or establishment in which ten or more persons are employed or
were employed on any gaf the preceding twelve months and in such other establishments in which ten or more
employees are employed or were employed on any day of the preceding twelve months, as notified by the Central
Government from time to time. Penalties are prescribeddoicompliance with statutory provisions.

Under the Gratuity Act, an employee who has been in continuous service for a period of five years will be eligible for
gratuity upon his retirement, resignation, superannuation, death or disablement due to accident or disease. However,
the entitlement to mptuity in the event of death or disablement will not be contingent upon an employee having
completed five years of continuous service. The maximum amount of gratuity payable may not exceed 1 million.

Certain other laws and regulations that may be applicable to our Company in India include the following:
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f Mini mum Wages Act, 1948 and Maharashtra Mini mum Wa

T I'ndustri al (Devel opment and Regulation) Act, 1951 (

T I'ndustri al Di sputes Act, 1947 (Al D Act d)

T Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 (APOB Act 0)

9 Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act, 1986

1 Inter-State Migrant Workers (Regulation of Employment and Conditions of Service) Act, 1979

1 Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 ("SHWW
Act")

T Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 (AER Act o)

1 Contract Labour Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 (CLRA) and Contract Labour (Regulation and
Abolition) Central Rules, 1971 (Contract Labdrules)

T Wor kmen Compensation Act, 1923 (fAWCAO0)

1 Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 ("Maternity Act")

1 Industrial Employment Standing Orders Act, 1946

1 Apprentices Act, 1961

LAWS RELATING TO INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
Copyright Act, 1957 (ACopyright Act o)

Artistic works and various rights including ownership and economic rights are conferred on the author and are protected
under Copyright Act, 1957. These include the right to reproduce the work in any form, issue copies to the public,
perform it, and offefor sale and hire.

Trademarks Act, 1999

Under the Trademar ks Act, 1999 (ATrademar ks Act o), a t
and which is capable of distinguishing the goods or services of one person from those of others used in relation to goods
and services to indate a connection in the course of trade between the goods and some person having the right as
proprietor to use the mark. A O6markdé may consist of a
numeral, shape of goods, packaging@mbination of colors or any combination thereof.

OTHER GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS:
The Micro, Smal | and Medium Enterprises Devel opment Ac

MSME Act was enacted to provide for facilitating the promotion and development and enhancing the competitiveness
of micro, small and medium enterprises. Any person who intends to establish (a) a micro or small enterprise, at its
discretion; (b) a medium &rprise engaged in providing or rendering of services may, at its discretion; or (c) a medium
enterprise engaged in manufacture or production of goods pertaining to any industry specified in the First Schedule to
the Industries (Development and Regulatidwet, 1951 is required to file a memorandum before such authority as
specified by the State Government or the Central Government. The form of the memorandum, the procedure of its filing
and other matters incidental thereto shall be such as may be spdsifihe Central Government, based on the
recommendations of the advisory committee. Accordingly, in exercise of this power under the MSME Act, the Ministry
of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises notification dated September 18, 2015 specified that ievergmmall and

medium enterprises is required to file a Udyog Adhaar Memorandum in the form and manner specified in the
notification.

State Laws

We operate in various states. Accordingly, legislations passed by the state governments are applicable to us in those
states. These include legislations relating among others, Shops and Establishment Act, classification of fire
prevention and safety measures and other local licensing. Further, we require several approvals from local authorities
such as municipal bodies. The approvals required may vary depending state and the local area.

Municipality Laws

Pursuant to the Constitution (Seveiitgurth Amendment) Act, 1992, the respective state legislatures in India have
power to endow the municipalities with power to implement schemes and péufartions in relation to matters listed

in the Twelfth Schedule to the Constitution of India. The respective states of India have enacted laws empowering the
municipalities to issue trade license for operating eating outlets and implementation of reguksating to such

license along with prescribing penalties for rammpliance.
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The Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016

Thelnsolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC)came into effect in 2016 to achieve several objectives, including
maximizing the value of debtor's assets, promoting entrepreneurship, ensuring timely resolution of cases, and balancing
the interests of stakeholders.

Objectives:

A Maximizing the value of debtorés assets.
Promoting entrepreneurship.

Ensuring timely and effective resolution of cases.

Balancing the interests of all stakeholders.

Facilitating a competitive market and economy.

Providing a framework for crodsorder insolvency cases.

Other regulations:

I > > >

Apart from the above list of laviswhich is inclusive in nature and not exhaustigeneral laws like the Indian Contract

Act 1872, Specific Relief Act 1963, Negotiable Instrument Act 188tk Information Technology Act, 2000, Sale of
Goods Act 1930 and Consumer Protection Act 1986, The Arbitration & Conciliation Act, 1996 are also applicable to
the company.

PROPERTY RELATED LAWS
The Company is required to comply with central and state laws in respect of property. Central Laws that may be

applicable to our Company's operations include the Land Acquisition Act, 1894, the Transfer of Property Act, 1882,
Registration Act, 1908, Indiagtamp Act, 1899, and Indian Easements Act, 1882.

(This sectionis intentionally left blank)
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HISTORY AND CERTAIN CORPORATE MATTERS
BRIEF HISTORY OF OUR COMPANY

Our Company was originally incorporated under the nalianoj Jewellers Private Limited under the provisions of

the Companies Act, 1956 vide Certificate of Incorporation dated September 21, 2007, issued by the Assistant Registrar
of Companies, Chennai, Tamil Nadu, Andaman and Nicobar Islands. Subsequently, the status of the Company was
changd to public limited and the name of our Company was changéMamoj Jewellers Limited vide Special
Resolution passed by the Shareholders at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of our Company held on June 13, 2022.
The fresh certificate of incorporati@monsequent to conversion was issued on July 14, 2022, by Assistant Registrar of
Companies/ Deputy Registrar of Companies/ Registrar of Companies, Centralised Processing Centre. The Corporate
Identification Number of our Company is U52393TN2007PLC064834.

For information on our Companyds profile, activities,
standing with reference to prominent competit oQurs, maj c
Business , Industry Overview ,OurfManagemerit ,Redliated Financial Statemedts aMaln ige ment 6 s Di s c
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operafionsb e g i npage$)166, 88, 125 150 and 182

respectively of this Prospectus.

Our Companyhas 1L (Elever) shareholders as on the date of filing of this Prospectus.
CHANGES IN THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF OUR COMPANY

Except as stated below, there has been no change in the Red@fmedf our Company since the date of our company
since the date of our incorporation:

Date of From To Reason for Change
Change
November | No. 128, NSC Bose Road] No. 59, NSC Bose Roag¢ Administrative Convenienc
05,2016 Floor, Shop No. 6, Golde| Sowcarpet, Chwnng&00079,
Complex, Sowcarpet, Chenng Tamil Nadu, India

600079, Tamil Nadu, India

MAJOR EVENTS IN THE HISTORY OF OUR COMPANY

Year Key Events/Milestones/Achievements

September, 2007| Incorporation of our Company as private limited company

September, 2007| Opening of our first showroom &powcarpet, Chennai

July, 2022 Conversion of our Company from private limited company to public limited company
July, 2024 Opening of our second Showroom at Kilpauk, Chennai

MAIN OBJECTS OF OUR COMPANY
The main objects of our Company as set forth in the Memorandum of Association of our Company are as follows:

1. Our Company carry on all or any of the business of goldsmiths, silversmiths, jewellers, silver platters, electro
platters, gem and diamond merchants and buyer, seller, importer, exporter, manufacture, dealer, processors,
stockiest, distributors, agentsaf kinds of jewellery, ornaments, gems, stones, silver, platinum, bullion, precious
and semprecious metals and stones, diamonds, pearls, Rubbies, coral, coins, cups, medals, valuables, shields.

2. To carry on and undertake all any of the business relating to jewels, gold, silver, platinum, precious and semi
precious stones and metals, pearls, gems, diamonds, ornaments, jewellery and manufacturing of and dealing in
clocks, watches, jewellery, cutlergade of above precious stones and their components and accessories and of
producing, acquiring and trading in metals, bullion, golds, ornaments, silver, utensils, diamonds, precious and semi
precious stones.

AMENDMENTS TO THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF OUR COMPANY SINCE
INCORPORATION

The following changes have been made in the Memorandum of Association of our Company since Incorporation:

Date of :
Meeting Type of Meeting Nature of Amendment
October 08, | ExtraOrdinary Clause V of our Memorandum ofAssociation was amended to reflect:
2007 General Meeting
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Date of
Meeting

Type of Meeting

Nature of Amendment

ease in Authorised Capital
ded into 50, 06aAcbqubty % h-hiE
s)

I ncr
di vi
Lakh divided into 7-gdel0, 000 eq

~< 0

March 25,
2017

Extra-Ordinary
General Meeting

Clause V of our Memorandum of Association was amended to reflect:
l ncrease in Authorised Capital -
Five Lakhs) divided into-@abh,
1,70,00,000 (One Crore Seventy Lakhs) divided into 17,00,000 equity s
of -eadh0 /

April 02,
2018

Extra-Ordinary
General Meeting

Clause V of our Memorandum of Association was amended to reflect:
Increase in Authorised Capital of the Company frahi7000,000 divided
into 17,00,000 Equity Shares ofl0/ each to 5,70,00,000 divided intc
17,00,000 Equity Shares 010/ each and0,00,000 Preference Shares.

May 18, 2022

Extra-Ordinary
General Meeting

Clause V of our Memorandum of Association was amended to reflect:

Reclassification from 1,7000,000 divided into 17,00,000 Equity Shares

10/ each to 1,70,00,000 divided into 17,00,000 Equity Shares td-

each and 4,00,00,000 divide into 40,00,000 Preference Share
5 ,,09,000 divided into 57,00,000 Equity Shares B/ each

June, 13 2022

ExtraOrdinary
General Meeting

Conversion of Private Company into Public Company
The Name of the Company changed
into fiManoj Jewellers Limitedo

November 30,
2022

ExtraOrdinary
General Meeting

Clause V of our Memorandum of Association was amended to reflect:
Increase in Authorised Capital of the Company fra70,00,000 divided
into 57,00,000 Equity Shares o010/ each to 10,00,00,000 divided intc
100,00,000 Equity Shares of0F each.

OUR HOLDING COMPANY

As on the date of this Prospectus, our Company does not have any Holding Company.

OUR SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

As on the date of this Prospectus, our Company does not have any Subsidiary Company.

ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES/UNDERTAKINGS, MERGER, AMALGAMATION OR REVALUATION
OF ASSETS IN LAST 10 YEARS

Our Company has not made any material acquisitions or divestments of any business or undertaking, and has not

undertaken any mergers, amalgamation or revaluation of assets in the last ten years.

SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL OR STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS

We do not have any financial or strategic partnerships as on thefdhig Prospectus.

SHAREHOLDERSD®

AGREEMENT

Our Company has not entered into any Shareholders Agreement as on the date of this Prospectus.

OTHER AGREEMENTS

Except as disclosed in this offer document, there are no other agreements/ arrangements and clauses / covenants which
are material and which needs to be disclaseidhpact the management or control of the listed entity or impose any
restriction or create any liability upon the listed entitynondisclosure of which may have bearing on the investment
decision.

LOCK OUTS AND STRIKES

There have been no lock outs or strikes at any of the location of our Company as on the date of this Prospectus.

TIME/COST OVERRUN IN SETTING UP PROJECTS

There has been no time and cost overruns in the Company as on date of this Prospectus.
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LAUNCH OF KEY PRODUCTS OR SERVICES, ENTRY OR EXIT IN NEW GEOGRAPHIES

For details of launch of key products or services, entry in new geographies or exit from existing markets, capacity or
facility creationandthe ocat i ons, pl e @srdBusses® It d@ippagaldbgfths Prespectus.

CHANGES IN THE ACTIVITIES OF OUR COMPANY DURING THE LAST FIVE YEARS

There have been no changes in the activities of our Company during the last five years which may have had a material
effect on the profits and loss account of our Company, including discontinuance of lines of business, loss of agencies
or markets and sindr factors.

DEFAULTS OR RESCHEDULING OF BORROWINGS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS/BANKS

Our Company has not made any defaultsgateeduling of its borrowings as on date of this Prospectus.

JOINT VENTURES

As on the date of this Prospectus, thame no joint ventures of our Company.

AGREEMENTS WITH KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, SENIOR MANAGEMENT, DIRECTOR,
PROMOTERS OR ANY OTHER EMPLOYEE

Neither our Promoters, nor any of the Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management, Directors or employees of our
Company have entered into an agreement, either by themselves or on behalf of any other person, with any Shareholder
or any other third party wh regard to compensation or profit sharing in connection with the dealings of the securities

of our Company.

MATERIAL AGREEMENTS

Except as disclosed above and in the chapter fitl€du r B un paged06af this Prospectus, we have not entered
into any material agreement / contract as on the date of this Prospectus.

STRATEGIC PARTNERS

As of the date of this Prospectus, our Company does not have any Strategic Partners.
FINANCIAL PARTNERS

As on the date of this Prospectus, our Company does not have any other financial partners.
DETAILS OF GUARANTEES GIVEN TO THIRD PARTIES BY OUR PROMOTER

For details of guarantees given by our Promotereeiation to the credit facilities availed by our Company, see
6Financi al | nell8bt ednessd on pag

(This sectionis intentionally left blank)

124



OUR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Under Articles of Association of our Company, the number of directors shall not be less than 3 (three) and not be more
than 15 (Fifteen), subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

As of the date of this Prospectus, our Company have 6 (Six) Directors on the Board, 1 (One) as Managing Director, 1
(One) as Executive Director, 1 (One) as Whole Time Director, 3 (Three) as Independent Directors. There is 1 (One)
Woman Director on our BodrOur Board and committees thereof are constituted in accordance with the requirements

set forth under the Companies Act, 2013.

The details of the Directors are as mentioned in the

below table:

Name, DIN, Designation, Date of Birth, Age,
Qualification, Experience, Address, Occupation,
Date of expiration of current term

Date of Appointment/
Reappointment

Other Directorships

Name: Mr. Manoj Kumar

DIN: 01730747

Designation: Chairman and/lanaging Director
Date of Birth: April 08, 1975

Age: 50Years

Qualification: Senior Secondarfducation

Experience:16 Yearsn the fields of Management ar|
Operations

Address: B2, Block Tens Orchards, 12/73 Halls Rog
Taylors Road, Kilpauk, Chenn&ai600010.

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Date of expiration of current term: Will hold office
as a Managing Director for a period of 5 ye

commencing from July 16, 2022

Period of Directorship: Director of the Company
since September 21, 2007.

Appointed asDirector of the
Company onSeptember 21,
2007,

Re-designated asManaging
Director for a period of 5
(five) years with effect from
July 16, 2022.

Nil

Name: Mr. Sunil Shantilal

DIN: 01730790

Designation: Executive Director
Date of Birth: May 01, 1983

Age: 41 Years

Qualification: Secondarfducation
Experience:16 Yearsn the fields of HR and Finang

Address: The Gate way, A2 House, Dr, Munniyap
Street, Kilpauk, Chennai600010.

Occupation: Business

Date of expiration of current term: Liable to retire

by rotation.

Appointed asDirector of the
Companyon September 21,
2007

Redesignated asExecutive
Director of the Company for &
period of5 (five) years with
effect from July 16, 2022

Nil
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Name, DIN, Designation, Date of Birth, Age,
Qualification, Experience, Address, Occupation,
Date of expiration of current term

Date of Appointment/
Reappointment

Other Directorships

Period of Directorship: Director of the Company
since September 21, 2007.

Name: Ms. Raj Kumari

DIN: 09607998

Designation: Whole TimeDirector

Date of Birth: May 13, 1976

Age: 48 Years

Qualification; Senior Secondary Education
Experience:+2 Yearsn the fields of Operations

Address: B2, Block Tens Orchards, 12/73 Halls Rog
Taylors Road Park, Kilpauk, Chenna00010.

Occupation: Business

Date of expiration of current term: Liable to retire
by rotation.

Period of Directorship: Director of the Company
since May 18, 2022.

Appointed as Additional
Director of the Company o
May 18, 2022

Re-designated ag/hole Time
Director of the Company or
July 16, 2022

Nil

Name: Mr. Ranjith Kumar Sharup
DIN: 10621525

Designation: IndependenbDirector
Date of Birth: March 24, 1997

Age: 28 Years

Qualification: Chartered Accountant
Experience:3 Years

Address: No. 5/6/7, BBlock No. 10, Sakeshwar
Vatika Clements Road, Vepery, Chenn&D0007.

Occupation: Employed at Spark Asia Impa
Mangers Private Limited

Date of expiration of current Term: Appointed as
Independent Director of the Company on May
2024 for a period of 3 years.

Period of Directorship: Director of the Company
since May 11, 2024.

Appointed as Independent
Director of the Company or
May 11, 2024.

Nil

Name: Mr. Prathik Prasanchand Daga
DIN: 09660743
Designation: Independent Director

Date of Birth: January 20, 1989

Appointed as Independent
Director of the Company or
July 16, 2022

Nil
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Name, DIN, Designation, Date of Birth, Age,
Qualification, Experience, Address, Occupation,
Date of expiration of current term

Age: 36 Years

Date of Appointment/

Reappointment Other Directorships

Quialification: Chartered Accountant
Experience:6 Years

Address: Flat No. 2D Skylark Apartments!®Floor,
No. 59 Diwan Raman Road, Purasaiwalkam, Flow|
Road, Chenna600084.

Occupation: Practicing Chartered Accountant
Date of expiration of current Term: Appointed as
Independent Director of the Company on July 16, 2

for a period of 3 years

Period of Directorship: Director of the Company
since July 16, 2022

Name: Mr. Suganchand Ramegtumar Appointed as Independent Nil
Director of the Company or
DIN: 09661906 July 16, 2022.

Designation: Independent Director
Date of Birth: August 19, 1964

Age: 60 Years

Qualification: B. Com and LLB
Experience: 35 Yearsin the field of Law

Address: 72/2 Jermiah Road, Vepery, Chenrai
600007.

Occupation: Advocate
Date of expiration of current Term: Appointed as|
Independent Director of the Company on July 16, 2

for a period of 3 years

Period of Directorship: Director of the Company
sinceJuly 16, 2022

BRIEF PROFILE OF OUR DIRECTORS

Mr. Manoj Kumar , aged 50years is the Promoter, Managing Director of our Compathg. educational background
includes completing the Senior Secondary Education from the Department of Government Examinations, Madras, in
1992 He has been involved with the company since its inception and holds the position of Managing Director from
July 16, 2022, for a term of 5 yeatde has more than 16 years of experience in jewellery business. Currently, he
oversees the overall management and marketing activities of the company, indicating lisustgoit in steering its
strategic direction and operational aspects.

Mr. Sunil Shantilal, aged 41 years, is the Promoter and Executive Director of our Company. He has completed the
Secondary Education from Board of Matriculation Examination from the Department of Government Examinations,

Chennai, in 1999. He is part of the Board since compangeption and brings with him over 16 years of experience

in the jewellery business. He is currently responsible for the overall Financials, Administration and Human Resource
of the Company.
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Ms. Raj Kumari, aged48years is thé°>romoter andVhole TimeDirectorof our CompanyShe has done h&enior
Secondary Educatioftom Hindu Higher Secondary School, Tirupattur in 1988e is associated with our company

for past 2 YearsShe is responsible for managing and leading the operations functions of the Company in a leadership
role.

Mr. Ranjith Kumar Sharup, aged28 years is the Independent Director of our company. He has completed his
Bachelor of Commerce Degree from Loyola College, Madras in the year 2017. He is a Qualified Chartered Accountant
and has passed the Final Examination conducted by The Institute dér@HaAccountants of India in year 2020.
Previously he was associated with BSR & Co LLP, Chartered AccounBRnetsently hepractising as a Chartered
Accountant in the name of Sharup Saklecha & Co. Chartered Accourtaritas more than 3 years of experience in
finance field

Mr. Prathik Prasanchand Daga, aged36 years is thdndependenDirector of our CompanyHe has completed
Bachelors of Commerce from the University of Madras, in the year 2009. He is an Associate Member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountant India, and he also holds a Certificate of Practice received in the year 2018 from The Institute
of Chartered Accountant of India. He associated with M/s M.G.J Associates, Chartered Accountants as a Partner
since June 20181e has experienaaf 6 yearsin handling adisory services pertaining to Direct Tax matters before
Income Tax Authorities.

Mr. Suganchand Ramesh Kumar,aged60 years is thdndependenDirector of our CompanyiHe has completed
Bachelors of Commerce from the University of Madras in the year 1986. He was admitted as member of The Bar
Council of Tamil Nadu in the year 1990. He is Currently Practising at High Court of Madras and all other District Court.
He has oveB5 years of experience in the field of Legal Consultancy and Legal Advisory.

CONFIRMATIONS
As on the date of this Prospectus:

1  None of the Directors of our Company are related to each other as per Section 2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013,
except for that:

U  Mr. Manoj Kumar and Mr. Sunil Shantilal are related to each other as Brothers.
0 Mr. Manoj Kumar and Ms. Raj Kumari arelated to each other as Husband and Wife.

1  There are no arrangements or understanding with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or any other entity,
pursuant to which any of the Directors were selected as a director or member of senior management.

I  The directors of our Company have not entered into any service contracts with our Company which provides for
benefits upon termination of employment.

1  None of the Directors are categorized as a wilful defaulter or a fraudulent borrower, as defined under Regulation
2(1) (1) of SEBI ICDR Regulations.

1 None of our Directors are or were directors of any listed Company whose shares have been/were suspended from
trading by any of the stock exchange(s) during his/her tenure in that Company in the last five years or delisted
from the stock exchange(s) duritige term of their directorship in such companies.

1  None of our Directors have been declared as fugitive economic offenders as defined in Regulation 2(1)(p) of the
SEBI | CDR Regul ations, nor have been declared as a
Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018.

1  None of the Promoters or Directors has been or is involved as a promoters or director of any other Company which
is debarred from accessing the capital market under anyardeections made by SEBI or any other regulatory
authority.

1 No consideration, either in cash or shares or in any other formbegrepaid or agreed to be paid to any of our
directors or to the firms, trusts or companies in which they have an interest in, by any person, either to induce
them to become or to help them qualify as a director, or otherwise for services rendered by liighe firm,
trust or company in which he is interested, in connection with the promotion or formation of our Company.

DETAILS OF BORROWING POWERS

Pursuant to a special resolution passgdin Extraordinary General Meeting of our Company held on July2D22
and pursuant to provisions of Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
and rules made thereunder, the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to borrow monies from
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time to time, any sum or sums of money on such security and on such terms and conditions as the Board may deem fit,
notwithstanding that the money to be borrowed together with the money already borrowed by our Company may exceed
in the aggregate, its paig capital and free reserves and security premium (apart from temporary loans obtained / to
be obtained from bankers in the ordinary course of business), provided that the outstanding principal amount of such
borrowing at any point of time shall not excerdhe aggregate of Rs. 200 crores.

REMUNERATION OF OUR EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Manoj Kumar

Mr. Manoj Kumar has been the Director of the Company s8emember 21, 200Further, at the Board Meeting of
the Company dateduly 16, 2022he was Ralesignated as the Managing Director of our Company for a period of five

years with effect fronduly 16, 2022 The details of his remuneration as revised by our Boartulyn16, 2022 with
effectJuly 16, 2022for a period of five years, are as stated below:

Particulars Terms of remuneration
Remuneration Rs 100,000 / per month which shall be a sum of up to 12,00,008f annum.
Other benefits The director shall be entitled to reimbursement of expenses as decided by Board of D

of Company from time to time and variable pay to be paid as decided from time to tin
other terms andonditions of his employment be decided from time to time.

Mr. Sunil Shantilal

Mr. Sunil Shantilahas been the Director of the Company siSeptember 21, 200Further, at the Board Meeting of
the Company datedugust 01 2024, he was Ralesignated as thexecutiveDirector of our Company for a period of
five years with effect fromAugust 01, 2024The details of his remuneration as revised by our Boardlugust 01
2024, with effectAugust 01, 202, for a period of five years, are as stated below:

Particulars Terms of remuneration

Remuneration up to 10,00,006/per annum.

Other benefits The director shall be entitled to reimbursement of expenses as decided by Board of Dirg
Company from time to time andariable pay to be paid as decided from time to time and ¢
terms and conditions of his employment be decided from time to time.

Ms. Raj Kumari

Ms. Raj Kumari has been the Director of the Company smMag 18, 2022 Further, at the Board Meeting of the
Company dateduly 16, 2022she was Reéesignated as th&hole TimeDirector of our Company for a period of five
years with effect fronduly 16, 2022 The details of his remuneration as revised by our Boartliyn16, 2022 with
effectJuly 16, 2022for a period of five years, are as stated below:

Particulars Terms of remuneration

Remuneration Rs 66,66 4per month which shall be a sum of up to 8, 00,008khs per annum.

Other benefits The director shall be entitled to reimbursemengéxjfenses as decided by Board of Direct
of Company from time to time and variable pay to be paid as decided from time to tin
other terms and conditions of his employment be decided from time to time.

The compensation payable to our Directors will be governed as per the terms of their appointment and shall be subject
to the provisions of Section 2(54), Section 2(94), Section 188, Section 196, Section 197, Section 198 and Section 203
and any other applible provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules made there under (including any statutory modification(sgmaatenent thereof or any of the
provisions of the Companies Act, for the timeirg in force). The Remuneration/Sitting Fees paid to the Directors
during the last F.Y. 202324 is as follows:

(T in Lakhs)
Sr. No. Name Designation Remuneration paid
1. Mr. Manoj Kumar Managing Director 12:-00/
2. Mr. Sunil Shantilal Executive Director 10-00/
3. Ms. Raj Kumari Whole TimeDirector 8- 00/

SITTING FEES

In terms of the resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on May 11, 2024, the
Independent Directors are entitled to fess of Rs. 5,000 per meeting of the Board or Cothenittafe
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REMUNERATION PAID OR PAYABLE TO OUR DIRECTORS BY OUR SUBSIDIARIES OR ASSOCIATES

As on the date of this Prospectus, we do not have any subsidiaries or associates.

PAYMENT OF BENEFITS (NON -SALARY RELATED)

Except as disclosed above, no amount or benefit has been paid or given within the two (2) years preceding the date of
filing of this Prospectus or is intended to be paid or given to any of our directors except the remuneration for services
rendered and/aitting fees as Directors.

CONTINGENT AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION PAYABLE TO DIRECTORS

There is no contingent or deferred compensation payable to our directors, which does not form part of their
remuneration.

BONUS OR PROFIT-SHARING PLAN FOR THE DIRECTORS

None of the Directors are party to any bonus or psifaring plan of our Company.
SHAREHOLDING OF OUR DIRECTORS

Our Articles of Association do not require our directors to holdcralification shares.

The details of the shareholding of our directors as on the date of this Prospectus are as follows:

Sr. No. Name of the Director No. of Equity Shares oo @ pre 1ssue il i o FIOEl ISELE
up capital paid up capital

1. Mr. ManojKumar 25,66,615 42.88 28.56

2. Ms. Raj Kumari 6,32,500 10.57 7.04

3. Mr. Sunil Shantilal 14,77,264 24.68 16.44

INTEREST OF OUR DIRECTORS

All our directors may be deemed to be interested to the extent of remuneration and reimburserpamtsafs, if any,
payable to them by our Company as well as sitting fees, if any, payable to them for attending meetings of our Board or
Committees thereof payable to them.

Further our directors may be deemed to be interested to the extent of shareholding held by them in our Company or
held by the entities in which they are associated as directors or partners, or that may be subscribed by or allotted to the
companies, firmsyentures, trusts in which they are interested as promoters, directors, partners, proprietors, members
or trustees, pursuant to the Issue and any dividend and other distributions payable in respect of such Equity Shares. For
the shareholding of the Director, pl ease r e Ow Managaneenqt tSkareholdingtof oerdirefitotss o0 n
pagel30 of this Prospectus.

Further, relatives of certain of our directors are also shareholders and / or employees of our Company and may be
deemed to be interested to the extent of the payment of remuneration made by our Company andatcidesdion

the Equity Shares held by them, if any. For the payments that are made by our Company to such relatives of the
Di r e ct oRestated Biramrial StatemeritsAnnexure 1X- Related Party Transactiods o n 177 afgthds
Prospectus. Except mentioned in the Restated Financial Statements, no loans have been availed or extended by our
directors from or to, our Company.

No sum has been paid or agreed to be paid to our directors or to firms or companies in which they may be members, in
cash or shares or otherwise by any person either to induce them to become, or to qualify them as, a director, or otherwise
for services redered by them by such firm or company, in connection with the promotion or formation of our Company.

Except as stated in the heading titf@topertie® under the chapter titled@Our Businesd beginning on pag&06 of
this Prospectus, none of our directors have interest in any property acquired or proposed to be acquired by our Company,
or in any transaction by our Company for acquisition of land, construction of building or supply of machinery.

Except as st at e duriBasindsth ea Rediatdy Financial Statémedtsd b 61 g onrmpagel@6gnd
150respectivelyand to the extent of shareholding in our Company, if anydirectors do not have any other ibess
interest in our Company.

ExceptMr. Manoj Kumar Ms. Raj Kumariand Mr. Sunil Shantilal who are also the Promoters of our Company, none
of the other Directors are interested in the promotion of our Company.
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CHANGES IN OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS DURING THE LAST THREE YEARS

Date of
&y Name of the Director AP .| Reason for Change
No. /Change in
designation
1. Mr. Manoj Kumar July 16, 2022 Managing Director
2. Mr. Sunil Shantilal August 01, 202 Appointed Executive Director
3. Ms. Raj Kumari May 18, 2022 Appointed as Additional Director
4, Ms. Raj Kumari July 16, 2022 Re-designated as Whole Time Director
5. Mr. Prasanchand Daga Prathik July 16, 2022 Appointed as Independent Director
6. Mr. Suganchand Ramesh Kum| July 16, 2022 Appointed as Independent Director
7. Mr. Prasan Kumar July 16,2022 Appointed as Independent Director
8. Mr. Prasan Kumar September 07, 2023 Resignation from Independent Director
9. Mr. Ranjith Kumar Sharup May 11,2024 Appointed as Independent Director

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We are in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act in respect of corporate governance including
constitution of the Board and committees thereof. Furtbenditions of corporate governance as stipulated in
Regulation 17 to 27 of the SEBI LODR Regulations is not applicable to our company in terms of the Regulation 15(2)(b)
of the SEBI LODR Regulation®©ur Board has been constituted in compliance with the Companies Act. The Board
functions either as a full board or through various committeestitoted to oversee specific functions.

Our Company stands committed to good corporate governance practices based on the principles such as accountability,
transparency in dealing with our stakeholders, emphasis on communication and transparent report.

Our Board functions either as a full Board or through the various committees constituted to oversee specific operational
areas. As on the date of this Prospectus, our Company has Six (6) Directors, 1 (Ohaj@ersorf. Managing
Director, 1 (One) as Wholéime Director, and 3 (Three) as Independent Director 1 (One) Executive DirEatoe is

1 (One) Woman Director in our Board.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board of Directors presently has Three (3) committees which have been constituted in accordance with the relevant

provisions of the

and Remuneration Camittee.

Audit Committee

Compani es

Act : Audi t

(i)

Committee,

Our Board has reonstituted the Audit Committee vide Board Resolution dated May 11, 2024 whidh a@®rdance
with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The audit committee comprises of:

Name of the Directors Nature of Directorship Designation in Committee
Mr. Prathik Prasanchand Daga Independent Director Chairman

Mr. Ranjith KumarSharup Independent Director Member

Mr. Suganchand Ramesh Kumar | Independent Director Member

Ms. Vaneeta Khanna&Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company will act as the Secretary of the

Committee.

The role of Audit Committee shall include but shall not be restricted to the following:

1. Over seei t he

ng

Companyo6s f

the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

nanci al reporting

process

2. Recommending to the Board, the appointmengppointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of the
statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees;

particular reference to:
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Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the board for approval, with
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(i) Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's
report in terms of clause (c) of sgbction 3 of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

(i) Changes, if any, in accounting policies qumectices and reasons for the same;
(iif) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;
(iv) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;
(v) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;
(vi) Disclosure of any related party transactions; g. Qualificatiotiseidraft audit report;
(vii) Qualifications in thedraft audit report;
5. Reviewing with the management the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;
6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an issue (public issue,
rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stasden the
document/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a
public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

7. Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

8. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of the internal
control systems;

9. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department,
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal
audit;

10.Discussion with internal auditors asignificant findings and follow up there on;

11.Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material naturepoding the matter to the board,;

12.Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post
audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

13.To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders
(in case of norpayment of declared dividends) and creditors;

14.To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

15.Approval of appointment of CFO (or the whdlme Finance Director or any other person heading the finance
function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience & background, etc. of the
candidate;

16.Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

17.Scrutiny of intercorporate loans and investments;

18.Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, whenever it is necessary;

19.Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

20.Review of management discussion and analysis report, management letters issued by the statutory auditors etc;

21.Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee;

22.Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the subsidiary
exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans/

advances/ investments existiag on the date of coming into force of this provision; and

23.Consider and comment orationale, cosbenefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger,
amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders.
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Explanation (i): The term fArel ated party transactions¢
Related Party Transactions, issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Explanation (ii): If the Issuer has set up an audit committee pursuant to provision of the Companies Act, the said audit
committee shall have such additional functions / features as is contained in this clause.

The Audit Committee enjoys following powers:

i) To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.

i) To seek information from any employee.

iii) To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

iv) To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise if it considers necessary.
The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

i) Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

i) Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by
management;

iii) Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;
iv) Internal audit reports relating to internal contn@aknesses; and

v) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the internal auditor shall be subject to review by the
Audit Committee.

vi) statement of deviations: (a) half yearly statement of deviation(s) submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of
Regulation 32(1) of the SEBI LODR Regulations; and (b) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other
than those stated in thesuedocument/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7) of the SEBI LODR
Regulations.

The recommendations of the Audit Committee on any matter relating to financial management, including the audit
report, are binding on the Board. If the Board is not in agreement with the recommendations of the Committee, reasons
for disagreement shall hawe be incorporated in the minutes of the Board Meeting and the same has to be
communicated to the shareholders. The Chairman of the committee has to attend the Annual General Meetings of the
Company to provide clarifications on matters relating to thét.aud

Meeting of Audit Committee and Relevant Quorum

The Audit Committee shall meet at least four times in a year and not more than one hundred and twenty days shall
elapse between two meetings. The quorum for audit committee meeting shall either be two members or one third of the
members of the audit comnge, whichever is greater, with at least two independent directors.

Stakehol dersé6 Relationship Committee

Our Board has constituted the Stakehol derNay 11IROUati ons
pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Stakehol dero6s Relationship Committee comprises of:

Name of the Directors Nature of Directorship Designation in Committee
Mr. Suganchand Ramesh Kumar Independent Director Chairman

Mr. Prasanchand Dadrathik Independent Director Member

Ms. Raj Kumari Whole Time Director Member

Ms. Vaneeta Khanna Company Secretary ofCbepany will act as the Secretary of the Committee.

This committee will address all grievances of Shareholders/Investors and its terms of reference include the following:

133



1. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company, including complaints related to
transfer/transmission of shares, magceipt of annual report, neeceipt of declared dividends, issue of
new/duplicate certificates, general meetings, etc.;

2. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders;

3.  Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services rendered by
the registrar and share transfer agent;

4. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of
the Company;

5. Formulate procedures in line with the statutory guidelines to ensure speedy disposal of various requests received
from shareholders from time to time;

6. Approve, register, refuse to register transfer or transmission of shares and other securities;

7. Subdivide, consolidate and or replace any share or other securities certificate(s) of the Company;
8. Allotment and listing oBhares;

9. Authorise affixation of common seal of the Company;

10. Issue duplicate share or other security(ies) certificate(s) in lieu of the original share/security(ies) certificate(s) of
the Company;

11. Approve the transmission of shares or other securities arising as a result of death of the sole/any joint shareholder;
12. Dematerialize or rematerialize the issued shares;
13. Ensure proper and timely attendance and redressal of investor queries and grievances;

14. Carry out any other functions contained in the Companies Act, 2013 (including Section 178) and/or equity listing
agreements (if applicable), as and when amended from time to time; and

15. Further delegate all or any of the power to any other employee(s), officer(s), representative(s), consultant(s),
professional(s), or agent(s).

Meeting of Stakeholdersdé6 Relationship Committee and Re
The stakehol dersdéd Rel ationshi p andghatrepottto ¢he Bohrd of Directoeset a't
on a quarterly basiggarding the status of redressal of complaints received from the shareholders of the Cohwany

qguorum for a meeting of the Stakeholderds Relationship

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Our Board has reonstituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee vide Board Resolution dated May 11, 2024
pursuant to section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of:

Name of the Directors Nature of Directorship Designation in Committee
Mr. Prasanchand Dad&rathik Independent Director Chairman

Mr. Ranjith Kumar Sharup Independent Director Member

Mr. Suganchand Ramesh Kumar Independent Director Member

Ms. Vaneeta Khanna CompaBgcretary of our Company acts as the Secretary to the Committee.
The scope of Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall include but shall not be restricted to the following:
1. formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and

recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and
other employees;
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2. for every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall evaluate
the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a
description of the role and capabilitiexjuired of an independent director. The person recommended to the Board
for appointment as an independent director shall have the capabilities identified in such description. For the
purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may:

i) use the services of an external agencies, if required,;
i) consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and
iii) consider the time commitments of the candidates.

3. formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

4. devising a policy on Board diversity;

5. identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal;

6. whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of independent directors; and

7. recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.
Meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Relevant Quorum

The quorum necessary for a meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be two members. The
Committee shall meett least once a year, and at other times as needed.

IPO COMMITTEE

The IPO Committee was constituted vide resolution passed by the Board of Directors of our Company at its meeting
held onSeptember 262024. The IPO Committee has been constituted for the purpose of taking all necessary steps in
relation to the proposed initial publgsue

However, in exceptional circumstances where it is not possible for the members of the IPO committee to meet due to
any unforeseen circumstances like want of quorum, or any other reason, Mr. Manoj Kumar, Managing Director of the
Company shall have absolytewer to take all decisions in relation to the proposed IPO including but not limited to
the power to withdraw the proposed issue and exercising all the powers vested in the IPO Committee.

Composition of IPO Committee

The committee presently comprises the following directors:

Sr. No | Name of the Director Position Nature of Directorship
1. Mr. Manoj Kumar Chaiman Managing Director

2. Mr. Sunil Shantilal Member Executive Director

3. Ms. Raj Kumari Member Whole Time Director

Ms. Vaneeta Khanna, the Company Secretary of our Company acts as the Secretary of the IPO Committee.

Scope and terms of referenceThe IPO Committee exercises powers in relation to the matters listed below:

The IPO Committee exercises powers in relation to the matters listed below:

To take all steps and to do all acts, deeds, matters and things and to sign all documents, agreements, contracts, deeds,

documents, declarations, affidavits, undertakings, appointment letters, applications, forms and papers, amongst others,

and also to tak decisions and issue clarifications on all issues and matters in connection with the Issue including but

not limited to the following:

1. Positioning of the initial public offering including appointing all intermediaries for the Issue including Lead
Managers, Legal Advisor, Registrar to the Issue, Bankers to the Issue, Underwriters, Market Makers, Printers,
Advertising Agency among othersygapproval of expenses related thereto;

2. Finalizing the timeines for the Issue inonsultation with the Lead Manager and other concerned intermediaries;
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3. Ensuring and finalizing all disclosures to be made in the Draft Prospectus, and the Prospectus to be filed with SEBI
and the RoC as per the requirements of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, 2018, Companies Act and other applicable
laws;

4. Deciding the capital structure of the Company including the size of the Issue, in consultation with the Lead
Manager, among others;

5. Deciding the objects of the Issue, the use of the Issue proceeds and the deployment of funds raised in the Issue and
changes therein, if any, among others;

6. Deciding the Issue Price and other terms of the Issue in consultation with the Lead Manager;
7. Finalizing and approving the Issue expenses in consultation with the Lead Manager;

8 Filing of applications toprtrhecspbekappcbaagygésahndr | obi
others and ensuring compliance with the Listing Agreement with stock exchange including constituting the various
committees as per LODR relgitions; and Taking decisions on and resolving all such questions, difficulties on all
matters in relation to the proposed Issue, issuing explanations and clarifications to SEBI, the RBI, the stock
exchange, the RoC, and all other regulatory authoritidsggavernment offices, among others, in connection with
any matter relating to disclosures in the Drafbspectus and the Prospectus, or any other matter, issue and
grievance related to or incidental with the Issue or listing of the shares of the Company, among others.

POLICY ON DISCLOSURES AND INTERNAL PROCEDURE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The provisions of Regulation 9(1) of the SEBI PIT Regulations will be applicable to our Company immediately upon
the listing of its Equity Shares on tf8&ME Platform of BSE Limited i.e. BSE SME. We shall comply with the
requirements of the SEBI PIT Regulations on listing of Equity Shares on stock exchange. Further, Board of Directors
have formulated and adopted the code of conduct to regulate, monitoeantitrading by its employees and other
connected persons. Ms. Vaneeta Khanna Company Secretary & Compliance Officer will be responsible for setting forth
policies, procedures, monitoring and adherence to the rules for the preservation of price $efositia¢ion and the
implementation of the Code of Conduct under the overall supervision of the board.

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1

MR. MANOJ KUMAR MR. SUNIL SHANTILAL MS. RAJ KUMARI Non-Executive
(Managing Director) (Executive Director) (Whole Time Director) Independent Directors
] ) v v ) v
MR. PRASHANT VILAS MS. VANEETA KHANNA MR. MAYANK GIRISHBHAI MR. RANJITH KUMAR MR. PRASANCHAND DAGA MR. SUGANCHAND
SHELAKE (Company Secretary and GARACH SHARUP PRATHIK RAMESH KUMAR
(Administrative Head) Compliance Officer) (CFO) (Independent Director) (Independent Director) (Independent Director)

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our Company is managed by our Board of Directors, assisted by qualified and experienced professionals, who are
permanent employees of our Company. Below are the details of the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
of our Company:

S. Name, Designation, Date of | Age Term of | Details of service| Experi | Previous
No. | Qualification Joining (Yrs) office  with | contracts ence Employmen
date of | including (yrs)
expiration of | termination/retir
term ement benefits
1. Name: Mr. Manoj Kumar | Director | 50 Date of | N/A 16 NA
Designation:  Managing| of the | years | expiration of Years
Director Company term of
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Qualification: Senior| since office:  July
Secondary Education Septembe 15, 2027(i.e.

r 21, 5 years from

2007. date of

Appointe appointment)

d as

Managing

Director

of the

Company

w.e.f. July

16, 2022
Name: Ms. Raj Kumari Director | 48 Date of | N/A 2+ NA
Designation: Whole Time| of the | Years | expiration of Years
Director Company term of
Qualification: Senior| sinceMay office:  July
Secondary Education 18, 2022 15, 2027(i.e.

Appointe 5 years from

d as date of

Whole appointment)

Time

Director

of the

Company

w.e.f. July

16, 2022
Name: Mr. Sunil Shantial | Director | 41 Date of | N/A 16 NA
Designation:  Executive| of the | years | expiration of Years
Director Company term of
Qualification:  Secondary| since office:  July
Education Septembe 15, 2027(i.e.

r 21, 5 years from

2007. date of

Appointe appointment)

d as

Executive

Director

of the

Company

w.e.f. July

16, 2022
Name: Mr. Mayank | August 30 NA N/A 6 years|M/s
Girishbhai Garach 01, 2024 | Years Kishorsinh
Designation: Chief Chauhan &
Financial Officer (CFO) Associates,
Qualification: MBA with Chartered
specialization in Financig Accountant
Management from the
National Institute of
Business Managemen
Guijarat Masters in
Commerce from Saurasht
University
Name: Ms. Vaneetal August 35 NA N/A 5 Worked  ag
Khanna 06, 2022 | Years Years |Associate i
Designation: Company ASA &
Secretary and Compliang Associates
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Officer from 202t
Qualification: ~ Company 2022. Workec
Secretary Masters  of as Associat
Commerce in Busines in Chancha
Policy and  Corporatg Mittal &
Governancefrom IGNOU Associates
and has completed her LL from 2019
from Chaudhary Chara 2020.
Singh University

6. Name: Mr. Prashant Vilag June 28, 29 NA N/A 12 NA
Shelake 2012 years years
Designation:
Administration Head
Qualification: Senior
Secondargducation

Key Managerial Personnel of our Company (KMP):

Mr. Manoj Kumar (DIN: 01730747, aged around 5@ears, is the Promoter and Managing Director of our Company.

He has completed Senior Secondary Education from Department of Government Examinations, Madras in 1992. He
has been on the Board of our Company since incorporation and has been appointedyasyNbareector for a period

of 5 years with effect from July 16, 2022. He has more than 16 years of experience in jewellery business. He is currently
responsible for the overall management and marketing affairs of the Contpamalds 25,66,615 Equity Shes;
representing 42.88% of the issued, subscribed andypekttjuity Share capital of our Company.

During the financial year 20234, he received salary of RH).36 Lakhdrom the Company. Except as stated herein
above, no salary, compensation or benefits in kind were granted by the Company to Mr. Manoj Kumar, Managing
Director, during the financial year 2023.

Ms. Raj Kumari, (DIN: 09607998)aged around 48 years is the Whole Time Director of our Company. She has been
appointed as Additional Executive director on May 18, 2022 and has been designated as Whole Time Director July 16,
2022.She has done h&enior Secondary Educatidrom Hindu Higher Secondary School, Tirupattur in 19SRe

holds 6,32,500 Equity Shares, representing 10.57% of the issued, subscribed amEiity Share capital of our
Company.

During the financial year 20224, she received salary of R&35 Lakhsrom the Company. Except as stated herein
above, no salary, compensation or benefits in kind were granted by the Company to Ms. Raj Kumari, Whole Time
Director, during the financial year 2023.

Mr. Sunil Shantilal, (DIN: 01730790Rged around 41 years, is the Promoter and Executive Director of our Company.
He has completed the Secondary Education from Board of Matriculation Examination from the Department of
Government Examinations, Chennai, in 1999. He is part of the Board simgeany's inception and brings with him

over 16 years of experience in the jewellery business. He is currently responsible for the overall Financials,
Administration and Human Resource of the Company.

During the financial year 20224, he received salary of R8.93 Lakhsfrom the Company. Except as stated herein
above, no salary, compensation or benefits in kind were granted by the Company to Mr. Sunil SEratildiye
Director, during the financial year 2023..

Mr. Mayank Girishbhai Garach, aged around 30 years is the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of our Company. He has
completed hiMasters in Commerce from Saurashtra University in May 2018V (Finance) from the National
Institute of Business Management, Gujarat in May 2®i8.hasmore than 6 yearsf experience irfinancial and
administrative mattersPrior to joining our Company as a CFO, he was working Witk Kishorsinh Chauhan &
Associates, Chartered AccountanaasAccountantHe was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of our Company with
effect from August 01, 2024e looks aftethe Financéepartment of the Company.

No Salary, compensation or benefits in kind were granted or paid by the Company to Mr. Mayank Girishbhai Garach,
Chief Financial Officerduring the financial year 20224, as he has recently joined the Company.

Ms. Vaneeta Khanna,aged around 35 years, is the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company. She
is a Member of The Institute of Company Secretaries of India since fRafthér she has completed hdasters of
Commerce in Business Policy and Corporate Governfrooe IGNOU and has also done her LLB from Chaudhary
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Charan Singh UniversityShe has post qualification experience of aroBngkars in Corporate Compliances and
Corporate Secretarial matters. She was last associatedA@&#fthand Associates as an associ&earrently she is
handling all the Secretarial and Corporate Compliance activities of the Congtejyined the Company as Company
Secretary and Compliance Offiosith effect from August 06, 2022.

During the financial year 20224, she received salary of Rs58 Lakhsrom the Company. Except as stated herein
above, no salary, compensation or benefits in kind were granted by the Company to Ms. VaneetaGtGmapaay
Secretary and Compliance Officeluring the financial year 20234.

Senior Management Personnel of our Company (SMP):

In addition to the above, the details of our other Senior Management Personnel in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations,
as of the date of this Prospectus are set forth below:

Mr. Prashant Vilas Shelake,aged30years,s theAdministration Heaaf our companyHe has been associated with

our company since Jurd®, 2012. He has completed his Senior Secondary Education from Maharashtra State Board in
the year 2014. Heversees various crucial functions to ensure smooth operations and support business growth. He
manages office operations, finances, and inventory. His role is essential in managing administrative processes
effectively and supporting the organization's @esuccessHe has around more than 12 years of experience in the
Gemsand Jewellery industry.

During the financial year 20224, he received salary of R3.68 Lakhsfrom the Company. Except as stated herein
above, no salary, compensation or benefits in kind were granted by the Company to Mr. Prashant Vilas Shelake,
ExecutveAdministration Headduring the financial year 20234.

STATUS OF OUR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

All our Key Managerial Personnel and senior management are permanent employees of our Company.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN OUR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Except mentioned below, none of our directors are related to each other or to our Key Managerial Personnel:

a) Mr. Manoj Kumar and Mr. Sunil Shantilal are related to each other as Brothers.
b) Mr. Manoj Kumarand Ms. Raj Kumari are related to each other as Husband and Wife.

SHAREHOLDING OF THE KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Except for the following, none of our KMPs or senior management holds any shares of our Company as on the date of
this Prospectus.

Sr. Name of the Director Designation No. of Equity | Percentage  of

No. Shares Pre-Issue
Capital (%)

1. Mr. Manoj Kumar Managing Director 25,66,615 42.88

2. Ms. Raj Kumari Whole Time Director 6,32,500 10.57

3. Sunil Shantilal Executive Director 14,77,264 24.68

SERVICE CONTRACTS WITH KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our Key Managerial Personnel or Senior Management have not entered into any service contracts with our Company
which provide for anypenefits upon termination of their employment in our Company.

INTEREST OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
None of our Key Management Personnel or Senior Management has any interest in our Company except to the extent
of their remuneration, benefits, reimbursement of expenses incurred by them in the ordinary course of business. Our

Key Managerial Personnel oeSior Management may also be interested to the extent of Equity Shares, if any, held by
them and any dividend payable to them and other distributions in respect of such Equity Shares in future.
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ARRANGEMENT OR UNDERSTANDING WITH MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS/ CUSTOMERS/ SUPPLIERS

There is no arrangement or understanding with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or others, pubsctant to
any of our Key Managerial Personnel or senior management have been selected as the Key Managerial Personnel or
senior management of our Company.

BONUS OR PROFIT-SHARING PLAN OF THE KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

There is no profisharing plan for the Key Managerial Personnel or senior management. However, our Company
provides performance linked bonus payments, in accordance with their terms of appointment.

CONTINGENT AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION PAYABLE TO OUR KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

There is no contingent or deferred compensation payable to our Key Managerial Personnel and senior management,
which form part of their remuneration.

EMPLOYEE SHARE PURCHASE AND EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN

Our Company does not have an employee stock option scheme as on the date of this Prospectus.

PAYMENT OR BENEFIT TO OUR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

No non- salary related amount or benefit has been paid or given to any officer of our Company within the two years
preceding the date of filing of this Prospectus or is intended to be paid or given, other than in the ordinary course of
their employment.

CHANGES IN OUR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT IN THE LAST
THREE YEARS FROM THE DATE OF FILING OF THIS PROSPECTUS

The changes in our Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management during the three years immediately preceding
the date of filing of this Prospectus are set forth below:

Date of Appointment/

Name Designation Change in | Reason for Change
designation

Manoj Kumar Managing Director July 16, 2022 g:::ggfr in-designation as Managi
Raj Kumari Additional Director May 18, 2022 Appointed as Additional Director
Raj Kumari Whole Time Director | July 16, 2022 g:::ggfr inDesignation as Whole Tim

Company  Secretar Appointed as Company Secretary a
Vaneeta Khanna | and Compliancg August 06 2022 Compliance Officer

Officer
Sunil Shantilal Executive Director August 01, 2024 Resigned as Chief Financi@fficer
Mayank Girishbhail Chief Financial Officer Appointed as Chief Financial Officer

August 01, 2024

Garach

ATTRITION OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The attrition of Key Managerial Personnel and senior management is not biglGompany compared to the industry.
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OUR PROMOTERS AND PROMOTER GROUP
As on the date of this Prospectus, our Promoters 988505 Equity Shares, representirg45% of the preissued,
subscribed and paidp Equity Share capital of o@ompany. For details ofthebuildp of our Pr omoter séb
i n our Co mp aQapital Sputteén s lee @ ie re nabhajthioProspedug.

The details of our Promoters are as under:

Mr. Manoj Kumar

Mr. Manoj Kumar (DIN: 01730747, aged around 5
years, is the Promoteghairman andlanaging Director of
our Company. He has completed Senior Secon
Education from Department @overnment Examinationg
Madras in 1992. He has been on the Board of our Com
since incorporation and has beappointed as Managin
Director for a period of 5 years with effect from July ]
2022. He has more than 16 years of experience in jewe
business. He is currently responsible for the ove
management and marketing affairs of the Company.
holds %,66,615 Equity Shares, representirtjd8% of the
issued, subscribed and paigd Equity Share capital of ol
Company. For the complete profilé Manoj Kumar, along
with details of his educational qualifications, professio
experience, position/posts held in the past, directors
held, special achievements and business and fina
activities, s eieB ofiaQudr oMa nCx
pagel2s

Date of Birth: April 08, 1975

Age: 50 Years

Nationality: Indian

Educational Qualifications: Senior Secondary Educatio
Designation: ManagingDirector

DIN: 01730747

PAN: AADPM4316L

Experience In BusinessMore than 16 Years
Residential Address:B2 Block Tens Orchards, 12/73 Ha
Road, Taylors Road, Kilpauk, Chennai 600010, Tamil Ng
India

Directorship held: NA

Special AchievementNil

Business and Financial Activities: He is currently
Managing Director of Manoj Jewellers Limited.

Other Ventures. Manoj HUF
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Ms. RAJ KUMARI

Ms. Raj Kumari, (DIN: 09607998 aged around 48 years
the Whole Time Director of our Company. She has b
appointed agdditional Executive director on May 18, 201
and has been designated as Whole Time Director July
2022.She has done her Senior Secondary Education
Hindu Higher Secondary School, Tirupattur in 19%he
holds 6,32,500 Equity Shares, representing 10.57% o
issued, subscribed and paid Equity Share capital of ol
Company. For the complete profile of Ms. Raj Kumg
along with details of his educational qualificatio
professional experience, gtion/posts held in the pas
directorships heldspecial achievements and business
financi al activiti eisBoards af
Directpge2b on

Date of Birth: May 13, 1976

Age: 48 Years

Nationality: Indian

Educational Qualifications: Senior Secondary Educatior

Designation: Whole Time Director

DIN: 09607998

Experience in Business:+ 2years

PAN: AFZPR3M2M

Residential AddressB2 Block Tens Orchards, 12/73 Ha
Road, Taylors Road, Kilpauk, Chennai 600010.

Directorship held: NA

Special AchievementNil

Business and Financial Activities:She is currently Wholé
Time Director of Manoj Jewellers Limited.

Other Ventures:. Nil
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Mr. SUNIL SHANTILAL

Mr, Sunil Shantilal, (DIN: 01730790 aged41 yeards the
Promoter, Executive Director of outompany. He ha
completed the Secondary Education from Board
Matriculation Examination from the Department

Government Examinations, Chennai, in 1999. He is pa
the Board since company's inception and brings with
over 16 years of experiencetime jewellery business. He
currently responsible for the overall Financig
Administration and Human Resource of the Compadwy.
holds 14,77,264Equity Shares, representizg.68% of the
issued, subscribechd paidup Equity Share capital of ol
CompanyFor his complete profile along with the details
his date of birth, address, educational qualificat
experience in the business, positions/posts held in

directorships held, other ventures, special achievement
business and financial actiis, please refer to the chap
t i t Oue Manayemerdton pagel25of this Prospectus.

Date of Birth: May 01, 1983

Age: 39 Years

Nationality: Indian

Educational Qualifications: Secondary Education
Designation: Executive Director

DIN: 01730790

Experience in BusinessMore than 16 Years
PAN: AURPS463A

Residential Address: The Gate Way, A2 House, D
Munniyappa Street, Kilpauk, Chenng00 010.

Directorship held: NA
Special AchievementNil

Business and Financial Activities: He is currently,
Executive Director of Manoj Jewellers Limited.

Other Ventures. Mangalam Foundations

Ms. Shalu

Ms. Shalu (PAN: AEZPB6460N)aged43 yearsis the
Promoter of our CompanyShe is Graduate and hol
Degree of Bachelor of Art in English from University
Madras, ChennaShe hasapproximatelymore thar6 years
of experience in jewelry business. She holds 9,17,126 E
Shares, representing 15.32% of the issued, subscribe
paidup Equity Share capital of our Compan8he is
currently associated with the Company &asiness
Development Executive

Date of Birth: January 21, 1982
Age: 43 Years

Nationality: Indian
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Educational Qualifications: Graduate
Designation: Promoter

Experience in Business6+ years
PAN: AEZPB6460N

Residential Address: The Gate Way, A2 House, D
Munniyappa Street, Kilpauk, Chenna00 010.

Directorship held: NA
Special AchievementNil

Business and Financial Activities: She is Busines
Development Executive &anoj Jewellers Limited.

Other Ventures; Nil

DECLARATION

1. We confirm that the Permanent Account Number, Bank Account number, Passport number, Driving License
number Aadhaar Card number of our Promoters shall be submitted to the Stock Exchange at the time of filing of
the Prospectus with the Stock Exchange.

2. Our Promoters and the members of our Promoter Group have confirmed that they have not been identified as
wilful defaulters or fraudulent borrowers by the RBI or any other governmental authority.

3. Our Promoters have not been declared as a fugitive economic offender under the provisions of section 12 of the
Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018.

4. No violations of securities law have been committed by our Promoters or members of our Promoter Group or any
Group Companies in the past or is currently pending against them. None of (i) our Promoters and members of our
Promoter Group or persons in contobbr on the boards of bodies corporate forming part of our Group Companies
(ii) the Companies with which any of our Promoters are or were associated as a promoter, director or person in
control, are debarred or prohibited from accessing the capital tmarke=strained from buying, selling, or dealing
in securities under any order or directions passed for any reasons by the SEBI or any other authority or refused
listing of any of the securities issued by any such entity by any stock exchange in laioliaaut.

CHANGE IN CONTROL OF OUR COMPANY

There has not been any change in the control of our Company in the five years immediately preceding the date of this
Prospectus.

INTEREST OF OUR PROMOTERS

Our Promoters do not have any interest in our Company except to the extent of compensation payable / paid, rents on
properties owned by them or their relatives but used by our company and reimbursement of expenses (if applicable)
and to the extent of anyjeity shares held by them or their relatives and associates or held by the companies, firms and
trusts in which they are interested as director, member, partner, and / or trustee, and to the extent of benefits arising out
of such shareholding. For furthefret ai | s pl ease s EapitaltStiueturéc, Radfated Financial i t | e d
Statements a @uil Maimagemerit b e gi n ni 61Ld50andl2poktigsePsospectus.

Except as stated otherwise in this Prospectus, we have not entered into any contract, agreements or arrangements in
which our Promoters are directly or indirectly interested and no payments have been made to them in respect of the
contracts, agreementsanrangements which are proposed to be made with them including the properties purchased by
our Company and development rights entered into by our Company other than in the normal course of business. For
further details, please see chapter tifieR e s tFiaan@atiStatements b e g i pagelb0Ef ths Rrospectus.

Interest of Promoter in the Promotion of our Company

Our Company is currently promoted by the Promoters in order to carry on its present business. Our Promoters are

interested in our Company to the extent of their shareholding and directorship in our Company and the dividend

declared, if any, by our Compan®ur Promoters may also be deemed to be interested to the extent of Equity Shares

held by them and their immediate relatives in our Company and also to the extent of any dividend payable to them and
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other distributions in respect of the said Equity Shares in our Company. For details regarding the shareholding of our
Promoters in our Company, see the chapter titl€tla p i t a | oSpagetl of this Prespectus.

Interest of Promoter in the Property of our Company

Except as stated in the heading titRRRropertie® under the chapter titleOur Businessa n Resfated Financial
Statements b e g i rpagelB6gandb50 respectively of this Prospectus, our Promoters have confirmed that they

do not have any interest in any property acquired by our Company within three years preceding the date of this
Prospectus or proposed to be acquired by our Company as on the date of thisurospect

Further, other than as Oudusinds® nkeelg dmpagelaef this RraspectesrOurt i t | e ¢
Promoters does not have any interest in any land or property acquired by our Company in the three years preceding the
date of this Prospectus or proposed to be acquired by our Company or in any transaction with respect to the acquisiti

of land, construction of building or supply of machinery or any other contract, agreement or arrangement entered into

by our Company and no payments have been made or are proposed to be made in respect of these contracts, agreements
or arrangements.

Our Promoters are not interested as member of a firm or company, and no sum has been paid or agreed to be paid to
them or to such firm or company in cash or shares or otherwise by any person either to induce such person to become,
or qualify them as a diotor, or otherwise for services rendered by them or by such firm or company in connection with

the promotion or formation of our Company.

Interest in our Company other than as Promoter

Our Promoters who are also the Directors of our Company may be deemed to be interested to the extent of remuneration,
commission and reimbursement of expenses payable to them as per the terms of his appointment, the Articles of
Association of our Companynad r el evant provisions of Companies Act.
compensation and other details please refer to the chaptefiti@ed r  Ma n aog pageE2Bdf this Prospectus.

Except as mentioned i n OurlBuskesk, HiafrytardrCertain QorporataMattegsOam t i t | e
Managemert a Rebtatdd Financial Statemedts b e gi n ni M@ 122n125@rad 456, sespectively, our
Promoters do not have any other interest in our Company.

BUSINESSINTERESTS

Our Promoters are not interested as a member of a firm or company, and no sum has been paid or agreed to be paid to
our Promoters or to such firm or company in cash or shares or otherwise by any pessovides rendered by it or
by such firm or company in connection with the promotion or formation of our Company.

Our Company has not entered into any contract, agreements or arrangements during the preceding two years from the
date of filing of this Prospectus or proposes to enter into any such contract in which our Promoters are directly or
indirectly interested ando payments have been made to it in respect of the contracts, agreements or arrangements
which are proposed to be made with it.

PAYMENT OF AMOUNTS OR BENEFITS TO THE PROMOTERS OR PROMOTER GROUP DURING
THE LAST TWO YEARS

Except as stated in the chapter titfiRestated Financial Statemedtseginning orpagel50 of this Prospectus, there
has been no payment of benefits to our Promoters or Promoter Group during the two years preceding the date of this

Prospectus nor is there any intention to pay or give any amount or benefit to our Promoter or members of our Promoter
Group.

MATERIAL GUARANTEES GIVEN BY OUR PROMOTERS TO THIRD PARTY WITH RESPECT TO
EQUITY SHARES

As on the date of this Prospectus, our Promoters have not given any material guarantees to any third party with respect
to the Equity Shares.

OUR PROMOTER GROUP

Apart from our Promoters, as per Regulation 2(1)(pp) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the following individuals and
entities shall form part of our Promoter Group:

A. Natural Persons who are Part of the Promoter Group
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As per Regulation 2(1)(pp)(ii) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the following individuals form part of our Promoter

Group:

Name of the Promoter

Name of the Relative

Relationship with the Promoter

Late. Mr. S Shantilal Jain

Father

Ms. DamayanthBai Mother
Ms. Raj Kumari Spouse
Mr. Sunil Shantilal Brother
Ms. Kalpana L Sister
Ms. R Kavitha Sister
Mr. Manoj Kumar Ms. V Seema Kumari Sister
Mr. Neel M* Son
Ms. Vanshika M Daughters
Ms. Prachi M Daughters
Mr. Mahaveer Chand C Spouseds Father
Mrs. Naginakumari M Spousebds Mot her
Mr. KamalChand Spouseds Brother
Spouseds Sisters
Mr. Mahaveer Chand C Father
Ms. Naginakumari M Mother
Mr. Manoj Kumar Spouse
Mr. KamalChand Brother
Sister
Mr. Neel M* Son
, ) Ms. Vanshika M Daughter
Ms. Raj Kumari Ms. Prachi M Daughter
Late. S Shantilal Jain Spouseds Father
Ms. Damayanthi Bai Spousebds Mot her
Mr. Sunil Shantilal Spouseds Brother
Ms. Kalpana L Spousebds Sisters
Ms. R Kavitha Spouseds Sisters
Ms. V Seema Kumari Spouseds Sisters
Mr. Late. S Shantilal Jain Father
Ms. Damayanthi Bai Mother
Ms. Shalu Spouse
Mr. Manoj Kumar Brothers
Ms. Kalpana L Sisters
Ms. RKavitha Sisters
Ms. V Seema Kumari Sisters
. : Ms. Disha 8 Daughters
Mr. Sunil Shantilal Ms. Mehak Daughters
Son
Late. Dungarmal Bamboly Spouseds Father
Late. Sushila Devi Bamboly Spouseds Mot her
Mr. Sundeepraj Bamboly Spouseds Brother
Mr. Bhupendra&Kumar Bamboly Spouseds Brother
Mr. Lalit Kumar Banboly Spouseds Brother
Spouseds Sisters
Late. Dungarmal Bamboly Father
Late. Sushila Devi Bamboly Mother
Mr. Sunil Shantilal Spouse
Mr. Sundeepraj Bamboly Brothers
Mr. Bhupendra Kumar Bamboly Brothers
Mr. Lalit Kumar Bamboly Brothers
Sisters
Ms. Shalu Ms. Disha 8 Daughter
Ms. Mehak Daughter
Son
Late. S Shantilal Jain Spouseds Father
Ms. Damayanthi Bai Spouseds Mot her
Mr. Manoj Kumar S p 0 u Brethers
Ms. Kalpana L Spouseds Sisters
Ms. R Kavitha Spouseds Sisters
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Name of the Promoter Name of the Relative

Relationship with the Promoter

Ms.V Seema Kumari Spousebs

Sisters

*Minor

B. Companies / Corporate Entities Forming Part of the Promoter Group

As per Regulation 2(1)(pp)(iv) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the following Companies/Trusts/ Partnership

firms/HUFs or Sole Proprietorships are forming part of our Promoter Group.

r. No. Name of Promoter Group Entity/Company

SManoj HUF

Mangalam Foundatian

Kamal Chand HUF

SSunil HUF

SammimalShantilal HUF

Sundeepraj Bamboly arsbns(HUF)

BPC Corpration (Partnership Firm)

National Labo ChenfPartnership Firm)

© 0 N|o O~ W INIE !

Bhupendra Kumar Bamboly HUF

10. Rajshree Petr@€hemicalgPartnership Firm)

11. Sri Sohan Telecor{Partnership Firm)

12. LalithaKumar and SonfHUF)

SHAREHOLDING OF THE PROMOTER GROUP IN OUR COMPANY

For details of shareholding of members of our Promoter Group as on the thaseRybspectus, please see the chapter

t i t Capitdl Stiucturé beginning on pagé1l of this Prospectus.

COMPANIES WITH WHICH THE PROMOTERS HAVE DISASSOCIATED IN THE LAST THREE YEARS

Our Promoters have not disassociated themselves from any companies, firms or entities during the last three years

preceding the date of this Prospectus.
OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS

There is no other outstanding I|litigation

and c ha p®uestandinhgiLitigateons arfd Material Developmeénts b e g i rpagest8gnd DOBrespectively

of this Prospectus.

(This sectionis intentionally left blank)
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OUR GROUP COMPANIES
The definition of6 Gr o u p C casmgeathnei SEBl 8CDR Regulations, shall include such companies (other than
promoters(s), holding Company and subsidiary/subsidiaries) with which there were related party transactions, during
the period for which Financial Statements is disclosed, asetverder the applicable accounting standards, and also
other companies as considered material by the board.

In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and in terms of the policy of materiality defined by the Board pursuant to its
resolution dateduly 16, 2022ur Group Companies includes:

@ Those companies disclosed as related parties in acco
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, during the period for which Financial Information is disclosed.

(b) All such companies which are deemed to be material by the Board of Directors. Accordingly, based on the
parameters outlined above, our Company does not have any group company as on the date of this Prospectus.

Based on the above as on the date of filing this Prospectus, our Company does not have any Group Company.

(This sectionis intentionally left blank)
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the Companies Act, 2013 our Company can pay dividends upon a recommendation by our Board of Directors
and approval by a majority of the shareholders at the General Meeting and as per provisions of Articles of Association
of our Company. The shareheld of the Company have the right to decrease but not to increase the amount of dividend
recommended by the Board of Directors. The dividends may be paid out of profits of our Company in the year in which
the dividend is declared or out of the undistriloyteofits or reserves of previous fiscal years or out of both. The Articles

of Association of our Company also gives the discretion to our Board of Directors to declare and pay interim dividends.

Our Company does not have any formal dividend policy for the Equity Shares. The dividendytaghall be
determined by our Board after taking into account a number of factors, including but not limited to : (i) internal factors
such as profits earned g the year, present and future capital requirements of the existing businesses, business
acquisitions, expansion/ modernization of existing businesses, availability of external finance and relative cost of
external funds, additional investments in sdlaies/associates/joint ventures of our Company and restrictions on loan
agreement(s); and (ii) external factors such as economic and industry outlook, growth outlook, statutory/regulatory
restrictions and covenants with lenders/bond holders. Any fukterrdination as to the declaration and payment of
dividends will be at the discretion of our Board.

For details of risks in relation to our capability to pay dividend, see Risk Féac@uis ability to pay Dividends in the
future will depend on our future cash flows, working capital requirements, capital expenditures and financial condition.

Our Company has not paid / declared any dividengine-month period endeBecember 312024 and in last three
years from date of this Prospectus.

(This sectionis intentionally left blank)

149



To,

SECTION VII T FINANCIAL INFORMATION
RESTATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I ndepende n ExarinatidniReport od Bestated Financiallnformation

The Board of Directors

Manoj Jewellers Limited

No. 59, NSC Bose Road
Sowcarpet,

Chennai, Chennai, Tamil Nadu,
India, 600079

Dear Sirs,

1.

We have examined the attached Restated Financial InformatioMaabj Jewellers Limited (the
AiCompanyd6) comprising the St at en@xcemben3fl, 2004 Madhs & Li
31, 2024,March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 and the related Restated Statement of Profit & Loss and
Restated Statement of Cash Flow for gegiodended orDecember 31, 2024, angkar endedvarch 31,

2024,March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 the Summary Statement of Significant Accounting Policies, and other
explanatory information annexed to this report for the purpose of inclusion in the offer document prepared by
the Company ( RestattdeSurhnmary Statgmentsh edrestateéd Financial Statements ) .

These Restted Summary Statements have been prepared by the Company and approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company in connection with the Initial Public Offering of Equity Shares (IPO) on SME
Exchange.

These Restated Summary Statements have been prepared in accordance with the reqefirements

0] Section 26 of Part | of Chaptérl | to the Companies Act, 2013 (nd
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules 2014;

(i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regul at i olnCGD R2 ORle8g u(liseued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India
( ® E B)lirbpursuance to Section 11 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and
related amendments / clarifications from time to time; and

(i)  The Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (Al CAIl o), as amen

The Companyo6és Board of Directors is responsible f ol
for the purpose of inclusion in the Red Herring Prospectus/ Prospectus to be filed with SME Platform of BSE

Ltd (BSESME) in connection with propose@®O. The management of the Company has prepared the
Restated financial information. The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for designing,
implementing and maintaining adequate internal control relevant to the preparation and presentagion of t
Restated Financial Information. The Board of Directors are also responsible for identifying and ensuring that

the Company complies with the Act, ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note.

We have examined such Restated Financial Information taking into consideration:

a) The terms of reference and terms of emgagement agreed upon with you in accordance with our
engagement letter dated August 10, 2024onnection with the proposed IPO of equity shares of the
Issuer;

b) The Guidance Note. The Guidance Note also requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of
the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI;

c) Concepts of test checks and materiality to obtain reasonable assurance based on verification of evidence
supporting the Restated Financial Information; and

d) The requirements of Section 26 of the Act and the ICDR Regulations. Our work was performed solely to
assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation to your compliance with the Act, the ICDR
Regulations and the Guidance Note in connection withRe

This Restated Financial information of the Company have been compiled by the management from the

Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the finapeiabdended orbecember 31, 2024, and year
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ended March 31, 202%)arch 31, 2023, March 31, 20p2epared in accordance with the accounting standards
notified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended,
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The same has been approvétbhydtioé
Directors at their meeting held dmarch 24, 2025

In accordance with the requirements of Part | of Chapter Il of Act including rules made therein, ICDR
Regulations, Guidance Note and Engagement Letter, we report that:

(i) T h eStatBment of Assets & Liabilities, As Restatel a s s drnexurailtto thisnreport of the
Company as ddecember 31, 2024, March 31, 20R4arch 31, 2023 aniflarch 31, 2022 are prepared by
the Company and approved by the Board of Directors. These Statement of Assets and Liabilities, as restated
have been arrived at after making such adjustments and regroupings to the individual financial statements
of the Compay, as in our opinion were appropriate.

(i) T h etatBment of Profit & Loss, As Restated a s  sAnmexucedl to this report, of the Company
for the period endeBecember 31, 2024, and year ended March 31, 2084:h 31, 202&nd March 31,
2022,are prepared by the Company and approved by the Board of Directors. This Statement of Profit and
Loss, as restated have been arrived at after making such adjustments and regroupings to the individual
financial statements of the Company, as in our opinierevappropriate.

(i) Thed St at ement of Ca soh aFsl oswnhexfwsult Roeilsstregpdrteofithe Company
for the period endeBecember 31, 2024, and year ended March 31, 20a4;h 31, 202&nd March 31,
2022, are preparday the Company andpprovedoy the Board of DirectorsThis Statemenbf CashFlow,
asrestated have been arrived at after making such adjustments and regrtwiregimdividualfinancial
statements of the Company, as in our opinion were appropriate.

For the purpose of our examination, we have relied on:

a)Auditorsé Report issued by the Statut Accguntdntsdi t or s
on the financial statement for the period ended on December 31, 2024 vide their report dated March 12, 2025
and Auditorsd Report i ssued by the erstwhile Stat:!

Accountants on the financial statent for the year ended on March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31,
2022 vide their report dated July 10, 2024, July 18, 2023 and June 16, 2022 respectively.

b) The audits for th@eriod ended December 31, 20@4dfinancial years ended March 31, 2084arch 31,

2023, and March 31, 2022 were conducted by the Statutory auditors of the company and accordingly reliance

has been placed on the Balance Sheet, statements of profit anddasssh flow statementhe Significant
Accounting Policies, and other explanatory infor mat
examined by them for the said years.

Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us (and also as per the

reliance placed on the audit report submitted by the Previous Auditors for the respective years), we are of the

opinion that the Restated Financgthtements have been made dfteorporating:

a) Adjustments for the changes in accounting policies, material errors and regrouping/reclassifications
retrospectively in respectiyeeriod ended December 31, 2024, &indncial years endedarch 31, 2024,
March 31, 2023, and March 31, 2022 to reflect the same accounting treatment as per the accounting
policies and grouping/ classifications for all the reporting periods, if any.

b) Adjustmentdfor prior periodand other materiadmountsin the respective financial years to which they
relate and there are no qualifications, which require adjustments.

c) There are no extrardinary items that need to be disclosed separately in the accounts and qualifications
requiring adjustments.

d) There were no qualifications in the Audit Reports issued by the Statutory Auditors for the financial
period/yearended orDecember 31, 2024, March 31, 20R4arch 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, which
would require adjustments in this Restated Financial Statements of the Company.

e) These Profits and Losses have been arrived at after charging all expenses including depreciation and after
making such adjustments/restatements and regroupings as in our opinion are appropriate

f) These have been prepared in accordance with the Act, ICDR Regulations and Guidance note.

151



9. In our opinion and to the best of information and explanation provided to us, the Restated Financial
Information of the Company, read with significant accounting policies and notes to accounts as appearing in
ANNEXURE 7 IV are prepared after providing ampriate adjustments and regroupings as considered
appropriate.

10. We, Mardia &Associates, Chartered Accountants have been subjected to the peer review process of the
I nstitute of Chart elcAdd) Axzrcdumalachta wdl ilcdhdpeaen Ar evi ¢
iPeer Review Boardo of the | CAI

11. The preparation and presentation of the Restated Financial Statements referred to above are based on the
Audited financial statements of the Company and are in accordance with the provisions of the Act and ICDR
Regulations. The Financial Statements andrimftion referred to above is the responsibility of the
management of the Company.

12. The report should notin any way be construed asssuance or relating of any of the previous audit reports
issued by any other Firm of Chartered Accountants nor shouldetiistbe construed as a new opinion on
any of the financial statements referred to therein.

13.  We haveno responsibilityto updateour reportfor eventsand circumstancegccurringafterthe dateof the
report.Our report is intended solely for use of the managemenfaridclusion in the Offer Document in
connection with the SME IPO. Our report should not be used, referred to or adjusted for any other purpose
except with our consent in writing.

For M/s. Mardia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 007888S

Sd/-

CA Manish Mardia

Proprietor

Membership No. 205307

UDIN: 25205307BMKYEO2721
Place: Chennai

Date: March 24, 2025

(This sectionis intentionally left blank)
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